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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-34756

Tesla Motors, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 91-219772¢
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(650) 681-5000
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Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $0.001 par val The NASDAQ Stock Market LL(
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢ifie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantugel-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Ruleod@be Securities Act. Yed]
No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 o) %f the Act. YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) during the preceding rhonths (or for such shorter period that the tegyis was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requireséotthe past 90 days. Ye&Xl No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lésnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsto Rule 405 of Regulation Seuring the preceding 12 months (or for such srgrerioc
that the registrant was required to submit and posh files). Yes[O No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (82®% of this chapter) is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the bestegistrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or infoation statements incorporated by reference
in Part 11l of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthgtForm 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act:

Large accelerated file O Accelerated filel O
Non-accelerated file (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxgie Act). Yes[ No
The aggregate market value of voting stock helddry-affiliates of the registrant, as of June 3@ ®Qhe last day of registrant's most

recently completed second fiscal quarter, was $2587,326 (based on the closing price for shargiseofegistrant’s Common Stock as
reported by the NASDAQ Global Select Market on J&@e2010). Shares of Common Stock held by eacbutixe officer, director, and hold

of 5% or more of the outstanding Common Stock Heen excluded in that such persons may be deentedfiiliates. This determination of
affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusiviedeination for other purposes.

As of February 28, 2011, there were 95,335,371eshaf the registrant’s Common Stock outstanding.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

We design, develop, manufacture and sell high-pexdace fully electric vehicles and advanced electghicle powertrain components.
We own our sales and service network and have tpeadly structured our business in a manner thabelieve will enable us to rapidly
develop and launch advanced electric vehicles etfthblogies. We believe our vehicles, electric elehéngineering expertise, and operational
structure differentiates us from incumbent autordolianufacturers.

We are the first company to commercially produdederally-compliant electric vehicle, the Tesla Bstar, which achieves a market-
leading range on a single charge combined witlaetitre design, driving performance and zero taéd@missions. Our Tesla Roadster offers
impressive acceleration and performance withoutlycng any tailpipe emissions. The Tesla Roadspoprietary electric vehicle powertrain
system is the foundation of our business and, déign enhancements, will also form the basis fioiModel S sedan which is currently
scheduled to begin production in mid-2012. In a@dditwe provide services for the development ofteie powertrain components and sell
electric powertrain components to other automatiamufacturers as evidenced by our developmentcgsrand sales of battery packs and
chargers to Daimler AG (Daimler) for its Smart feotand A-Class electric vehicles, and our agreenteptoduce a validated electric
powertrain system for Toyota Motor Corporation (dta) for use in its RAV4 EV.

The commercial production of a highway capabldyfelectric vehicle that meets consumers’ rangeerbrmance expectations
required substantial design, engineering, and iatemn work on almost every system of our Teslad®bar. Our roots in Silicon Valley have
enabled us to recruit engineers with strong skillslectrical engineering, power electronics anitsare engineering. We have complemented
this talent base with automotive engineers withstaittial expertise in vehicle engineering and mactufing. Our ability to combine expertise
in electric powertrain and vehicle engineering fdes a broad capability in electric vehicle desigid systems integration. We believe these
capabilities, coupled with our focus solely on #liec/ehicle technology, will enable us to susttia electric vehicle industry leadership we
created through the production of the Tesla Roadste

We sell and service our Tesla Roadster though ampanyewned sales and service network. Our intent idfer @ compelling custom:
experience while achieving operating efficienclestter control costs of inventory, manage warraetyice and pricing, maintain and
strengthen the Tesla brand, and obtain rapid custé@edback. Our Tesla stores do not carry largecleeinventories and, as a result, do not
require corresponding large floor spaces. We beltbe benefits we receive from distribution owngrsbombined with our product design
based on modularity and common platforms, will daais to improve the speed of product developmedtimprove the capital efficiency of
our business. We believe that this approach previgewith a competitive advantage as comparecctanibent automobile manufacturers.

Our first vehicle, the Tesla Roadster, can acceddram zero to 60 miles per hour in 3.9 secondstes a maximum speed of
approximately 120 miles per hour. The Roadster Spsion can accelerate from zero to 60 mileshpeir in 3.7 seconds. The Tesla Roadster
has a range of 245 miles on a single charge, asmdeted using the United States Environmental Rtioie Agency’s (EPA’s), combined two-
cycle city/highway test. Recently, the EPA annouhitg intention to develop and establish new enef§igiency testing methodologies for
electric vehicles, which we believe could resultisignificant decrease to the advertised rangadl efectric vehicles, including ours. The
Tesla Roadster has a range that is almost doutie@ttany other commercially released electric glehand reportedly set a new world distance
record of 313 miles on a single charge for a prtidoelectric car in a rally across Australia agt jphthe 2009 Global Green Challenge. The
current effective price of the base configuratiéthe Tesla Roadster is $101,500 in the UnitedeStaissuming and after giving effect to the
continuation of a currently available United Stéetederal tax credit of $7,500 for the purchasel@raative fuel vehicles. The Tesla Roadste
currently in production, and as of December 31,20le had delivered over 1,500 Tesla Roadsteradtomers in 31 countries, almost all of
which were sold in
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North America and Europe. To date, our customeve ldgiven the Tesla Roadster for an estimated gadeeof over 9.0 million miles. We he
developed extensive software systems to managevirall efficiency, safety and controls within aughicles. Additionally, we have met
battery shipping and testing protocols of the UWhitations, United States Department of Transpantaaind other government agencies,
allowing us to ship the Tesla Roadster to a nurobepuntries throughout the world.

We announced our second electric vehicle, the M8dalith the public exhibition of a drivable eagyototype in March 2009. We
currently plan to begin production of the ModehShid-2012. We are designing the Model S to beua for, five-passenger premium sedan
that offers exceptional performance, functionadibd attractive styling. As a fully electric vehictae Model S will produce zero tailpipe
emissions while accelerating from zero to 60 mileshour in a targeted time of under 6 secondscuWviently anticipate that the base Model S
will have an effective price of $49,900 in the WnitStates with the standard 160 mile battery pagsyming and after giving effect to the
continuation of a United States federal tax cretlt7,500 for the purchase of alternative fuel ekds. Even without the tax credit, we believe
the base list price will be competitive from a prgperspective with other premium vehicles. Wedgsigning the Model S to offer a variety
range options from 160 miles to 300 miles on alsieharge, as projected using the EPA’s combineddyele city/highway test. The EPA has
announced its intention to develop and establish erergy efficiency testing methodologies for efectehicles, which we believe could res
in a significant decrease to the advertised ranfafl electric vehicles, including ours.

We anticipate that the initial units of the Model@ be introduced with a Signature Series whidl imclude certain colors and options,
some of which may not be available in the genemadipction of the Model S. We also plan to offer dapability to fast charge in as little as 45
minutes at commercial charging stations that weigate may be available in the future and theitgttib rapidly swap out its battery pack at a
specialized commercial battery exchange facilitgdmplement its range capabilities. We believe thatModel S will demonstrate our ability
to produce increasingly affordable electric vetddlgat offer long-range capabilities and uncompsamliperformance, energy efficiency,
convenience and design.

We are designing the Model S for a significantlgdater customer base than the Tesla Roadster. Angbrdwe currently intend to targ
an annual production rate of up to approximatel¥@0 cars per year from our planned manufactuiegify in Fremont, California. The
drivable early prototype of the Model S was exl@tito the public in March 2009 and the first alphatotype was driving before the end of
2010. As of December 31, 2010, we had receivedoappately 3,400 customer reservations with a mimmmefundable payment of $5,000.

We intend to develop a substantially integratedtalevehicle manufacturing facility in Fremont, I@arnia for the manufacture of the
Model S and its components. In October 2010, weptetad the purchase of this facility from New Udifdotor Manufacturing, Inc.
(NUMMI). We intend to use the facility for the proction of our planned Model S vehicle and to buwild future electric vehicles. We have
entered into a loan agreement with the United Staezleral Financing Bank and United States DepattofeEnergy (DOE Loan Facility), to
arrange loans for up to $465.0 million loan, $368i8ion of which is intended for the continued @épment of the Model S and the build out
of our Fremont facility.

The electric powertrain we developed for the T&dadster has provided the foundational technologwfir planned Model S, our future
vehicles and for electric powertrain components$ Wehave begun selling to Daimler and its affdmfind that we intend to sell to Toyota. Our
electric powertrain consists of only four physicamponents: our modular battery pack, our poweatedaics module, gearbox and our motor.
This component design contains far fewer movingspiwian a gasoline powertrain. These features enebio adapt it for a variety of vehicle
applications. The Tesla Roadster electric powertall be the basis of the Model S powertrain, wdgsign enhancements. Similarly, using the
existing Tesla Roadster battery pack, we have vbvkiéh Daimler since June 2008 to develop a batpeigk and charging system for an initial
trial of the Smart fortwo electric drive vehicldgiiprogram in at least five European cities. Weehaxpanded this business
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by developing and selling additional powertrain gmments to Daimler and Toyota, and have secured.3illion of an aggregate
$465.0 million from our DOE Loan Facility to funde infrastructure for these powertrain activitid& believe that our efforts in our
powertrain development will enable us to advanaetechnology and rapidly and cost effectively depelehicles.

Our battery pack and electric powertrain systememabled us to deliver markiglading range capability on the Tesla Roadstertait wwe
believe is a compelling battery cost per kilowaidtth The battery pack of the Tesla Roadster usesr@ycially available lithium-ion battery
cells and contains 53 kilowatt-hours of usable gnealmost double the energy of any other commiyca®ailable electric vehicle battery
pack, thereby significantly increasing its rangpatality. Designing an electric powertrain and &ieée to exploit its energy efficiency has
required extensive safety testing and innovatiobattery packs, motors, powertrain systems andciebkingineering. Our proprietary
technology includes cooling systems, safety systetrarge balancing systems, battery engineeringifiwation and environmental durability,
customized motor design and the software and elgics management systems necessary to manageylaattevehicle performance under
demanding real-life driving conditions. These tembgy innovations have resulted in an extensivellettual property portfolio—as of
February 3, 2011, we had 35 issued patents anadxéippately 280 pending patent applications with thréted States Patent and Trademark
Office and internationally in a broad range of area

We are designing our vehicles to enable the céstt@fe development of our future vehicles. Fioaty battery pack is based on
commodity battery cells placed in modules that wikelve will form the basis of later generationaf battery packs, such as those we are
developing for the Model S. Second, we use upgladesftware extensively for managing vehicle peniance and the driver experience.
Finally, we are designing a common platform arctitee for the Model S, which compactly positions tattery pack, motor and other
elements of our powertrain within the frame of edicle. We believe this architecture will form thasis of several future vehicles, including
our planned Model X crossover vehicle, and enabl®efficiently and cost effectively launch thessv vehicle models in the future.

Our design and vehicle engineering capabilitiemlmioed with the technical advancements of our ptrair system, have enabled us to
design and develop zero tailpipe emission vehitlaswe believe overcome the design, styling, arfiopmance issues that we believe have
historically limited broad consumer adoption ofadtie vehicles. As a result, we believe our Testedister customers enjoy, and Model S
customers will enjoy, several benefits, including:

* Long Range and Recharging Flexibil. The range of the Tesla Roadster is almost daheleange of any other commercially
available electric vehicle. We are designing thed®I to offer an even greater range option. Iritexid the Tesla Roadster
incorporates our proprietary on-board chargingesystpermitting recharging from almost any availadertrical outlet, and we are
designing the Model S to offer fast charging caligtfrom higher power electrical outlets. We bekethe long-range and charging
flexibility of our vehicles will help reduce cons@manxiety over range, alleviate the need for exjwen large-scale charging
infrastructure, and differentiate our vehicles aspared to our competit¢ currently announced electric vehicle product offgsi.

» Energy Efficiency and Cost of Owners. We believe our Tesla Roadster offers and ourrddrModel S will offer consumers an
attractive cost of ownership when compared to siniiiternal combustion engine or hybrid electribiekes. Using only a single
electric powertrain enables us to create a lightere energy efficient vehicle that is mechanicalippler than currently available
hybrid or internal combustion engine vehicles. Example, assuming a 245 mile range of the Tesla®eg an average electricity
cost of 11.7 cents per kilowatt-hour and an avegag®line price of $2.86 per gallon, which weredkherage residential electricity
cost and the gasoline price in the United Statedlivember 2010 as reported by the U.S. Energyrimition Administration of the
U.S. Department of Energy, the cost per mile td flne Tesla Roadster is approximately 70% less tharcost to fuel the 2009
Porsche 911 Carrera, which has an EPA mileagegrafii8 miles per gallon city and 25 miles per galhighway. Furthermore, we
expect our electric vehicles will have lower relai
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maintenance costs than hybrid, -in hybrid, or internal combustion engine vehicleg do fewer moving parts and the absenc
certain components, including oil, oil filters, sbalugs and engine valves. Additionally, governtmenentives that are currently
available can reduce the cost of ownership evehédu

» High-Performance Without Compromised Design or Funetiiyn. We believe we have been able to successfullycovee the
design and performance tradeoff issues that enagdbeost early electric vehicle designs. We belitreeTesla Roadster delivers
an unparalleled driving experience with instantarseand sustained acceleration through an exterashegt rof speed. In addition, «
planned Model S is being designed to seat fivetadpiovide best in class storage in the trunklawt while offering design and
performance comparable to, or better than, othempm sedan:

Our Vehicles and Products

We currently design, manufacture and sell the TRsladster, our first production vehicle. We ardgtgag our second vehicle, the
Model S, and currently plan to begin productiohaf Model S in mid-2012. We intend to design thed®IdS with an adaptable platform
architecture and common electric powertrain soweatan use the platform of the Model S to creatgré electric vehicles targeting additional
segments of the passenger vehicle market.

The Tesla Roadster

Our first vehicle, the Tesla Roadster, is the tigh-performance electric sports car and the bidhway-capable electric vehicle
available in the United States today. The two-gaatyertible Tesla Roadster has a combinationrafeastyle, performance and energy
efficiency that we believe is unmatched in the reatkday. As of December 31, 2010, we had deliveret 1,500 Tesla Roadsters to
customers in 31 countries, almost all of which wsolke to customers in North America and Europedaie, our customers have driven the
Tesla Roadster for an estimated aggregate of a@emnBlion miles. The Tesla Roadster complies withis exempt from, all applicable vehicle
safety standards in the United States, the Europegm as well as select other countries. Additipnave have met battery shipping and
testing protocols of the United Nations, Unitedt&eDepartment of Transportation and other govemimgencies, allowing us to ship the
Tesla Roadster to a number of countries througti@utvorld.

The current effective price of the base configomatf the Tesla Roadster is $101,500 in the Urfiiades, assuming and after giving
effect to the continuation of a currently availableited States federal tax credit of $7,500 forghechase of alternative fuel vehicles. The
Tesla Roadster offers performance characterigtaiswwe believe are among the best in the indulitcan accelerate from zero to 60 miles per
hour in 3.9 seconds and has a maximum speed ofx@prately 120 miles per hour. We believe the T&badsters lightweight and proprieta
electric powertrain provides significant performarazlvantages over traditional internal combustiagiree-powered sports cars. Specifically,
the electric powertrain that delivers peak torgneskcess of 200 foot pounds) at extremely low hetvons per minute, or rpm, and remains
near peak through 7,000 rpm of the 13,000 rpm ramgéles the Tesla Roadster to achieve its highldeof acceleration. With such a long and
flat torque curve, we believe the Tesla Roadstbvels a compelling driving experience with instamtous and sustained acceleration through
an extended range of speed.

The Tesla Roadster combines this performance vig-énergy efficiency. The Tesla Roadster has &ehapack capable of storing
approximately 53 kilowatt-hours of usable enerdymast double the energy of any other commerciallgilable electric vehicle battery pack
and has a range of 245 miles on a single chargdgetasmined using the United States EPA’s, combin@dcycle city/highway test. Recently,
the EPA announced its intention to introduce andldish new energy efficiency testing methodolodaeelectric vehicles, which we believe
could result in a significant decrease to the aikext ranges of all electric vehicles, includingotrhe Tesla Roadster reportedly set a new
world distance record of 313 miles on a single ghdor a production
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electric car in a rally across Australia as parthef 2009 Global Green Challenge. Assuming a 24& range of the Tesla Roadster and an
electricity cost of 11.7 cents per kilowatt-houhieh was the average residential electricity coshe United States for November 2010, the
energy cost of powering the Tesla Roadster is aqpattely 3.1 cents per mile. In comparison, assgnain average gasoline price of $2.86 per
gallon, the average gasoline price in the UnitedeStfor November 2010, the 2010 Toyota Prius Haelacost of approximately 5.7 cents per
mile and the 2009 Porsche 911 Carrera has a fsebf@pproximately 13.2 cents per mile. We belithase energy cost differences would be
greater in Europe where gasoline prices can besltheee times higher than in the United States.

The cumulative capital expenditures and researdidamelopment costs for the Tesla Roadster fronirmaption to the date we delivel
our first Tesla Roadster equaled approximately $hi2kon.

We have continued to rapidly develop the Tesla Rtedince its introduction. In June 2009, nine themfter its commercial
introduction, we launched the 2010 Tesla Roadktewn as the Tesla Roadster 2, as well as a higospgance variant, the Tesla Roadster
Sport. As compared to the original Tesla Roadster Tesla Roadster 2 delivered a higher qualitgriat, a new push-button gear selector,
improved heating and cooling performance, a mokegoful electric powertrain and improved noise redutc New optional features were also
added including clear coat carbon fiber trim fog txterior and interior, an adjustable suspensihimproved vehicle data connectivity via a
GSM module. In addition to making these enhancesyeve simultaneously reduced our manufacturingscsighificantly by making a number
of modifications, including redesigning our powéatronics module and switching to certain commoddmponents in our manufacturing
process. The Tesla Roadster Sport offers a higidonmance powertrain which improves acceleratromfO to 60 miles per hour from 3.9
seconds to 3.7 seconds, adjustable suspensioreafadrpance tires and forged wheels, all without poymising the efficiency of the Tesla
Roadster electric powertrain. The current effectiviee of the base configuration of the Tesla RtadSport is $121,000 in the United States,
assuming and after giving effect to the continuattba currently available United States federala@dit of $7,500 for the purchase of
alternative fuel vehicles. We delivered our fiight-hand drive model of the Tesla Roadster in dan2010 and have since delivered right-
hand drive Roadsters into key markets such as dKitegdom, Japan, Hong Kong, and Australia. In R0y 0, a year after the launch of
Roadster 2, we released the Roadster 2.5. As caehpathe Roadster 2, the Roadster 2.5 receivegbgraded front fascia and front chin
spoiler, improved electronics package and doubMé display, redesigned rear diffuser and improveidenceduction.

The performance and safety systems of the Tesld$Remand its battery required the developmenbphisticated control software. For
example, we have implemented several algorithnagiimvehicle control software to reduce the likeidmf unintended acceleration of our
vehicles in the event of either a mechanical octed@ic malfunction. We stop the flow of electrictb our motor when either the car is placed
in neutral or the key is rotated from the “qmdsition. We also stop the flow of electricity teetmotor during normal vehicle operation when
brake pedal is depressed for more than two sedaftelsthe accelerator has been depressed. Fimadljhave a dedicated processor that
monitors the ratio of accelerator position and terdelivered to our motor and will stop the flowedéctricity to our motor if the ratio diverges
from set parameters.

The Tesla Model S

Our planned second vehicle, the Model S, is culgrendpected to begin production in mid-2012. Wesirdt to leverage technologies
within the electric powertrain of the Tesla Roads$tecreate a four-door, five adult passenger séanproduces zero tailpipe emissions while
accelerating from zero to 60 miles per hour inrgdted time of under 6 seconds. The drivable gadyotype of the Model S was exhibited to
the public in March 2009 and as of December 31020/ had received approximately 3,400 customearvasions with a minimum refundat
payment of $5,000. We intend to make the Model 8lable with three range variants—160 miles, 23@siand 300 miles, on a single
charge, as projected using the EPA’s combinedhigiitvay test cycles—to allow customers to purclaselectric vehicle that best matches
their personal driving needs. We anticipate thatitiitial units of the Model S will be introducedtiva Signature Series which will include
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certain colors and options, some of which may moatrilable in the general production of the MdgleWe are designing the Model S to
include a third row with two rear-facing child sgasubject to applicable safety regulations andirements, allowing us to offer a seven
passenger sedan. The EPA has announced its imteataevelop and establish new energy efficienstirtg methodologies for electric
vehicles, which we believe could result in a sigaifit decrease to the advertised ranges of allrele@hicles, including ours.

To complement its range capabilities, we also pteoifer the Model S with a package of rechargipjans, including the capability to
fast charge in as little as 45 minutes at commediiact current charging stations that we antitdpaay be available in the future. This feature
would offer consumers a rapid and convenient wagtharge their vehicles. In addition, we are d@sigthe Model S to incorporate a modi
battery pack in the floor of the vehicle, enabling be rapidly swapped out at a specialized cororakbattery exchange facility. We are
designing the Model S to offer a compelling combimraof functionality, convenience and styling witit compromising performance and
energy efficiency. With the battery pack in theofl@f the vehicle and the motor and gearbox in Viith the rear axle, we are designing the
Model S to provide best in class storage spacemfoximately 29 cubic feet, including storage undleth the tailgate and the hood. By way of
comparison, this storage space exceeds the apmtelini4 cubic feet of storage available in the2BMW 5 Series sedan and the
approximately 21 cubic feet of storage availabléh#zn2009 Lincoln Town Car. We are also planningdaip the Model S with premium luxu
features, including a 17” touch screen driver ifatee, advanced wireless connectivity, such as 3@ectivity, and driver customization of the
infotainment and climate control systems of theiglehWe are designing the Model S with the intienachieve a five star safety rating. We
believe the intended combination of performanacgingt, convenience and energy efficiency of the o8 will help position it as a compelli
alternative to other vehicles in the luxury andfpenance segments.

We currently anticipate that the base Model S e an effective price of $49,900 in the Uniteat&t with a standard 160 mile range
battery pack, assuming and after giving effechtodontinuation of a United States federal taxiti&db7,500 for the purchase of alternative
fuel vehicles. Even without the tax credit, we &ed the base list price will be competitive withet premium vehicles. We have not finalized
pricing for the 230 or 300 mile range variantsted Model S.

We are designing the Model S to provide a lowet obswnership as compared to other vehicles igldss. We consider the purchase
price, cost of fuel and the cost of maintenance av&x year ownership period in this calculatidfe assume comparable residual values,
warranties, insurance costs and promotions andvesthat currently available consumer incentivesstiieavailable at the time of a Model S
purchase. In addition to the competitive pricinghe Model S relative to other premium vehicles,esémate that customers of electric
vehicles will enjoy lower fuel costs. For exammssuming an average of 12,000 miles driven per, weaaverage electricity cost of 11.7 cents
per kilowatthour and an average gasoline price of $2.86 péwrgaler the full ownership of the vehicle whichre¢he average electricity cc
and gasoline price in the United States, respdygtif@ November 2010, and based on our estimatbetnergy efficiency of the Model S, we
estimate that our planned Model S could have apmabely $1,400 per year less in fuel costs thaaraparable premium internal combustion
engine sedan. Furthermore, we expect the planneteMowill have lower maintenance costs than coatgarpremium internal combustion
engine sedans due to fewer moving parts and thenabf certain components, including oil, oilefik, spark plugs and engine valves.

Future Vehicle Roadmap Based on Model S Platform

We intend to design the Model S with an adaptald#fqrm architecture and common electric powertsirthat we can use the platform
of the Model S to create future electric vehicledels, such as a crossover/sport utility vehicleamor a cabriolet. In particular, by designing
our electric powertrain within the chassis to acomwdate different vehicle body styles, we beliewa the can save significant time in future
vehicle development. In addition, we believe ouatetgy of using commercially available battery &lill enable us to leverage improvements
in cell chemistries and rapidly introduce model®of Tesla Roadster and planned
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vehicles with different range options. Our desifithe Model S, however, is not complete and we make changes to the design of the
Model S, including changes that may make it moficdit to use the Model S platform for future velas.

In 2011, we publicly announced the Tesla Model Xhesfirst vehicle we intend to develop by leveragihe Model S platform. We are
designing the Model X as a crossover vehicle. Wenith to develop a prototype of the Model X by thd ef 2011.

We have also publicly announced our intent to dgvel third generation electric vehicle to be praalat our planned manufacturing
facility in Fremont, California. We intend to offthis vehicle at a lower price point and expegbtaduce it at higher volumes than our planned
Model S. We expect that this vehicle will be progld@ few years after the introduction of the MoXlel

Powertrain Development and Sales
In addition to our own vehicles, we also desigrvaliep, manufacture and sell advanced electric Velpiowertrain components.

In May 2009, we entered into a development agreémigh Daimler under which we performed specifiedearch and development
services for the development of a battery packdadger for Daimler’s Smart fortwo electric drivél development work related to the
development agreement had been completed as ofribece31, 2009. We have been selected by Daimkupply it with up to 1,800 battery
packs and chargers to support a trial of the Sfoexto electric drive in at least five Europeariest We began shipping the first of these
battery packs and chargers in November 2009 andtt recognize revenue for these sales in thetf@uarter of 2009.

In the first quarter of 2010, Daimler engaged uadsist with the development and production oftebapack and charger for a pilot fl
of its A-Class electric vehicles to be introducedurope during 2011. A formal agreement for thia@gement was entered into with Daimler
in May 2010. In October 2010, we completed the tgpraent of the A-Class battery pack and chargertseghn shipping production
components for a demonstration fleet in Februat120

In the first quarter of 2010, we completed the digwment and sale of modular battery packs for gtedelivery vans for Freightliner
Custom Chassis Corporation (Freightliner), aniatfl of Daimler. Freightliner plans to use theszgic vans in a limited number of customer
trials.

In May 2010, we and Toyota announced our interntiiocooperate on the development of electric vebjaded for us to receive Toyota’s
support with sourcing parts and production and regying expertise for the Model S. In July 2010,entered into an early phase agreement to
develop an electric powertrain for the Toyota RAWIth an aim by Toyota to market the electric véhia the United States in 2012,
prototypes would be made by combining the Toyotad/BRanodel with a Tesla electric powertrain. We bedawmeloping and delivering
prototypes to Toyota for evaluation in Septembetr®0

In connection with the Toyota RAV4 program, in Gmto 2010, we entered into a Phase 1 contract ssreigreement with Toyota for the
development of a validated powertrain system, iticlg a battery, power electronics module, motoarbex and associated software, which
will be integrated into an electric vehicle versimfithe Toyota RAV4. Pursuant to our agreementgpiawill pay us up to $69 million for the
anticipated development services to be providedsgver the expected term of our performance.

We are continuing to develop our electric powerti@@mponent and systems business and have secii€®d 2 million loan under our
DOE Loan Facility for the expansion of our engiregrand production capability for these activitie®ur Palo Alto facility. This facility,
which also serves as our corporate headquartsrs, al
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houses our research and development servicesdinglgell and component testing and prototypingyvel as manufacturing of powertrain
components for sales to third parties. We alsoyxedhe battery pack, gearbox and the motor fo#sa Roadster at this facility so that we
can efficiently share further powertrain innova@among the components for our vehicles as wel@se of our customers.

Technology

We believe the core competencies of our companp@neertrain and vehicle engineering. Our core latdlial property is contained
within our electric powertrain. This powertrainfisdamentally composed of five major elements: aubar battery pack, a power electronics
module, a motor, a gearbox and the control softmdrieh enables the components to operate as ansy¥ie designed each of these major
elements for our Tesla Roadster and plan to usémofihis technology in the Model S and our futakectric vehicles. Our powertrain and
battery pack have a modular design, enabling fujereerations of electric vehicles to incorporasggaificant amount of this technology.
Further, our powertrain is very compact and costéam fewer moving parts than the internal comlmsgiowertrain. These features enable |
adapt it for a variety of applications, includingrduture vehicles and any powertrain componentbuikel for other manufacturers.

From time to time, we intend to enter into develeparrangements with other automobile manufaduoarelectric powertrain
development activities. From inception through Deber 31, 2009, our powertrain development activitiere exclusively pursuant to a
development arrangement entered into in 2008, wivizh formalized pursuant to an agreement entetedrirMay 2009 with Daimler, related
to the development of a battery pack and charged&mler’'s Smart fortwo electric drive. All amowsnteceived under this development
agreement were recognized as an offset to resaarthevelopment expenses in the consolidated stateshoperations. During the year en
December 31, 2009, our research and developmernegp were $19.3 million after such offsets. ABefember 31, 2009 all development
work related to the development agreement had bepleted and we had recognized the full $23.2enilinder the development agreement.
During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2688arch and development expenses were $93.0mralfid $53.7 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 212 employeestipowertrain research and development department.

Battery Pack

We have designed our battery packs to have aflifwer 100,000 miles or seven years. In additioa,have designed battery packs to be
modular so that we can leverage technology devetopsracross our different vehicles and productsekample, the Tesla Roadster battery
pack contains 6,831 lithium-ion cells, each simitathe 6 to 12 cells (made by third party lithiuom-cell providers) found in many standard
laptop computers. The battery pack contains 53udtb-hours of usable energy, almost double theggnef any other commercially available
electric vehicle battery pack, thereby significgriticreasing vehicle range capability. Designingslattric powertrain and a vehicle to exploit
its energy efficiency has required extensive safesdting and innovation in battery packs, motoesygrtrain systems and vehicle engineering.
Our proprietary technology includes cooling systesasety systems, charge balancing systems, bateyiypeering for vibration and
environmental durability, robotic manufacturing pesses, customized motor design and the softwarelantronics management systems
necessary to manage battery and vehicle performamter demanding real-life driving conditions. W& significant experience and
expertise in the safety and management systemedéedvork with lithium-ion cells in the demandiagtomotive environment. We believe
these advancements have enabled us to productesyljick at a low cost per kilowatt-hour. To datgr, customers have driven the Tesla
Roadster for an estimated aggregate of over 9lmihiles.

We believe one of our core competencies is thegdesi our complete battery pack system. We havigded our battery pack system to
permit flexibility with respect to battery cell améstry, form factor and vendor that we adopt fottéxg cell supply. In so doing, we believe that
we can leverage the substantial battery
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cell investments and advancements being made gdibabattery cell manufacturers to continue to ioye the cost per kilowatt-hour of our
battery pack. We maintain an internal battery tgdting lab and an extensive performance datalfake snany available lithium-ion cell
vendors and chemistry types. We intend to incorjeattze battery cells that provide the best valuk@arformance possible into our battery
packs, and we expect this to continue over timesdiery cells continue to improve in energy storegeacity, longevity, power delivery and
cost. We believe this flexibility will enable us ¢ontinue to evaluate new battery cells as theptmeccommercially viable, and thereby
optimize battery pack system performance and @osidr current and future vehicles. We believeahility to change battery cell chemistries
and vendors while retaining our existing investreentsoftware, electronics, testing and vehicle&kpgng, will enable us to quickly deploy
various battery cells into our products and levertg latest advancements in battery cell techiyolog

The range of our electric vehicles on a single gbateclines principally as a function of usagegetand charging patterns. For example, a
customer’s use of their Tesla vehicle as well asfitaquency with which they charge the batteryhefrt Tesla vehicle can result in additional
deterioration of the battery’s ability to hold aachge. We currently expect that the Tesla Roadstieety pack will retain approximately 60-65%
of its ability to hold its initial charge after aximately 100,000 miles or seven years, which wifiult in a decrease to the vehicle’s initial
range. In addition, based on internal testing, stev&te that our Tesla Roadster would have a 5-tHi#éction in range when operated in -20°C
temperatures.

To date, we have tested hundreds of battery ckdgferent chemistries, form factors and desigdased on this evaluation, we are
presently using lithium-ion battery cells basedfua 18650 form factor in all of our battery packkese battery cells are commercially
available in large quantities. We currently inteéadise the same battery cell form factor in the ®l@&l

Power Electronics

The power electronics in Tesla’s electric powensagovern the flow of electrical current throughtig car, primarily the current that
flows into and out of the battery pack. The powecionics has two primary functions, the contriolaque generation in the motor while
driving and the control of energy delivery bacloitiie battery pack while charging.

The first function is accomplished through the drinverter, which converts direct current (DC) frtme battery pack into alternating
current (AC) to drive our three-phase induction ongt The drive inverter also converts the AC geteelély regenerative braking back into DC
for electrical storage in the battery pack. Theealinverter performs this function by using a hjggrformance digital signal processor which
runs some of the most complicated and detailedveo in the vehicle. In so doing, the drive inveisedirectly responsible for the
performance, high efficiency and overall drivingperence of the vehicle. For example, the powestedaics in the 2010 Tesla Roadster Sport
is capable of delivering approximately 900 ampslettrical current in a matter of milliseconds, lglivay the rapid acceleration of the vehicle.
We are continuing to make advancements in the dniwerter. The Model S drive inverter, for examplél] be able to deliver approximately
1,000 amps of current at better efficiency and logast as compared to the Tesla Roadster driveteven addition, we are also designing the
drive inverter to integrate more directly with atlt®mponents of the powertrain, reducing cost arel\while improving packaging efficiency.

The second function, charging the battery pacacemplished by the charger, which converts altergaurrent (usually from a wall
outlet or other electricity source) into direct @nt which can be accepted by the battery. Thegelanables us to use any available source of
power to charge our vehicle. Our vehicles can megghan any electrical outlet from a common outfet®®amps and 120 volts all the way up to
a high power outlet of 70 amps and 240 volts, wipictvides optimal recharging.

Since the Tesla Roadster charger system is btaltihe vehicle, it is possible to charge the vehiging a variety of power outlets.
Charging the Tesla Roadster battery pack to fulbcéy will take approximately 7
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hours using a 240 volt, 40 amp outlet that is widelailable in many homes in the United Statesfectric appliances. A high power
connection capable of 240 volts and 70 amps redihiesharging time to about 4.5 hours. Such a eotion can be installed in many homes
with the assistance of a qualified electrician. &dditional flexibility, the Tesla Roadster batt@agck can also be charged with a 120 volt, 15
amp connection. Using this lower power output, Tesla Roadster battery pack can be charged todpkcity in about 42 hours. This
flexibility in charging provides customers with atighal mobility, while also allowing them to cormiently charge the vehicle overnight at
home.

For the Model S, we plan to offer a high-voltagst feharge option that will enable the vehicle targe from higher amperage, DC
commercial charging stations that we anticipate b@gvailable in the future.

Motor

Our powertrains currently use custom designed Z@lraduction motors. We believe we have made skwepartant innovations in our
motor design that minimize mass while still prowiglihigh power and efficiency. Our motors incorperatproprietary fabricated copper rotor
design. Our motors also include optimized windimagigrns that allow for easy manufacture and fasrmuch copper as possible to reduce
resistance and energy losses.

We also use high-quality bearings and precisioarzahg on the rotor and shaft to enable the sptheMmotor up to 13,000 revolutions
per minute, or rpm, in normal operation. Combintiig very high rpm rating with an instantaneoud staque of over 200 foot pounds gives a
broad torque-speed map that allows a single speadbgx to deliver high vehicle performance.

Gearbox

We have designed a custom, single speed gearbbis timanufactured in-house for the Tesla Road¥tes. Roadster gearbox combines
low mass with high efficiency and can match bo#hspbeed and torque capabilities of Tesla’s AC itidoanotors. In comparison to a
gasoline-powered vehicle, the elimination of gdarges contributes to the rapid acceleration cteniatics of the Tesla Roadster. We plan to
design and manufacture the gearbox for the upcoMiogdel S sedan.

Control Software

The performance and safety systems of the Tesld$temand its battery required the developmenbphisticated control software.
There are numerous processors in the Tesla Rodadstentrol these functions, and we write custarnmfvare for many of these processors.
flow of electricity between the battery pack and thotor must be tightly controlled in order to defithe performance and behavior expected
in the vehicle. For example, software algorithmalde the vehicle to mimic the “creep” feeling whigdtivers expect from an internal
combustion engine vehicle without having to applggsure on the accelerator. Similar algorithmsrobitaction, vehicle stability and the
sustained acceleration and regenerative brakitigeo¥ehicle. Drivers use the information systemthenTesla Roadster to optimize
performance and charging modes and times. Softalaceis used extensively to monitor the chargesibeach of the cells of the battery pack
and to manage all of its safety systems.

We plan to leverage our investment in softwaretlierdevelopment of the Model S. In addition tokhicle control software, we also
intend to develop software for the infotainmenttegs of the Model S.

Vehicle Design and Engineering

In addition to the design, development and produactif the powertrain, we have created significartouse capabilities in the design i
engineering of electric vehicles and electric viEh@mponents and

12



Table of Contents

systems. We design and engineer bodies, chaggigpis, heating and cooling and low voltage eleatrsystems in house and to a lesser exten
in conjunction with our suppliers. Our team hasscoompetencies in computer aided design and ceaslsimulations which we expect to
reduce the product development time of new models.

Several traditional automotive subsystems reqstdabtantial redesign and custom optimization tegrdte with the powertrain of an
electric vehicle. For example, we redesigned ttagihg, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) sgst to integrate with the battery thermal
management system and to operate without the ergerysrated from an internal combustion enginedtiteon, low voltage electric systems
which power features such as the radio, power wirsg@and heated seats also needed to be desigreficsig for use in an electric vehicle.
We have developed expertise in integrating thesgpoments with the high-voltage power source invibigicle and in designing components
that significantly reduce their load on the vehigsgtery pack, thereby maximizing the availablegeanf the vehicle.

Additionally, our team has expertise in lightweighaterials, a very important characteristic foctie vehicles given the impact of mass
on range. The Tesla Roadster is built with an iraly-designed carbon fiber body which providesatabce of strength and mass. We intend to
build the Model S with a lightweight aluminum bodgd have been designing the body and chassis wilhiety of materials and production
methods that will help optimize the weight of trehicle. We intend to develop a substantially ingéepl electric vehicle manufacturing facility
in Fremont, California to assemble vehicles andufecture components that are critical to our ietlial property and quality of the Model S.
Our engineering and manufacturing teams are wor&loggside one another in an effort to acceleteeModel S development. We believe
co-location of our engineering and manufacturiregrie will help accelerate the development of nevdpets and allow for faster introduction
of product changes.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 170 employeesrivehicle design and engineering departments.

Sales and Marketing
Company-Owned Sales

We market and sell cars directly to consumers.|W@iopened our first store in Los Angeles, Cafifarin May 2008, all of our sales of
the Tesla Roadster were conducted via the phonéngerdet, or in-person at our headquarters anplagzate events. Increasingly, sales are
being made through our network of Tesla stores.Tagta stores are highly visible, premium outlatsiajor metropolitan markets that
generally combine retail sales and service. Wenihte build separate sales and service locatioseveral markets. As of December 31, 2008,
we had opened 2 stores, which increased to 10ssbyr®ecember 31, 2009 and 16 stores by Decemh@030. As of February 28, 2011, we
had opened 17 Tesla stores in the United StatespEwand Asia, located in Boulder, Chicago, Los élag, Menlo Park, Miami, New York,
Newport Beach, Seattle, Washington, D.C., Copenhdgendon, Milan, Monaco, Munich, Paris, Tokyo ahgich. We plan to open additior
stores during 2011, with a goal of establishingrapimately 50 stores globally within the next salgrears in connection with the planned
Model S rollout. Additionally, we plan to introdueenew store concept in 2011 to enhance the custoanehasing experience and to generate
greater visibility for Tesla products in areas @fthcustomer foot traffic. We also anticipate that will place greater sales emphasis on the
generation of Model S reservations during 2011.8atamate that our store expansion will cost appnately $5 million to $10 million annual
over the next several years.

We believe that by owning our own sales and semé@®ork we can offer a compelling customer experewhile achieving operating
efficiencies and capturing sales and service reegimcumbent automobile manufacturers do not einjolye traditional franchised distribution
and service model. Our customers deal directly withown Tesla-employed sales and service stafftiorg what we believe is a differentiated
buying experience from the buying experience coresarhave with franchised automobile dealers
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and service centers. We believe we will also be &bbetter control costs of inventory, manage argyr service and pricing, maintain and
strengthen the Tesla brand, and obtain rapid custé@edback. Further, we believe that by owningsalies network we will avoid the conflict
of interest in the traditional dealership structimgerent to most incumbent automobile manufactudrere the sale of warranty parts and
repairs by a dealer are a key source of revenuganiid for the dealer but often are an expensdtervehicle manufacturer.

Reservations

We typically carry very limited inventory of our lieles at our Tesla stores. While some customearshpse their vehicles from this
inventory, most of our Tesla Roadster customer®s@do customize the appearance of their vehidienfial customers who purchase Tesla
Roadsters manufactured to specification are requaenter into a purchase agreement and pay @fumuable deposit, which is applied
towards the purchase price of the vehicle. Foratekipurchased directly from our showrooms, no digp@required. For our 2011 model year
Tesla Roadsters manufactured to specificationcotrent purchase agreement requires the paymemnt iniitial deposit, which varies based on
the country of purchase. For the Model S, we reqair initial refundable reservation payment okast $5,000. Prior to 2010, our reservation
policy was to accept refundable reservation paymfotn all customers who wished to purchase a TRskdster and require full payment of
the purchase price of the vehicle at the time tigtamer selected their vehicle specifications. Bythe second quarter of 2010, we changed
our policy to require nonrefundable deposits foslddRoadsters manufactured to specification. We @isasionally accept refundable
reservation payments if a customer is interestguinchasing a vehicle but not yet prepared to sébecvehicle specifications. We currently
require full payment of the purchase price of thhigle only upon delivery of the vehicle to thetonser. Reservation payments and deposits
are used by us to fund, in part, our working cdpégquirements and help us to align production wigmand. For customers who have placed a
refundable reservation payment with us, the resierv@ayment becomes a nonrefundable deposit dreceustomer has selected the vehicle
specifications and enters into a purchase agreemkatdrivable early prototype of the Model S wakibited to the public in March 2009 and
as of December 31, 2010, we had received approglynat400 customer reservations for the vehicleoABecember 31, 2010, we held
reservation payments for undelivered Tesla Roaslgtesin aggregate of $2.5 million and reservatiaynpents for Model S sedans in an
aggregate of $28.3 million. All reservation paynsefar the Model S are fully refundable until suthe that a customer enters into a purchase
agreement.

Leasing

We began offering a leasing alternative to custesméour Tesla Roadster in the United States anmth@ain 2010. Leases are offered
through our wholly owned subsidiary, Tesla Motoesking, Inc. Under this program, we currently pequalifying customers to lease the
Tesla Roadster for generally 36 months, after whiidle they have the option of either returning ¥kéicle to us or purchasing it for a
predetermined residual value. We are using a fiartly provider to administer the back office seegicincluding billing and collections, of the
leases.

Marketing
Our principal marketing goals are to:
» generate demand for our vehicles and drive leadsitcales team
*  build lonc-term brand awareness and manage corporate repi
* manage our existing customer base to create logatfycustomer referrals; a
* enable customer input into the product developrpemtess

As the first company to commercially produce a fathg-compliant, fully electric vehicle that achies market-leading range on a single
charge, we have been able to generate significadtartoverage of our
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company and our vehicles, and we believe we wittibmie to do so. To date, media coverage and wiongbath have been the primary drivers
of our sales leads and have helped us achievewdlesit traditional advertising and at relativédyv marketing costs. We also use traditional
means of advertising including product placemerat irariety of media outlets and pay-per-click atlsements on websites and applications
relevant to our target demographics.

The strength of our brand has been highlightechbdgpendent authorities. For example, in Novemb88 28dvertising Ageselected us ¢
one of “America’s hottest brands” in a special mighlighting the year’s 50 top brands.

Our marketing efforts include events where our oielsi are displayed and demonstrated. These ewargs from widely attended public
events, such as the Detroit, Los Angeles, and Fuainkuto shows, to smaller events oriented towaadss, such as private drive events.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 121 employeesrisales and marketing department.

Company-Owned Service and Warranty
Service

Service of our electric vehicles takes place attrmbsur Tesla stores. Going forward, we intenthtidd separate sales and service
locations in several markets. Within countries v covered by our warranty agreement, we offepate service through our mobile service
technicians known as the Tesla Rangers. We chaigieroers a fixed rate per mile for our Tesla Ramgeehnicians’ return trip from the
location of the customer’s vehicle to the nearesstld store. For customers that are not coveredibwarranty agreement, we offer at home
service at a higher cost.

Tesla owners can upload data from their vehiclesamdl it to us on a memory card or via an on-bG8# system, allowing us to
diagnose and remedy many problems before everrigaiti the vehicle. When maintenance or servicegsired, a customer can schedule
service by contacting one of our regional TeslaestoOur Tesla Rangers can perform an array ofgres at a remote location, from annual
inspections and firmware upgrades to full replacetnoé a power electronics module and other mecladuaied electrical components. If service
is more extensive and requires a vehicle lift, ae coordinate shipping of vehicles to and fromrtbarest Tesla store.

We believe that our company-owned service enahlesechnicians to work closely with our engineard sesearch and development
teams in Silicon Valley to identify problems, fisdlutions, and incorporate improvements faster themmbent automobile manufacturers.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 79 employees irsetice department.

New Vehicle Limited Warranty Policy

We provide a three year or 36,000 miles New VeHiaheited Warranty with every Tesla Roadster, whiok extended to four years or
50,000 miles for the purchasers of our 2008 TesladRter. Customers have the opportunity to purcaadextended Service Plan for the pe
after the end of the New Vehicle Limited Warraraycover additional services for an additional thyears or 36,000 miles, whichever comes
first. The New Vehicle Limited Warranty is similar other vehicle manufacturer’s warranty programg ia intended to cover all parts and
labor to repair defects in material or workmanshighe body, chassis, suspension, interior, elaatrsystems, battery, powertrain and brake
system. Exceptions to the New Vehicle Limited Watydanclude wear items such as tires, brake padgeaiors, paint wear and tear, interior
wear and tear and battery performance.
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Battery Replacement Option

While battery failure due to defects in material\mrkmanship is included in the New Vehicle Limitdthrranty, battery performance,
specifically its ability to store electricity ovéme, is not covered in either the New Vehicle L Warranty or the Extended Service Plan.
However, within three months of purchasing a vehiclistomers may purchase a one-time option taceghe battery pack at any time after
the expiration of the New Vehicle Limited Warratyt before the tenth anniversary of the purchase afethe vehicle. For customers that
select this option, we agree to replace the origiattery of the vehicle with a replacement batighych will store at least 53 kilowatt-hours of
usable energy. Charges in addition to the optiastmse price apply if the customer exercises thietyaeplacement option prior to the
seventh anniversary of the purchase date of thieleefThe customer is entitled to a partial refufidhe option purchase price if the option is
not elected by the eighth anniversary of the puseltdate of the vehicle.

Manufacturing
Vehicle Assembly

We currently use a mulite manufacturing process for production of theld@®oadster and plan to transition to our plarswdastantiall
integrated site for production of the Model S antlife vehicles in Fremont, California. The initieldy and chassis assembly processes for our
Tesla Roadster occur at a Lotus Cars Limited (Dofality in Hethel, England where our staff workiesely with Lotus. For vehicles destined
for the United States, we ship the rolling chasstich does not contain our electric powertrain amdch we call a glider, to our final assem
facility in Menlo Park, California. At our Menlo Balocation, we install the full electric vehiclewertrain and perform a pre-delivery
inspection prior to shipping the Tesla Roadsterustomers. For European and Asian deliveries,utheéhicle is assembled on-line at the
Lotus facility and pre-delivery inspection occutaaearby Tesla facility in Wymondham, EnglandrsRant to the supply agreement with
Lotus, we are obligated to purchase a minimum 49@ vehicles or gliders over the term of the agmsimWe currently intend to manufacture
gliders with Lotus for our current generation TeRlzadster until January 2012. We intend to usestéders in the manufacturing of the Tesla
Roadster to both fulfill orders placed in 2011 adlhas new orders placed in 2012 until our supplglimlers is exhausted. Accordingly, we
intend to offer a limited number of Tesla Roadsferssale in 2012. To the extent we wish to setlindnal Tesla Roadsters with the Lotus
gliders beyond those we have contracted for, weng#d to negotiate a new or amended supply agrgenith Lotus. As of December 31,
2010, we had purchased approximately 1,700 veholgéiders under this agreement.

We intend to develop a substantially integratedtglevehicle manufacturing facility in Fremont, I@arnia to manufacture components
that are critical to our intellectual property aquhlity of the Model S, including stamping, plastibody assembly, paint operations, battery
pack manufacturing, final vehicle assembly and efaliine testing. Certain major component systemklve purchased from suppliers. We
currently intend to target an annual productioe edtthis facility for the Model S of up to appnamdtely 20,000 cars per year. We believe that
we will be able to increase the annual productiapecity of this plant beyond this amount througditohal capital spending as well as by
changing operating patterns and adding additiomtks

Powertrain Component Manufacturing

In addition to developing our planned Model S amaife vehicle manufacturing facility in Fremont,|li@ania, we are currently designil
and manufacturing lithium-ion battery packs, elieatnotors, gearboxes and components both for duickes and for our original equipment
manufacturer customers in our electric powertragmuafacturing facility in Palo Alto, California. Sgécally, at the Palo Alto facility:

* Motor. We manufacture our induction motors. We have atgerour own manufacturing facility in part to ot the proprietary
technology we developed for our mot
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» Battery Pack:. We assemble the Tesla Roadster, Daimler Smavidcglectric drive, and Daimler-Class battery pack

» Power Electronic«. We manufacture chargers for the Daimler Smattvioand the Daimler -Class. The Tesla Roadster pou
electronics module, or PEM, is manufactured basedus design by a contract manufacturer locatethiwan.

» Gearbox. We manufacture the Tesla Roadster gear

We intend to develop our electric powertrain comgarand systems business and have secured a $iillio@ loan under our DOE
Loan Facility for the expansion of our engineeramgl production capability for these activities ur ®alo Alto facility. We intend to
manufacture the powertrain components for the M&dahd for the Toyota RAV 4 EV at this facility aadour planned Fremont manufactui
facility.

Supply Chain

The Tesla Roadster uses over 2,000 purchasedvgads we source globally from over 150 suppliergjmmof whom are currently our
single source suppliers for these components. We Haveloped close relationships with several kgpBers particularly in the procurement
of cells and certain electric powertrain componewihile we obtain components from multiple souraéenever possible, similar to other
automobile manufacturers, many of the componergd irsour vehicles are purchased by us from asisglrce. We refer to these component
suppliers as our single source suppliers. To adetehave not qualified alternative sources for nodshe single sourced components used in
vehicles and we generally do not maintain long-tagreements with our single source suppliers. kample, while several sources of the
battery cell we have selected for the Tesla RoadS&amler Smart fortwo and Daimler A-Class areitde, we have fully qualified only one
supplier for these cells. Any disruption in the glypof battery cells from such vendor could tempityalisrupt production of the vehicles until
such time as a different supplier is fully qualifiand there can be no assurance that we wouldlbéecasuccessfully retain alternative suppliers
on a timely basis. Moreover, battery cell manufeedumay choose to refuse to supply electric velm@daufacturers to the extent they deterr
that the vehicles are not sufficiently safe.

While we believe that we may be able to establidrrzate supply relationships and can obtain oirerey replacement components for
our single source components, we may be unable smdn the short term or at all at prices or ctsas are favorable to us. In particular, while
we believe that we will be able to secure altersaterces of supply for almost all of our singlersed components on a relatively short time
frame, qualifying alternate suppliers or developing own replacements for certain highly customizeshponents of the Tesla Roadster, such
as the carbon fiber body panels, which are supptiags by Sotira 35, a unit of Sora Composites @rou

In addition, Lotus is the only manufacturer forte@ components, such as the chassis of our Texddd$®er, and we refer to it as a sole
source supplier. We do not currently utilize anlesmurce suppliers other than Lotus. Replacingtibeponents from Lotus that are sole
sourced may require us to reengineer our vehialbih would be time consuming and costly.

We are currently designing and sourcing comporfentthe Model S that will leverage world-class aatgive suppliers. We plan to
leverage our relationships with Daimler and Toytotaccess their supply bases and gain access ®Isantost, high quality parts.

We use various raw materials in our business inetudluminum, steel, carbon fiber, non-ferrous fsetach as copper, as well as nickel
and cobalt. The prices for these raw materialddiate depending on market conditions and globalashehfior these materials. We believe that
we have adequate supplies or sources of availabilithe raw materials necessary to meet our matwiag and supply requirements. There
are always risks and uncertainties, however, vasipect to the supply of raw materials that coulgaat their availability in sufficient quantiti
or reasonable prices to meet our needs.
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We have implemented enterprise resource plannidgreanagement software to automate our procurenmehninaentory processes and
integrate them with our financial accounting. Warphdditional investment in our management systersgpport further growth in our
operations.

Quality Control

Our quality control efforts are divided betweendgurct quality and supplier quality, both of whicle docused on designing and produc
products and processes with high levels of religbiDur product quality engineers work with oulgereering team and our suppliers to help
ensure that the product designs meet functionalifigegtions and durability requirements. Our supptjuality engineers work with our
suppliers to ensure that their processes and sgsaesrcapable of delivering the parts we needeatetuired quality level, on time, and on
budget. Our quality systems engineers create amagesour systems, such as configuration manageanertorrective action systems, to help
ensure product developers, supplier chain managedsproduction controllers have the product infation they need.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 213 employeesrimaunufacturing department.

Customers and Selected Relationships

We currently sell our cars primarily to individualstomers. We have strategic or commercial relakips with Daimler, Toyota and
Lotus, as well as with various battery cell provgléVe intend to expand our business by develoaimbselling additional powertrain
components to Daimler, Toyota and other third p&BMs, and have secured a $101.2 million loan undeDOE Loan Facility to fund the
infrastructure these activities.

Daimler AG

Beginning in 2008, we commenced efforts on a paagrdevelopment arrangement with Daimler. In M892, we entered into a
development agreement with Daimler under which asehperformed specified research and developmevitss for the development of a
battery pack and charger for Daimler’'s Smart forelectric drive. All development work related t@ ttievelopment agreement had been
completed as of December 31, 2009. We have beeatedlby Daimler to supply it with approximatela0Q battery packs and chargers to
support a trial of the Smart fortwo electric driveat least five European cities. We began shipgirgdfirst sets of these battery packs and
chargers in November 2009 and started to recogeiznue for these sales in the fourth quarter 682 the first quarter of 2010, Daimler
engaged us to assist with the development and ptiotiuof a battery pack and charger for a pilogflef its A-Class electric vehicles to be
introduced in Europe during 2011. A formal agreetienthis arrangement was entered into with DairiieMay 2010. In October 2010, we
completed the development of theGlass battery pack and charger and began shippauyption parts in February 2011. In the first qeraof
2010, we completed the development and sale of fapdattery packs for electric delivery vans foeightliner, an affiliate of Daimler.
Freightliner plans to use these electric vanslimied number of customer trials.

In addition to the development agreement descritbexye, we have entered into an exclusivity andl@dtial property agreement (EIP
Agreement) with Daimler North America CorporatiddNAC), an affiliate of Daimler, in which we agretmbegin negotiating in good faith to
enter into further agreements within certain sgi&teooperation areas, including technology coltakion in various electric powertrain areas,
automotive engineering support, joint electric edhidevelopment efforts and access to componett farTesla designed products. Under
EIP Agreement, we agreed that, until November D092we would not negotiate or enter into any agesgs with other parties that would be
competitive with the arrangements contemplatedifese strategic cooperation areas, unless theégesiduch arrangement would be marketed
solely under the Tesla brand. As of that date, act ot executed any further agreements with Daiimlére areas of strategic cooperation.
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The EIP Agreement provides that ending June 293 201he company receives an offer from a strat@gimpetitor of Daimler to enter
into an agreement for development of a non-Teslad®d vehicle or an integrated electric powertsgstem, DNAC would be given the right
of first refusal to enter into such agreement wlith company instead of, and on the same termsedffay, the third party.

The EIP Agreement also provides that if we exeawgtrategic cooperation agreement with DNAC totjpiangineer an electric vehicle,
then additional exclusivities would apply until &29, 2013, provided a minimum annual volume cés@ achieved. The EIP Agreement
provides that none of the restrictions set ouhat igreement, or in any strategic agreement, wionitus from developing technology with
any third party for use in a Tesla-branded produdervice or related to the Tesla Roadster or M8dengaging in any transaction with a
company that is not a Daimler competitor, or supgycomponents for electric powertrains that arggreed by third parties.

The EIP Agreement also provides that if the pasiger into the strategic agreements or furtheeegents, those agreements will
allocate intellectual property rights according@stain principles outlined in the EIP Agreementatidition, until June 29, 2013, before
licensing intellectual property generated outsktedcope of any strategic cooperation area to mBacompetitor, we would first have to of
DNAC the right to license the intellectual propeoty a non-exclusive, royalty-bearing basis, or me%clusive basis in the automotive field,;
and if DNAC requests the latter, we must negotsaieh a license in good faith. If no agreementashed, however, we would be free to lice
the technology to the Daimler competitor, and DNédgtild take a non-exclusive license. Both we andribai have the right to terminate the
EIP Agreement in the event the other party undesgoeexecutes an agreement to undergo, a charggawbl. Any strategic cooperation
agreements entered into between us and Daimlartoriermination will not be affected by such tenation.

To date, with the exception of the development eigient for the Smart fortwo electric drive and theeament for the development and
production of a battery pack and charger for atfiéet of Daimler's A-Class electric vehicles te imtroduced in Europe in 2011, the strategic
agreements described in the EIP Agreement haveeawst entered into, and there can be no assuragici¢hparties will ever enter into such
agreements. Even if we were to enter into suchemgeats, the parties may negotiate and agree ta tiwamh are different to those set forth in
EIP Agreement and outlined above. Such differemear terms may be more or less favorable to us.

In addition to these agreements, Blackstar Invelstéd (Blackstar), an affiliate of Daimler, benefidly owned 7,475,740 shares of our
common stock as of December 31, 2010. Blackstapsasentative, Dr. Herbert Kohler, serves as a reewfour Board of Directors.

Toyota Motor Corporation

In May 2010, we and Toyota announced our intertiiocooperate on the development of electric vebjadead for us to receive Toyota’s
support with sourcing parts and production and regying expertise for the Model S. In July 2010,emtered into an early phase agreement to
develop an electric powertrain for the Toyota RAWIth an aim by Toyota to market the electric véhia the United States in 2012,
prototypes would be made by combining the Toyotad/Banodel with a Tesla electric powertrain. We bedameloping and delivering
prototypes to Toyota for evaluation in September@®@®ursuant to the agreement, Toyota will paypusub9 million for the anticipated
development services to be provided by us oveetpected term of our performance.

In connection with the Toyota RAV4 program, in Ca¢o 2010, we entered into a Phase 1 contract ssreigreement with Toyota for the
development of a validated powertrain system, iticlg a battery, power electronics module, motoarigex and associated software, which
will be integrated into an electric vehicle versimfithe Toyota RAV4. Pursuant to the agreementotawvill pay us up to $60 million for the
anticipated
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development services to be provided by us oveettpected term of our performance. In addition tsthagreements, in July 2010, we sold
2,941,176 shares of our common stock to Toyotaiainitial public offering price of $17.00 per skar

Panasonic

Panasonic is the supplier of cells for one of aurent battery packs. In January 2010, we annoutitdve were collaborating with
Panasonic on the development of next-generatiatrieleehicle cells based on the 18650 form faetwd nickelbased lithium ion chemistry.
November 2010, we sold 1,418,573 shares of our camstock to an entity affiliated with Panasonic @woation at a price of $21.15 per shi
which was the average of the trading highs and loinsir common stock from October 25 to OctoberZf¥,0.

Lotus Cars Limited

Lotus currently provides us with assembly and othanufacturing services. Although we complete thalfassembly of our Tesla
Roadster, the initial body and chassis assemblggsses occur at a Lotus facility in Hethel, Englesngre our staff works closely with Lotus.
For vehicles destined for the United States, wp & glider to our final assembly facility in MerPark, California. For European and Asian
deliveries, the full vehicle is assembled on-libéhe Lotus facility and pre-delivery inspectiorcacs at a Tesla facility in Wymondham,
England. Pursuant to the supply agreement withd,oti¢ are obligated to purchase a minimum of 2y&icles or gliders over the term of the
agreement. If we are unable to meet this volumairement, we are still responsible for payment étuis of the lesser of the sum of the actual
costs incurred and an agreed upon profit margirvebicle up to the minimum volume requirement o4£9,000. We currently intend to
manufacture gliders with Lotus for our current gatien Tesla Roadster until January 2012. We intengse these gliders in the manufactu
of the Tesla Roadster to both fulfill orders plage@011 as well as new orders placed in 2012 ontilsupply of gliders is exhausted.
Accordingly, we intend to offer a limited numberTdsla Roadsters for sale in 2012. To the extenwigh to sell additional Tesla Roadsters
with the Lotus gliders beyond those we have cotdrthfor, we will need to negotiate a new or amersiguply agreement with Lotus. As of
December 31, 2010, we had purchased approximafédp Vehicles or gliders under this agreement.

Governmental Programs, Incentives and Regulations
United States Department of Energy Loans

On January 20, 2010, we entered into a loan faailith the Federal Financing Bank (FFB) and theteaiStates Department of Energy
(DOE), under the DOE’s Advanced Technology Vehidlemufacturing Loan Program, as set forth in Sec1i86 of the Energy Independence
and Security Act of 2007 (ATVM Program). We refersuch loan facility as the DOE Loan Facility. Untlee DOE Loan Facility, FFB has
made available to us two multi-draw term loan féies in an aggregate principal amount of up to3b@énillion and the DOE has agreed to
reimburse FFB for any liabilities, losses, costexpenses incurred by FFB with respect to the tean facilities. Up to an aggregate principal
amount of $101.2 million will be made available enthe first term loan facility to finance up to%®f the costs eligible for funding under the
ATVM Program for the powertrain engineering and blvéld-out of a facility to design and manufactliteium-ion battery packs, electric
motors and electric components (the PowertrainliBgciUp to an aggregate principal amount of $36aillion will be made available under
the second term loan facility to finance up to 80Rthe costs eligible for funding under the ATVMogram for the development of, and to
build out the manufacturing facility for, our Modelsedan (the Model S Facility). Under the DOE LBanility, we are responsible for the
remaining 20% of the costs eligible for funding anthe ATVM Program for the projects as well as aagt overruns for each project. The
costs paid by us to date for the Powertrain Fgdailitd the Model S Facility will be applied towamls obligation to contribute 20% of the
eligible project costs, and the DOE's funding diufie eligible costs will be adjusted to take thigiaccount. Our remaining obligations for the
development and
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build-out of our manufacturing facility for the MeHS, is budgeted to be an aggregate of $33 mjlpars any cost overruns for the projects.
We have paid for the full 20% of the budgeted costated to our Powertrain Facility, but will camtie to be responsible for cost overruns.

Our ability to draw down funds under the DOE Loaikity is conditioned upon several draw conditioRer the Powertrain Facility, the
draw conditions include our achievement of progragsstones relating to the development of the ptram manufacturing facility and the
successful development of commercial arrangemeititstiird parties for the supply of powertrain cooments. For the Model S Facility, the
draw conditions include our achievement of progragsstones relating to the design and developroktite Model S and the planned Mode
manufacturing facility. We will be required to mtdin, at all times, available cash and cash eqgeitalof at least 105% of the amounts
required to fund such commitment, after taking im¢gount current cash flows and cash on hand,easbnable projections of future genere
of net cash from operations, losses and expenditure

Loans may be requested under the facilities uatibary 22, 2013, and we have committed to comphet@rojects being financed priot
such date. On the closing date, we paid a fadiigyto the DOE in the amount of $0.5 million. ThgbuDecember 31, 2010, we have received
draw downs under the DOE Loan Facility for an aggte of $71.8 million, with interest rates rangfrgm 1.7% to 3.4%, for eligible project
costs under both projects that we have incurred fbecember 15, 2008 through October 31, 2010.

Advances under the DOE Loan Facility accrue inteaea per annum rate determined by the Secrefahedrreasury as of the date of
advance, and will be based on the Treasury yietdecand the scheduled principal installments fahsadvance. Interest on advances unde
DOE Loan Facility is payable quarterly in arreagkdvances under the Powertrain Facility are repayabR8 equal quarterly installments
commencing on December 15, 2012 (or, for advanaerfter such date, in 26 equal quarterly instdisicommencing on June 15, 2013).
All outstanding amounts under the Powertrain Fgoililll be due and payable on the maturity dat&eptember 15, 2019. Advances under the
Model S Facility are repayable in 40 equal quaytarstallments commencing on December 15, 2012fgoadvances made after such date, in
38 equal quarterly installments commencing on i»e013). All outstanding amounts under the M@&l&lacility will be due and payable on
the maturity date of September 15, 2022. Advanceguthe loan facilities may be voluntarily prepatcany time at a price determined based
on interest rates at the time of prepayment fondaaade from the Secretary of the Treasury to FfBbligations with an identical payment
schedule to the advance being prepaid, which cagdlt in the advance being prepaid at a discaimar or at a premium. The loan facilities
are subject to mandatory prepayment with net casteeds received from certain dispositions, logh/with respect to property and other
extraordinary receipts.

All obligations under the DOE Loan Facility are sezd by substantially all of our property. All afiroexisting and future domestic
subsidiaries will also be required to guaranty alligations under the DOE Loan Facility. Our exigtand future foreign subsidiaries may,
under certain circumstances, be required to guakantobligations under the loan facility. Any sugliarantees by existing and future
subsidiaries will be secured by substantially athe property of such subsidiaries.

The DOE Loan Facility documents contain customamenants that include, among others, a requirethebthe projects be conducted
in accordance with the business plan for such progempliance with all requirements of the ATVMoBram; and limitations on our and our
subsidiaries’ ability to incur indebtedness, intiens, make investments or loans, enter into mergeacquisitions, dispose of assets, pay
dividends or make distributions on capital stocy pndebtedness, pay management, advisory or sifaéa to affiliates, enter into certain
affiliate transactions, enter into new lines ofibass, and enter into certain restrictive agreemémteach case subject to customary exceptions

The DOE Loan Facility documents also contain finahoovenants requiring us to maintain a minimutioraf current assets to current
liabilities, and (i) through December 15, 2012, iaimum cash balance, and
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(i) after December 15, 2012, a maximum leveragi® ra minimum interest coverage ratio, a minimuxed charge coverage ratio, a limit on
capital expenditures and, after March 31, 2014agimum ratio of total liabilities to shareholdengyg. Under the DOE Loan Facility, we are
required to fund a debt service reserve accoumtr drefore December 31, 2012, in an amount equal frincipal and interest that will come
due on the advances on the next two payment datee we have deposited such two payments, we atilba required to further fund such
debt service reserve account. We have also agneethtconnection with the sale of our stock in &llow-on equity offering, at least 50% of
the net offering proceeds will be received by uefihg proceeds may not be used to pay bonusether compensation to officers, directors,
employees or consultants in excess of the amowntemplated by our business plan approved by thE.DZe are currently in compliance
with these financial covenants.

In addition to our obligation to fund a portiontbe project costs as described above, we havesisiet $100 million from the net procee
from our initial public offering and concurrent yaite placement to fund a separate, dedicated atoader our DOE Loan Facility. This
dedicated account can be used by us to fund anygesuns for our powertrain and Model S manufantufacility projects and will also be
used as a mechanism to defer advances under theLD&@EFacility. This will not affect our ability tdraw down the full amount of the DOE
loans, but will require us to use the dedicatedantto fund certain project costs up front, whicists may then be reimbursed by loans under
the DOE Loan Facility once the dedicated accoudeeted, or as part of the final advance forapglicable project. We will be required to
deposit a portion of these reimbursements intalddicated account, in an amount equal to up to 80fte remaining project costs for the
applicable project and these amounts may simitaglyused by us to fund project costs and cost ongraad will similarly be eligible for
reimbursement by the draw down of additional loander our DOE Loan Facility once used in full. AD&cember 31, 2010, we have $73.6
million remaining in the dedicated account.

The DOE Loan Facility documents contain customasnés of default, subject in some cases to custpowae periods for certain
defaults. Events of default include, among otheos\-payment defaults, inaccuracy of representatmswarranties, covenant defaults,
defaults under or termination of our leases forgi@gects, a default in the event of a change afrob, including a failure of Elon Musk, our
Chief Executive Officer, Product Architect and Ghaén, and certain of his affiliates, at any timepto one year after we complete the pro
relating to the Model S Facility, to own at lea§#6 of capital stock held by Mr. Musk and such &ffés as of the date of the DOE Loan
Facility, crossdefaults to certain other material indebtedneskiréato timely complete the projects, materialgatent defaults, bankruptcy a
insolvency defaults and force majeure events véfipect to the projects. The occurrence of an edfedefault could result in an acceleration of
all obligations under the DOE Loan Facility docutsgian obligation by us and any guarantor to reglagbligations in full, and the exercise of
remedies by the DOE or their agent. Our failurentike a timely payment could result in an increagbe applicable interest rate.

In connection with the DOE Loan Facility, we havgoassued the DOE a warrant to purchase up t3)Q& shares of our common
stock at an exercise price of $7.54 per share amarant to purchase up to 5,100 shares of our comstock at an exercise price of $8.94 per
share. Beginning on December 15, 2018 and untiebdser 14, 2022, the shares subject to purchase tivee warrants will become
exercisable in quarterly amounts depending on teeage outstanding balance of the loan during tlee guarter. These warrants may be
exercised until December 15, 2023. If we prepayfdE Loan Facility in full prior to December 15,28) no shares will be exercisable under
these warrants, except in the case of an evergfafitl, which could accelerate the vesting.

California Alternative Energy and Advanced Transpation Financing Authority Tax Incentives

In December 2009, we finalized an arrangement thighCalifornia Alternative Energy and Advanced Bportation Financing Authority
that will result in an exemption from Californieat sales and use taxes for up to $320 millionarfiufacturing equipment. To the extent all of
this equipment is purchased and would otherwissubgect to California state sales and use tax, eliev® this incentive would result in tax
savings by
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us of up to approximately $31 million over a thyear period starting in December 2009. The equigrperchases may be used only for three
purposes: (i) to establish our production facifiy the Model S sedan in California, (ii) to upgeaour Palo Alto powertrain production facility,
and (iii) to expand our current Tesla Roadstermabdge operations at our Menlo Park facility. As oé@mber 31, 2010, we have received the
tax exemption for approximately $34.8 million irsaspurchases.

California Air Resources Board’s Zero Emissions Viele Program

In connection with the delivery and placement s¢ovice of our zero emission vehicles in a numbstaies, we have earned and will
continue to earn tradable credits that can be &bider California’s LowEmission Vehicle Regulations, and similar laws tineo states, vehic
manufacturers are required to ensure that a poofidine vehicles delivered for sale in that statéry each model year are zero emission
vehicles. Currently, the states of California, Cecticut, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Jefdew York, Oregon, Rhode Island and
Vermont have such laws in effect. These laws pmtidit a manufacturer of zero emission vehicles @zay credits, referred to as ZEV crec
and may sell excess credits to other manufactwbkesapply such credits to comply with these reguiatequirements. As a manufacturer
solely of zero emission vehicles, we earn ZEV deedin each vehicle sold in such states and haesezhinto agreements with other
automobile manufacturers to sell the ZEV credit the earn.

We have entered into two contracts for the saleE)f credits with two separate automotive manufaasurFor the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, we earned re¥mmehe sale of ZEV credits of $2.8 million, $8llion and $3.5 million, respectivel
Our current agreement with American Honda Co., (Honda) provides for the sale of ZEV credits tivatearn from the sale of vehicles that
we manufacture through December 31, 2011. As oeBéer 31, 2010, we had sold credits for 491 vesiateder this agreement and Honda
has an obligation to purchase credits for up toddiditional vehicles that Tesla will manufactur@pto the expiration of the agreement. To
extent we have additional ZEV credits availabledale, we may enter into new agreements with Hanadgher manufacturers to sell such
credits. We previously had an agreement with ackffit buyer for ZEV credits related to vehiclesidnlthe year ended December 31, 2008,
some of which ZEV credits were recognized in tharyended December 31, 2009.

Regulation—Vehicle Safety and Testing

Our vehicles are subject to, and the Tesla Roadstaplies with, or is exempt from, numerous regulatequirements established by the
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NKBR), including all applicable United States federaltor vehicle safety standar
(FMVSS). As a manufacturer, we must self-certifgtth vehicle meets or otherwise obtain an exemitan all applicable FMVSSs, as well
as the NHTSA bumper standard, before the vehigiebeaimported into or sold in the United Stateseréhare numerous FMVSSs that apply to
our vehicles. Examples of these requirements irclud

» Crash-worthiness requirementsincluding applicable and appropriate level of whistructure and occupant protection in frontal,
side and interior impacts including through use@dipment such as seat belts and airbags whichsatisty applicable
requirements

» Crash avoidance requiremer—including appropriate steering, braking, electrastability control and equipment requireme!
such as, headlamps, tail lamps, and other reqlareds, all of which must conform to various phottriceand performance
requirements

» Electric vehicle requiremen—limitations on electrolyte spillage, battery retent and avoidance of electric shock followi
specified crash test

* Windshield defrosting and defoggi—defined zones of the windshield must be clearetimi specified timeframe; a
» Rearview mirror requiremen—rearward areas that must be visible to the driiethe mirrors
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Several FMVSS regulations that NHTSA has promulgiateamended recently contain phase-in provisiegsiring increasing
percentages of a manufacturer’s vehicles to coropdy a period of several model years. Those FM\(g8erally allow low volume
manufacturers (those who manufacture fewer thadO5v@hicles annually for sale in the United Stageg) limited line manufacturers (those
who sell three or fewer vehicle lines in the Unitdtes) to defer compliance until the end of thasgin period. We currently qualify as bott
low volume manufacturer and a limited line manufiaet, and as a result, we are currently exempt frertain requirements, such as some new
advanced airbag requirements, the advanced sidecim@quirements, and certain electronic stabilitytrol requirements, until the end of the
applicable phase-in periods. In addition, we hayaiad for, and have been granted, an exemptian frertain other advanced air bag
requirements, which applies to Tesla Roadsters faatured through January 28, 2011. We have fileghfaest for an extension of such
exemption for Tesla Roadsters manufactured aften date. While that application is pending and wrdasideration by NHTSA, the existing
exemption is automatically extended. Under U.S, lae are required to certify compliance with, otaib exemption from, all applicable
federal motor vehicle safety standards and we dawe so with respect to each vehicle we have affmesale in the United States. Based on
testing, engineering analysis, and other infornmatiee have certified that the Tesla Roadster caapliith, or is exempt from all applicable
NHTSA standards by affixing a certification labeldach Tesla Roadster sc

We are also required to comply with other NHTSAuiegments of federal laws administered by NHTSAJuding the Corporate
Average Fuel Economy standards, consumer informddiloeling requirements, early warning reportinguieements regarding warranty
claims, field reports, death and injury reports foreign recalls, and owner’'s manual requirements.

Our vehicles sold in Europe are subject to Européminn safety testing regulations. Many of thosgutations, referred to as European
Union Whole Vehicle Type Approval (WVTA), are difant from the federal motor vehicle safety standaplicable in the United States and
may require redesign and/or retesting. Our TeskdRi@rs are currently approved for sale on a larii@sis in the European Union via the
Small Series WVTA, which permits the manufacturd aale in the European Union of no more than 1y@bcles per year. We plan to keep
European sales of our Tesla Roadsters at lessltB@f vehicles per year, and have no plans to coroengesting our Tesla Roadsters for the
WVTA to assure compliance with the European Uniequirements to permit unlimited sales. Similarlyséalia and Japan have additional
testing regulations applicable to high volume maoturers. We also plan to keep Australian and Jeggasales of our Tesla Roadsters at a low
volume, and have no plans to comply with the Alistneand Japanese requirements to permit high velsahes in these jurisdictions. In
connection with the planned introduction of thel@d®oadster in Australia and Japan, we conducfeah#al impact test based on European
Union testing standards on the Tesla Roadster ireNbder 2009, which is required for sales exceedertpin annual volumes outside the
United States. While the Tesla Roadster met maosteo€riteria for occupant protection and all eigdor high voltage safety in the front imp
crash test, there were two criteria that were nettimthe test. Based on our analysis of additicoatpliance options in Australia and Japan
believe such an outcome should not limit our aptiit sell the Tesla Roadster in Australia belowaiarannual volumes or, subject to
compliance with certain Japanese import rules, laaveaterial impact on our ability to sell Tesla Bsters in Japan.

The Federal Trade Commission (FTC) requires usiitutate and display the range of our electric elelsion a label we affix to the
vehicle’s window. The FTC specifies that we folltesting requirements set forth by the Society ofofotive Engineers (SAE) which further
requires that we test using the United States EEésbined city and highway testing cycles. The EfAounced in November 2009 that it
would develop and establish new energy efficiersfihg methodologies for electric vehicles. Basedéhdial indications from the EPA, we
believe it is likely that the EPA will modify itesting cycles in a manner that, when applied tovebicles, could reduce the advertised rang
our vehicles by up to 30% as compared to the coeabiwo-cycle test currently applicable to our védgcHowever, there can be no assurance
that the modified EPA testing cycles will not re¢sala greater reduction. To the extent that th€ Efiopts these procedures in place of the
current procedures from the SAE, this could impair ability to advertise the Tesla Roadster ashaclethat is capable of going in excess of
200 miles. Moreover, such changes could impairaduility to deliver the Model S with the
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initially advertised range, which could result iretcancellation of a number of the approximatefd3,reservations that have been placed for
the Model S as of December 31, 2010. Although da¢ life customer experience of the range of oectelk vehicles will not change due to the
changes in the FTC or EPA standards, the reductitine advertised range could negatively impactsales and harm our business.

The Automobile Information and Disclosure Act regsimanufacturers of motor vehicles to disclos&aaeinformation regarding the
manufacturer’s suggested retail price, optionaimgent and pricing. In addition, the Act allows lusion of city and highway fuel economy
ratings, as determined by EPA, as well as craghiagngs as determined by NHTSA if such testscargucted. As a manufacturer of only
electric vehicles, compliance with the EPA labeliaguirements on fuel economy is currently optidoalus.

Regulation—EPA Emissions & Certificate of Confornyit

The Clean Air Act requires that we obtain a Cegéife of Conformity issued by the EPA and a Califofxecutive Order issued by the
California Air Resources Board (CARB) with resperemissions for our vehicles. The Certificate oh@rmity is required for vehicles sold
states covered by the Clean Air Act’s standardstantl the Certificate of Conformity and the ExeeeatOrder is required for vehicles sold in
states that have sought and received a waiver thenkPA to utilize California standards. The Califa standards for emissions control for
certain regulated pollutants for new vehicles amgirges sold in California are set by CARB. Stales have adopted the California standarc
approved by EPA also recognize the Executive Olatesales of vehicles.

Manufacturers who sell vehicles without a Certificaf Conformity may be subject to penalties ota$37,500 per violation and be
required to recall and remedy any vehicles solth wihissions in excess of Clean Air Act standards.ré¢eived a Certificate of Conformity
sales of our Tesla Roadsters in 2008 and 2010Jidutot receive a Certificate of Conformity for eglof the Tesla Roadster in 2009 until
December 21, 2009. This Certificate of Conformibyered sales of Tesla Roadsters from December(®@B through December 31, 2009.

The EPA’s Self-Audit Policy allows companies tofgelport violations of federal environmental lawsdahereby mitigate potential
penalties. We reported the failure to obtain ai@este of Conformity for 2009 to the EPA on Deceenl20, 2009. In January 2010, we and the
EPA entered into an Administrative Settlement Agreat and Audit Policy Determination in which we eepl to pay a civil administrative
penalty in the sum of $275,000. The EPA agreedetat any 2009 Tesla Roadsters sold prior to Dece2he2009 as if they were covered by a
valid Certificate of Conformity based on our agresinto treat these vehicles as if they had beadifiedrwhen sold for emissions and
emissions warranty purposes. The EPA has closeadtier and we have been notified that it consitterssiolations resolved as of January
2010. All Tesla Roadsters we sold prior to obtagrtime Certificate of Conformity in 2009 are now silered lawfully sold for purposes of the
Clean Air Act with no impediments to further regéton, use or subsequent sale.

Regulation—Battery Safety and Testing

Our battery pack conforms with mandatory regulatitivat govern transport of “dangerous goods” thay present a risk in
transportation, which includes lithiuion batteries. The governing regulations, whichisseed by the Pipeline and Hazardous Materialst$
Administration (PHMSA) are based on the UN Recomdagions on the Safe Transport of Dangerous GooddeMRegulations, and related
UN Manual Tests and Criteria. The regulations darynode of transportation when these items arepsliguch as by ocean vessel, rail, truck,
or by air.

We have completed the applicable transportatiais fes our prototype and production battery packsdnstrating our compliance with
the UN Manual of Tests and Criteria, including:

» Altitude simulatior—simulating air transpor
» Thermal cyclinc—assessing cell and battery seal integ
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* Vibration—simulating vibration during transpo
» Shock—simulating possible impacts during transp
» External short circui—simulating an external short circuit; a

» Overcharge—evaluating the ability of a rechargeable batteryithstand overcharging (this test was performedhe battery pack
we provided for Daiml¢ s Smart fortwo electric drive but was not perfornoecthe battery pack for the Tesla Roads

The cells in our battery packs are composed maihlghium metal oxides. The cells do not contaity é&ad, mercury, cadmium, or other
hazardous materials, heavy metals, or any toxienads. In addition, our battery packs include pmgikg for the lithium-ion cells. This
packaging includes trace amounts of various hazardbemicals whose use, storage and disposalutated under federal law. We currently
have an agreement with a third party battery réocgadompany to recycle our battery packs. If a@uongr wishes to dispose of a battery pack
from one of our vehicles, we anticipate accepthmgdepleted battery from the customer without afditaonal charge.

Automobile Manufacturer and Dealer Regulation

State law regulates the manufacture, distributinch sale of automobiles, and generally requires maghicle manufacturers and dealers
to be licensed. We are registered as both a metuclke manufacturer and dealer in the states dfd@aia, Colorado, Florida, lllinois and
Washington, and we are licensed as a motor vetiedder in the state of New York. We are similaitghsed in the District of Columbia as an
EV retail store.

To the extent possible, we plan to secure dealensies (or the equivalent of a dealer licenseagdge in activities as a motor vehicle
dealer in other states as appropriate and neceazsavg open additional Tesla stores. Some statels,as Texas, do not permit automobile
manufacturers to be licensed as dealers or tmaheicapacity of a dealer. To sell vehicles tadesgs of states where we are not licensed as a
dealer, to the extent permitted by local law, kb actual sale and all activities related to tie svould generally have to occur out of state. In
this scenario, it is possible that activities rethto marketing, advertising, taking orders, takiegervations and reservation payments, and
delivering vehicles could be viewed by a stateaslacting unlicensed activities in the state oeothise violating the state’s motor vehicle
industry laws. Regulators in these states may reaqus to hold and meet the requirements of appatgpdealer or other licenses and, in states in
which manufacturers are prohibited from acting @alers, may otherwise prohibit or impact our plahaetivities.

In jurisdictions where we do not have a Tesla stareustomer may try to purchase our vehicles theemternet. However, some states,
such as Kansas, have laws providing that a manurotannot deliver a vehicle to a resident of ssteke except through a dealer licensed to
do business in that state which may be interprietedquire us to open a store in the state of Kaimsarder to sell vehicles to Kansas residents.
Such laws may be interpreted to require us to @pgtore in such state before we sell vehiclesdimeats of such states. In some states where
we have opened a viewing “gallery” that is not kfetail location, it is possible that a state wksgor could take the position that activities at
our gallery constitute an unlicensed motor vehildalership and thereby violates applicable manufactdealer laws. For example, the state of
Colorado required us to obtain dealer and manufacticenses in the state in order to operate allexy in Colorado. Although we would
prefer that a state regulator address any concéithés nature by discussing such concerns witangsrequesting voluntary compliance, a state
could also take action against us, including legyfines or requiring that we refrain from certactigties at that location. In addition, some
states have requirements that service facilitieavadable with respect to vehicles sold in théestevhich may be interpreted to also require
service facilities be available with respect toiekds sold over the internet to residents of tlaesthereby limiting our ability to sell vehiclas i
states where we do not maintain service facilities.
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The foregoing examples of state laws governingstile of motor vehicles are just some of the reguratwe will face as we sell our
vehicles. In many states, the application of stat¢or vehicle laws to our specific sales modeargé¢ly without precedent, particularly with
respect to sales over the internet, and would berméned by a fact specific analysis of numerowusdis, including whether we have a physical
presence or employees in the applicable state hehete advertise or conduct other activities indpplicable state, how the sale transaction is
structured, the volume of sales into the state vamether the state in question prohibits manufactufrom acting as dealers. As a result of the
fact specific and untested nature of these issuekthe fact that applying these laws intendedHertraditional automobile distribution model
to our sales model allows for some interpretatiot discretion by the regulators, state legal pritibitts may prevent us from selling to
consumers in such state.

California laws, and potentially the laws of otlséates, restrict the ability of licensed dealeradwertise or take deposits for vehicles
before they are available. In November 2007, webecaware that the New Motor Vehicle Board of tladif@rnia Department of
Transportation has considered whether our reservatid advertising policies comply with these laWwsdate, we have not received any
communications on this topic from the New Motor ¥ Board or the Department of Motor Vehicles (DM¥hich has the power to enforce
these laws. There can be no assurance that the Wilkot take the position that our vehicle reseiwma or advertising practices violate the
law. We expect that if the DMV determines that wayrhave violated the law, it would initially dissuits concerns with us and request
voluntary compliance. If we are ultimately foundd® in violation of California law, we might be pheded from taking reservation payments,
and the DMV could take other actions against uduifing levying fines and requiring us to refundervation payments. Resolution of any
inquiry may also involve restructuring certain agpeof the reservation program. The DMV also haspibwer to suspend licenses to
manufacture and sell vehicles in California, follogra hearing on the merits, which it has typicatkercised only in cases of significant or
repeat violations and/or a refusal to comply witd\Ddirections.

Certain states may have specific laws which applyetalers, or manufacturers selling directly tostomers, or both. For example, the
state of Washington requires that reservation paysnar other payment received from residents irsthte of Washington must be placed in a
segregated account until delivery of the vehicleicl account must be unencumbered by any liens érewlitors of the dealer and may not be
used by the dealer. Consequently, we establisisedrgated account for reservation payments igtdte of Washington in January 2010.
There can be no assurance that other state ogfopgiisdictions will not require similar segregatiof reservation payment received from
customers. Our inability to access these fundsvfoking capital purposes could harm our liquidity.

Furthermore, while we have performed an analyste®principal laws in the European Union relatiogur distribution model and
believe we comply with such laws, we have not penfed a complete analysis in all foreign jurisdingan which we may sell vehicles.
Accordingly, there may be laws in jurisdictions heve not yet entered or laws we are unaware afrigdictions we have entered that may
restrict our vehicle reservation practices or othesiness practices. Even for those jurisdictioashave analyzed, the laws in this area can be
complex, difficult to interpret and may change otiere.

In addition to licensing laws, specific laws andukations in each of the states (and their intégpi@n by regulators) may limit or
determine how we sell, market, advertise, and watisersolicit sales, take orders, take reservatomnsreservation payments, deliver, and
service vehicles for consumers and engage in aittesities in that state. While we have performadhaalysis of laws in certain jurisdictions
which we have Tesla stores, we have not perfornmmhgplete analysis in all jurisdictions in which way sell vehicles. Accordingly, there
may be laws in jurisdictions we have not yet erdehat may restrict our vehicle reservation pradior other business practices.
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Competition

Competition in the automotive industry is intensd avolving. We believe the impact of new regulat@guirements for occupant safety
and vehicle emissions, technological advanceswepmain and consumer electronics components, hiftthg customer needs and
expectations are causing the industry to evolubendirection of electric-based vehicles. We beaithe primary competitive factors in our
markets include but are not limited to:

» technological innovatior

e product quality and safet
* service options

* product performance

» design and stylinc

e product price; an

* manufacturing efficiency

We believe that our vehicles compete in the maokét based on their traditional segment classifioads well as based on their
propulsion technology. Within the electric-basetligke segment, there are three primary means oepoain electrification which will
differentiate various competitors in this market:

» Electric Vehiclesare vehicles powered completely by a singl-board energy storage system (battery pack or gIglwhich is
refueled directly from an electricity source. Btile Tesla Roadster and the Model S are examplelectiic vehicles

* Plugin Hybrid Vehiclesare vehicles powered by both a battery pack witklaatric motor and an internal combustion engiiécty
can be refueled both with traditional petroleumidifer the engine and electricity for the batteack. The internal combustion
engine can either work in parallel with the electriotor to power the wheels, such as in a panglileg-in hybrid vehicle, or be used
only to recharge the battery, such as in a seligg-in hybrid vehicle like the Chevrolet Vo

» Hybrid Electric Vehicleare vehicles powered by both a battery pack witelaatric motor and an internal combustion engine b
which can only be refueled with traditional petrotefuels as the battery pack is charged via regéinerbraking, such as used in a
hybrid electric vehicle like the Toyota Prit

The worldwide automotive market, particularly fdteanative fuel vehicles, is highly competitive tgdand we expect it will become ey
more so in the future. Prior to the introductiortité Nissan Leaf in December 2010, no mass prodpeddrmance highway-capable electric
vehicles were being sold in the United Statesajmad, Mitsubishi has been selling its electric iMi&ince April 2010. We expect additional
competitors to enter the United States and Eurdfiénthe next several years, and as they do s@xpect that we will experience significant
competition. With respect to our Tesla Roadstercureently face strong competition from establishetbmobile manufacturers, including
manufacturers of high-performance vehicles, sudhasche and Ferrari. In addition, upon the lawfabur Model S sedan, we will face
competition from existing and future automobile mfacturers in the extremely competitive luxury sedsarket, including Audi, BMW, Lext
and Mercedes.

Many established and new automobile manufactur@re bntered or have announced plans to entertéreative fuel vehicle market.
For example, Nissan introduced the Nissan Leaillp électric vehicle in December 2010 and Ford &asounced that it plans to introduce an
electric vehicle in 2011. In addition, several miacturers, including General Motors, Toyota, Fagd Honda are each selling hybrid vehic
and certain
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of these manufacturers have announced plug-inoressif their hybrid vehicles. For example, in Debem2010, General Motors introduced
the Chevrolet Volt, which is a plug-in hybrid veleichat operates purely on electric power for atéchnumber of miles, at which time an
internal combustion engine engages to rechargbatiery.

Moreover, it has been reported that BMW, Daimlexxis, Audi, Renault and Volkswagen are also devwedpplectric vehicles. Several
new start-ups have also announced plans to ergenginket for performance electric vehicles, althoogne of these have yet come to market.
Finally, electric vehicles have already been bratgimarket in China and other foreign countried ae expect a number of those
manufacturers to enter the United States markefeds

Most of our current and potential competitors hsigmificantly greater financial, technical, manutatg, marketing and other resources
than we do and may be able to devote greater res®tw the design, development, manufacturingsildigion, promotion, sale and support of
their products. Virtually all of our competitorsweamore extensive customer bases and broader cetstord industry relationships than we do.
In addition, almost all of these companies havgdoroperating histories and greater name recogrtitian we do. Our competitors may be in a
stronger position to respond quickly to new tecbgas and may be able to design, develop, markesalhtheir products more effectively. \
believe our exclusive focus on electric vehicled alectric vehicle components, as well as our hysod vehicle development and production,
are the basis on which we can compete in the glaltaimotive market in spite of the challenges pdsedur competition; however, we have a
limited history of operations.

Intellectual Property

Our success depends, at least in part, on outyatailprotect our core technology and intellectu@perty. To accomplish this, we rely on
a combination of patents, patent applications grsetrets, including know-how, employee and thaxdypnondisclosure agreements, copyright
laws, trademarks, intellectual property licensed atter contractual rights to establish and pradectproprietary rights in our technology. As
of February 3, 2011, we had 35 issued patents ppibgimately 280 pending patent applications with tynited States Patent and Trademark
Office and internationally in a broad range of argaur issued patents start expiring in 2026. Wenith to continue to file additional patent
applications with respect to our technology. Wendoknow whether any of our pending patent appbeetwill result in the issuance of pate
or whether the examination process will requiréousarrow our claims. Even if granted, there camdassurance that these pending patent
applications will provide us with protection.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had 899 full-time emgés consisting of 213 in manufacturing, 212 in @drin research and
development, 121 in sales and marketing, 170 ifcleedesign and engineering, 79 in service andia@éneral and administration. Of all of
our employees, 648 are located in our Northernf@ailia offices, 106 are located at our Los Angétedlity and 51 are located at our United
Kingdom offices. The other employees are locateathrer international locations. None of our empkxsyare currently represented by labor
unions or are covered by a collective bargainingagent with respect to their employment. To datehave not experienced any work
stoppages, and we consider our relationship witreaployees to be good.

Additional Information

We file or furnish periodic reports, including odinnual Reports on Form 10-K, our Quarterly Reportd=orm 10-Q and Current reports
on Form 8-K; proxy statements and other informatidth the SEC. Such reports, proxy statements éimek anformation may be obtained by
visiting the Public Reference Room of the SEC & E(Btreet, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549, by caltimg SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 or by
sending an electronic message to the SEC at pufai@sec.gov. In addition, the SEC maintains a wel{giww.sec.gov) that contains reports,
proxy and information statements, and other infdaiomaregarding issuers that file
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electronically. Our reports, proxy statements atigioinformation are also made available, freehafrge, on our investor relations website at
ir.teslamotors.com as soon as reasonably practicdtdr we electronically file such information wihe SEC. The information posted on our
website is not incorporated into this Annual Remort~orm 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks describeldly together with the other information set farttthis Annual Report on Form 10-K,
which could materially affect our business, finah@ondition and future results. The risks desalibelow are not the only risks facing our
company. Risks and uncertainties not currently kntoswus or that we currently deem to be immatealab may materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition and operating results

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
Our limited operating history makes evaluating obusiness and future prospects difficult, and mayiease the risk of your investment.

You must consider the risks and difficulties weefas an early stage company with limited operatistpry. If we do not successfully
address these risks, our business, prospects timgemasults and financial condition will be matly and adversely harmed. We were formed
in July 2003. We began delivering our first perfamoe electric vehicle, the Tesla Roadster, in €088, and as of December 31, 2010, we
only sold approximately 1,500 production vehiclestistomers, almost all of which were sold in thetét States and Europe. Our revenue
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2@08,%¢16.7 million, $111.9 million and $14.7 mitliaespectively. We have a very
limited operating history on which investors caiséan evaluation of our business, operating reantisprospects.

To date, we have derived our revenues principatlynfsales of the Tesla Roadster and related shies@emission vehicle credits, and
from electric powertrain development services aaldss We intend in the longer term to derive suligtbrevenues from the sales of our
planned Model S sedan electric vehicle which @ra¢arly stage of development and which we do xypé¢@ to be in production until mid-
2012. We have no operating history with respethéoModel S electric vehicle and have not yet catgal the component procurement process
for the Model S, which limits our ability to acctely forecast the cost of the vehicle. In additise, only recently completed the purchase of a
manufacturing facility in Fremont, California togatuce such vehicles, and we have not yet complételiized the full vehicle design or our
engineering, manufacturing or component supplypfanthe Model S. In addition, as of DecemberZ11,0 our powertrain sales, developn
services revenue and powertrain research and dewelst compensation have been almost entirely gestetader arrangements with Daimler
AG (Daimler) for the development and sale of adrgtpack and charger for Daimler's Smart fortwatle drive and for the development of a
battery pack for Daimler’s A-Class vehicle. Blacksinvestco LLC (Blackstar), an affiliate of Daimléolds more than 5% of our outstanding
capital stock. In October 2010, Tesla and Toyotadvi@orporation, (Toyota) entered into an agreen@xievelop a validated electric
powertrain for the Toyota RAV4. Toyota also purdth®,941,176 shares of our common stock in a gripktcement transaction that occurred
concurrently with the closing of our IPO. We hal&aannounced our intention for Tesla to receivgota's support with sourcing parts and
production and engineering expertise for the M@&IlegHowever, we have not entered into any agreemmtitsToyota for any such assistance,
including any purchase orders, and we may neveodd here are no assurances that we will be aldedore future business with Daimler,
Toyota, or any of their affiliates.

It is difficult to predict our future revenues aappropriately budget for our expenses, and we haeed insight into trends that may
emerge and affect our business. For example, dtimafpur quarters of 2010 and 2009, we recordexdtgrly revenue of as much as
$45.5 million and as little as $18.6 million andagierly operating losses of as much as $51.6 mibiod as little as $4.3 million. In the event
that actual results differ from our estimates orag@ist our estimates in future periods, our ofegatesults and financial position could be
materially affected.
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In addition, our revenues to date have includediartsowe receive from selling zero emission veh(£EV) credits to other automobile
manufacturers, pursuant to certain state regulsitidfe have entered into two contracts for the sBEEV credits with two separate automot
manufacturers. For the years ended December 30, 2009 and 2008, we earned revenue from the $3E\d credits of $2.8 million,
$8.2 million and $3.5 million, respectively. Oumcent agreement with American Honda Co., Inc. (H9mutovides for the sale of ZEV credits
that we earn from the sale of vehicles that we rfeanture through December 31, 2011. As of DecemheRB10, we had sold credits for 491
vehicles under this agreement and Honda has agatiolin to purchase credits for up to 150 additiediicles that Tesla will manufacture pr
to the expiration of the agreement. We may notlide t enter into new agreements to sell any aaftilicredits we may earn in excess of the
current contractual amounts on equivalent termsifathis occurs, our financial results will be hagth

We are significantly dependent upon revenue genetafrom the sale of our electric vehicles, spedfig the Tesla Roadster, in the near
term, and our future success will be dependent ugur ability to design and achieve market acceptaraf new vehicle models, and
specifically the Model S

We currently generate the majority of our revenmoenfthe sale of our Tesla Roadsters and the sdlecotlated ZEV credits. We began
production of our Tesla Roadster only in 2008, andsecond planned vehicle, our Model S, is notetqul to be in production until mid-2012,
requires significant investment prior to commerai@oduction, and may never be successfully dgpedloor commercially successful. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to ddaigne models of performance electric vehicles thiditmeet the expectations of our
customers or that our future models, includingNtealel S, will become commercially viable. In pautiar, it is common in the automotive
industry for the production vehicle to have a styland design different from that of the concetticle, which may happen with the Model S.
We believe the design of the early prototype M&l& one of the key reasons why we have receivpbaately 3,400 reservations for the
vehicle as of December 31, 2010. To the extentwieadre not able to build the production Model $hexpectations created by the early
prototype and our anticipated specifications, austics may cancel their reservations and our futalesscould be harmed. Additionally,
historically, automobile customers have come tceekpew and improved vehicle models to be introddoegquently. In order to meet these
expectations, we may in the future be requireaitamduce on a regular basis new vehicle modelsedisas enhanced versions of existing
vehicle models. As technologies change in the &tar automobiles in general and performance ateeghicles specifically, we will be
expected to upgrade or adapt our vehicles anddat® new models in order to continue to providdaled with the latest technology. To date,
we have limited experience simultaneously desigriesting, manufacturing and selling our electebieles.

We anticipate that we will experience an increasddsses and may experience a decrease in autoracales revenues prior to the
launch of the Model S.

Prior to the launch of our Model S, we anticipate automotive sales may decline, potentially sigaifitly. We currently produce the
Tesla Roadster gliders, which are partially assethikhicles that do not contain our electric powaémt with Lotus Cars Limited (Lotus) in
Hethel, England. We currently intend to manufactyli@ers with Lotus for our current generation BeRloadster until January 2012. We intend
to use these gliders in the manufacturing of thea Roadster to both fulfill orders placed in 2@klwell as new orders placed in 2012 until
supply of gliders is exhausted. Through Decembef810, we have delivered over 1,500 vehicles. \Weat currently plan to begin selling
our next generation Tesla Roadster until at leastyear after the launch of the Model S, whichxigeeted to be in production in mid-2012. As
a result, we anticipate that we will generate laditevenue from selling electric vehicles in 20h8luhe launch of our Model S. The launch of
our Model S could be delayed for a number of reasmd any such delays may be significant and wextieind the period in which we would
generate limited revenues from sales of our eleghicles. The potential decrease in automotilessavenue for the periods prior to the
launch of the Model S may be significant and caoultterially and adversely affect our business, ot operating results and financial
condition and our ability to fund operating losseslld seriously constrain our growth.
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Furthermore, except for our arrangements with Daiirahd its affiliates, we do not currently have amangements in place with third
parties for the purchase of powertrain componéritsre are no assurances that we will be able toredature business with Daimler or its
affiliates as Daimler has indicated its intent todquce all of its lithium-ion batteries by 2012pest of a joint venture with Evonik Industries
AG and has announced it has entered into a joimive with BYD Auto to collaborate on the developrnef an electric car under a jointly
owned new brand for the Chinese market. Recentymi2r has indicated that there may be an oppdsytdior us to continue supplying electric
powertrain components, including battery pack20dt42 and beyond, but we have not entered into grgeanents with Daimler for these
arrangements and we may never do so. In Octobdl, 204 and Toyota entered into an agreement to dp\gelalidated electric powertrain for
the Toyota RAV4, although our revenues are curydimtiited to development services and we may nadiide to enter into additional
agreements with Toyota in the future.

Our production model for the non-powertrain portioaf the Model S is unproven, still evolving andvsry different from the non-
powertrain portion of the production model for thEesla Roadster

Our future business depends in large part on ailityaio execute on our plans to develop, manufegtmarket and sell our planned
Model S electric vehicle. To date, our revenueshaeen principally derived from the sales of ouslddéroadster. The Tesla Roadster has only
been produced in low volume quantities and the hedgsembled by Lotus in the United Kingdom, it final assembly by us at our facility
in Menlo Park, California for sales destined in thated States. We plan to manufacture the Modalt8gher volumes than our present
production capabilities in our planned manufactficility in Fremont, California. As a result, then-powertrain portion of the production
model for the Model S will be substantially diffateand significantly more complex than the non-pdvaén portion of the production model
for the Tesla Roadster. In addition, we plan toddtice a number of new manufacturing technologigstachniques, such as aluminum spot
welding systems, which have not been widely adoptelde automotive industry. Our Model S productinadel will require significant
investments of cash and management resources anthyvexperience unexpected delays or difficultied tould postpone our ability to
launch or achieve full manufacturing capacity toe Model S, which could have a material adverseceffin our business, prospects, operating
results and financial condition.

Our production model for the Model S is based omyrieey assumptions, which may turn out to be irextrrincluding:

» that we will be able to secure the funding necegstabuild out and equip our planned manufactufaxility in Fremont, California
in a timely manner, including meeting milestoned ather conditions necessary to draw down fund®uodr loan facility with the
United States Department of Energy (DO

» that we will be able to develop and equip our peEaghmanufacturing facility for the Model S in FremyoGalifornia without
exceeding our projected costs and on our projeatesline;

« that the equipment which we have purchased or whiekelect will be able to accurately manufactheevehicle within specified
design tolerance!

« that our computer aided design process can redhggeroduct development time by accurately predictire performance of ol
vehicle for passing relevant safety standardsudinly standards that can only be met through expegsash testing

« that we will be able to comply with environmentablssimilar regulations to operate our planned mactufing facilities and ot
business on our projected timelit

» that we will be able to engage suppliers for theessary components on terms and conditions acdetabs and that we will be
able to obtain components on a timely basis alddmecessary quantitie

» that we will be able to deliver final componentides to our suppliers in a timely mann
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« that we will be able to attract, recruit, hire arain skilled employees, including employees ongtaduction line, to operate o
planned Model S manufacturing facility in Fremdaddglifornia;

» that we will be able to maintain high quality caigras we transition to an-house manufacturing process; ¢
» that we will not experience any significant delayslisruptions in our supply chai

If one or more of the foregoing assumptions tummsto be incorrect, our ability to successfullyiah the Model S on time and on budget
if at all, and our business prospects, operatisglte and financial condition may be materially addersely impacted.

We have no experience to date in high volume mawuifimg of our electric vehicles. We do not knowettrer we will be able to develop
efficient, automated, low-cost manufacturing cafigbénd processes, and reliable sources of compangply that will enable us to meet the
quality, price, engineering, design and producttamdards, as well as the production volumes redud successfully mass market the
Model S. Even if we are successful in developinghagh volume manufacturing capability and processsd reliable sources of component
supply, we do not know whether we will be able ¢osth in a manner that avoids significant delaysa@rsd overruns, including as a result of
factors beyond our control such as problems wigipBers and vendors, or in time to meet our vehiclemmercialization schedules or to satisfy
the requirements of customers. To date, we haver@qred minor cost increases from our suppliesder to meet our quality targets and
development timelines. Any failure to develop sud@nufacturing processes and capabilities withinpsajected costs and timelines could t
a material adverse effect on our business, praspegerating results and financial condition.

We may experience significant delays in the desigranufacture, launch and financing of the Model $cluding in the build out of our
Model S manufacturing facility, which could harm awbusiness and prospect

Any delay in the financing, design, manufacture knchch of the Model S, including in the build adfitour planned Model S
manufacturing facility in Fremont, California, cduinaterially damage our brand, business, prospiédsicial condition and operating results.
Automobile manufacturers often experience delayhéndesign, manufacture and commercial releasewfvehicle models. We experienced
significant delays in launching the Tesla Roaddiée.initially announced that we would begin delingrthe Tesla Roadster in June 2007, but
due to various design and production delays, wendicphysically deliver our first Tesla Roadstetilurebruary 2008, and we only achieved
higher production of this vehicle in the fourth giea of 2008. These delays resulted in additionatxand adverse publicity for our business.
We may experience similar delays in launching tred® S, and any such delays could be significant.

In addition, final designs for the Model S and gldor the build out of the manufacturing facilitsesstill in process, and various aspec
the Model S component procurement and manufactylzags have not yet been determined. We are ciyrewaluating, qualifying and
selecting our suppliers for the planned productibthe Model S. However, we may not be able to gegauppliers for the remaining
components in a timely manner, at an acceptabbe jori in the necessary quantities. In additionyiliealso need to do extensive testing to
ensure that the Model S is in compliance with agglilie National Highway Traffic Safety AdministratigfNHTSA) safety regulations and
United States Environmental Protection Agency (ERulations prior to beginning mass production delivery of the vehicles. Our plan to
begin production of the Model S in mid-2012 is dagent upon the timely availability of funds, upaur dinalizing the related design,
engineering, component procurement, testing, luildand manufacturing plans in a timely manner@peh our ability to execute these plans
within the current timeline.

We completed the purchase of our planned manufagtfecility in Fremont, California in October 2050d selected it in part because it
was recently used for automobile manufacturing, lweated within 20 miles of
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our Palo Alto engineering facility, and we beligigesize may allow us to adapt our internal mantufidisg plans quickly. We expect that all
these factors will support the timely start of protion for the Model S. However, because we hawe m@tently acquired this facility and have
just begun to implement our manufacturing plansnves experience unexpected delays in completindptiild out of this facility for the
production of our planned Model S.

In January 2010, we entered into a loan facilitthwihe Federal Financing Bank (FFB) that is guaedty the DOE (DOE Loan
Facility). Our DOE Loan Facility provides for a $16 million loan facility under the DOE’s Advanc&eéchnology Vehicles Manufacturing
Loan Program (ATVM Program) to help finance thetaured development of the Model S, including thenpled build out and operation of a
manufacturing facility, and to finance the plantedld out and operation of our electric powertraianufacturing facility. We intend to fund
the build out of the planned manufacturing facifityncipally by using existing cash and cash oladithrough the DOE Loan Facility. Our
ability to draw down these funds under the DOE LbBanility is conditioned upon several draw conditioThese draw conditions include our
achievement of progress milestones relating talésign and development of the Model S and the M8daknufacturing facility. If we are
unable to draw down the anticipated funds undeDX®& Loan Facility on the timeline that we antidgeaour plans for building our Model S
and electric powertrain manufacturing plants cdaddsignificantly delayed which would materially adsely affect our business, prospects,
financial condition and operating results.

We face significant barriers in our attempt to prade our Model S, and if we cannot successfully am@ne those barriers our business
will be negatively impacted.

We face significant barriers as we attempt to peedour first mass produced vehicle, our Model S.diMeently have a drivable early
prototype of the Model S, but do not have a fulichrction intent prototype, a final design, a boilt- manufacturing facility or manufacturing
processes. The automobile industry has traditigrimden characterized by significant barriers toyemcluding large capital requirements,
investment costs of designing and manufacturingcles) long lead times to bring vehicles to maffkein the concept and design stage, the
need for specialized design and development esgergulatory requirements and establishing adomame and image and the need to
establish sales and service locations. As a matwréacand seller of only electric vehicles, we faceariety of added challenges to entry that a
traditional automobile manufacturer would not ermgeu including additional costs of developing amdducing an electric powertrain that has
comparable performance to a traditional gasolirgirenin terms of range and power, inexperience g&ttvicing electric vehicles, regulations
associated with the transport of lithium-ion ba#terand unproven high-volume customer demand ftyr électric vehicles. In addition, while
we are designing the Model S to have the capalditapidly swap out its battery pack, there arespecialized facilities today to perform such
swapping. Also, while we expect to be able to ashie 300 mile range, our ability to do so will degden the feasibility and availability of
appropriate battery cell technologies and improvemthat we are able to achieve in reducing eneogggumption. While we may offer this
service in the future at our stores, no assuraanée provided that we will do so, or that any othed party will offer such services. We must
successfully overcome these barriers as we mowe firmducing the low volume Tesla Roadster to thel®& which we plan to produce at
much higher volumes. If we are not able to overctimse barriers, our business, prospects, openasults and financial condition will be
negatively impacted and our ability to grow ouribess will be harmed.

We have a history of losses and we expect signifigGacreases in our costs and expenses to resultantinuing losses for at least the
foreseeable future

We incurred a net loss of $154.3 million for theyended December 31, 2010 and have incurred ssgdof approximately
$415.0 million from our inception through DecemBér 2010. We have had net losses in each quanteg sur inception. We believe that we
will continue to incur operating and net losseshegqutarter until at least the time we begin sigaificdeliveries of the Model S, which is not
expected to be in production until mid-2012 witighrer volume production not occurring until 2013d amay occur later. Even if we are able to
successfully develop the Model S, there can bessarance that it will be commercially successfulvé are to
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ever achieve profitability it will be dependent upiive successful development and successful conhegrcoduction and acceptance of
automobiles such as the Model S, which may notrccu

We expect the rate at which we will incur lossegtmease significantly in future periods from ant levels as we:
» design, develop and manufacture our planned Mog
» design, develop and manufacture components ofleatrie powertrain
» develop and equip our manufacturing facility toguoe our Model S in Fremont, Californ
*  Dbuild up inventories of parts and components farMadel S;
» develop and equip manufacturing facilities to pra@our electric powertrain componer
» open new Tesla store
» expand our design, development, maintenance ardr regpabilities
* increase our sales and marketing activities;
* increase our general and administrative functiorsupport our growing operatior

Because we will incur the costs and expenses fhawet efforts before we receive any incrementalmeee with respect thereto, our
losses in future periods will be significantly giexathan the losses we would incur if we developedbusiness more slowly. In addition, we
may find that these efforts are more expensive Wacurrently anticipate or that these efforts mayresult in increases in our revenues, w
would further increase our losses.

In addition, as of December 31, 2010, we had resmbedfull valuation allowance on our United Statesdeferred tax assets as at this
point we believe it is more likely than not that wil not achieve profitability and accordingly lable to use our deferred tax assets in the
foreseeable future. Federal and state laws impds&antial restrictions on the utilization of neeocating loss and tax credit carry-forwards in
the event of an “ownership change,” as definedecti®n 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Althoughde not believe that our initial public
offering (IPO) would constitute an ownership changgulting in limitations on our ability to use auet operating loss and tax credit carry-
forwards, we have not yet performed a study tordatee whether such limitations exist. If an owngosthange is deemed to have occurred as
a result of our IPO, utilization of these assetsldde significantly reduced.

If we are unable to adequately control the costsasiated with operating our business, including ocwosts of manufacturing, sales and
materials, our business, financial condition, opeiag results and prospects will suffer.

If we are unable to maintain a sufficiently low é&wf costs for designing, manufacturing, marketsejling and distributing and servici
our electric vehicles relative to their sellinggas$, our operating results, gross margins, busaredgrospects could be materially and adve
impacted. We have made, and will be required tdicoa to make, significant investments for the gesmanufacture and sales of our electric
vehicles. When we first began delivering our Tédedster in early 2008, our marginal costs of pcotuthe Tesla Roadster exceeded our
revenue from selling those vehicles. Revenue fileanstales of our Tesla Roadster as well as from 2f€dits did not exceed cost of revenues
related to our Tesla Roadster, until the secondteuaf 2009. There can be no assurances thatosts of producing and delivering the
Model S will be less than the revenue we generate fales at the time of the Model S launch orwWetvill achieve our expected gross
margin on sales of the Model S.

We incur significant costs related to procuring the materials required to manufacture our higHegyerance electric cars, assembling
vehicles and compensating our personnel. We vat alcur substantial
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costs in constructing and building out our Modelrtel powertrain manufacturing facilities, each ofahhcould potentially face cost overruns
delays in construction. Additionally, in the futuse may be required to incur substantial marketiogts and expenses to promote our vehicles,
including through the use of traditional media sashelevision, radio and print, even though ourketing expenses to date have been
relatively limited. If we are unable to keep oueogting costs aligned with the level of revenuegemerate, our operating results, business
prospects will be harmed. Many of the factors thmtact our operating costs are beyond our corfiam.example, the costs of our raw mate
and components, such as lithium-ion battery celisasbon fiber body panels used in our vehicles|ctcrease due to shortages as global
demand for these products increases. Indeed, gdpalarity of electric vehicles exceeds currergemtations without significant expansion in
battery cell production capacity and advancementmttery cell technology, shortages could occuckwivould result in increased materials
costs to us.

Our future growth is dependent upon consumers’ witjness to adopt electric vehicles.

Our growth is highly dependent upon the adoptiordaysumers of, and we are subject to an elevaskafiany reduced demand for,
alternative fuel vehicles in general and electgbigles in particular. If the market for electriehicles does not develop as we expect or
develops more slowly than we expect, our busim@espects, financial condition and operating reswitl be harmed. The market for
alternative fuel vehicles is relatively new, ragidlolving, characterized by rapidly changing teabgies, price competition, additional
competitors, evolving government regulation andistdy standards, frequent new vehicle announcenagt€hanging consumer demands and
behaviors. Factors that may influence the adopifaaiternative fuel vehicles, and specifically eéfecvehicles, include:

» perceptions about electric vehicle quality, safetyparticular with respect to lithiu-ion battery packs), design, performance
cost, especially if adverse events or accidentaratat are linked to the quality or safety of éleecvehicles;

» perceptions about vehicle safety in general, itip&ar safety issues that may be attributed touthe of advanced technolog
including vehicle electronics and regenerative imglsystems, such as the possible perception thaitd’'s recent vehicle recalls
may be attributable to these syste

» the limited range over which electric vehicles nbaydriven on a single battery char
» the decline of an electric vehi’'s range resulting from deterioration over timehia batter’s ability to hold a charge

» concerns about electric grid capacity and relighilivhich could derail our past and present effttpromote electric vehicles as a
practical solution to vehicles which require gase]

» the availability of alternative fuel vehicles, inding pluc-in hybrid electric vehicles

* improvements in the fuel economy of the internahbastion engine

» the availability of service for electric vehicle

» consumer desire and ability to purchase a luxury automodilene that is perceived as exclusi

» the environmental consciousness of consun

« volatility in the cost of oil and gasolin

» consumer perceptions of the dependency of the United Statesl from unstable or hostile countrie
* government regulations and economic incentives ptimg fuel efficiency and alternate forms of enet

* access to charging stations, standardization ofredevehicle charging systems and consur perceptions about convenience
cost to charge an electric vehic
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» the availability of tax and other governmental midees to purchase and operate electric vehicldstore regulation requirin
increased use of nonpolluting vehicl

» perceptions about and the actual cost of alteradtiel; anc
* macroeconomic factor

In addition, recent reports have suggested thenfiatdor extreme temperatures to affect the ramgeerformance of electric vehicles.
Based on internal testing, we estimate that oulali®Readster would have a 5-10% reduction in ranigennoperated in -20°C temperatures. To
the extent customers have concerns about suchtiedsior third party reports which suggest reduddion range greater than our estimates
widespread acceptance, our ability to market atidbaevehicles, particularly in colder climatesaynbe adversely impacted.

Additionally, we will become subject to regulatictimgt require us to alter the design of our vekickehich could negatively impact
consumer interest in our vehicles. For example etentric vehicles make less noise than internailngstion vehicles. Due to concerns about
overly quiet vehicles and vision impaired pedessijan January 2011, Congress passed and the &residned the Pedestrian Safety
Enhancement Act of 2010. The new law requires NHT&Astablish minimum sounds for electric vehiead hybrid electric vehicles when
travelling at low speeds. New standards must kebéshed by mid-2012 for implementation likely bydel year 2013.

The influence of any of the factors described aboag cause current or potential customers not tohase our electric vehicles, which
would materially adversely affect our business rafieg results, financial condition and prospects.

The range of our electric vehicles on a single clyardeclines over time which may negatively influenaotential customers’ decisions
whether to purchase our vehicles.

The range of our electric vehicles on a single ghateclines principally as a function of usagegtand charging patterns as well as other
factors. For example, a customer’s use of theitareshicle as well as the frequency with which tebgrge the battery of their Tesla vehicle
can result in additional deterioration of the bgtteability to hold a charge. We currently exptwt our battery pack for the Tesla Roadster
will retain approximately 60-65% of its ability twld its initial charge after approximately 100,0@0es or seven years, which will result in a
decrease to the vehicle’s initial range. Such batleterioration and the related decrease in ramayenegatively influence potential customer
decisions whether to purchase our vehicles, whiak harm our ability to market and sell our vehicles

We are dependent upon our ability to fully draw dewn our loan facility from the United States Depanent of Energy, which may
restrict our ability to conduct our business.

Our plan for manufacturing the Model S and for depig our electric powertrain facility dependsaur ability to fully draw down on
our DOE Loan Facility. Our DOE Loan Facility proessifor a $465.0 million loan facility under the DORTVM Program to help finance the
continued development of the Model S, includingghened build out and operation of a manufactufagity, and to finance the planned
build out and operation of our electric powertraianufacturing facility. We cannot, however, acabsf these funds at once, but only over a
period of up to three years through periodic draggligible costs are incurred. Through DecembeB10, we have received loans under our
DOE Loan Facility for an aggregate of $71.8 milli@ur ability to draw down these funds under theEDi@an Facility is conditioned upon
several draw conditions. For the Model S manuféamtufacility project, the draw conditions includarachievement of progress milestones
relating to the design and development of the M&lehd the Model S manufacturing facility. For #hectric powertrain manufacturing
facility, the draw conditions include our achievarhef progress milestones relating to the succédsfelopment of commercial arrangements
with third parties for the supply of powertrain cpoments. Additionally, the DOE Loan Facility wikquire us to comply with certain operating
covenants and
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will place additional restrictions on our ability bperate our business. We are unaccustomed togmgnaur business with such restrictions
and others that are associated with a significeedicagreement. If we are unable to draw dowrathtecipated funds under the DOE Loan
Facility, or our ability to make such draw downgl&ayed, we may need to obtain additional or méteve financing to operate our Model S
and electric powertrain manufacturing facilitieghe extent our cash on hand is insufficient. Aaijufe to obtain the DOE funds or secure
other alternative funding could materially and adedy affect our business and prospects. Suchiadditor alternative financing may not be
available on attractive terms, if at all, and cobddmore costly for us to obtain. As a result, glans for building our Model S and electric
powertrain manufacturing plants could be signifibadelayed which would materially adversely affeatr business, prospects, financial
condition and operating results.

Our DOE Loan Facility documents contain customaryemants that include, among others, a requirethanthe project be conducted in
accordance with the business plan for such projechpliance with all requirements of the ATVM Praagr, and limitations on our and our
subsidiaries’ ability to incur indebtedness, iniens, make investments or loans, enter into mergeacquisitions, dispose of assets, pay
dividends or make distributions on capital stodlepay indebtedness, pay management, advisory dasiees to affiliates, enter into certain
affiliate transactions, enter into new lines ofibass and enter into certain restrictive agreemdihtsse restrictions may limit our ability to
operate our business and may cause us to tak@esctigprevent us from taking actions we believengaessary from a competitive standpoint
or that we otherwise believe are necessary to giavbusiness.

The operation of our vehicles is different from ietnal combustion engine vehicles and our customeray experience difficulty operatir
them properly, including difficulty transitioning btween different methods of braking.

We have designed our vehicles to minimize incorsece and inadvertent driver damage to the powaerthaicertain instances, these
protections may cause the vehicle to behave in weatsare unfamiliar to drivers of internal comboistvehicles. For example, we employ
regenerative braking to recharge the battery intmmasles of vehicle operation. Our customers mayinecaccustomed to using this
regenerative braking instead of the wheel brakedotw the vehicle. However, when the vehicle imakimum charge, the regenerative braking
is not needed and is not employed. Accordingly,customers may have difficulty shifting betweerfatiént methods of braking. In addition,
we use safety mechanisms to limit motor torque wtherpowertrain system reaches elevated tempesatursuch instances, the vehicle’s
acceleration and speed will decrease. Finalljhefdriver permits the battery to substantially depits charge, the vehicle will progressively
limit motor torque and speed to preserve the chérgeremains. The vehicle will lose speed ananately coast to a stop. Despite several
warnings about an imminent loss of charge, thenalte loss of speed may be unexpected. There cao dssurance that our customers will
operate the vehicles properly, especially in thesmtions. Any accidents resulting from such falto operate our vehicles properly could
harm our brand and reputation, result in adversdigity and product liability claims, and have atexdal adverse affect on our business,
prospects, financial condition and operating resuitt addition, if consumers dislike these featutiesy may choose not to buy additional cars
from us which could also harm our business andpacs.

Developments in alternative technologies or imprawents in the internal combustion engine may matéijaadversely affect the demand
for our electric vehicles

Significant developments in alternative technolegsch as advanced diesel, ethanol, fuel cetsmpressed natural gas, or
improvements in the fuel economy of the internahbastion engine, may materially and adversely affec business and prospects in way:
do not currently anticipate. For example, fuel whig abundant and relatively inexpensive in Northekica, such as compressed natural gas,
may emerge as consumers’ preferred alternativetrolpeum based propulsion. Any failure by us toalep new or enhanced technologies or
processes, or to react to changes in existing tdopies, could materially delay our development articbduction of new and enhanced electric
vehicles, which could result in the loss of comipegness of our vehicles, decreased revenue apssaf market share to competitors.
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If we are unable to keep up with advances in eléctrehicle technology, we may suffer a decline iar@ompetitive position.

We may be unable to keep up with changes in eteettiicle technology and, as a result, may suffdedine in our competitive position.
Any failure to keep up with advances in electribiete technology would result in a decline in oompetitive position which would materially
and adversely affect our business, prospects, tipgnesults and financial condition. Our reseanld development efforts may not be
sufficient to adapt to changes in electric vehielghnology. As technologies change, we plan toaggor adapt our vehicles and introduce
models in order to continue to provide vehicledwtite latest technology, in particular battery tethnology. However, our vehicles may not
compete effectively with alternative vehicles if s not able to source and integrate the latebht®ogy into our vehicles. For example, we
do not manufacture battery cells, which makes p&déent upon other suppliers of battery cell tetdmofor our battery packs.

Our distribution model is different from the predamant current distribution model for automobile marfacturers, which makes
evaluating our business, operating results and frguprospects difficult.

Our distribution model is not common in the autoif®omdustry today, particularly in the United Siat We plan to continue to sell our
performance electric vehicles over the internetiarmbmpany-owned Tesla stores. This model of Veldistribution is relatively new and
unproven, especially in the United States, andesitbjus to substantial risk as it requires, indpgregate, a significant expenditure and
provides for slower expansion of our distributiordaales systems than may be possible by utilaingre traditional dealer franchise system.
For example, we will not be able to utilize longaddished sales channels developed through a fismelstem to increase our sales volume,
which may harm our business, prospects, financiatition and operating results. Moreover, we wildompeting with companies with well-
established distribution channels.

As of December 31, 2010, we had opened 16 Tedlassio the United States, Europe and Japan, sdwehich have been open for less
than one year. We have only limited experienceibigting and selling our performance vehicles tilytoour Tesla stores. As of December 31,
2010 we had only sold approximately 1,500 TesladRtes to customers, primarily in the United States$ Europe. Our success will depen
large part on our ability to effectively developrawn sales channels and marketing strategies.emmghting our business model is subject to
numerous significant challenges, including obtainermits and approvals from local and state aiitesrand we may not be successful in
addressing these challenges. We plan to introduneanvestore concept in 2011 to enhance the custparehasing experience and to generate
greater visibility for Tesla products in areas @fthcustomer foot traffic. We do not know whether store strategy will meet our anticipated
objectives and we may incur additional costs ireotd improve or change this strategy.

You must consider our business and prospectstin difjthe risks, uncertainties and difficulties erecounter as we implement our
business model. For instance, we will need to @elsicustomers, suppliers and regulators of thditsalind sustainability of our business
model. We cannot be certain that we will be abldd®o, or to successfully address the risks, tamicdies and difficulties that our business
strategy faces. Any failure to successfully addeessof the risks, uncertainties and difficultietated to our business model would have a
material adverse effect on our business and préspec

We may face regulatory limitations on our abilitg sell vehicles directly or over the internet whicbuld materially and adversely affect
our ability to sell our electric vehicles.

We sell our vehicles from our Tesla stores as a&lbver the internet. We may not be able to selehicles through this sales model in
each state in the United States as many stateddasehat may be interpreted to prohibit intersaes by manufacturers to residents of the
state or to impose other limitations on this sabeslel, including laws that prohibit manufacturexant selling vehicles directly to consumers
without the use of an independent dealership diawit a physical presence in the state. For exartipestate of Texas prohibits a manufact
from being licensed as a dealer or to act in thpacity of a dealer, which would prohibit us fromeogting a store in the state of Texas and may
restrict our ability to sell vehicles to Texas
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residents over the internet from out of state atbgr without altering our sales model. The stat€amsas provides that a manufacturer cannot
deliver a vehicle to a Kansas resident except tit@idealer licensed to do business in the stadt@an$as, which may be interpreted to require
us to open a store in the state of Kansas in dodegll vehicles to Kansas residents. In somesstatere we have opened a “gallenyfiich is ¢
location where potential customers can view ouiclel but is not a full retail location, it is pdsle that a state regulator could take the
position that activities at our gallery constitate unlicensed motor vehicle dealership and thevaligites applicable manufacturer-dealer laws.
For example, the state of Colorado required udtain dealer and manufacturer licenses in the 8tadeder to operate our gallery in Colorado.
In addition, some states have requirements thaicgefacilities be available with respect to vebgkold in the state, which may be interpreted
to also require that service facilities be avagabith respect to vehicles sold over the interoetsidents of the state thereby limiting our
ability to sell vehicles in states where we domeaintain service facilities.

The foregoing examples of state laws governingstile of motor vehicles are just some of the reguiatwe will face as we sell our
vehicles. In many states, the application of statéor vehicle laws to our specific sales modeaigé¢ly untested under state motor vehicle
industry laws, particularly with respect to salegsiothe internet, and would be determined by adpetific analysis of numerous factors,
including whether we have a physical presence @i@mes in the applicable state, whether we adseedi conduct other activities in the
applicable state, how the sale transaction is &tred, the volume of sales into the state, and kdrdhe state in question prohibits
manufacturers from acting as dealers. As a restifteofact specific and untested nature of theseis, and the fact that applying these laws
intended for the traditional automobile distributimodel to our sales model allows for some integtien and discretion by the regulators, the
manner in which the applicable authorities will Bpiheir state laws to our distribution model iskapown. Such laws, as well as other laws
governing the motor vehicle industry, may subjectaipotential inquiries and investigations fromtstmotor vehicle regulators who may
guestion whether our sales model complies withieable state motor vehicle industry laws and whqg meguire us to change our sales model
or may prohibit our ability to sell our vehiclesresidents in such states. In addition, decisignsegulators permitting us to sell vehicles may
be subject to challenges as to whether such dasisiomply with applicable state motor vehicle indutaws. Such challenges, if successful,
could prohibit our ability to sell our vehiclestesidents in such states.

To date, we are registered as both a motor vehieleufacturer and dealer in California, Coloradoyigh, lllinois and Washington and
we are licensed as a motor vehicle dealer in tie sif New York. We have not yet sought formali€itzation of our ability to sell our vehicles
in any other states.

We are also registered as both a motor vehicle faaturer and dealer in Canada, Australia, and Japahhave obtained licenses to sell
vehicles in other countries such as Hong Kong andgeépore. Furthermore, while we have performedreatysis of the principal laws in the
European Union relating to our distribution modedi doelieve we comply with such laws, we have notggmed a complete analysis in all
foreign jurisdictions in which we may sell vehiclégcordingly, there may be laws in jurisdictions Wave not yet entered or laws we are
unaware of in jurisdictions we have entered thay neatrict our vehicle reservation practices orothusiness practices. Even for those
jurisdictions we have analyzed, the laws in theaacan be complex, difficult to interpret and mhgrge over time

Regulatory limitations on our ability to sell veleis could materially and adversely affect our &piid sell our electric vehicles.

A large amount of our Tesla Roadster sales revemas been due to the fulfillment of orders from resations taken in prior years.

As of December 31, 2010, we had sold approximéat@@0 Tesla Roadsters to customers of which a laugsber were delivered in 2009
as we made a significant effort to fulfill resetieats placed in prior years. Since 2009, we haveerperienced and in the future, we do not
expect to have a significant wait list of ordersdar Tesla Roadster, and we may not be able tataiaior increase our vehicle sales reven
future quarters. This
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may be the case even though we will make significarestments to expand our network of Tesla stargssales personnel. Furthermore,
potential customers may decide to defer purchasiad esla Roadster in anticipation of our plannext generation Tesla Roadster or Mode
All reservation payments for the Model S are futjundable.

Reservations for Model S sedans are fully refundaltd customers.

As of December 31, 2010, we had unfilled reservatimr approximately 3,400 Model S sedans, all iichv are subject to cancellation
the customer up until such time that the customégrs into a purchase agreement. Historicallypfadlur reservations have been refundable
we have had a significant number of customers wiongtted reservations for the Tesla Roadster cahosk reservations and we have
refunded their deposits.

Given the long lead times that we have historicakperienced between customer reservation andeslglon the Tesla Roadster and that
we expect to experience on the Model S, therehisightened risk that customers that have madevesans may not ultimately take delivery
on vehicles due to potential changes in customefepences, competitive developments and otherradtor example, when we delayed the
introduction of the original Tesla Roadster in thkk of 2007, we experienced a significant numblecustomers that cancelled their reservat
and requested the return of their reservation paynifewe encounter delays in the introductionted Model S, we believe that a significant
number of our customers could similarly cancelrtheservations. As a result, no assurance can ble that reservations will not be cancelled
and will ultimately result in the final purchaseligery, and sale of the vehicle. Such cancellatioould harm our financial condition, business,
prospects and operating results.

If we are unable to design, develop, market and selw electric vehicles and services that addreddigonal market opportunities, our
business, prospects and operating results will suff

We may not be able to successfully develop newtrtegehicles and services, address new market setgnor develop a significantly
broader customer base. To date, we have focusdousinmess on the sale of high-performance eleegtiicles and have targeted relatively
affluent consumers. We will need to address aduifionarkets and expand our customer demograpludier to further grow our business. In
particular, we intend the Model S to appeal todhstomers of premium vehicles, which is a muchdaend different demographic from tha:
the Tesla Roadster. Successfully offering a vehicthis vehicle class requires delivering a vehieith a higher standard of fit and finish in
interior and exterior than currently exists in ffesla Roadster, at a price that is competitive witter premium vehicles. We have not
completed the design, component sourcing or matwiag process for the Model S, so it is diffictdtforecast its eventual cost,
manufacturability or quality. Therefore, there ¢enno assurance that we will be able to delivezldcle that is ultimately competitive in the
premium vehicle market. In 2011, we publicly annceohthe Tesla Model X as the first vehicle we idtemdevelop by leveraging the Model S
platform. We have also previously announced owninto develop a third generation electric vehidigch we expect to produce at our plan
manufacturing facility in Fremont, California aftére introduction of the Model S. However, we haet yet finalized the design, engineering
or component sourcing plans for these vehiclestlaag: are no assurances that we will be able tmlihiese vehicles to market at a lower price
point and in higher volumes than our planned M&lak we currently intend, if at all. Our failureatddress additional market opportunities
would harm our business, prospects, financial dmand operating results.

Any changes to the Federal Trade Commission’s electehicle range testing procedure or the Unitethfs Environmental Protection
Agency's energy consumption regulations for electric vehes could result in a reduction to the advertisethge of our vehicles which could
negatively impact our sales and harm our business.

The Federal Trade Commission (FTC) requires usiitutate and display the range of our electric elelsion a label we affix to the
vehicle’s window. The FTC specifies that we folltagting requirements set forth by
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the Society of Automotive Engineers (SAE) whichtler requires that we test using the EPA’s, combiity and highway testing cycles. The
EPA recently announced that it would develop antdldish new energy efficiency testing methodolod@slectric vehicles. Based on initial
indications from the EPA, we believe it is likelyat the EPA will modify its testing cycles in a nm@n that, when applied to our vehicles, could
reduce the advertised range of our vehicles by 89% as compared to the combined two-cycle taseitly applicable to our vehicles.
However, there can be no assurance that the madifRA testing cycles will not result in a greateduction. To the extent that the FTC adopts
these procedures in place of the current procedroasthe SAE, this could impair our ability to adtise the Tesla Roadster as a vehicle tt
capable of going in excess of 200 miles. Moreoseach changes could impair our ability to deliver Model S with the initially advertised
range, which could result in the cancellation ouaber of the approximately 3,400 reservationshlat been placed for the Model S as of
December 31, 2010. Any reduction in the advertisedje of our vehicles could negatively impact ceficle sales and harm our business.

We have no experience with using common platformghe design and manufacture of our vehicles.

If we are unable to effectively leverage the besedf using an adaptable platform architecture,buginess prospects, operating results
and financial condition would be adversely affecétt intend to design the Model S with an adaptplagorm architecture and common
electric powertrain so that we can use the platfoftihe Model S to create future electric vehiclasluding, as examples, a crossover/sport
utility vehicle, a van and a cabriolet. In 2011, pugblicly announced the Tesla Model X as the fiedticle we intend to develop by leveraging
the Model S platform. However, we have no expegenith using common platforms in the design and ufecture of our vehicles and the
design of the Model S is not complete. We may n@ienges to the design of the Model S that may ritakere difficult to use the Model S
platform for future electric vehicles. There areassurances that we will be able to use the Mogghtsorm to bring future vehicle models,
including the Model X, to market faster or morexpensively by leveraging use of this common platfar that there will be sufficient
customer demand for the Model X or additional vehi@riants of this platform.

The automotive market is highly competitive, and may not be successful in competing in this indyst¥We currently face competition
from established competitors and expect to face petition from others in the future

The worldwide automotive market, particularly fdteanative fuel vehicles, is highly competitive tgdand we expect it will become ev
more so in the future. Some of our competitorsredtéhe market at the end of 2010 and we expedtiadal competitors to enter these marl
within the next several years and as they do sexpect that we will experience significant competit With respect to our Tesla Roadster,
currently face strong competition from establisaetbmobile manufacturers, including manufacturétsigh-performance vehicles, such as
Porsche and Ferrari. In addition, upon the laurfatuo Model S sedan, we will face competition frexisting and future automobile
manufacturers in the extremely competitive luxwuegan market, including Audi, BMW, Lexus and Mercede

Many established and new automobile manufactur@ye Bntered or have announced plans to entertéreative fuel vehicle market. In
Japan, Mitsubishi has been selling its electricEMisince April 2010. In December 2010, Nissan idtroed the Nissan Leaf, a fully electric
vehicle and Ford has announced that it plans todotce an electric vehicle in 2011. In additiorvesal manufacturers, including General
Motors, Toyota, Ford, and Honda, are each selliigitl vehicles, and certain of these manufactunexe announced plug-in versions of their
hybrid vehicles. For example, in December 2010,&B&rMotors introduced the Chevrolet Volt, whictaiglug-in hybrid vehicle that operates
purely on electric power for a limited number ofi@si at which time an internal combustion engingagies to recharge the battery.

Moreover, it has been reported that BMW, Daimlexxis, Audi, Renault and Volkswagen are also devedpplectric vehicles. Several
new start-ups have also announced plans to ergengnket for
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performance electric vehicles, although none afehigave yet come to market. Finally, electric vielsibave already been brought to market in
China and other foreign countries and we expectnaber of those manufacturers to enter the UnitateStmarket as well.

Most of our current and potential competitors hsigmificantly greater financial, technical, manutamng, marketing and other resources
than we do and may be able to devote greater resstw the design, development, manufacturingildigion, promotion, sale and support of
their products. Virtually all of our competitorsweamore extensive customer bases and broader cerstord industry relationships than we do.
In addition, almost all of these companies havgédoroperating histories and greater name recogrtitian we do. Our competitors may be in a
stronger position to respond quickly to new tecbgads and may be able to design, develop, markkselhtheir products more effectively.

Furthermore, certain large manufacturers offerrfaiag and leasing options on their vehicles and his/e the ability to market vehicles
at a substantial discount, provided that the vekialre financed through their affiliated financtmgnpany. We only began offering a leasing
program in February 2010 which is currently onlaigable to qualified customers in the United Stat¥e do not currently offer, or plan to
offer, any form of direct financing on our vehicl&ge have not in the past, and do not currentfigrafustomary discounts on our vehicles. The
lack of our direct financing options and the abgeoiccustomary vehicle discounts could put us@irapetitive disadvantage.

We expect competition in our industry to intensifithe future in light of increased demand for raégive fuel vehicles, continuing
globalization and consolidation in the worldwideéauotive industry. Factors affecting competitioolirde product quality and features,
innovation and development time, pricing, relidiilsafety, fuel economy, customer service andnftiveg terms. Increased competition may
lead to lower vehicle unit sales and increasedritory, which may result in a further downward primessure and adversely affect our
business, financial condition, operating resultd prospects. Our ability to successfully competetinindustry will be fundamental to our
future success in existing and new markets andnauket share. There can be no assurances thatlieevable to compete successfully in our
markets. If our competitors introduce new carsasvises that compete with or surpass the qualiigepor performance of our cars or services,
we may be unable to satisfy existing customergtoact new customers at the prices and levelswioatd allow us to generate attractive rates
of return on our investment. Increased competitionld result in price reductions and revenue shlstfloss of customers and loss of market
share, which could harm our business, prospedandial condition and operating results.

Demand in the automobile industry is highly volatil

Volatility of demand in the automobile industry mamaterially and adversely affect our business, ggots, operating results and finan
condition. The markets in which we currently congpathd plan to compete in the future have been sutgeonsiderable volatility in demand
in recent periods. For example, according to autoandustry sources, sales of passenger vehicls®rth America during the fourth quarter
of 2008 were over 30% lower than those during Hraesperiod in the prior year. Demand for automoddlies depends to a large extent on
general, economic, political and social conditiona given market and the introduction of new visand technologies. As a new automobile
manufacturer and low volume producer, we haveflaascial resources than more established automabénufacturers to withstand changes
in the market and disruptions in demand. As ouirtass grows, economic conditions and trends inratbentries and regions where we sell
our electric vehicles will impact our business,gpects and operating results as well. Demand foeleatric vehicles may also be affected by
factors directly impacting automobile price or test of purchasing and operating automobiles sadakes and financing incentives, prices of
raw materials and parts and components, cost bhfwiegovernmental regulations, including tariffaport regulation and other taxes.
Volatility in demand may lead to lower vehicle usiles and increased inventory, which may resuliritner downward price pressure and
adversely affect our business, prospects, finaraatlition and operating results. These effects heaaye a more pronounced impact on our
business given our relatively smaller scale andrfaial resources as compared to many incumbentnalbite manufacturers.
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Difficult economic conditions may affect consumeunghases of luxury items, such as our performandedric vehicles.

Over the last few years, the deterioration in tledal financial markets and continued challengingdition of the macroeconomic
environment has negatively impacted consumer spgratid we believe has adversely affected the sélesr Tesla Roadster. The automobile
industry in particular was severely impacted bygber economic conditions and several vehicle mastufing companies, including General
Motors and Chrysler, were forced to file for bankay. Sales of new automobiles generally have dedmjuring this recessionary period. Sales
of high-end and luxury consumer products, such as our ipedgface electric vehicles, depend in part on digmmaty consumer spending and
even more exposed to adverse changes in generaraaconditions. Difficult economic conditions dduherefore temporarily reduce the
market for vehicles in our price range. Discretigneonsumer spending also is affected by othepfacincluding changes in tax rates and tax
credits, interest rates and the availability amtheof consumer credit.

If the current difficult economic conditions contimor worsen, we may experience a decline in theadd for our Tesla Roadster or
reservations for our Model S, either of which comdterially harm our business, prospects, finaraablition and operating results.
Accordingly, any events that have a negative effeacthe United States economy or on foreign ecoasoi that negatively affect consumer
confidence in the economy, including disruptionsiiedit and stock markets, and actual or percedosthomic slowdowns, may harm our
business, prospects, financial condition and opeyaesults.

Our financial results may vary significantly fromgriod-to-period due to the seasonality of our busss and fluctuations in our operating
costs.

Our operating results may vary significantly froeripd-to-period due to many factors, including seas factors that may have an effect
on the demand for our electric vehicles. Demandé&w cars in the automobile industry in generad, fam high-performance sports vehicles
such as the Tesla Roadster in particular, typia#digline over the winter season, while sales anermgdly higher as compared to the winter
season during the spring and summer months. Wecegpkes of the Tesla Roadster to fluctuate oraam®l basis with increased sales during
the spring and summer months in our second andl fisital quarters relative to our fourth and fistal quarters. We note that, in general,
automotive sales tend to decline over the wintasge and we anticipate that our sales of the M8d®id other models we introduce may have
similar seasonality. However, our limited operatinigtory makes it difficult for us to judge the ekxaature or extent of the seasonality of our
business. Also, any unusually severe weather dondiin some markets may impact demand for ourckei Our operating results could also
suffer if we do not achieve revenue consistent withexpectations for this seasonal demand becaasg of our expenses are based on
anticipated levels of annual revenue.

We also expect our period-to-period operating tedolvary based on our operating costs which vieipate will increase significantly
in future periods as we, among other things, deslgaelop and manufacture our planned Model S &drie powertrain components, build
and equip new manufacturing facilities to produee Model S and electric powertrain components, opmam Tesla stores with maintenance
repair capabilities, incur costs for warranty repair product recalls, if any, increase our satekraarketing activities, and increase our general
and administrative functions to support our growapgrations.

As a result of these factors, we believe that quad-quarter comparisons of our operating resrksnot necessarily meaningful and that
these comparisons cannot be relied upon as indgcafduture performance. Moreover, our operatieguits may not meet expectations of
equity research analysts or investors. If this egcihe trading price of our common stock coultlgabstantially either suddenly or over time.

Marketplace confidence in our long-term businessogpects is important for building and maintaininguo business.

If we are unable to establish and maintain configegtbout our business prospects among consumergitduna our industry, then our
financial condition, operating results and busirm@sspects may suffer materially.
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Our vehicles are highly technical products thatinregmaintenance and support. If we were to ceasatdack operations, even years from
now, buyers of our vehicles from years earlier rhiggve much more difficulty in maintaining theirhieles and obtaining satisfactory support.
As a result, consumers may be less likely to pugelmur vehicles now if they are not convinced thatbusiness will succeed or that our
operations will continue for many years. Similadyppliers and other third parties will be lesgljkto invest time and resources in developing
business relationships with us if they are not aored that our business will succeed. For exantpléng the economic downturn of 2008, we
had difficulty raising the necessary funding for operations, and, as a result, in the fourth guart 2008 we had to lay off approximately 60
employees and curtail our expansion plans. In amditluring this period a number of customers chatctheir previously placed reservations.
If we are required to take similar actions in th&ufe, such actions may result in negative peroaptiegarding our long-term business
prospects.

Accordingly, in order to build and maintain our lmess, we must maintain confidence among custorseppliers and other parties in
liquidity and long-term business prospects. In msttto some more established auto makers, wevbdlt, in our case, the task of
maintaining such confidence may be particularly pboated by factors such as the following:

» our limited operating histon

» our limited revenues and lack of profitability tatd;

« unfamiliarity with or uncertainty about the Tesladister and the Model

» uncertainty about the lo-term marketplace acceptance of alternative fuelckethigenerally, or electric vehicles specifica
» the prospect that we will need ongoing infusiongxternal capital to fund our planned operatic

» the size of our expansion plans in comparison toegisting capital base and scope and history efatpns; ant

» the prospect or actual emergence of direct, suetadompetitive pressure from more established matkers, which may be more
likely if our initial efforts are perceived to bermmercially successfu

Many of these factors are largely outside our @nand any negative perceptions about our longHausiness prospects, even if
exaggerated or unfounded, would likely harm ouliress and make it more difficult to raise additidis@ds when needed.

We may need to raise additional funds and thesedsimay not be available to us when we need thenndfcannot raise additional funds
when we need them, our operations and prospectdatbe negatively affected.

The design, manufacture, sale and servicing ofraodlidles is a capital intensive business. Sinceptioe through December 31, 2010,
had incurred net losses of approximately $415.0aniknd had used approximately $330.6 million a$lc in operations and while recognizing
only approximately $243.5 million in revenue. Asé¥cember 31, 2010, we had $99.6 million in cash@ash equivalents, which excludes the
$73.6 million in restricted cash we have set apittecipally to fund the dedicated account underghmrisions of our DOE Loan Facility. We
expect that our current sources of liquidity, imtthg cash and cash equivalents, cash held in ol B&2ount and the remaining amounts
available under the DOE Loan Facility, togethertvatir anticipated cash from operating activities], lme sufficient to fund our operations
through the initial customer deliveries of the Mb8eHowever, if there are delays in the launckhefModel S, if we are unable to draw down
the anticipated funds under the DOE Loan Facitityif the costs in building our Model S and powairirmanufacturing facilities exceed our
expectations or if we incur any significant unpladrexpenses, we may need to raise additional finndsgh the issuance of equity, equity-
related or debt securities or through obtaininglicfeom government or financial institutions. Thuapital will be necessary to fund our ongc
operations, continue research, development andmesiorts including those for our planned ModeVehicle, establish sales and service
centers, improve infrastructure such as expandgdrigassembly facilities, and to make the
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investments in tooling and manufacturing capitguieed to introduce the Model S. We cannot be getteat additional funds will be available
to us on favorable terms when required, or atfalle cannot raise additional funds when we neednthour financial condition, results of
operations, business and prospects could be mbtexitversely affected. For example, during theneeoic downturn of 2008, we had
difficulty raising the necessary funding for ouresgtions and, as a result, in the fourth quart@088 we had to lay off approximately 60
employees and curtail our expansion plans. Addiignunder our DOE Loan Facility, we face residas on our ability to incur additional
indebtedness, and in the future may need to obtamiver from the DOE in order to do so. We mayb®able to obtain such waiver from the
DOE which may harm our business. Future issuanegwity or equity-related securities will diluteetbwnership interest of existing
stockholders and our issuance of debt securitigkléocrease the risk or perceived risk of our camp

If our vehicles fail to perform as expected, ourility to develop, market and sell our electric velgs could be harmed.

Our vehicles may contain defects in design and ria@twre that may cause them not to perform as ¢egewr that may require repair. |
example, our vehicles use a substantial amoundfofare code to operate. Software products arer@rtily complex and often contain defects
and errors when first introduced. While we havdqrened extensive internal testing, we currentlydavimited frame of reference by whict
evaluate the long-term performance of our TesladREa. We have no frame of reference by which tduate our Model S upon which our
business prospects depend. There can be no assuihateve will be able to detect and fix any defectthe vehicles prior to their sale to
consumers. We experienced product recalls in M&p2hd October 2010, both of which were unrelabeaut electric powertrain. In May
2009, we initiated a product recall after we deiaad that a condition caused by insufficient tonguof the rear inner hub flange bolt existe
some of our Tesla Roadsters, as a result of a thigeeess during the manufacture of the Tesla ReadBder, which is the partially
assembled Tesla Roadster that does not contaieleetric powertrain. In October 2010, we initiategroduct recall after the 12 volt, low
voltage auxiliary cable in a single vehicle chafeghinst the edge of a carbon fiber panel in théclehausing a short, smoke and possible fire
behind the right front headlamp of the vehicle haligh the cost of the most recent recall was naérigd, we may experience additional rec
in the future, which could adversely affect ourratan our target markets and could adversely affactousiness, prospects and results of
operations. Our electric vehicles, including thsl@eRoadster and Model S, may not perform condistéh customers’ expectations or
consistent with other vehicles currently availalbler example, our electric vehicles may not haeedirability or longevity of current vehicle
and may not be as easy to repair as other veluakeently on the market. Any product defects or ather failure of our performance electric
vehicles to perform as expected could harm ourtegjmn and result in adverse publicity, lost reverdelivery delays, product recalls, product
liability claims, harm to our brand and reputatiand significant warranty and other expenses, antichave a material adverse impact on our
business, financial condition, operating resultd prospects.

We have very limited experience servicing our véédcand we are using a different service model frtime one typically used in the
industry. If we are unable to address the servieguirements of our existing and future customersrdausiness will be materially and
adversely affected.

If we are unable to successfully address the sengguirements of our existing and future custoroarsbusiness and prospects will be
materially and adversely affected. In addition,amicipate the level and quality of the servicepsavide our Tesla Roadster customers will
have a direct impact on the success of the Modeldsour future vehicles. If we are unable to satisfrily service our Tesla Roadster
customers, our ability to generate customer loygitgw our business and sell additional Tesla Reasigs well as Model S sedans could be
impaired.

We have very limited experience servicing our vidsicAs of December 31, 2010 we had sold only apprately 1,500 Tesla Roadsters
to customers, primarily in the United States antba. We do not plan to begin production of any Bld8l vehicles until mid012 with highe
volume production not occurring until
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2013, and do not have any experience servicingtbass as they do not exist currently. Servicimgteic vehicles is different than servicing
vehicles with internal combustion engines and neguspecialized skills, including high voltagetiag and servicing techniques.

We plan to service our performance electric vekitheough our company-owned Tesla stores and througmobile service technicians
known as the Tesla Rangers. As of December 31,,204 Giad opened 16 Tesla stores, most of whick@ueped to actively service our
performance electric vehicles. However, seven stbeee been open for less than one year, andeondahave only limited experience
servicing our performance vehicles through our dasbres. Going forward, we intend to build seasales and service locations in several
markets, but to date have limited experience wéfhasate sales and service locations within a gebgranarket. We will need to open
additional Tesla stores with service capabilitied atandalone service locations, as well as hidetrain significant numbers of new employees
to staff these centers and act as Tesla Rangessjén to successfully maintain our fleet of delaeperformance electric vehicles. We only
implemented our Tesla Rangers program in Octob@® 2tid have limited experience in deploying thersetivice our customers’ vehicles.
There can be no assurance that these service amangs or our limited experience servicing our lelsi will adequately address the service
requirements of our customers to their satisfactiorthat we will have sufficient resources to mibetse service requirement in a timely mai
as the volume of vehicles we are able to delivauatly increases.

We do not expect to be able to open Tesla storalf the geographic areas in which our existing potntial customers may reside. In
order to address the service needs of customdrariaot in geographical proximity to our serviemters, we plan to either transport those
vehicles to the nearest Tesla store or servicescémt servicing or deploy our mobile Tesla Rangderservice the vehicles at the customer’s
location. These special arrangements may be exgeand we may not be able to recoup the costsaviging these services to our customers.
In addition, a number of potential customers magosie not to purchase our vehicles because of theofea more widespread service network.
If we do not adequately address our customersicEneeds, our brand and reputation will be adWeedéected, which in turn, could have a
material and adverse impact on our business, finhoandition, operating results and prospects.

Traditional automobile manufacturers do not provitEintenance and repair services directly. Conssimeist rather service their
vehicles through franchised dealerships or thrabgh party maintenance service providers. We doha@e any such arrangements with third
party service providers and it is unclear whenvamewhether such third party service providers bélable to acquire the expertise to service
our vehicles. At this point, we anticipate thatwiét be providing substantially all of the servitm our vehicles for the foreseeable future. As
our vehicles are placed in more locations, we nrepenter negative reactions from our consumersavadrustrated that they cannot use Ic
service stations to the same extent as they habetiéir conventional automobiles and this frusbramay result in negative publicity and
reduced sales, thereby harming our business aspects.

In addition, the motor vehicle industry laws in ripastates require that service facilities be avé@atith respect to vehicles physically
sold from locations in the state. Whether theseslanould also require that service facilities beilabde with respect to vehicles sold over the
internet to consumers in a state in which we havphysical presence is uncertain. While we belimweTesla Ranger program and our prac
of shipping customers’ vehicles to our nearestd sdre for service would satisfy regulators irstheircumstances, without seeking formal
regulatory guidance, there are no assurancesegalators will not attempt to require that we pdevphysical service facilities in their states.
Further, certain state franchise laws which prahianufacturers from being licensed as a dealacting in the capacity of dealer also restrict
manufacturers from providing vehicle service. Huss arise in connection with these laws, certspeets of Tesla’s service program would
need to be restructured to comply with state lahictv may harm our business.
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We may not succeed in continuing to establish, ntain and strengthen the Tesla brand, which would tegally and adversely affect
customer acceptance of our vehicles and componemd our business, revenues and prospects.

Our business and prospects are heavily dependeniraability to develop, maintain and strengthes Tiesla brand. Any failure to
develop, maintain and strengthen our brand mayniayeand adversely affect our ability to sell thesla Roadster and planned electric
vehicles, including the Model S, and sell our eieqtowertrain components. If we do not continuestablish, maintain and strengthen our
brand, we may lose the opportunity to build a caitinass of customers. Promoting and positioninmgooand will likely depend significantly ¢
our ability to provide high quality electric canscamaintenance and repair services, and we haydiwgted experience in these areas. In
addition, we expect that our ability to develop,imin and strengthen the Tesla brand will alscedelpheavily on the success of our marketing
efforts. To date, we have limited experience withrketing activities as we have relied primarilytbae internet, word of mouth and attendance
at industry trade shows to promote our brand. Tthér promote our brand, we may be required to geanur marketing practices, which could
result in substantially increased advertising expsnincluding the need to use traditional medih s television, radio and print. The
automobile industry is intensely competitive, anelmay not be successful in building, maintaining stniengthening our brand. Many of our
current and potential competitors, particularlycmbbile manufacturers headquartered in Detroitadamd the European Union, have greater
name recognition, broader customer relationshigpssaibstantially greater marketing resources thadavéf we do not develop and maintain a
strong brand, our business, prospects, financiadition and operating results will be materiallydaadversely impacted.

We are dependent upon our relationship with Lotus the manufacturing of the Tesla Roadster.

In July 2005, we entered into a supply agreemetit lotus, which was amended in March 2010, purst@anthich Lotus agreed to assist
with the design and manufacture of our Tesla Readaithough we complete the final assembly of desla Roadster in our Menlo Park
facility for vehicles destined for the United Stataarket, currently we are dependent upon Lotestoplete the initial portion of the assembly
process of the Tesla Roadster for us in Hethel]dfrgand we expect this to continue until we disice sales of our current generation Tesla
Roadster. The partially assembled vehicles manufadtby Lotus do not contain our electric powentrand are referred to as gliders. We
currently intend to manufacture gliders with Lofasour current generation Tesla Roadster untildan2012. We intend to use these glide
the manufacturing of the Tesla Roadster to botfillfarders placed in 2011 as well as new ordeesetl in 2012 until our supply of gliders is
exhausted. Accordingly, we intend to offer a lirditeumber of Tesla Roadsters for sale in 2012. Wieipate that our next generation Tesla
Roadster, which we plan to launch at least one g#ar we begin production of the Model S, will in@nufactured in our own facilities.

Pursuant to the supply agreement with Lotus, wehligated to purchase a minimum of 2,400 partiagembled or fully assembled
vehicles over the term of the agreement. If weuaiable to meet this volume requirement, we arkrsgponsible for payment to Lotus of the
lesser of (i) the sum of Lotus’ actual incurredtsand an agreed upon profit margin per vehicléoupe minimum volume requirement or
(i) £5,400,000. To the extent we would like to guoe more than the number of vehicles that we bamn&acted for, we will need to negotiate
a new or amended supply agreement with Lotus bytbeainable to do so on terms and conditions fdler® us, if at all. In such event, we
may be required to contract with another third yp#otreplace Lotus which would entail redesigntef Tesla Roadster chassis, adjustments to
our supply chain and establishment of a light maatiring facility. The expense and time requireddmplete this transition, and to assure
the vehicles and gliders manufactured at thatifp@bmply with all relevant regulatory requiremgntnay turn out to be higher than
anticipated. Entry into any such contract with &eotthird party might also require us to agreestms with Lotus on which Lotus would
license certain intellectual property rights neaeg$or the manufacture of the Tesla Roadster ¢t shird party. There can be no assurance
we will be able to find a third party to completariial manufacture of the Tesla Roadster on teawerfible to us, if at all. In addition, there
be no assurance that we will be able to enterantmtellectual property rights
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license with Lotus on terms favorable to us, iélhtAdditionally, because we are dependent uparrelationship with Lotus for the
manufacturing of the Tesla Roadster, our businepgmids on Lotus continuing to operate as a viaidesalvent entity and to continue to
produce the Tesla Roadster vehicles and glideisupnt to our supply agreement. Any delay or disnaanhce by Lotus of delivery of the Te
Roadster vehicles and gliders or failure by Lotuprioduce the vehicles and gliders in accordante guiality standards would have a material
adverse effect on our business, prospects, opgnegults and financial condition.

We are dependent on our suppliers, a significantmiber of which are single or limited source supplérand the inability of these
suppliers to continue to deliver, or their refustd deliver, necessary components of our vehicleprates and volumes acceptable to us wc
have a material adverse effect on our business,gpects and operating results.

The Tesla Roadster uses over 2,000 purchasedvgairds we source globally from over 150 suppliergjmof whom are currently sing
source suppliers for these components. While wainltomponents from multiple sources whenever ptesssimilar to other automobile
manufacturers, many of the components used in ehicles are purchased by us from a single soureeréfér to these component suppliers as
our single source suppliers. To date we have naliftpd alternative sources for most of the sirgpeirced components used in our vehicles
we generally do not maintain long-term agreemeritts @ur single source suppliers.

While we believe that we may be able to establigdrrzate supply relationships and can obtain oirerey replacement components for
our single source components, we may be unable tmdn the short term or at all at prices or ctists are favorable to us. In particular, while
we believe that we will be able to secure altersaterces of supply for almost all of our singlersed components on a relatively short time
frame, qualifying alternate suppliers or developing own replacements for certain highly customizechponents of the Tesla Roadster, such
as the carbon fiber body panels, which are supptiad by Sotira 35, a unit of Sora Composites @ronay be time consuming and costly.

In addition, Lotus is the only manufacturer forte@r components, such as the chassis of our TesldsRer. We therefore refer to it as a
sole source supplier. Replacing the components frotas that are sole sourced may require us tagiaear our vehicles, which would be time
consuming and costly. We do not currently utiling aole source suppliers other than Lotus.

This supply chain exposes us to multiple potemsiairces of delivery failure or component shortdgeshe Tesla Roadster, our
powertrain component sales activities and the @driviodel S. We are currently evaluating, qualifyargl selecting our suppliers for the
planned production of the Model S and we intendsiablish dual suppliers for several key componefitise Model S, although we expect t
a number of components for the Model S will be Ergpurced. We have in the past experienced salisogptions in our supply chains which
have caused delays in our production process andayeexperience additional delays in the future.

Changes in business conditions, wars, governmehgaiges and other factors beyond our control oclhvvie do not presently anticipate,
could also affect our suppliers’ ability to delivamponents to us on a timely basis. Furthermbree iexperience significant increased
demand, or need to replace our existing supplieese can be no assurance that additional supgflie@mponent parts will be available when
required on terms that are favorable to us, abalthat any supplier would allocate sufficient gligs to us in order to meet our requirements or
fill our orders in a timely manner. In the past, have replaced certain suppliers because of thiiré to provide components that met our
quality control standards. The loss of any singlénoited source supplier or the disruption in twgply of components from these suppliers
could lead to delays in vehicle deliveries to oustomers, which could hurt our relationships witin customers and also materially adversely
affect our business, prospects and operating sesult

Changes in our supply chain have resulted in tisg pad may result in the future, in increased aostdelay. For example, a change in
our supplier for our carbon fiber body panels cbntied to the delay in our
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ability to ramp our production of the Tesla Roadstefailure by our suppliers to provide the compots necessary to manufacture our
performance electric vehicles could prevent us ffolfilling customer orders in a timely fashion whicould result in negative publicity,
damage our brand and have a material adverse efiemtir business, prospects, financial conditicth @perating results. In addition, since we
have no fixed pricing arrangements with any of camponent suppliers other than Lotus, our compos@opliers could increase their prices
with little or no notice to us, which could harmrdinancial condition and operating results if we anable to pass such price increases alc
our customers.

Increases in costs, disruption of supply or shoréagf raw materials, in particular lithium-ion cellscould harm our business.

We may experience increases in the cost or a sestaiterruption in the supply or shortage of raatenials. Any such an increase or
supply interruption could materially negatively iagb our business, prospects, financial conditiah@perating results. We use various raw
materials in our business including aluminum, steiekel, carbon fiber, non-ferrous metals sucka@sper, as well as cobalt. The prices for
these raw materials fluctuate depending on mardkeditions and global demand for these materialscandd adversely affect our business and
operating results. For instance, we are exposeaulttple risks relating to price fluctuations fathium-ion cells. These risks include:

» the inability or unwillingness of current batteryanufacturers to build or operate battery cell maauifring plants to supply the
numbers of lithium-ion cells required to supposr tirowth of the electric or pluig-hybrid vehicle industry as demand for such ¢
increases

» disruption in the supply of cells due to qualitguss or recalls by the battery cell manufactuind
* anincrease in the cost of raw materials, suctobalt; used in lithiur-ion cells.

Our business is dependent on the continued supisttery cells for our vehicles and for the batteack we produce for other
automobile manufacturers. While we believe severatces of the battery cell we have selected iT#sla Roadster are available, we have
fully qualified only one supplier for the cells usi| the Tesla Roadster. The same is also truthébattery cells used for battery packs that we
supply to other OEMs. Any disruption in the suppfibattery cells from such vendor could temporadilsrupt production of the Tesla Road:
and of the battery packs we produce for other aatnle manufacturers until such time as a differplier is fully qualified. Moreover,
battery cell manufacturers may choose to refuseipply electric vehicle manufacturers to the exteay determine that the vehicles are not
sufficiently safe. Furthermore, current fluctuasar shortages in petroleum and other economicitonsl may cause us to experience
significant increases in freight charges and raweniea costs. Substantial increases in the prioestir raw materials would increase our
operating costs, and could reduce our margins i€avanot recoup the increased costs through inalegsetric vehicle prices. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to recoup increasists of raw materials by increasing vehicle wid&¥e have also already announced an
estimated price for the base model of our plannedd!S but do not anticipate announcing the fimelipg of the other variants of the Mode
until at least 2011. However, any attempts to iasesthe announced or expected prices in respomseréased raw material costs could be
viewed negatively by our customers, result in cHatiens of Model S reservations and could matbriativersely affect our brand, image,
business, prospects and operating results.

We are currently expanding and improving our inforation technology systems. If these implementati@ns not successful, our busine
and operations could be disrupted and our operatirggults could be harmed.

We are currently expanding and improving our infation technology systems to assist us in the manageof our business. In
particular, our production of the Model S will nesitate the improvement, design and developmemicoé expanded supply chain systems to
support our operations as well as production ang floor management. The implementation of newvsafé management platforms and the
addition of these platforms at new locations regsignificant management time, support and costeb\er, there are
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inherent risks associated with developing, imprgvamd expanding our core systems, including supipdyn disruptions that may affect our
ability to obtain supplies when needed or to delixehicles to our Tesla stores and customers. Wieatde sure that these expanded systems
will be fully or effectively implemented on a tinyebasis, if at all. If we do not successfully implent this project, our operations may be
disrupted and our operating results could be hartmeaddition, the new systems may not operateeasxpect them to, and we may be reqt

to expend significant resources to correct problenfsnd alternative sources for performing thesections.

If our vehicle owners customize our vehicles or cige the charging infrastructure with aftermarket pducts, the vehicle may not oper:
properly which could harm our busines

Automobile enthusiasts may seek to “hack” our viglsito modify its performance which could compraenighicle safety systems. Also,
we are aware of customers who have customized\bhicles with after-market parts that may compsandriver safety. For example, some
customers have installed seats that elevate therdsuch that airbag and other safety systems dmutbmpromised. Other customers have
changed wheels and tires, while others have iestddirge speaker systems that may impact the ielgctystems of the vehicle. We have not
tested, nor do we endorse, such changes or prodiietddition, customer use of improper externaliog or unsafe charging outlets can
expose our customer to injury from high voltagectleity. Such unauthorized modifications couldued the safety of our vehicles and any
injuries resulting from such modifications couldué in adverse publicity which would negativelyeast our brand and harm our business,
prospects, financial condition and operating rasult

The success of our business depends on attracting @etaining a large number of customers. If we an@able to do so, we will not be
able to achieve profitability.

Our success depends on attracting a large numipatenftial customers to purchase our electric vebids of December 31, 2010 we
had sold approximately 1,500 Tesla Roadsters toomess, almost all of which were sold in the Unif&tdtes and Europe, and had accepted
reservations for approximately 3,400 Model S sedHimair existing and prospective customers dop@steive our vehicles and services to be
of sufficiently high value and quality, cost comifieé and appealing in aesthetics or performancd,tbe final production version of the
Model S is not sufficiently similar to the drivaldesign prototype, we may not be able to retaincoarent customers or attract new customers,
and our business and prospects, operating resutfirencial condition would suffer as a resultabidition, because our performance electric
vehicles to date have been sold largely throughtdwbdmouth marketing efforts, we may be requirechtwr significantly higher and more
sustained advertising and promotional expendittivas we have previously incurred to attract custsmend use more traditional advertising
techniques. In addition, if we engage in traditicadvertising, we may face review by consumer i@ enforcement agencies and may ir
significant expenses to ensure that our advertisiaigns are fully supported. To date, we have Bahiexperience selling our electric vehicles
and we may not be successful in attracting andnietpa large number of customers. For examplégrificant number of our stores have been
open for less than one year and a portion of dessaam come from backgrounds other than automadfifor any of these reasons we are not
able to attract and maintain customers, our busjrEespects, operating results and financial ¢amdivould be materially harmed.

Regulators could review our practice of taking resation payments and, if the practice is deemedimlate applicable law, we could be
required to pay penalties or refund the reservatipayments that we have received for vehicles thatr@ot immediately available for
delivery, to stop accepting additional reservatipayments, to restructure certain aspects of oureestion program, and potentially to
suspend or revoke our licenses to manufacture aetl sur vehicles.

We have not yet commenced production of our Modst@n which we currently plan for mid-2012. Fastomers interested in
reserving the Model S, we require an initial refabig reservation payment of at least $5,000. ABesfember 31, 2010, we had collected
reservation payments for Model S sedans in an ggtge
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amount of $28.3 million. At this time, we do noaplto hold reservation payments separately or iesanow or trust fund or pay any interest
reservation payments except to the extent appkcstaltte laws require us to do so. We generallyhese funds for working capital and other
general corporate purposes.

California laws, and potentially the laws of otls¢ates, restrict the ability of licensed auto desale advertise or take deposits for vehicles
before the vehicles are available to the dealenfitte manufacturer. In November 2007, we becameeathat the New Motor Vehicle Board
of the California Department of Transportation bassidered whether our reservation policies anédiding comply with the California
Vehicle Code. To date, we have not received anyngonications on this topic from the New Motor Veki&oard or the Department of Motor
Vehicles (DMV), which has the power to enforce thisvs. There can be no assurance that the DMVhwailtake the position that our vehicle
reservation or advertising practices violate thve M/e expect that if the DMV determines that we rhaye violated the law, it would initially
discuss its concerns with us and request volurtamypliance. If we are ultimately found to be inlation of California law, we might be
precluded from taking reservation payments, andii®/ could take other actions against us, includigying fines and requiring us to refu
reservation payments. Resolution of any inquiry ralsp involve restructuring certain aspects ofrdservation program. In addition, Califor
is currently the only jurisdiction in which we halieenses to both manufacture and sell our vehmbeany limitation imposed on our operati
in California may be particularly damaging to ouslmess. The DMV also has the power to suspenddesto manufacture and sell vehicles in
California, following a hearing on the merits, whit has typically exercised in cases of signiftcanrepeat violations and/or a refusal to
comply with DMV directions.

Certain states may have specific laws which appheservation payments accepted by dealers, or faxetnrers selling directly to
consumers, or both. For example, the state of Vgt requires that reservation payments or otagments received from residents in the
state of Washington must be placed in a segregettealint until delivery of the vehicle, which accborust be unencumbered by any liens
from creditors of the dealer and may not be usethbylealer. Consequently, we established a seigabgacount for reservation payments in
the state of Washington in January 2010. Therebeamo assurance that other state or foreign jatisdis will not require similar segregation
reservation payments received from customers. @ability to access these funds for working captaiposes could harm our liquidity.

Furthermore, while we have performed an analyste®principal laws in the European Union relatiogur distribution model and
believe we comply with such laws, we have not genfxd a complete analysis in all foreign jurisdingan which we may sell
vehicles. Accordingly, there may be laws in juriidins we have not yet entered or laws we are urewfan jurisdictions we have entered t
may restrict our vehicle reservation practicesthepbusiness practices. Even for those jurisdistive have analyzed, the laws in this area can
be complex, difficult to interpret and may changertime. If our vehicle reservation or advertisprgctices or other business practices were
found to violate the laws of a jurisdiction, we nfage exposure under those laws and our businelsgraspects would be adversely
affected. For example, if we are required to reteservation payment amounts, we may need to agidigional funds to make such
payments. There can be no assurance that suclmfunaiuld be available on a timely basis on comnadiscieasonable terms, if at all. If a
court were to find that our reservation agreemetdvertising does not comply with state laws, way/face exposure under those laws which
may include exposure under consumer protectiontstasuch as those that deal with unfair compatdiod false advertising. Moreover,
reductions in our cash as a result of redemptiomsdnability to take reservation payments couda anake it more difficult for us to obtain
additional financing. The prospect of reductionsa@sh, even if unrealized, may also make it mdifecdit to obtain financing.

Our plan to expand our network of Tesla stores witlquire significant cash investments and managemegsources and may not meet
our expectations with respect to additional salésar electric vehicles. In addition, we may not béle to open stores in certain states.

Our plan to expand our network of Tesla stores metfjuire significant cash investments and managemsources and may not meet our
expectations with respect to additional sales ofebectric vehicles. This planned global expansibmesla stores may not have the desired
effect of increasing sales and expanding our
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brand presence to the degree we are anticipatinthérmore there can be no assurances that wéevdble to construct additional storefronts
on the budget or timeline we have established. \llealso need to ensure we are in compliance with r@gulatory requirements applicable to
the sale of our vehicles in those jurisdictionsjalitcould take considerable time and expense. Iéxperience any delays in expanding our
network of Tesla stores, this could lead to a desgen sales of our vehicles and could negativepaict our business, prospects, financial
condition and operating results. As of December2B10, we had opened 16 Tesla stores in major p@itan areas throughout the United
States, Europe and Japan. We plan to open addistoras during 2011, with a goal of establishipgraximately 50 stores globally within the
next several years in connection with the plannedi®l S rollout. However, we may not be able to expaur network at such rate and our
planned expansion of our network of Tesla stordisreguire significant cash investment and managemesources, as well as efficiency in
execution of establishing these storefronts arfdring and training the necessary employees tatfiely sell our vehicles.

Furthermore, certain states and foreign jurisdigtimay have permit requirements, franchise deales br similar laws or regulations t
may preclude or restrict our ability to open stavesell vehicles out of such states and jurisditti Any such prohibition or restriction may
lead to decreased sales in such jurisdictions,wtdald harm our business, prospects and openamdts.

We recently began to offer a leasing alternativectastomers, which exposes us to risks commonly eiséed with the prolonged
ownership of vehicles and the extension of consuroezdit.

We began offering a leasing alternative to custesmoéour Tesla Roadster in the United States mankieebruary 2010 through our
wholly owned subsidiary Tesla Motors Leasing, Ibaring the latter half of 2010, we began offerinigasing alternative in Canada through
our Canadian subsidiary. Under our program, weetilly permit qualifying customers to lease the aégbadster for 36 months, after which
time they have the option of either returning tledicle to us or purchasing it for a predetermireidual value. We retain responsibility for-
timely collection of payments from our customers] are therefore exposed to the possibility of foss a customer’s failure to make
payments according to contract terms.

As we retain ownership of the vehicle and custorhexse the option of returning the vehicle to usrafihe lease is complete, we also are
exposed to the risk that the vehicles’ residualeahay be lower than our estimates and the voldmethicles returned to us may be higher
than our estimates. Currently, there is only a Vienijted secondary market for our electric vehidleparticular, and electric vehicles in gene
on which to base our estimates, and such a segondaket may not develop in the future. Our créalises could exceed our expectations or
our residual value and return volume estimatesccprdve to be adversely incorrect, either of whdolild harm our financial condition and
operating results.

We face risks associated with our international @ptons, including unfavorable regulatory, politidatax and labor conditions, which
could harm our business.

We face risks associated with our internationakatpens, including possible unfavorable regulat@gijtical, tax and labor conditions,
which could harm our business. We currently haterirational operations and subsidiaries in Augtralianada, Denmark, France, Germany,
Hong Kong, Italy, Japan, Monaco, Singapore, Swiarel, Taiwan and the United Kingdom that are sulife¢the legal, political, regulatory a
social requirements and economic conditions inglessdictions. Additionally, as part of our grdwdtrategy, we intend to expand our sales,
maintenance and repair services internationallyvéier, we have limited experience to date sellimg) servicing our vehicles internationally
and such expansion would require us to make sagmifiexpenditures, including the hiring of localgoyees and establishing facilities, in
advance of generating any revenue. We are sulgjechtimber of risks associated with internationaitess activities that may increase our
costs, impact our ability to sell our electric veas and require significant management attenfibese risks include:

« conforming our vehicles to various internationaukatory requirements where our vehicles are swithomologation
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difficulty in staffing and managing foreign operats;
difficulties attracting customers in new jurisdaris;

foreign government taxes, regulations and permirements, including foreign taxes that we mayb®able to offset again
taxes imposed upon us in the United States, amdgiotax and other laws limiting our ability to egpate funds to the United
States

fluctuations in foreign currency exchange ratesiatetest rates, including risks related to angiiest rate swap or other hedging
activities we undertake

our ability to enforce our contractual and intetled property rights, especially in those foreigmigtries that do not respect and
protect intellectual property rights to the samtenkas do the United States, Japan and Europesutrigs, which increases the risk
of unauthorized, and uncompensated, use of ountéaty;

United States and foreign government trade reignist tariffs and price or exchange contr
foreign labor laws, regulations and restrictic

preferences of foreign nations for domesticallyduced vehicles

changes in diplomatic and trade relationsh

political instability, natural disasters, war oreews of terrorism; an

the strength of international economi

We also face the risk that costs denominated ieidgorcurrencies will increase if such foreign caaies strengthen quickly and
significantly against the dollar. A portion of ctwsts and expenses for the years ended Decemb20B81,, 2009 and 2008 were denominate
foreign currencies such as the British pound aedetivo. This is primarily due to the contract wWithtus in the United Kingdom to assemble
Tesla Roadster vehicles and gliders and other paticed in Europe. In addition, our internaticsales and marketing operations incur
expenses denominated in foreign currencies, pratigin the British pound, the euro and the Japaryes. If the value of the United States
dollar depreciates significantly against theseenties, our costs as measured in United Statearslolill correspondingly increase and our
operating results will be adversely affected. Idiidn, our battery cell purchases from Asian sigyplare subject to currency risk. Although
our present contracts are United States dollardhdisthe United States dollar depreciates sigaifity against the local currency it could cause
our Asian suppliers to significantly raise theircps, which could harm our financial results.

If we fail to successfully address these risks,lmsginess, prospects, operating results and finbogndition could be materially harmed.

The unavailability, reduction or elimination of g@rnment and economic incentives could have a matkaidverse effect on our business,
financial condition, operating results and prospec

Any reduction, elimination or discriminatory apg@lttion of government subsidies and economic incestbecause of policy changes, the
reduced need for such subsidies and incentivesadilne perceived success of the electric vehideaf tightening or other reasons may result
in the diminished competitiveness of the alterrefivel vehicle industry generally or our electréhicles in particular. This could materially
and adversely affect the growth of the alternatired automobile markets and our business, prospiasscial condition and operating results.

Our growth depends in part on the availability antbunts of government subsidies and economic inveenfor alternative fuel vehicles
generally and performance electric vehicles speadifi. For example, in December 2009, we finaliaadarrangement with the California
Alternative Energy and Advanced
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Transportation Financing Authority that will resiitan exemption from California state sales areltages for up to $320 million of
manufacturing equipment. To the extent all of #asiipment is purchased and would otherwise be sutgeCalifornia state sales and use tax,
we believe this incentive would result in tax sadiby us of up to approximately $31 million oveheee year period starting in December
2009. This exemption is only available for equiptrdat would otherwise be subject to Californisesadnd use taxes and that would be used
only for the following three purposes: to establisit production facility for the Model S sedanufegrade our Palo Alto powertrain production
facility, and to expand our current Tesla Roadagsembly operations at our Menlo Park facilityvé fail to meet these conditions, we would
be unable to take full advantage of this tax insen&nd our financial position could be harmed.

In addition, certain regulations that encouragessaf electric cars could be reduced, eliminateapptied in a way that creates an adv
effect against our vehicles, either currently cammy time in the future. For example, while theefed and state governments have from time to
time enacted tax credits and other incentivestferurchase of alternative fuel cars, our compstitave more experience and greater
resources in working with legislators than we duaj ao there is no guarantee that our vehicles woeileligible for tax credits or other
incentives provided to alternative fuel vehiclesha future. This would put our vehicles at a cotitive disadvantage. As another example,
government disincentives have been enacted in Eudmmas-powered vehicles, which discourage tleeofisuch vehicles and allow us to set a
higher sales price for the Tesla Roadster in Eurbbpthe event that such disincentives are redocediminated, sales of electric vehicles,
including our Tesla Roadster, could be adversdbcefd. Furthermore, low volume manufacturers aesmgt from certain regulatory
requirements in the United States and the Europeéon. This provides us with an advantage over higlume manufacturers that must
comply with such regulations. Once we reach a oetteieshold number of sales in each of the UnBtates and the European Union, we will
no longer be able to take advantage of such exengin the respective jurisdictions, which couladeis to incur additional design and
manufacturing expense. We do not anticipate thatvilldbe able to take advantage of these exemptigtisrespect to the Model S which we
plan to produce at significantly higher volumestitiae Tesla Roadster.

If we are unable to grow our sales of electric vele components to original equipment manufacturerar financial results may suffer. Ii
addition, if Daimler proceeds with its plans to ptace all of its lithiumion batteries by 2012 as part of a joint venturethvEvonik Industries
AG, we are likely to lose a significant customeraidr powertrain business

We may have trouble attracting and retaining possigrtcustomers which could adversely affect ouiiress prospects and results.
Daimler and its affiliates and Toyota are curretity only customers of our electric powertrain sa@ed development services. In May 2009,
we formalized a development agreement with Dairatea result of which we performed specified redeard development services. In
addition, we have been selected by Daimler to supplith up to 1,800 battery packs and chargersujgport a trial of the Smart fortwo elec
drive in at least five European cities. We begédphg the first of these battery packs and chargeNovember 2009 and started to recognize
revenue for these sales in the fourth quarter 682 the first quarter of 2010, Daimler engagsdaiassist with the development and
production of a battery pack and charger for atffiéet of its A-Class electric vehicles to be gduced in Europe during 2011 and we entered
into a formal agreement for this arrangement in M@%0. There is no guarantee that we will be abketure future business with Daimler or
its affiliates as it has indicated its intent toguce all of its lithium-ion batteries by 2012 astpf a joint venture with Evonik Industries AG
and has announced it has entered into a joint ventith BYD Auto to collaborate on the developmehan electric car under a jointly owned
new brand for the Chinese market. If Daimler gbesugh with its production plans with Evonik, we dikely to lose this portion of our
powertrain sales. Recently, Daimler has indicalted there may be an opportunity for us to contisugplying electric powertrain components,
including battery packs, in 2012 and beyond, butese not entered into any agreements with Daifolethese arrangements and we may
never do so. In October 2010, we and Toyota entetecan agreement to develop a validated eleptigertrain for the Toyota RAV4.
However, we may not be able to enter into addiliagaeements with Toyota in the future. Other thanagreements with Daimler and Toy:«
we have no significant development or sales agra&ie place to drive
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our electric powertrain revenues. Even if we doaliey such relationships, there is no assurancembatn adequately pursue such
opportunities simultaneously with the executiorof plans for our vehicles.

Our relationship with Daimler is subject to varioussks which could adversely affect our businessddfuture prospects.

Daimler has agreed to purchase components of eatriel powertrain to support a trial of the Smartwo electric drive in at least five
European cities and a pilot fleet of its A-Classcéiic vehicles to be introduced in Europe. In &ddj we are negotiating agreements for
Daimler to provide us with access to various pasomotive support and engineering for the Modeh® regarding various other areas of
strategic cooperation with Daimler although therergo assurances that we will be able to enterdnjosuch agreements. However, our
relationship with Daimler poses various risks tanguding:

* potential delays in launching the Model S if wedd@aimle’s automotive support and are unable to find amredtave in a timely
manner;

* potential loss of access to various parts thatnwérecorporating into our Model S design; ¢

» potential loss of business and adverse publicityuobrand image if there are defects or otherlprob discovered with our elect
powertrain components that Daimler has incorporattxtheir vehicles

The occurrence of any of the foregoing could adslgraffect our business, prospects, financial comliand operating results.

In addition, our exclusivity and intellectual progeagreement, or EIP Agreement, with Daimler Ndktherica Corporation (DNAC), an
affiliate of Daimler provides that, if a Daimlermopetitor offers to enter into a competitive stréddgansaction with us, we are required to give
DNAC notice of such offer and DNAC will have a sifieed period of time in which to notify us whethiéwishes to enter into such transaction
with us on the same terms as offered by the thartypBecause we will be able to enter into suttaasaction with a third party only if DNAC
declines to do so, this may decrease the likelitbatwe will receive offers from third partiesenter into strategic arrangements in the future.

Our relationship with Toyota is subject to variousks which could adversely affect our business dnture prospects.

In October 2010, we and Toyota entered into aneageat to develop a validated electric powertrairttie Toyota RAV4. We have also
previously announced our intention for Tesla teiee Toyota’s support with sourcing parts and potiden and engineering expertise for the
Model S. However, we have not entered into anyexgents with Toyota for any such assistance ordgrcammercial supply, and we may
never do so. There are no assurances we will leetal@dnter into any further agreements with Toyota long-term supply of electric
powertrains for the Toyota RAV4, or any other védsc

We may not be able to identify adequate strategi@tionship opportunities, or form strategic relatships, in the future.

Strategic business relationships will be an impdrtactor in the growth and success of our businéssexample, our strategic
relationship with Daimler has provided us with wais benefits and we have recently entered intgyegeanent to develop a validated electric
powertrain for the Toyota RAV4 with Toyota. Howey#rere are no assurances that we will be ableetatify or secure suitable business
relationship opportunities in the future or our gtitors may capitalize on such opportunities kefee do. Our strategic relationship with
Daimler involved Blackstar, an affiliate of Daim|enaking a significant equity investment in us adl\as a representative from Daimler,

Dr. Herbert Kohler, joining our Board. In additiohgyota made a significant equity investment ircoscurrent with the closing of our IPO in
July 2010. We may not be able to
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offer similar benefits to other companies that wauld like to establish and maintain strategic ref&hips with which could impair our ability
to establish such relationships. Moreover, ideitgysuch opportunities could demand substantialagament time and resources, and
negotiating and financing relationships involvemsicant costs and uncertainties. If we are unabkeuccessfully source and execute on
strategic relationship opportunities in the futuwer overall growth could be impaired, and our hass, prospects and operating results cot
materially adversely affected.

If we fail to manage future growth effectively, waay not be able to market and sell our vehicles ceasfully.

Any failure to manage our growth effectively couh@terially and adversely affect our business, prop operating results and financial
condition. We have recently expanded our operatsigrsficantly, increasing our total number of eoy#es from 268 as of December 31, 2
to 899 as of December 31, 2010 and further sigaiti@xpansion will be required, especially in carioa with the planned establishment of
our Model S manufacturing facility, our electricvpertrain manufacturing facility, the expansion of metwork of Tesla stores and service
centers, our mobile Tesla Rangers program andnegents of being a public company. Our future ojregaesults depend to a large exten
our ability to manage this expansion and growtltessfully. Risks that we face in undertaking thigamsion include:

e training new personne

» forecasting production and reveni

» controlling expenses and investments in anticipadibexpanded operatior

» establishing or expanding design, manufacturinigssand service facilitie:

* implementing and enhancing administrative infragtrce, systems and process
* addressing new markets; a

» expanding international operatiol

We intend to continue to hire a significant numbfadditional personnel, including design and mantifring personnel and service
technicians for our performance electric vehiclBscause our high-performance vehicles are baseddifferent technology platform than
traditional internal combustion engines, individualith sufficient training in performance electviehicles may not be available to hire, and we
will need to expend significant time and expena@ing the employees we do hire. Competition falividuals with experience designing,
manufacturing and servicing electric vehicles temse, and we may not be able to attract, asseniiatin or retain additional highly qualified
personnel in the future. The failure to attractegmate, train, motivate and retain these additiemgployees could seriously harm our business
and prospects.

If we are unable to attract and retain key emplogesnd hire qualified management, technical and velei engineering personnel, our
ability to compete could be harmed.

The loss of the services of any of our key emplsyamild disrupt our operations, delay the developgraad introduction of our vehicles
and services, and negatively impact our businessppcts and operating results. In particular, reehgghly dependent on the services of Elon
Musk, our Chief Executive Officer, Product Architemd Chairman of our Board of Directors, and JBu8iel, our Chief Technical Officer.
None of our key employees is bound by an employragreement for any specific term. There can bessarance that we will be able
successfully attract and retain senior leadersbgessary to grow our business. Our future sucegssndis upon our ability to attract and retain
our executive officers and other key technologiesamarketing and support personnel and any &atludo so could adversely impact our
business, prospects, financial condition and opeyaesults. We have in the past and may in theréuexperience difficulty in retaining
members of our senior management team. In additierdo not have “key person” life insurance
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policies covering any of our officers or other l@awployees. There is increasing competition fomtilé individuals with the specialized
knowledge of electric vehicles and this competitidfects both our ability to retain key employead &ire new ones.

We are highly dependent on the services of Elon Musur Chief Executive Officer.

We are highly dependent on the services of Elonkyviasr Chief Executive Officer, Product Archite€hairman of our Board of
Directors and largest stockholder. While Mr. Musis thistorically provided a significant amount of fands required for our operations, we
have not received any funding from Mr. Musk sincarth 2009 and are no longer dependent on the fimaresources of Mr. Musk to fund ¢
expected growth given the funds available under O&n Facility and the proceeds from our IPO ardgpe placements. Although Mr. Mu
spends significant time with Tesla and is highlyivacin our management, he does not devote higifo# and attention to Tesla. Mr. Musk a
currently serves as Chief Executive Officer andeChiechnical Officer of Space Exploration Technidsga developer and manufacturer of
space launch vehicles, and Chairman of SolarCisplar equipment installation company.

In addition, our financing agreements with Blackstantain certain covenants relating to Mr. Musé’sployment as our Chief Executive
Officer. These covenants provide that if Mr. Mushkibt serving as our Chief Executive Officer at Eime until the later of December 31, 2012
or the launch of the Model S, Mr. Musk shall proppiropose a successor Chief Executive Officer@nd<ohler, or his successor, must
consent to any appointment of such person by oardof Directors. If at any time during the perfodm January 1, 2011 through
December 31, 2012, Mr. Musk is not serving as eithe Chief Executive Officer or Chairman of ourdd of Directors for reasons other than
his death or disability, and Dr. Kohler, or his sggsor, has not consented to the appointment efvaQhief Executive Officer or if during such
period Mr. Musk renders services to, or investaimy, other automotive OEM other than us, Daimlex tha right to terminate any or all of its
strategic collaboration agreements with us. If tiése to occur, our business would be harmed.

Furthermore, our DOE Loan Facility provides thatwit be in default under the facility in the evavit. Musk and certain of his affiliat
fail to own, at any time prior to one year after @gnplete the project relating to the Model Sgast 65% of the capital stock held by
Mr. Musk and such affiliates as of the date of B@E Loan Facility. Mr. Musk’s shares of our capgébck are held directly by his personal
trust. Mr. Musk is currently engaged in divorcegeedings and previously entered into a post-nuatisgement which provides that the
holdings of the trust, including Mr. Musk’s shardur capital stock, shall remain solely his pmtpeThis post-nuptial agreement has been
upheld by the Superior Court of Los Angeles thosigth decision may be subject to an appeal. Howexe=do not believe that the divorce
proceedings will result in Mr. Musk owning lessith@6% of the capital stock held by him as of thieedd the DOE Loan Facility, or otherwise
result in a material reduction of Mr. Muskholdings of our capital stock. We do not expketdivorce proceedings to have a material impa
Mr. Musk’s ability to serve as our Chief Executi@éficer and Chairman. We also do not believe thatMusk would have to liquidate a
significant percentage of his holdings in ordesatisfy any settlement reached in connection witthgroceedings.

Many members of our management team are new todbmpany or to the automobile industry, and executiof our business plan and
development strategy could be seriously harmeaiégration of our management team into our compaisynot successful.

Our business could be seriously harmed if integnaif our management team into our company is matessful. We expect that it will
take time for our new management team to integnéeour company and it is too early to predict thee this integration will be successful.
We have recently experienced significant changesiimmanagement team and expect to continue taiexye significant growth in our
management team. Our senior management team haknoitéd experience working together as a groygeically, three of the six membe
of our senior management team have joined us willdrast two years. For example, Gilbert PassinMice President of Manufacturing,
joined us in January 2010, George BlankenshipMice President o
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Sales and Customer Experience, joined us in Julp 2é&nd Eric Whitaker, our General Counsel, joinedn October 2010. This lack of long-
term experience working together may impact thenteability to collectively quickly and efficientlyespond to problems and effectively
manage our business. Although we are taking stepdd senior management personnel that have signifautomotive experience, many of
the members of our current senior management team limited or no prior experience in the autom®lit electric vehicle industries.

We are subject to various environmental laws anguéations that could impose substantial costs upmmand cause delays in building
our manufacturing facilities.

As an automobile manufacturer, we and our operstibath in the United States and abroad, are sutoje@tional, state, provincial
and/or local environmental laws and regulationsluiding laws relating to the use, handling, storaligposal and human exposure to hazar
materials. Environmental and health and safety amgsregulations can be complex, and we expecotirdbusiness and operations will be
affected by future amendments to such laws or ather environmental and health and safety laws wirialy require us to change our
operations, potentially resulting in a material abe effect on our business. These laws can giedailiability for administrative oversight
costs, cleanup costs, property damage, bodilyyrand fines and penalties. Capital and operatipgeses needed to comply with
environmental laws and regulations can be significand violations may result in substantial fiaesl penalties, third party damages,
suspension of production or a cessation of ouraijuars.

Contamination at properties formerly owned or ofetdy us, as well as at properties we will own apédrate, and properties to which
hazardous substances were sent by us, may rediabiiity for us under environmental laws and rigions, including, but not limited to the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidhiability Act (CERCLA), which can impose liaiyl for the full amount of
remediation-related costs without regard to fdaoltthe investigation and cleanup of contaminatgitiasxd ground water, for building
contamination and impacts to human health anddarayes to natural resources. The costs of compWitihgenvironmental laws and
regulations and any claims concerning honcompliaocgability with respect to contamination in theure, could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or operating iésUWe may face unexpected delays in obtaininghgeessary permits and approvals required
by environmental laws in connection with our plathmeanufacturing facilities that could require sfgrant time and financial resources and
delay our ability to operate these facilities, whigould adversely impact our business prospectpedating results.

New United Motor Manufacturing, Inc. (NUMMI) hasgwiously identified environmental conditions at #remont Site which affect s«
and groundwater, and is currently undertaking &fty address these conditions. Although we haea bevised by NUMMI that it has
documented and managed the environmental issulee Btemont Site, we cannot currently determiné wértainty the total potential costs to
remediate pre-existing contamination, and we magxp®sed to material liability as a result of thestence of any environmental
contamination at the Fremont Site.

As the owner of the Fremont Site, we may be resptnander federal and state laws and regulationsiie entire investigation and
remediation of any environmental contaminatiorhatEremont Site, whether it occurred before orr dfte date we purchase the property. We
have reached an agreement with NUMMI under whisler @ ten year period, we will pay the first $1milion of any costs of any
governmentally-required remediation activities dontamination that existed prior to the closinghe purchase for any known or unknown
environmental conditions (Remediation Activitieah)d NUMMI has agreed to pay the next $15.0 milfionsuch Remediation Activities. Our
agreement provides, in part, that NUMMI will pay tapthe first $15.0 million on our behalf if suckpenses are incurred in the first four years
of our agreement, subject to our reimbursementio £osts on the fourth anniversary date of theitp

On the ten-year anniversary of the closing or wkien&30.0 million has been spent on the Remediatidivities, whichever comes first,
NUMMI’s liability to us with respect to Remediation Adties ceases, and we
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are responsible for any and all environmental dion at the Fremont Site. At that point in times have agreed to indemnify, defend, and
hold harmless NUMMI from all liability, includingteorney fees, or any costs or penalties it mayriseising out of or in connection with any
claim relating to environmental conditions and veedreleased NUMMI for any known or unknown claiexsept for NUMMI’s obligations
for representations and warranties under the agrrem

There are no assurances that NUMMI will performoitdigations under our agreement and NUMMI’s faglto perform would require us
to undertake these obligations at a potentiallpifitant cost and risk to our ability to build, éguand operate our planned Model S facility at
the Fremont Site. Any Remediation Activities oretienvironmental conditions at the Fremont Sitda&cbarm our operations and the future
use and value of the Fremont Site and could dalaypmduction plans for the Model S.

We may not be able to obtain, or to agree on acabfg terms and conditions for, all or a significaiportion of the government grants,
loans and other incentives for which we have apgli@nd may in the future apply. As a result, our basss and prospects may be adversely
affected.

We have applied for federal and state grants, laandstax incentives under government programs deditp stimulate the economy and
support the production of electric vehicles andtesd technologies. We anticipate that in the futheee will be new opportunities for us to
apply for grants, loans and other incentives fromWnited States, state and foreign governmentsadility to obtain funds or incentives from
government sources is subject to the availabilitiunds under applicable government programs ampdosal of our applications to participate
in such programs. The application process for tlfiesgs and other incentives is and will be hightynpetitive. We cannot assure you that we
will be successful in obtaining any of these addiéil grants, loans and other incentives. If wenatesuccessful in obtaining any of these
additional incentives and we are unable to findrakitive sources of funding to meet our plannedtalapeeds, our business and prospects «
be materially adversely affected.

Our business may be adversely affected by uniornvétcs.

Although none of our employees are currently regméed by a labor union, it is common throughoutdtmobile industry generally fi
many employees at automobile companies to beloagutmion, which can result in higher employee castincreased risk of work stoppages.
As we expand our business to include full in-homssufacturing of our vehicles, as is planned ferlodel S, there can be no assurances that
our employees will not join or form a labor uniontbat we will not be required to become a unigmatory. We recently purchased an exis
automobile production facility in Fremont, Califeerfrom NUMMI. Prior employees of NUMMI were unionembers and our future work
force at this facility may be inclined to vote ewvbr of forming a labor union. We are also directtyindirectly dependent upon companies with
unionized work forces, such as parts supplierstargking and freight companies, and work stoppagestrikes organized by such unions cc
have a material adverse impact on our businesmdial condition or operating results. For exampégtain employees at the sea freight
companies through which we ship our Tesla Roadgigers to the United States after assembly in &mdjimay be represented by unions, as
may be employees at certain of our supplierswbek stoppage occurs, it could delay the manufactund sale of our performance electric
vehicles and have a material adverse effect obosiness, prospects, operating results or finacoiadlition.

We are subject to substantial regulation, whichesolving, and unfavorable changes or failure by tescomply with these regulations
could substantially harm our business and operatirggults.

Our performance electric vehicles, the sale of meéhicles in general and the electronic componesesl in our vehicles are subject to
substantial regulation under international, fedestate, and local laws. We have incurred, and &{pancur in the future, significant costs in
complying with these regulations. For example,Gean Air Act requires that we obtain a CertificafeConformity issued by the EPA and a
California Executive Order issued by the CaliforAiaResources Board with respect to emissionforvehicles. We received a
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Certificate of Conformity for sales of our Tesladgigters in 2008 and 2010, but did not receive &ft€ate of Conformity for sales of the Te:
Roadster in 2009 until December 21, 2009. In JanR@L0, we and the EPA entered into an AdministeaBettlement Agreement and Audit
Policy Determination in which we agreed to pay\al @dministrative penalty in the sum of $275,000 failing to obtain a Certificate of
Conformity for sales of our vehicles in 2009 priorDecember 21, 2009.

Regulations related to the electric vehicle induatrd alternative energy are currently evolving amdface risks associated with changes
to these regulations such as:

» the imposition of a carbon tax or the introductgdra caj-anc-trade system on electric utilities could incredsedost of electricity

» the increase of subsidies for corn and ethanolymbah could reduce the operating cost of vehitias use ethanol or
combination of ethanol and gasolir

» changes to the regulations governing the assenmolyransportation of lithiu-ion batteries, such as the UN Recommendatiol
the Safe Transport of Dangerous Goods Model Ragukbr regulations adopted by the U.S. Pipeliretldazardous Materials
Safety Administration, or PHMSA, could increase tlost of lithiun-ion batteries

» the amendment or rescission of the federal law ratmglincreased fuel economy in the United Statfesred to as th“Corporate
Average Fuel Economy” (“CAFE”) standards could reelmew business opportunities for our powertralessand development
activities;

* increased sensitivity by regulators to the needsstdblished automobile manufacturers with largpleyment bases, high fixed
costs and business models based on the interndustion engine could lead them to pass regulatiaiscould reduce the
compliance costs of such established manufactorarstigate the effects of government efforts tomote alternative fuel vehicle
and

« changes to regulations governing exporting of godpcts could increase our costs incurred to depveducts outside the United
States or force us to charge a higher price fovehicles in such jurisdiction

In addition, as the automotive industry moves talsajreater use of electronics for vehicle systéhS[ SA and other regulatory bodies
may in the future increase regulation for thesetedaic systems.

To the extent the laws change, some or all of ehicles may not comply with applicable internatipfiederal, state or local laws, which
would have an adverse effect on our business. Ganga with changing regulations could be burdensdime consuming, and expensive. To
the extent compliance with new regulations is goshibitive, our business, prospects, financialditon and operating results will be
adversely affected.

We retain certain personal information about our stomers and may be subject to various privacy aodsumer protection laws.

We use our vehicles’ electronic systems to logrimi@tion about each vehicle’s use in order to aithughicle diagnostics, repair and
maintenance, as well as to help us collect datardégg our customergharge time, battery usage, mileage and efficidnmatyjts. Our custome
may object to the use of this data, which may hammbusiness. Possession and use of our custopessinal information in conducting our
business may subject us to legislative and regylddordens in the United States and foreign jucigdins that could require notification of data
breach, restrict our use of such personal inforomagind hinder our ability to acquire new custonuemnarket to existing customers. For
example, we are subject to local data protectias i Europe. We may incur significant expensesotmply with privacy, consumer protecti
and security standards and protocols imposed byrkgulation, industry standards or contractuaigaiions. If third parties improperly obtain
and use the personal information of our custonveesnay be required to expend significant resoutaces

61



Table of Contents

resolve these problems. A major breach of our netwecurity and systems could have serious negatimeequences for our businesses and
future prospects, including possible fines, peaalind damages, reduced customer demand for cigtegeland harm to our reputation and
brand.

Our vehicles make use of lithium-ion battery celishich on rare occasions have been observed tolcéite or vent smoke and flame.

The battery pack in the Tesla Roadster makes ukhiofn-ion cells, which have been used for yaaraptops and cell phones. We also
currently intend to make use of lithium-ion celisthe battery pack for the Model S and any futwkicles we may produce. On rare occasions,
lithium-ion cells can rapidly release the energgytikontain by venting smoke and flames in a matirarcan ignite nearby materials. Highly
publicized incidents of laptop computers and cbebpes bursting into flames have focused consuntemtain on the safety of these cells. The
events have also raised questions about the dititadfithese lithium-ion cells for automotive apgtions. To address these questions and
concerns, a number of cell manufacturers are pugsaiternative lithium-ion battery cell chemistriesmprove safety. We have designed our
battery pack to passively contain any single cellease of energy without spreading to neighbocilts and we are not aware of any such
incident in our customers’ vehicles. We have tesitedbatteries and subjected them to damagingtiesds such as baking, overcharging,
crushing or puncturing to assess our battery paelsgonse to deliberate and sometimes destrudiiveea However, we have delivered only a
limited number of Tesla Roadsters to customershave limited field experience with our vehicles.caodingly, there can be no assurance that
a field failure of our battery packs will not occwrhich could damage the vehicle or lead to persiojary or death and may subject us to
lawsuits. In addition, we store a significant numbglithium-ion cells at our manufacturing facility. Any mislting of battery cells may cat
disruption to the operation of our facilities. Whilve have implemented safety procedures relatdtketbandling of the cells, there can be no
assurance that a safety issue or fire relatedetae¢hs would not disrupt our operations. Such dgera injury would likely lead to adverse
publicity and potentially a safety recall. Moreoyvany failure of a competitor’s electric vehiclspecially those that use a high volume of
commodity cells similar to the Tesla Roadster, mayse indirect adverse publicity for us. Such aslv@ublicity would negatively affect our
brand and harm our business, prospects, finanaaitton and operating results.

We may become subject to product liability claimgich could harm our financial condition and liquidy if we are not able to
successfully defend or insure against such clair

We may become subject to product liability claimvbjch could harm our business, prospects, operagisglts and financial condition.
The automobile industry experiences significantpiat liability claims and we face inherent riskeofposure to claims in the event our vehit
do not perform as expected or malfunction resulitmgersonal injury or death. Our risks in thissaege particularly pronounced given the
limited number of vehicles delivered to date amditied field experience of those vehicles. A sucegégsoduct liability claim against us could
require us to pay a substantial monetary awardebhgr, a product liability claim could generate stahtial negative publicity about our
vehicles and business and inhibit or prevent comiakzation of other future vehicle candidates whieould have material adverse effect on
our brand, business, prospects and operating se$u# maintain product liability insurance for alir vehicles with annual limits of
approximately $21 million on a claims-made basig,we cannot assure that our insurance will be@efft to cover all potential product
liability claims. Any lawsuit seeking significantanetary damages either in excess of our coveragrjtside of our coverage, may have a
material adverse effect on our reputation, busiaeskfinancial condition. We may not be able tause@dditional product liability insurance
coverage on commercially acceptable terms or abregble costs when needed, particularly if we de febility for our products and are
forced to make a claim under our policy.

In connection with the development and sale ofglanned Model S, we will need to comply with vasadditional safety regulations
and requirements that were not applicable to thess# our Tesla Roadsters, with which it may bpessive or difficult to comply. For
example, we will need to pass certain frontal inpests
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for the Model S, which are required for sales edagg certain annual volumes outside the UnitedeStatVe performed such a test on the Tesla
Roadster based on European Union testing stantdtacdsnection with sales exceeding certain volummesholds in Australia and Japan, and
two criteria were not met in the test. We may eigere difficulties in meeting all the criteria fiis test or similar tests for our planned

Model S, which may delay our ability to sell the 8 S in high volumes in certain jurisdictions.

We may be compelled to undertake product recalls.

Any product recall in the future may result in acbeepublicity, damage our brand and adversely tffecbusiness, prospects, operating
results and financial condition. We previously ex@eced product recalls in May 2009 and Octobei02@bth of which were unrelated to our
electric powertrain. In April 2009, we determindat a condition caused by insufficient torquindtad rear inner hub flange bolt existed in
some of our Tesla Roadsters, as a result of a chseess during manufacture of the Tesla Roadtitir. In October 2010, we initiated a
product recall after the 12 volt, low voltage aiafiy cable in a single vehicle chafed against tigeeof a carbon fiber panel in the vehicle
causing a short, smoke and possible fire behindigie front headlamp of the vehicle. The costiriing this most recent recall is not material.
In the future, we may at various times, voluntaafyjinvoluntarily, initiate a recall if any of owehicles or electric powertrain components
prove to be defective or noncompliant with appllediederal motor vehicle safety standards. Suchlissosoluntary or involuntary, involve
significant expense and diversion of managemeehttin and other resources, which would adverdédgiaour brand image in our target
markets and could adversely affect our businesspercts, financial condition and results of opereti

Our warranty reserves may be insufficient to cofature warranty claims which could adversely affegtrr financial performance.

If our warranty reserves are inadequate to coviiréuwarranty claims on our vehicles, our businpssspects, financial condition and
operating results could be materially and advera#figcted. We provide a three year or 36,000 nlew Vehicle Limited Warranty with every
Tesla Roadster, which we extended to four yeaBO@00 miles for the purchasers of our 2008 TesadRter. In addition, customers have the
opportunity to purchase an Extended Service Plathtoperiod after the end of the New Vehicle LaditWarranty to cover additional services
for an additional three years or 36,000 miles, Weier comes first. The New Vehicle Limited Warraistgimilar to other vehicle
manufacturers’ warranty programs and is intendezbteer all parts and labor to repair defects inanat or workmanship in the body, chassis,
suspension, interior, electronic systems, battgowertrain and brake system. We record and adjastanty reserves based on changes in
estimated costs and actual warranty costs. Howbeeguse we only began delivering our first Tesladster in early 2008, we have extremely
limited operating experience with our vehicles, #dmetefore little experience with warranty clainos these vehicles or with estimating
warranty reserves. Since we began initiating safl@air vehicles, we have continued to increasenarranty reserves based on our actual
warranty claim experience and we may be requirachtiertake further such increases in the futureofA3ecember 31, 2010, we had warranty
reserves of $5.4 million. We could in the futuredme subject to a significant and unexpected wirrexpense. There can be no assurances
that our existing warranty reserves will be suéfidito cover all claims or that our limited expade with warranty claims will adequately
address the needs of our customers to their setisfia

We may need to defend ourselves against patentagtemark infringement claims, which may be time-cauming and would cause us to
incur substantial costs.

Companies, organizations or individuals, including competitors, may hold or obtain patents, traaémor other proprietary rights that
would prevent, limit or interfere with our abilitp make, use, develop or sell our vehicles or carepts, which could make it more difficult 1
us to operate our business. From time to time, &g raceive inquiries from holders of patents ode¢raarks inquiring whether we infringe
their proprietary rights. Companies holding patemtsther intellectual property rights relatingttattery packs, electric motors or
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electronic power management systems may bring aliging infringement of such rights or otherwésserting their rights and seeking
licenses. In addition, if we are determined to hiasenged upon a third party’s intellectual properights, we may be required to do one or
more of the following:

» cease selling, incorporating or using vehicles ithetrporate the challenged intellectual prope
* pay substantial damage

» obtain a license from the holder of the infringetéllectual property right, which license may netdvailable on reasonable term
at all; or

» redesign our vehicle:

In the event of a successful claim of infringemagainst us and our failure or inability to obtailicense to the infringed technology, our
business, prospects, operating results and fineemmalition could be materially adversely affectbdaddition, any litigation or claims, whett
or not valid, could result in substantial costs divérsion of resources and management attention.

We also license patents and other intellectual gmtgdrom third parties, and we may face claimg tha use of this in-licensed
technology infringes the rights of others. In tbase, we may seek indemnification from our licessorder our license contracts with them.
However, our rights to indemnification may be urikalde or insufficient to cover our costs and lassiepending on our use of the technology,
whether we choose to retain control over conduthefitigation, and other factors.

Our business will be adversely affected if we areble to protect our intellectual property rightsdm unauthorized use or infringement
by third parties.

Any failure to protect our proprietary rights adatply could result in our competitors offering damiproducts, potentially resulting in t
loss of some of our competitive advantage and eedse in our revenue which would adversely affectmsiness, prospects, financial
condition and operating results. Our success depetdeast in part, on our ability to protect oare technology and intellectual property. To
accomplish this, we rely on a combination of patepatent applications, trade secrets, includirmukhow, employee and third party
nondisclosure agreements, copyright laws, tradesnarntellectual property licenses and other comti@aights to establish and protect our
proprietary rights in our technology. We have atsteived from third parties patent licenses rel&etianufacturing our vehicles.

The protection provided by the patent laws is ailbbe important to our future opportunities. Hoveeysuch patents and agreements and
various other measures we take to protect oudéateilal property from use by others may not beagiffe for various reasons, including the
following:

» our pending patent applications may not resulb@issuance of paten
e our patents, if issued, may not be broad enoughdtect our proprietary right

» the patents we have been granted may be challemyadidated or circumvented because of the-existence of similar patented
unpatented intellectual property rights or for otreasons

» the costs associated with enforcing patents, cenfidlity and invention agreements or other intllal property rights may make
aggressive enforcement impracticat

» current and future competitors may independentiyebig similar technology, duplicate our vehiclesiesign new vehicles in a w
that circumvents our patents; &

» ourir-licensed patents may be invalidated or the holdetisese patents may seek to breach our licenaagements

Existing trademark and trade secret laws and cenfidlity agreements afford only limited protectidm addition, the laws of some
foreign countries do not protect our proprietaghts to the same extent as do the laws of the d&tates, and policing the unauthorized us
our intellectual property is difficult.
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Our patent applications may not result in issuedteats, which may have a material adverse effectoum ability to prevent others from
commercially exploiting products similar to ours.

We cannot be certain that we are the first creaftérventions covered by pending patent applicationthe first to file patent applicatio
on these inventions, nor can we be certain thapending patent applications will result in issyadents or that any of our issued patents will
afford protection against a competitor. In addifipatent applications filed in foreign countries aubject to laws, rules and procedures that
differ from those of the United States, and thuscanenot be certain that foreign patent applicatreteted to issued U.S. patents will be issued.
Furthermore, if these patent applications issumesforeign countries provide significantly lesseetive patent enforcement than in the United
States.

The status of patents involves complex legal antuéd questions and the breadth of claims allowvgathicertain. As a result, we canno
certain that the patent applications that we filk igsult in patents being issued, or that oueptt and any patents that may be issued to us in
the near future will afford protection against catifoprs with similar technology. In addition, pateissued to us may be infringed upon or
designed around by others and others may obtagnfzathat we need to license or design arouncereithwhich would increase costs and may
adversely affect our business, prospects, finagoatlition and operating results.

Three of our trademark applications in the Europedsnion remain subject to six outstanding oppositipnoceedings.

We currently sell and market our vehicles in thedpean Union under the Tesla trademark. We haweetttademark applications in the
European Union for the Tesla trademark. Theseubfest to an outstanding opposition proceeding thoby a prior owner of trademarks
consisting of the word Tesla. If we cannot resdhase remaining oppositions and thereby securstezgd rights in the European Union, this
will reduce our ability to challenge third partyews of the Tesla trademark and dilute the valud@imark as our exclusive brand name in the
European Union. In addition, there is a risk th&t temaining prior rights owner could in the futtake action to challenge our use of the Tesla
mark in the European Union. This would have a seirapact on our position in the European Union iauay inhibit our ability to use the Te:
mark in the European Union. If we were preventediflusing the Tesla trademark in the European Umienwould need to expend significant
additional financial and marketing resources oaldihing an alternative brand identity in thesekats.

We may be subject to claims arising from an airptaaorash in which three of our employees died.

In February 2010, three of our employees dieddraah of an airplane owned and piloted by one ofowployees. The plane crashed
neighborhood in East Palo Alto, California. Ther@also clipped an electrical tower, causing a pdess and business interruption in parts of
Palo Alto, including Stanford University. The caugehe accident is under investigation by the bdlzl Transportation Safety Board.

In November 2010, a case was filed against usimgléb the crash in California Superior Court. hatt case, plaintiffs allege claims for
negligence, negligent infliction of emotional deds, trespass, and violations of federal and atas&tion laws and regulations against all
defendants, and seek compensation for real progarthage and loss of use, as well as personal pycgred emotional distress/bodily injury
claims. In December 2010, the plaintiffs settleairal for real property damage but retained henmddor emotional distress, bodily injury and
personal property damage. We believe that thesaingmg claims are covered by insurance.

As a result of the accident, other claims, inclgdiut not limited to those arising from loss ofd@mage to personal property, business
interruption losses or damage to the electricaktomnd surrounding area, may be asserted againstiggarties including us. The time and
attention of our management may also be divertetkfanding such claims. We may also incur costs motdefending against any claims and
for any judgments if such claims are adversely rdeiteed.

65



Table of Contents

Our facilities or operations could be damaged onadsely affected as a result of disasters or unpcéable events.

Our corporate headquarters and planned manufagttadilities are located in California, a regiorokn for seismic activity. If major
disasters such as earthquakes, fires, floods,dames, wars, terrorist attacks, computer virusasd@mics or other events occur, or our
information system or communications network breddwwn or operates improperly, our facilities mayskeously damaged, or we may have
to stop or delay production and shipment of oudpats. In addition, our lease for our Palo Altoilfacpermits the landlord to terminate the
lease following a casualty event if the neededirsfae in excess of certain thresholds and wead@gree to pay for any uninsured amounts.
We may incur expenses relating to such damageshvaoiuld have a material adverse impact on oumlessi operating results and financial
condition.

In the past material weaknesses in our internal ¢osi over financial reporting have been identifiedf we fail to remediate any material
weaknesses and maintain proper and effective indroontrols, our ability to produce accurate andrtely financial statements could be
impaired, which could adversely affect our busingsperating results, and financial condition.

In connection with the audit of our consolidatethficial statements for the year ended and as afrbleer 31, 2007, our independent
registered public accounting firm identified twontml deficiencies that represented material wesgeg in our internal control over financial
reporting for the year ended and as of Decembe2@17. In connection with the audit of our consatet! financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, our indepéregistered public accounting firm did not idfgrany material weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting for thear ended and as of December 31, 2010, 2009 ar8d @@0 failure to implement and maintain
effective internal controls in our business coudatdra material adverse effect on our businessidinhcondition, results of operations and
stock price. A material weakness is a deficiencg oombination of deficiencies, in internal contekr financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstateroétite companys annual or interim financial statements will netgrevented or detected o
timely basis.

The material weaknesses in our internal controf éimancial reporting as of December 31, 2007, Wwhiesulted in audit adjustments,
were as follows:

* We did not maintain adequate controls to ensuradticeracy, completeness and safeguarding of spreat$sused in our financial
reporting process. Specifically, we maintained msmgporting financial schedules on a manual andinegrated spreadsheet
basis, which increased the risk of compiling inaeatel or incomplete informatio

* We did not maintain effective controls over-off procedures for expenses. Specifically, we ditlhrave formal ci-off procedure:
in place to ensure the timely and accurate recgrdfraccruals

We have taken steps to remediate our material vesasles. However, there are no assurances that Hsirae we have taken to remed
these internal control weaknesses were completidgtare or that similar weaknesses will not redDur remediation efforts for the material
weaknesses in our internal control over finanaalorting in 2007 have included:

» anincreased level of spreadsheet maintenanceeai@y, as well as continuing exploration of autdorabpportunities

» expanded cross-functional involvement and inpwut period end expense accruals, as well as proggssvements in the procure-
to-pay cycle and analytics in establishing certairt cester accruals; ar

» increased reporting capabilities from our finaneiatl enterprise resource planning systems to nraaiid track financial reportin
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Additionally, as part of our on-going efforts topnove our financial accounting organization andcpsses, we have hired several senior
accounting personnel in the United States. We fgamontinue to assess our internal controls andgutores and intend to take further action as
necessary or appropriate to address any othermnat&eidentify.

Because of these material weaknesses, there isteeayl risk that a material misstatement of owarfaial statements relating to the years
ended and as of December 31, 2007 was not preventietected. While no material weaknesses wersifb during the course of our audit
for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 an8, 289cannot assure you that these or other siisBaes will not arise in future periods.

To date, the audit of our consolidated financiatesnents by our independent registered public atowufirm has included a
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis of designing their audit procesiubut not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of our internal colstaver financial reporting. If such an evaluatitad been performed or when we are required
to perform such an evaluation, additional materiehknesses and other control deficiencies may bage or may be identified. Ensuring that
we have adequate internal financial and accourttimgrols and procedures in place to help producarate financial statements on a timely
basis is a costly and time-consuming effort thatdseto be evaluated frequently. We will incur irased costs and demands upon management
as a result of complying with the laws and regaladiaffecting public companies relating to interatrols, which could materially adversely
affect our operating results.

If our suppliers fail to use ethical business praots and comply with applicable laws and regulatimur brand image could be harmed
due to negative publicity.

Our core values, which include developing the higlogiality electric vehicles while operating witttégrity, are an important component
of our brand image, which makes our reputationigalerly sensitive to allegations of unethical mess practices. We do not control our
independent suppliers or their business practisesordingly, we cannot guarantee their compliandé ethical business practices, such as
environmental responsibility, fair wage practicasg compliance with child labor laws, among othA&rtack of demonstrated compliance cc
lead us to seek alternative suppliers, which coudcease our costs and result in delayed deliveoupproducts, product shortages or other
disruptions of our operations.

Violation of labor or other laws by our supplierstioe divergence of an independent supplier’s lavather practices from those
generally accepted as ethical in the United Statesher markets in which we do business could atsact negative publicity for us and our
brand. This could diminish the value of our bramége and reduce demand for our performance eleghicles if, as a result of such violati
we were to attract negative publicity. If we, ohet manufacturers in our industry, encounter sinitablems in the future, it could harm our
brand image, business, prospects, financial camd@nd operating results.

Risks Related to the Ownership of our Common Stock

We will incur increased costs and demands upon mgeent as a result of complying with the laws aredjulations affecting public
companies, which could adversely affect our opengtresults.

As a public company, we will incur significant légaccounting and other expenses that we did rofrias a private company, including
costs associated with public company reporting@ngorate governance requirements. These requitsrimaiude compliance with
Section 404 and other provisions of the SarbandsyOict, as well as rules implemented by the Séiesriand Exchange Commission (SEC),
and The Nasdaq Stock Market. In addition, our manemnt team will also have to adapt to the requirgsef being a public company. We
expect complying with these rules and regulatioiissibstantially increase our legal and financampliance costs and to make some
activities more time-consuming and costly.
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The increased costs associated with operatingoablec company will decrease our net income oréase our net loss, and may require
us to reduce costs in other areas of our businessmase the prices of our products or serviddslitionally, if these requirements divert our
management’s attention from other business conctireg could have a material adverse effect orbosiness, prospects, financial condition
and operating results.

As a public company, we also expect that it maynoee difficult and more expensive for us to obtdirector and officer liability
insurance, and we may be required to accept rechméry limits and coverage or incur substantiddigher costs to obtain the same or similar
coverage. As a result, it may be more difficult isrto attract and retain qualified individuals&sve on our board of directors or as our
executive officers.

Concentration of ownership among our existing exdiue officers, directors and their affiliates may@vent new investors from
influencing significant corporate decisions.

As of December 31, 2010, our executive officersgatdrs and their affiliates beneficially ownedthe aggregate, approximately 54.7%
of our outstanding shares of common stock. In galdr, Elon Musk, our Chief Executive Officer, Puatl Architect and Chairman of our Boi
of Directors, beneficially owned approximately 2%.df our outstanding shares of common stock aseaeinber 31, 2010. As a result, these
stockholders will be able to exercise a signifidanel of control over all matters requiring stookder approval, including the election of
directors, amendment of our certificate of incogiimm and approval of significant corporate tratisas. This control could have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change of control of company or changes in management and will makepgpesal of certain transactions
difficult or impossible without the support of tleestockholders.

We are obligated to develop and maintain proper aftective internal control over financial reportig. We may not complete our analy
of our internal control over financial reporting ina timely manner, or these internal controls maytriwe determined to be effective, which
may adversely affect investor confidence in our queny and, as a result, the value of our common &toc

We will be required, pursuant to Section 404 of $faebanes-Oxley Act, to furnish a report by manag#ron, among other things, the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting for the year ending December 31, 20tis assessment will need to include
disclosure of any material weaknesses identifieditymanagement in our internal control over finaheporting, as well as a statement that
our independent registered public accounting fiam issued an attestation report on effectivenessrohternal controls over financial
reporting.

We are in the early stages of the costly and chgiltey process of compiling the system and procgssitumentation necessary to
perform the evaluation needed to comply with Sectio4. We may not be able to remediate future rizteeaknesses, or to complete our
evaluation, testing and any required remediatica fimely fashion. During the evaluation and tegtinocess, if we identify one or more
material weaknesses in our internal control oveairicial reporting, we will be unable to assert thatinternal controls are effective. If we are
unable to assert that our internal control oveatfitial reporting is effective, or if our auditorg ainable to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of our internal controls, we coulselénvestor confidence in the accuracy and compésteof our financial reports, which would
have a material adverse effect on the price ofcoatmon stock.

The trading price of our common stock is likely be volatile.

Our shares of common stock began trading on the&tp&lobal Select Market on June 29, 2010 and fitrerethe trading history for our
common stock has been limited. In addition, thditrg price of our common stock has been highly tfeland could continue to be subject to
wide fluctuations in response to various factoosns of which are beyond our control. For examdker @pening at $17.00 per share at the
IPO, our common stock has experienced an intrat@aljing high of $36.42 per share and a low of $84&r share through February 28, 2011.
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In addition, the stock market in general, and ttaekmat for technology companies in particular, hgseeienced extreme price and volume
fluctuations that have often been unrelated orrdigprtionate to the operating performance of trasapanies. Broad market and industry
factors may seriously affect the market price ohpanies’ stock, including ours, regardless of datparating performance. These fluctuations
may be even more pronounced in the trading madteidr stock during the period following our IP@.dddition, in the past, following peric
of volatility in the overall market and the markeice of a particular company’s securities, se@sitlass action litigation has often been
instituted against these companies. This litigatibimstituted against us, could result in substdrtosts and a diversion of our management’s
attention and resources.

A substantial majority of our total outstanding sheas are held by insiders and may be sold on a stéhange in the near future. The
large number of shares eligible for public sale subject to rights requiring us to register them fpublic sale could depress the market price
of our common stock.

The market price of our common stock could decéise result of sales of a large number of sharesroéommon stock in the market in
the future, and the perception that these salelsl cmeur may also depress the market price of oarroon stock.

Stockholders owning an aggregate of approximat&/9d0,000 shares are entitled, under contractsginavfor registration rights, to
require us to register shares of our common stagied by them for public sale in the United Staseject to the restrictions of Rule 144.

In addition, as of December 31, 2010, we have texggd approximately 24,879,437 shares previouslyeid or reserved for future
issuance under our equity compensation plans amdagnts of which 13,804,788 were related to oodétg option awards. Subject to the
satisfaction of applicable exercise periods andgeitain cases, lock-up agreements, the sharesmhon stock issued upon exercise of
outstanding options will be available for immediegsale in the United States in the open market.

Sales of our common stock as restrictions end msyaunt to registration rights may make it moreiclifit for us to sell equity securities in
the future at a time and at a price that we degmoggpiate. These sales also could cause our stiadk fo fall and make it more difficult for y«
to sell shares of our common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions contained in our certifita of incorporation and bylaws, as well as provisgoof Delaware law, could impair a
takeover attempt.

Our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Delagviaw contain provisions which could have the @ffef rendering more difficult,
delaying or preventing an acquisition deemed umdkks by our board of directors. Our corporate goaace documents include provisions:

» creating a classified board of directors whose mamberve staggered th-year terms

» authorizing “blank check” preferred stock, whichutbbe issued by the board without stockholder epglrand may contain voting,
liquidation, dividend and other rights superiootae common stock

» limiting the liability of, and providing indemnifation to, our directors and office!
« limiting the ability of our stockholders to call@bring business before special meetir

* requiring advance notice of stockholder proposaidtisiness to be conducted at meetings of oukistdders and for nominations
of candidates for election to our board of direst

» controlling the procedures for the conduct and dalieg of board and stockholder meetings;

» providing the board of directors with the expresw/r to postpone previously scheduled annual mgetind to cancel previously
scheduled special meetin
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These provisions, alone or together, could delgyrevent hostile takeovers and changes in controhanges in our management.

As a Delaware corporation, we are also subjectagipions of Delaware law, including Section 203lé Delaware General Corporation
law, which prevents some stockholders holding ntiba® 15% of our outstanding common stock from emgpin certain business
combinations without approval of the holders ofsgtahtially all of our outstanding common stock.

Any provision of our certificate of incorporatiom bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect oagiglg or deterring a change in control
could limit the opportunity for our stockholdersrexeive a premium for their shares of our comntooks and could also affect the price that
some investors are willing to pay for our commarckt

Our current agreements with Blackstar, an affiliatef Daimler, contain certain restrictions that deease the likelihood that potential
acquirors would make a bid to acquire us.

Our financing agreements with Blackstar, an atfliaf Daimler, include certain restrictions thatidmse the likelihood that potential
acquirors would make a bid to acquire us, includjing Blackstar a right of notice on any acquisitproposal we receive for which we
determine to engage in further discussions witbtamtial acquiror or otherwise pursue. Blackstenthas a right, within a specified time
period, to submit a competing acquisition proposeaddition, Elon Musk, our Chief Executive Offic@roduct Architect, Chairman and
largest stockholder, has agreed that he will raytdfer any shares of our capital stock benefic@aliyed by him to any automobile original
equipment manufacturer, other than Daimler, witt®lackstar's consent. Mr. Musk has further agreetto vote any shares of our capital
stock beneficially owned by him in favor of a deehtigquidation transaction to which any automobitggimal equipment manufacturer, other
than Daimler, is a party without Blackstar’s cortsdinese provisions could delay or prevent hostikeovers and changes in control of us,
which could cause our stock price or trading voluméall.

If securities or industry analysts do not publishr oease publishing research or reports about usr business or our market, or if they
change their recommendations regarding our stockvadsely, our stock price and trading volume couldatine.

The trading market for our common stock will beuehced by the research and reports that industsgaurities analysts may publish
about us, our business, our market or our compstitbany of the analysts who may cover us chahg& recommendation regarding our stock
adversely, or provide more favorable relative recmndations about our competitors, our stock prioal@vlikely decline. If any analyst who
may cover us were to cease coverage of our compaiayl to regularly publish reports on us, we abldse visibility in the financial markets,
which in turn could cause our stock price or trgdiolume to decline.

We do not expect to declare any dividends in thee§eeable future.

We do not anticipate declaring any cash dividendsolders of our common stock in the foreseealilgéu Consequently, investors may
need to rely on sales of their common stock afteepappreciation, which may never occur, as tHg way to realize any future gains on their
investment. Investors seeking cash dividends shmaighurchase our common stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Facilities

Our corporate headquarters and powertrain produciierations are based in Palo Alto, California. Wdee a lease with Stanford
University for 350,000 square feet which expiredamuary 2016 and houses our headquarters andtpaiwerctivities. The Palo Alto facility

serves as our production facility for the electréhicle components we utilize in the Tesla Roadstek for our powertrain component and
systems development and sales.

In May 2010, we entered into an agreement to pwelaa existing automobile production facility laghin Fremont, California from
New United Motor Manufacturing, Inc. (NUMMI), whids a joint venture between Toyota, and Motors Idgtion Company, the owner
selected assets of General Motors. In October 20&@ompleted the purchase and received titlegdability and land. The total cash paid
$42.0 million. The purchase totals 210 acres, pr@admately 55% of the land at the site, and inelidll of the manufacturing facilities loca
thereon totaling approximately 5.4 million squagetf We intend to use the facility and manufactyessets for the production of our planned
Model S vehicle and to build our future vehiclese @fe currently in an early stage of planning amttimg out this facility. We are required to
comply with environmental regulations in connectwith our planned Model S manufacturing facilitykremont, California. In October 2010,
we and NUMMI amended the May 2010 purchase agreetoémclude the transfer to us of certain opeapermits, or emission credits, for
additional consideration of $6.5 million. We contplé the transfer of these permits in October 2010.

Outside of our Fremont, California facility, we dot currently own any of our facilities. The followg table sets forth the location,
approximate size and primary use of our signifidaased facilities:

Approximate Lease
Size (Building) Expiration
Location (1) in Square Feet Primary Use Date
Palo Alto, California 350,00( Administration, engineering services and
manufacturing service January 2011
Hawthorne, Californic 132,25( Vehicle engineering and design servi December 202
Maidenhead, United Kingdom 8,87( Administration, sales, service and marketing
services November 201!

(1) We also lease a number of facilities for odaitdocations around the world, most of which &@00 square feet or smaller, and we are
leasing building space at Lo’ facilities in the United Kingdom for administratic

We anticipate that the build out of both our PaltoAacility and our planned Model S manufacturfagility in Fremont, California will
be partially financed by our DOE Loan Facility.

We currently intend to add new facilities or expanu existing facilities as we add employees ammher our production organization.
We believe that suitable additional or alternapace will be available in the future on commelgisdasonable terms to accommodate our
foreseeable future expansion.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to various lggakeedings that arise from the normal course sin@ss activities. In addition, from
time to time, third parties may assert intellectu@perty infringement claims against us in therfaf letters and other forms of
communication. If an unfavorable ruling were to wgcthere exists the possibility of a material adeempact on our results of operations,
prospects, cash flows, financial position and brand
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ITEM 4. RESERVED

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock has traded on The NASDAQ Globl&&Market under the symbol “TSLA” since it begaading on June 29, 2010.
Our initial public offering was priced at $17.00r gare on June 28, 2010. The following table feth, for the time period indicated, the high
and low closing sales price of our common stockegsrted on The NASDAQ Global Select Market.

2010

High Low
Second Quarter (from June 29, 20 $23.8¢ $23.8¢
Third Quartel 21.9¢ 15.8(
Fourth Quarte 35.41 20.0¢

As of January 31, 2011, there were 365 holdereasnd of our common stock. A substantially greatenber of holders of our common
stock are “street name” or beneficial holders, vehsisares are held by banks, brokers and othercielanstitutions.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid cash dividends oea@umon or convertible preferred stock. We cullyedid not anticipate paying any
cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any Ritletermination to declare cash dividends will lzelenat the discretion of our board of
directors, subject to applicable laws and compkanith certain covenants under our loan facilityrwthe United States Department of Energy,
which restrict or limit our ability to pay dividesdand will depend on our financial condition, lesof operations, capital requirements, ger
business conditions and other factors that ourdbofdirectors may deem relevant.
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Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed “filéal” purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgbakct of 1934, as amended (the
Exchange Act), or incorporated by reference inty filng of Tesla Motors, Inc. under the Securithes of 1933, as amended, or the Excha
Act, except as shall be expressly set forth byifipeeference in such filinc

The following graph shows a comparison from June2Pa0 through December 31, 2010, of the cumuldtted return for our common
stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index, and a groupligf@blic companies sharing the same SIC code aghich is SIC code 3711, “Motor
Vehicles and Passenger Car Bodies” (Motor Vehialeb Passenger Car Bodies Public Company Grouph i®tierns are based on historical
results and are not intended to suggest futur@paegnce. Data for The NASDAQ Composite Index amdMotor Vehicles and Passenger Car
Bodies Public Company Group assumes an investniéit0® on June 29, 2010 and reinvestment of divdde/e have never declared or paid
cash dividends on our capital stock nor do we gate paying any such cash dividends in the foeddeduture.

Comparison of 6 Month Cumulative Total Return
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Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

On July 2, 2010, we sold 2,941,176 shares of ommgon stock to Toyota Motor Corporation at a pri€857.00 per share, for aggregate
proceeds of $50.0 million.

On November 2, 2010, we sold 1,418,573 sharesrof@mmon stock to an entity affiliated with PandsdBorporation at a price of
$21.148 per share, for aggregate proceeds of $3ilion.

The shares described above were issued in priratsactions pursuant to Section 4(2) of the SeesriXct of 1933, as amended.

73



Table of Contents

Use of Proceeds

Our IPO of common stock was effected through a ®eggion Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-16458&t was declared effective
by the Securities and Exchange Commission on JBn2@.0, which registered an aggregate of 15,295sb@res of our common stock,
including 1,995,000 shares that the underwritetstha option to purchase. On July 2, 2010, 11,88Ddhares of common stock were sold on
our behalf and 3,414,400 shares of common stock s@d on behalf of the selling stockholders, idatg 1,995,000 shares sold by the selling
stockholders upon exercise in full of the undemvst option to purchase additional shares, at &pHce of $17.00 per share, for an aggregate
gross offering price of $201,970,200 to us, and %8800 to the selling stockholders. The undeessibf the offering were Goldman, Sach
Co., Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, J.P. Mor§aucurities Inc. and Deutsche Bank SecuritiesHotlowing the sale of the shares in
connection with the closing of the IPO, the offgrierminated.

We paid to the underwriters underwriting discowarid commissions totaling approximately $13.1 millio connection with the offerin
In addition, we incurred additional costs of appmeately $4.4 million in connection with the offegnwhich when added to the underwriting
discounts and commissions paid by us, amountsabfees and costs of approximately $17.5 millibhus, the net offering proceeds to us,
after deducting underwriting discounts and comroissiand offering costs, were approximately $184lom. No offering costs were paid
directly or indirectly to any of our directors difioers (or their associates) or persons owningpertent or more of any class of our equity
securities or to any other affiliates, other thaimbursement of legal expenses for selling stoadrsl

There was no material change in the use of proceensour initial public offering as described inrdinal prospectus filed with the SEC
pursuant to Rule 424(b). From the effective datthefregistration statement through December 310 2@e have used the net proceeds of the
offering for working capital purposes, includingpexditures for inventory, personnel costs, equigraed other operating expenses.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers
None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with “Management’sddission and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operatioastl our consolidated financial statements anddfaed notes included elsewhere in this An
Report on Form 10-K.

The following selected consolidated financial datale also reflects the 1-for-3 reverse stock glidur outstanding common stock
effected in May 2010.

Years Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Date

Revenues

Automotive sale: $ 97,07¢ $ 111,94 $ 14,74. $ 73 $ —

Development service 19,66¢ — — — —
Total revenue 116,74 111,94 14,74 73 —

Cost of revenues (1

Automotive sale: 79,98: 102,40¢ 15,88: 9 —

Development service 6,031 — — — —
Total cost of revenue 86,01 102,40¢ 15,88: 9 —
Gross profit (loss 30,73 9,53t (1,147 64 —

Operating expenses (:
Research and development (net of development
compensation of $23,249 for the year ended

December 31, 200¢ 92,99¢ 19,28: 53,71« 62,75: 24,99¢
Selling, general and administrati 84,57 42,15( 23,64¢ 17,24« 5,43¢
Total operating expens: 177,56¢ 61,43: 77,36 79,99 30,43:
Loss from operation (146,839 (51,89 (78,509 (79,939 (30,43)
Interest incomt 25¢ 15¢ 52¢ 1,74¢ 93¢
Interest expens (992 (2,53)) (3,747 — (423)
Other income (expense), net (6,58%) (1,44%) (963) 137 59
Loss before income tax (154,15 (55,719 (82,685 (78,04") (29,85
Provision for income taxe 178 26 97 11C 10C
Net loss $ (154,32) $ (55,740 $ (82,78) $ (78,15 $ (29,95)
Net loss per share of common stock, basic andedi
3) $ (3.09 $ (7.99 $  (12.4¢) $  (22.69) $ (10.19)
Weighted average shares used in computing nepkrs
share of common stock, basic and diluted 50,718,30 7,021,96. 6,646,38 3,443,80! 2,941,41.

(1) Includes stoc-based compensation expense as follc

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Cost of revenue $ 24: $ 61 $ 26 $— $—
Research and developmt 4,13¢ 37¢€ 12t 95 17
Selling, general and administrati 16,774 997 28€ 10z 6
Total $21,15¢ $1,43¢ $437 $19¢ $ 23
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(2) InJanuary 2010, we issued a warrant to the Depgttiof Energy (DOE) in connection with the closofgour DOE loan facility tc
purchase shares of our Series E convertible pegfestock. This convertible preferred stock wartsdame a warrant to purchase shares
of our common stock upon the closing of our inifablic offering (IPO) in July 2010. Beginning ore@mber 15, 2018 and until
December 14, 2022, the shares subject to purchaier the warrant will become exercisable in quri@mounts depending on the
average outstanding balance of our the DOE loalitfaguring the prior quarter. Since the numbeisbfres of common stock ultimately
issuable under the warrant will vary, this warnaiit be carried at its estimated fair value withaclges in the fair value of this common
stock warrant liability reflected in other incomexpense), net, until its expiration or vesting.gPtill shares of common stock issuable
upon exercise of the DOE warrant will be excludexif the calculation of diluted net loss per shdreoosnmon stock until at least such
time as we generate a net profit in a given pel

(3) Diluted net loss per share of common stock is cdegpexcluding common stock subject to repurchasg, idilutive, potential shares
common stock outstanding during the period. Paaéstiares of common stock consist of stock optionmirchase shares of our common
stock and warrants to purchase shares of our ctibleepreferred stock (using the treasury stockhoé} and the conversion of our
convertible preferred stock and convertible notgaple (using the if-converted method). For purpafehese calculations, potential
shares of common stock have been excluded froroaloalation of diluted net loss per share of commsimtk as their effect is
antidilutive since we generated a net loss in gaciod.

As of December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Consolidated Balance Sheet Date

Cash and cash equivale $ 99,55¢ $ 69,627 $ 9,277 $ 17,21 $ 35,40:
Restricted cas—current (1) 73,591 — — — —
Property, plant and equipment, net 114,63t 23,563t 18,79: 11,99¢ 7,512
Working capital (deficit 150,32: 43,07( (56,509 (28,989 8,45¢
Total asset 386,08 130,42 51,69¢ 34,831 44.,46¢
Convertible preferred stock warrant liability ( — 1,73¢ 2,07¢ 191 227
Common stock warrant liability (¢ 6,08¢ — — — —
Capital lease obligations, less current por 49€ 80C 88¢ 18 —
Long-term debt (4 71,82¢ — — — —
Convertible preferred stoc — 319,22! 101,17¢ 101,17¢ 60,17:
Total stockholder” equity (deficit) 207,04¢ (253,52) (199,714 (117,849 (43,92))

(1) Upon the completion of our IPO and concurrent Taymivate placement in July 2010, we set aside $1@@lion to fund a restricte
dedicated account as required under the provisibonsr DOE loan facility. Through December 31, 20d@ transferred $26.4 million
from the dedicated account to our operating casbuatds in accordance with the provisions of the Dadh facility.

(2) In October 2010, we completed the purchase of cembnt, California facility and certain of the méaxturing assets located there

(3) InJanuary 2010, we issued a warrant to the DQfimection with the closing of our DOE loan fagilib purchase shares of our Seri¢
convertible preferred stock. This convertible prefd stock warrant became a warrant to purchageslod our common stock upon the

closing of our initial public offering in July 201

(4) InJanuary 2010, we closed our DOE loan facilitg Began making draw downs under the loan fac
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should belieaconjunction with our consolidated financiahtgments and the related notes that
appear elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 104kese discussions contain forward-looking statémeeflecting our current
expectations that involve risks and uncertaintiégese forward-looking statements include, but aeimited to, statements concerning our
strategy, future operations, future financial pasit future revenues, projected costs, expectatiegarding demand and acceptance for our
technologies, growth opportunities and trends & tharket in which we operate, prospects and plamsabjectives of management. The words
“anticipates”, “believes”, “estimates”, “expects”,“intends”, “may”, “plans”, “projects”, “will”, “wou 1d” and similar expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statementshailigh not all forward-looking statements contdiage identifying words. We may not
actually achieve the plans, intentions or expeotaidisclosed in our forward-looking statements god should not place undue reliance on
our forward-looking statements. Actual results verts could differ materially from the plans, irtiens and expectations disclosed in the
forward-looking statements that we make. These forwarkigostatements involve risks and uncertainties toalld cause our actual results
to differ materially from those in the forward-ldng statements, including, without limitation, ttigks set forth in Part I, Item 1A, “Risk
Factor<” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in our ettfilings with the Securities and Exchange Comimis3VNe do not assume any
obligation to update any forward-looking statements

Overview and 2010 Highlights

We design, develop, manufacture and sell high-pexdace fully electric vehicles and advanced electehicle powertrain components.
We own our sales and service network, and markegsah our vehicles directly to consumers via thene and internet, in-person at our
corporate events and through our network of Tesles. We were incorporated in Delaware in 2008nepl our first store in Los Angeles,
California in May 2008, and introduced our firshigle, the Tesla Roadster, in early 2008. In JW9, we introduced a new Roadster model,
the Tesla Roadster 2, and its higher performantieropackage Roadster Sport, as well as launcredksla Roadster in Europe. On July 1,
2010, we introduced the Roadster 2.5, with newirglyhnd an upgraded interior.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we expegéesolid performance from sales of the Tesla Readespecially considering that
the automotive sales recognized in 2009 were dipranarily from the fulfillment of a significant servations list that had accumulated pric
and through 2009. Our automotive sales revenu281@ were primarily driven by retail store expansigobally and higher sales and
marketing activities, higher average selling prifresn an expanded offering of vehicle options to customers, as well as higher average
selling prices outside of the United States. Du@fd0, we continued to expand our presence in Euaopl introduced the Tesla Roadster in
Canada and in Asia. Our network of stores incre&sd® stores by the end of 2010 and as of DeceBhe2010, we had sold over 1,500 Tesla
Roadsters to customers in 31 countries, with salksne being concentrated in the United Statesimfairope.

In February 2010, we began offering a leasing @ogto qualified customers in the United StatesHerTesla Roadster and during the
latter half of 2010, we began offering a leasirgralative in Canada. Under our program, we peroadifying customers to lease the Tesla
Roadster for 36 months, after which time they hineeoption of either returning the vehicle to uporchasing it for a predetermined residual
value. We account for these leasing transactiomgpearating leases and accordingly, we recognizrigaevenues on a straight-line basis over
the term of the individual leases. Lease revenaethe year ended December 31, 2010 were $0.8miind are recorded as part of our
automotive sales revenue. Approximately 14% ofTtesla Roadsters delivered during 2010 were underatipg leases.

We continued to expand our electric powertrain congmt and development activities with other autoveatanufacturers. By the end
2009, we had completed the development of a bateei and charger for Daimler AG’s (Daimler) Srrfartwo electric drive and were
selected by Daimler to supply it initially with
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up to 1,000 battery packs and chargers to suppaelaf the Smart fortwo electric drive in at $¢dive European cities. In 2010, we made
significant deliveries of the Smart fortwo batt@acks and chargers to Daimler which contributed@pmately $21 million to our automotive
sales revenue. Since 2009, Daimler has increasedders under this program, with the current totder at 1,800 battery packs and chargers.
Production of the battery packs and chargers is@eg to continue through mid-2011. During the yBaimler also engaged us to assist with
the development and production of a battery packduarger for a pilot fleet of its A-Class electwighicles to be introduced in Europe during
2011. A formal agreement for this arrangement wesred into with Daimler in May 2010 and upon coetigin of the A-Class battery pack
and charger in October, we started recognizingmeedrom the delivery of production battery packd ahargers for the Daimler A-Class
program, which we expect to continue through tHarizze of 2011.

In May 2010, we and Toyota Motor Corporation (T@)adnnounced our intention to cooperate on theldpweent of electric vehicles,
and for us to receive Toyota’s support with souggdarts and production and engineering expertisthisModel S. In July 2010, we and
Toyota entered into an early Phase 0 agreememrMalap an electric powertrain for the Toyota RAWIth an aim by Toyota to market the
electric vehicle in the United States in 2012, ptyjpes would be made by combining the Toyota RA\GHel with a Tesla electric powertrain.
We began developing and delivering prototypes tgotafor evaluation during the latter half of theay. In connection with this program, in
October 2010, we entered into a Phase 1 contragtes agreement with Toyota for the developmerd wvélidated powertrain system,
including a battery, power electronics module, magearbox and associated software, which willtegrated into an electric vehicle version
of the Toyota RAV4. Pursuant to our agreementsotawill pay us up to $69 million for the anticipdtdevelopment services to be provided
by us over the expected term of our performancee¥pect to achieve our deliverables through latEL26 early 2012.

As a result of solid sales of the Tesla Roadstewell as increased powertrain component saleshendommencement of development
services revenues from both Daimler and Toyotal tetvenues for 2010 were $116.7 million, an insesaver total revenues of $111.9 million
in 2009.

We are designing our second vehicle, the plannede\8, for a significantly broader customer basattihe Tesla Roadster and plan to
manufacture the Model S in higher volumes thancomrent volumes for the Tesla Roadster. Model hbgment progressed well during
2010, culminating in the completion of our firshdble alpha prototype in December. Expenses rkat¢he Model S alpha prototype build,
increased production and engineering headcounbted important engineering, design and testingcvb@ing undertaken at several of our
suppliers to support Model S readiness, contribtddtie $73.7 million increase in research and kdgveent expenses from 2009 to $93.0
million in 2010.

Alongside Model S engineering and manufacturingregeying development, we also completed the pusb&sur Fremont
manufacturing facility in October, which we intetduse for the production of our planned Model 8 firiure vehicles. In May 2010, we
entered into an agreement to purchase an exigtitograbile production facility in Fremont, Califoenfrom New United Motor Manufacturing,
Inc. (NUMMI), which is a joint venture between Tdgand Motors Liquidation Company, the owner oéstdd assets of General Motors. In
October 2010, we completed the purchase and ratétieto the facility and land. The purchase l®®10 acres, or approximately 55% of the
land at the site, and includes all of the manufé@egufacilities located thereon. In October 201@, and NUMMI amended the facility purchase
agreement to include the transfer to us of cedpirating permits for additional consideration. Blggregate purchase price that we paid to
NUMMI was $48.5 million, including the operatingrpats.

In August 2010, we entered into an additional pasehagreement with NUMMI for the purchase of cartaanufacturing equipment and
spare parts located at the Fremont facility. Thischase agreement was subsequently amended tdénatlditional manufacturing equipment
and spare parts and in October 2010, we complbeiegtirchase concurrent with the completion offttedlity purchase. The aggregate
purchase price that we paid for these assets w&ag #dillion. The purchase of the Fremont manufaetufacility and assets,
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along with other Model S related investments angs$tments that we made at our Palo Alto, Califocoigporate headquarters and powertrain
facility, brought our capital expenditures up t®$4 million in 2010 from $11.9 million for 2009.

We completed several significant financing transastin 2010 to help progress our Model S and ptraierdevelopment activities, as
well as support our capital investments in manuwifi&og infrastructure:

* InJanuary 2010, we entered into our Departmefinafrgy Loan Facility (DOE Loan Facility) for $465llion to support the
expansion of our manufacturing operations, sulifecertain draw conditions. Up to an aggregategyad amount of
$101.2 million is available under the first ternaufofacility to finance the build out of a facility design and manufacture lithium-
ion battery packs, electric motors and electric ponents. Up to an aggregate principal amount o83B#illion will be made
available under the second term loan facility tafice up to 91.5% of the costs eligible for fundimgthe development of, and to
build out the manufacturing facility for our Modglsedan

* InJuly 2010, we closed our initial public offeriig?O) pursuant to which we sold 11,880,600 shafegir common stock ar
received cash proceeds of $188.8 million from ttdasaction, net of underwriting discounts and cassians. Additionally, we
incurred offering costs of $4.4 million relatedtbe IPO. Concurrent with the closing of our IPO, seéd 2,941,176 shares of our
common stock to Toyota and received proceeds of0$%5dlion.

* In November 2010, we sold 1,418,573 shares of oomgon stock to an entity affiliated with Panasddarporation (Panasonic) f
aggregate proceeds of $30.0 milli

Management Opportunities, Challenges and Risks—201Qutlook

Our focus for 2011 continues to be on the discgadidevelopment and preparation for the launcheptanned Model S in mid-2012, as
well as the continued growth of revenues throudéssaf the Tesla Roadster and our powertrain saldsdevelopment activities with our
strategic partners.

We expect sales of the Tesla Roadster to grow 20&0, but expect some seasonality during the wintanths. We have a supply
agreement with Lotus to purchase a minimum of 2, A@fla Roadster vehicles or gliders. Through Deeerlh, 2010, we have delivered over
1,500 vehicles. We currently intend to manufacthieemajority of our gliders with Lotus for our cent generation Tesla Roadster until Jan
2012, and we intend to use these gliders in theufaaturing of the Tesla Roadster to both fulfillers placed in 2011 as well as new orders
placed in 2012 until our supply of gliders is ex$taal. Accordingly, we intend to offer a limited niben of Tesla Roadsters for sale in 2012. To
the extent we wish to sell additional Tesla Roadstgth the Lotus gliders beyond the number of gkgsi we have contracted for, we will need
to negotiate a new or amended supply agreementhwitis but may be unable to do so on terms andittions favorable to us, if at all. We do
not currently plan to begin selling our next getieraTesla Roadster until at least one year aftedaunch of the Model S and we intend to
perform such manufacturing entirely in our own liies. Continued difficult economic conditions,rapetition from third parties and the
planned availability of the Model S in 2012 coutsbult in depressed sales of the Tesla Roadstélih. 2Ve expect to continue to experience
seasonality for sales of the Tesla Roadster. Weaificipate that we will place greater sales emjshan the generation of Model S
reservations during the second half of 2011 as ek wowards the launch of our planned Model S id42012.

As a result of our expanded electric powertrainpbgipnd development services activities with ouatsigic partners in 2010, we will he
significant deliveries and milestones to achiev2dd 1. Along with the supply of battery packs ahdrgers for Daimles Smart fortwo EV an
A-Class programs, we will also have important depeient milestones and prototypes to deliver to T@ws part of our Toyota RAV4
agreements. Although our current agreements wiim@a and Toyota provide us with increased revemtential in 2011 from powertrain-
related activities, we do not yet have finalizegt agreements with Daimler or Toyota for significaates or services beyond 2011.
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Model S development will continue to be a primasgus for 2011. Ensuring that our engineering, dpara and manufacturing
engineering teams execute on all significant aisiwill be critical to a timely launch of our MedS in mid-2012. Our progress towards our
beta prototype activities as well as readinessuoheanufacturing capabilities, will influence ounilgy to achieve the manufacturing cost per
unit that we are currently projecting.

In 2011, we publicly announced the Tesla Model Xhasfirst vehicle we intend to develop by leveragihe Model S platform. We are
designing the Model X as a crossover vehicle. Wenith to develop a prototype of the Model X by thd ef 2011. The acceleration of the
development of future vehicles, including the Tedltadel X, may require us to raise additional futld®ugh the issuance of equity, equity-
related or debt securities or through obtaininglitr&Ve cannot be certain that additional fundd ladl available to us on favorable terms when
required, or at all.

Our operating expenses are expected to increg@lihas we continue to execute on the Model S progsystematically and
strategically expand our sales and marketing digs/globally to support the launch of the ModeaSwell as to maintain and support the
overall activities of a growing public company. #e continue to make significant investments in aese and development and our
infrastructure to launch the Model S, we expeatdntinue generating a net loss despite anticipgtedth in revenues and improvements in
margin. Cost control within our operations, espigcia general and administrative, continues tcabemportant objective.

Capital spending for the Model S program is antitégl to be at its highest level in 2011, as we fgwurchase much of the tooling and
manufacturing equipment required for productiomlusive of non-Model S related investments, aggregapital expenditures for 2011 are
expected to be in the range of $190 million to $&1ilion. The majority of these capital investmest®uld be reimbursable under the terms of
our DOE Loan Facility. With this level of capitgdending, we can execute on our strategic decisiagmcrease in-sourcing, primarily in
stampings and plastics. We have also elected &strimcrementally in new technologies, primarilyour paint and body shops, to produce
vehicles at a higher quality at an affordable cost.

Furthermore, we are investing in additional plamtbanation which provides us with the flexibility éxpand capacity to produce up to
20,000 units on just one shift. This investment lddwave a relatively short payback in terms of siaedor and overhead costs. Additionally,
plant automation will allow us to accommodate aithigher Model S production or the efficient intemdion of future models. As significant
capital investment is required to bring our Frenfaetlity and Model S manufacturing assets to éestd production readiness, all depreciation
of our capital expenditures related to the Frenfacitity will begin with the start of Model S prodtion.

Unadjusted Error in 2009

In June 2010, we identified an error related touhderstatement in stock-based compensation exgehsequent to the issuance of the
consolidated financial statements for the year érigkecember 31, 2009.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we granted certéiels options for which a portion of the grant wasriediately vested. We erroneously
accounted for the expense on a straight-line ma&sthe term of the award, while expense recagmihould always be at least commensurate
with the number of awards vesting during the perisla result, selling, general and administragixpenses and net loss for the year ended
December 31, 2009 were understated by $2.7 millitwe. error did not have an effect on the valuatibthe stock options. As stock-based
compensation expense is a non-cash item, ther@mevaspact on net cash used in operating activibeshe year ended December 31, 2009.

To correct this error, we recorded additional stbeked compensation of $2.4 million during theeéhrenths ended June 30, 2010. We
considered the impact of the error on reportedatjprey expenses and trends in
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operating results and determined that the impatite@gtrror was not material to previously repoftedncial information as well as those rele
to the three months ended June 30, 2010. We aldoated this control deficiency in the context af smternal control over financial reporting
and based on the magnitude, nature and extené afrtbr, determined that such deficiency would dresered a significant deficiency. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency or a comhioa of deficiencies, in internal control over fimdal reporting, that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to megnébn by those responsible for the oversighhefcompany’s financial reporting.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatlyepted in the United States. The
preparation of these consolidated financial stateseequires us to make estimates and assumpliahaffect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses ancerkldisclosures. We base our estimates on hist@xqedrience, as appropriate, and on various
other assumptions that we believe to be reasonetdler the circumstances. Changes in the accouasitimates are reasonably likely to occur
from period to period. Accordingly, actual resudtauld differ significantly from the estimates mageour management. We evaluate our
estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basihelextent that there are material differences batviieese estimates and actual results, our
future financial statement presentation, financaldition, results of operations and cash flows$ bl affected. We believe that the following
critical accounting policies involve a greater dagof judgment and complexity than our other actingrpolicies. Accordingly, these are the
policies we believe are the most critical to untierding and evaluating our consolidated financdaidition and results of operations.

Revenue Recognition
Automotive Sales

We recognize automotive sales revenue from saléseofesla Roadster, including vehicle optionseasories and destination charges,
vehicle service and sales of zero emission vehieclZEV, credits. We also recognize automotive sadwenue from the sales of electric vel
powertrain components, such as battery packs aterpahargers, to other manufacturers. We recegr@zenue when (i) persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has ocaliard there are no uncertainties regarding custaceaptance; (iii) fees are fixed or
determinable; and (iv) collection is reasonablyuasd.

Automotive sales consist primarily of revenue edrfiem the sale of vehicles. Sales or other amocwitected in advance of meeting all
of the revenue recognition criteria are not recpgdiin the consolidated statements of operatiodsaeminstead recorded as deferred revenue
on our consolidated balance sheets. Prior to Fep2G10, we did not provide direct financing foetpurchase of the Tesla Roadster althou
third-party lender has provided financing arranget®i¢o our customers in the United States. Undesdtarrangements we have been paid in
full by the customer at the time of purchase. 8tgrin February 2010, we began offering a leasirmgam to qualified customers in the Uni
States.

Automotive sales also consist of revenue earned free sales of vehicle options, accessories arihdden charges. While these sales
may take place separately from a vehicle sale, #ineyften part of one vehicle sale agreementtieguh multiple element arrangements.
Contract interpretation is sometimes required temteine the appropriate accounting for recognitbour revenue, including whether the
deliverables specified in the multiple element agement should be treated as separate units ofiaiieg, and, if so, how the price should be
allocated among the elements, when to recogniznteyfor each element, and the period over whichmee should be recognized. We are
also required to evaluate whether a delivered heamvalue on a stand-alone basis prior to deligétiie remaining items by determining
whether we have made separate sales of such itewisether the undelivered items are essentialéduhctionality of the delivered items.
Further, we assess whether we know the fair vafltleeoundelivered items, determined by referencg#adad-alone sales of such items.
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To date, we have been able to establish the faieviar each of the deliverables within the multiplement arrangements because we
each of the vehicles, vehicle accessories andmgpteparately, outside of any multiple elementrgeaents. As each of these items has stand
alone value to the customer, revenue from salegluitle accessories and options are recognized thiose specific items are delivered to the
customer. Increased complexity to our sales agretsmoe changes in our judgments and estimatesdegpapplication of these revenue
recognition guidelines could result in a changthatiming or amount of revenue recognized in fefperiods.

Development Services

Revenue from development services arrangementsstofisevenue earned from the development of gteeehicle powertrain
components for other automobile manufacturersuioly the design and development of battery pankischargers to meet a customer’s
specifications. Beginning in the quarter ended Ma&t, 2010, we started entering into such contmaittsthe expectation that our developm
services would constitute a viable revenue-genegatttivity. Revenue is recognized as a developmeanhgement is finalized, the
performance requirements of each development agraagt are met and collection is reasonably asswédre development arrangements
include substantive at-risk milestones, revenuedsgnized based upon the achievement of the atn#ldy-defined milestones. Amounts
collected in advance of meeting all of the reveragmgnition criteria are not recognized in the adidsaited statement of operations and are
instead recorded as deferred revenue on the cdatedi balance sheet. As of December 31, 2010, deéfarred $4.0 million in revenue
related to development services being performed égota. Increased complexity to our developmemn¢agents or changes in our judgments
and estimates regarding application of these reveacognition guidelines could result in a chamg#he timing or amount of revenue
recognized in future periods.

Costs of development services are expensed aga@gcuosts of development services incurred ingplerprior to the finalization of an
agreement are recorded as research and developrparises; once an agreement is finalized, these a@srecorded in cost of development
services.

Prior to 2010, compensation from the Smart fort@gedopment arrangement with Daimler, which is désed below under
“Development Compensation”, was recorded as arbftsresearch and development expenses. Thisaaalggement was motivated
primarily by the opportunity to engage Daimler atdhe same time, jointly progress our own reseanthdevelopment activities with the
associated development compensation.

Development Compensation

We began receiving payments under the Smart fodsw@lopment arrangement with Daimler in the yeaedrDecember 31, 2008 to
compensate us for the cost of our developmentitieyWe deferred recognition for these paymeateived in advance of the execution of
final agreement because a number of significantraotual terms were not in place prior to that titdpon entering into the final agreement in
May 2009, we began recognizing the deferred dewedoh compensation as an offset to our researcldevelopment expenses on a straight-
line basis. This amount was recognized over theeteg life of the agreement, beginning in May 2866 continuing through November 20
Payments that we received upon the achievemergw#ldpment milestones subsequent to contract eéredantMay 2009 were recognized
upon achievement and acceptance of the respectigstomes. All amounts received under this develepnagreement have been recognize
an offset to our research and development expénsks consolidated statement of operations. Alledigoment activities under this agreement
were completed as of December 31, 2009.

Inventory Valuation

We value our inventories at the lower of cost orkaa Cost is computed using standard cost, whigitaximates actual cost on a fiist-
first-out basis. We record inventory write-downs éstimated
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obsolescence or unmarketable inventories based aggmmptions about future demand forecasts. lirm@ntory on hand is in excess of our
future demand forecast, the excess amounts aremwaff.

We also review inventory to determine whether #gying value exceeds the net amount realizabla tipe ultimate sale of the
inventory. This requires us to determine the edtihaelling price of our vehicles less the estimaiest to convert inventory on hand into a
finished product.

Once inventory is written-down, a new, lower-coasis for that inventory is established and subssqeieanges in facts and
circumstances do not result in the restoratiomorgase in that newly established cost basis. Duhie years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, we recorded write-downs of $1.0 million aridd$million, in cost of automotive sales, respeaiv During the year ended December 31,
2008, we recorded write-downs of $3.7 million tegarch and development expenses and $0.6 millioasioof automotive sales.

The inventory amounts are based on our curremagts of demand, selling prices and productionsc&tould our estimates of future
selling prices or production costs change, matetiahges to these reserves may be required. Fuatkarall change in our estimates may re
in a material charge to our reported financial kssu

Warranties

We accrue warranty reserves at the time a vehigmwertrain component is delivered to a custoMéarranty reserves include
management’s best estimate of the projected coséephir or to replace any items under warrantgetan actual warranty experience as it
becomes available and other known factors thatimagct our evaluation of historical data. We reviewv reserves at least quarterly to ensure
that our accruals are adequate in meeting expéate warranty obligations, and we will adjust @stimates as needed. Initial warranty data
can be limited early in the launch of a new vehag@owertrain component and accordingly, the ddjasts that we record may be material.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had $5.4anilind $3.8 million in warranty reserves, respetyivAdjustments to warranty reserves
are recorded in cost of automotive sales.

It is likely that as we sell additional Tesla Ro@als and powertrain components, we will acquirdtaaithl information on the projected
costs to repair or to replace items under warrantymay need to make additional adjustments. Ryremall change in our warranty
estimates may result in a material charge to quonted financial results.

Valuation of Stock-Based Awards, Common Stock andivents
Stock-Based Compensation

We use the fair value method of accounting forsiack options granted to employees which requiseto umeasure the cost of employee
services received in exchange for the stock optibased on the grant date fair value of the awEnd.fair value of the awards is estimated
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Tégulting cost is recognized over the period duvihgch an employee is required to provide
service in exchange for the award, usually theinggieriod which is generally four years. Stockdzhsompensation expense is recognized on
a straight-line basis, net of forfeitures.

The fair value of each new employee option awardasl estimated on the grant date for the periodsibeting the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted-erage assumptions.

2010 2009 2008
Risk-free interest rat 2.0% 2.2% 2.2%
Expected term (in year 5.3 4.6 4.6
Expected volatility 71% 64% 53%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
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If in the future we determine that another methmrdclculating the fair value of our stock optiassnore reasonable, or if another
method for calculating the above input assumptisqsescribed by authoritative guidance, the falue calculated for our employee stock
options could change significantly.

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model requiresuitspsuch as the risk-free interest rate, expeeted &nd expected volatility. Further,
the forfeiture rate also affects the amount of aggte compensation. These inputs are subjectivgemetally require significant judgment.

The risk-free interest rate that we use is baseith@tnited States Treasury yield in effect atttiree of grant for zero coupon United
States Treasury notes with maturities approximagiach grant’s expected life. Given our limited tiigtwith employee grants, we use the
“simplified” method in estimating the expected tefion our employee grants. The “simplifiediethod, as permitted by the SEC, is calculat¢
the average of the time-to-vesting and the conieddife of the options.

Our expected volatility is derived from the histali volatilities of several unrelated public comiggnwithin industries related to our
business, including the automotive OEM, automotetail, automotive parts and battery technologywsides, because we have no trading
history on our common stock. When making the selestof our peer companies within industries relateour business to be used in the
volatility calculation, we also considered the staf development, size and financial leverage oémital comparable companies. Our histor
volatility is weighted based on certain qualitatféetors and combined to produce a single volgptiictor. We estimate our forfeiture rate be
on an analysis of our actual forfeitures and wolhtinue to evaluate the appropriateness of theitore rate based on actual forfeiture
experience, analysis of employee turnover behandrother factors. Quarterly changes in the estichfrfeiture rate can have a significant
effect on reported stock-based compensation expasdhe cumulative effect of adjusting the ratealbexpense amortization is recognized in
the period the forfeiture estimate is changed.réhased forfeiture rate is higher than the preslgestimated forfeiture rate, an adjustment is
made that will result in a decrease to the stodedaompensation expense recognized in the coatadidinancial statements. If a revised
forfeiture rate is lower than the previously estieteforfeiture rate, an adjustment is made thdtredlult in an increase to the stock-based
compensation expense recognized in the consolidimizadcial statements.

As we accumulate additional employee option datx time and as we incorporate market data rela@adit common stock, we may
calculate significantly different volatilities, egpted lives and forfeiture rates, which could matgrimpact the valuation of our stock-based
awards and the stock-based compensation expertsedhvall recognize in future periods. Stoblesed compensation expense is recorded |
cost of sales, research and development expenskseling, general and administrative expenses.

We account for stock options issued to nonemplopsssbased on their estimated fair value deterthirggng the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. However, the fair value of the eguitvards granted to nonemployees is re-measurite@svards vest, and the resulting
increase in value, if any, is recognized as expduosi@g the period the related services are remdere

Common Stock Valuation

Upon the completion of our IPO on July 2, 2010, ommmon stock has been valued by reference taliBgly traded price. Prior to the
IPO, we historically granted stock options with prices equal to the fair value of our commatatk as determined at the date of grant by
our Board of Directors. Because there has beeruhlticomarket for our common stock, our Board ofdators determined the fair value of our
common stock by considering a number of objective subjective factors, including the following:

» our sales of convertible preferred stock to uneelahird parties
» our operating and financial performan
» the lack of liquidity of our capital stoc
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e trends in our industry
» arn’s length, thir-party sales of our stock; a
e contemporaneous valuations performed by an uncethtes-party.

There is inherent uncertainty in these estimatesfane had made different assumptions than thesel uthe amount of our stock-based
compensation expense, net loss and net loss per aimounts could have been significantly differd@ite following table summarizes, by gri
date, the number of stock options granted sincealsri, 2008 through the completion of our IPO oly 2, 2010, and the associated per share
exercise price, which equaled the fair value of @mmon stock for each of these grants.

Exercise

Price and

Fair Value

per Share o

Number of
Options Common

Grant Date Granted Stock
June 4, 200! 762,13 $ 27C
July 8, 200¢ 278,30t 2.7C
September 3, 20C 200,15! 2.7C
October 29, 200 205,15¢ 2.7C
March 2, 200¢ 214,81 2.7C
April 13, 2009 1,005,83 2.7C
April 22, 2009 105,18« 2.7C
August 4, 200¢ 323,06 2.94
October 21, 200 590,63t 6.1%5
December 4, 200 7,977,44. 6.65
December 16, 200 58,99t 6.65
March 3, 201( 402,66( 9.9¢
April 28, 2010 256,32( 13.2¢
June 12, 201 1,135,711 14.17

Included in the December 4, 2009 awards, were §9721stock options granted to our Chief Executi¥ic@ comprised of two grants.
In recognition of his and our company’s achieveraemid to create incentives for future successBtad of Directors approved an option
grant representing 4% of our fully-diluted sharedarior to such grant as of December 4, 2009,3553986 stock options, with 1/4th of the
shares vesting immediately, and 1/36th of the ramgishares scheduled to vest each month over yle@s, assuming continued employment
through each vesting date. In addition, to createritives for the attainment of clear performargedives around a key element of our cur
business plan—the successful launch and commeaialih of the Model S—the Board of Directors apgaadditional options totaling an
additional 4% of our fully-diluted shares priorgoch grant as of December 4, 2009, with a vesthgdule based entirely on the attainment of
performance objectives as follows, assuming Mr. Wkisontinued service to us through each vesting:da

» 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are adeddo vest upon the successful completion oMbeel S Engineering Prototyp
» 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are adkeddo vest upon the successful completion oMbeel S Validation Prototype

» 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are adeddo vest upon the completion of the first Mo8dProduction Vehicle; ar

» 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are adkeddo vest upon the completion of the 10,000tld#M @& Production Vehicl
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If Mr. Musk does not meet one or more of the abmilestones prior to the fourth anniversary of tlagedof grant, he will forfeit his right
to the unvested portion of the grant.

Included in our June and September 2010 stock mpgtiants were 666,300 and 20,000 stock optiongeplanespectively, to various
members of our senior management with a vestingdidb based entirely on the attainment of the gaemfermance objectives as those
outlined for Mr. Musk above.

Prior to our IPO which was completed on July 2,®@0dur Board of Directors performed valuations of common stock for purposes of
granting stock options in a manner consistent thithmethods outlined in the American Institute eftied Public Accountants Practice Aid,
Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Secestissued as Compensatiohhe enterprise value input of our common stodkations
were derived either using fundamental analysisofime and market approaches) or based on a recertt ofdinancing (option pricing
approach). The income approach estimates the eistermlue of the company by discounting the exgrbétiture cash flows of the company to
present value. We have applied discount rateg¢iflatt the risks associated with our cash flowjgrtions and have used venture capital rates
of return for companies at a similar stage of depedent as us, as a proxy for our cost of capitat. dscounted cash flow calculations are
sensitive to highly subjective assumptions thatweee required to make at each valuation date ngldat appropriate discount rates for various
components of our business. For example, the didgates used to value the cash flow projecticosmfthe Model S business factored in the
low cost debt we expected to raise from the U.Sdbenent of Energy.

Range of

Discount
Valuation Date __ Rates
May 15, 200¢ 30.0-40.(%
December 31, 200 30.0-40.(%
February 28, 200 30.0-40.(%
May 11, 200¢ 16.2-34.€%
August 1, 200¢ 16.2- 34.8€%
October 15, 200 12.4-27.1%
November 27, 200 12.4-27.1%
February 23, 201 11.4-20.(%
April 21, 2010 14.4-20.(%
June 9, 201! 14.5-20.(%

Our projected cash flows have been primarily detifrem our Tesla Roadster, Model S and powertrau@nue streams. In more recent
valuations, these cash flow projections take imtmant the fact that we have been selling the TRskdster since 2008, that we began selling
powertrain components in the quarter ended DeceBthe2009 and our anticipation of Model S produtfio mid-2012.

Under the market approach, the total enterpriseevaf the company is estimated by comparing ouinless to similar businesses whose
securities are actively traded in public marketdyusinesses that are involved in a public or peiteansaction. Prior transactions in our stock
are also considered as part of the market appno@thodology. We have selected revenue valuatiotipteg derived from trading multiples
public companies that participate in the automo@¥EM, automotive retail, automotive parts and bgttechnology industries. These valuation
multiples were then applied to the equivalent fegiahmetric of our business, giving consideratiordifferences between our company and
similar companies for such factors as companyamkgrowth prospects.

For those reports that relied on the fundamentalyais, we prepared a financial forecast to be uséide computation of the enterprise
value for both the market approach and the incoppeceach. The financial forecasts took into accaumtpast experience and future
expectations. The risks associated with achieviege forecasts were assessed in selecting thepajapeadiscount rate. As discussed below,
there is inherent
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uncertainty in these estimates. Second, we allddatresulting equity value among the securities tomprise our capital structure using the
Option-Pricing Method. The aggregate value of themon stock derived from the Option-Pricing Metheaks then divided by the number of
common shares outstanding to arrive at the per aamshare value. For those reports before our IROr#lied on the recent round of
financing, we back-solved for the total equity vekuch that the value of the instrument sold inrétoent round as calculated by the option
pricing model was consistent with the observeddaation price.

Our Board of Directors considered the valuationsvee from the approaches above, the probability timing of completing an IPO as
of those dates, as well as other qualitative fadtoarriving at our common stock valuations, indhg the following:

» significant operating losses since incepti

e macroeconomic uncertainty in 20(

» the absence of a significant IPO market throug26@8 and continuing through the second quartef682anc
» other market developments that influence forecasteenue

Valuations that we have performed require signifiazse of estimates and assumptions. If differstitrates and assumptions had been
used, our common stock valuations could be siganitiy different and related stock-based compensatigpense may be materially impacted.

Warrants

We have accounted for our freestanding warranpaitohase shares of our convertible preferred stadiabilities at fair value upon
issuance. We have recorded the warrants as atdidicause the underlying shares of convertibddgured stock are contingently redeemable
and, therefore, may obligate us to transfer asgeteme point in the future. The warrants are sulbgere-measurement to fair value at each
balance sheet date and any change in fair valteeigynized as a component of other expense, néeoronsolidated statements of operations.

In January 2010, we issued a warrant to the DQgoimection with the closing of the DOE Loan Fagiti purchase shares of our
Series E convertible preferred stock at an exemmige of $2.51 per share. This convertible pref@istock warrant became a warrant to
purchase shares of our common stock at an exeniszof $7.54 per share upon the closing of o@ iR July 2010. Beginning on
December 15, 2018 and until December 14, 2022shihees subject to purchase under the warrant eéthime exercisable in quarterly amounts
depending on the average outstanding balance @@t Loan Facility during the prior quarter. Therveat may be exercised until
December 15, 2023. If we prepay the DOE Loan Rgadilipart or in full, the total amount of shareercisable under the warrant will be
reduced. Since the number of shares of common siitiokately issuable under the warrant will vatyistwarrant will be carried at its estima
fair value with changes in its fair value reflectacbther expense, net, until its expiration ortires Our ability to prepay the DOE Loan Faci
and consequently, the number of shares ultimasslyable under the DOE warrant, was determinedptesent an embedded derivative. This
embedded derivative is inherently valued and acsalifor as part of the warrant.

Since the number of shares ultimately issuable uthdeDOE warrants will vary depending on the agerautstanding balance of the I¢
during the contractual vesting period, and decsitonprepay would be influenced by our future stpke as well as the interest rates on our
loans in relation to market interest rates, we messthe fair value of the DOE warrant using a Mo@arlo simulation approach. The Monte
Carlo approach simulates various scenarios andiczpthe optimal decisions to be made between pirgpthe DOE loan and the cancellation
of the DOE warrant over the expected term of theeD®@an Facility of 13 years. For the purposes efdgimulation, the optimal decision
represents the scenario with the lowest econongttoaus. The total warrant value would then bewdated as the average warrant payoff
across all simulated paths discounted to our vanatate.
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The significant assumptions that we use in theat@n of the DOE warrant include similar assumpdiosed in the valuation of otherw
featureless stock warrants at various simulateckgtdces, as well as the interest rate differétgdween the interest rates under our DOE
Loan Facility and market interest rates for compamiomparable to us. The estimated value of ogk starrant requires us to use a Black-
Scholes option-pricing model, which incorporategesal assumptions that are subject to significaambagement judgment as is the case for
stock-based compensation discussed above. Theetiffel between the interest rates under our DO&nLFeacility and market interest rates is
derived from the credit spread data of severallated public companies within industries relatedto business. As the average simulated
value of our stock warrant increases relative &dtedit spread of our comparator companies, thedéue of our DOE warrant decreases si
the economic cost of prepaying our outstandingdaarder the DOE Loan Facility and replacing thed&iwith market interest rate debt, would
be lower than the economic cost associated witlliflion caused by the vesting of warrants. Sirhjleas the credit spread of our comparator
companies increases relative to the average sietilatlue of our stock warrant, the fair value of DOE warrant increases since the econc
cost associated with prepaying our outstandingdaarder the DOE Loan Facility and replacing thedBiwith market interest rate debt is
higher than the economic cost associated with iliéiah caused by the vesting of warrants, anddfeee, we would not prepay our outstanc
DOE debt and we would allow a higher number of aats to vest. Prior to completion of our IPO, thie ¥alue of the DOE warrant was
included within the convertible preferred stock mat liability on the consolidated balance shegtotthe completion of our IPO on July 2,
2010, this warrant was reclassified on our constdid balance sheet from convertible preferred siakant liability to common stock warrant
liability. The DOE warrant will continue to be reded at its estimated fair value with changes @nfdir value reflected in other expense, net,
as the number of common stock ultimately issuahbeuthe warrant is variable until its expiratianvesting. As of December 31, 2010, the
fair value of the DOE warrant was $6.1 million. Tiedative movements in our stock price as comp#rdbe credit spread of our comparator
companies will result in fair value changes beiegorded in other expense, net, in future periodsiwimay be significant.

Excluding the warrant issued to the DOE in Jan2&30, we have estimated the fair value of our cdible preferred stock warrants at
the respective balance sheet dates using a Blauslecoption-pricing model which used several aggtions that are subject to significant
management judgment as is the case for stock-lwasegdensation as discussed above. Upon the complaftiour IPO in July 2010, these
convertible preferred stock warrants outstandingfakine 30, 2010, were net exercised and thestblinvertible preferred stock warrant
liability was settled.

Income Taxes

We record our provision for income taxes in oursmitlated statements of operations by estimatingaxes in each of the jurisdictions
in which we operate. We estimate our actual curi@nexposure together with assessing temporafgrdiices arising from differing treatment
of items recognized for financial reporting versas return purposes. These differences resultfiarg tax assets, which are included in our
consolidated balance sheets. In general, defeaseddsets represent future tax benefits to bewet@vhen certain expenses previously
recognized in our consolidated statements of ojpgrebecome deductible expenses under applicatderia tax laws, or loss or credit
carryforwards are utilized. Valuation allowances sgcorded when necessary to reduce deferred $aksas the amount expected to be
realized.

Significant management judgment is required in mheiiging our provision for income taxes, our defdrtax assets and liabilities and any
valuation allowance recorded against our net defetaix assets. We make these estimates and judgatsnit our future taxable income that
are based on assumptions that are consistent witfuture plans. As of December 31, 2010, we hadnded a full valuation allowance on our
net deferred tax assets because we expect teahibiie likely than not that our deferred tax asaélitsiot be realized in the foreseeable future.
Should the actual amounts differ from our estimatgs amount of our valuation allowance could béemally impacted.
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Furthermore, significant judgment is required imlerating our tax positions. In the ordinary couéusiness, there are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultinaix settlement is uncertain. As a result, wegeze the effect of this uncertainty on our tax
attributes, such as net operating losses, basedrogstimates of the eventual outcome. These sffgetrecognized when, despite our belief
that our tax return positions are supportable, elebe that it is more likely than not that thosesitions may not be fully sustained upon rev
by tax authorities. We are required to file incotae returns in the United States and various for@igisdictions, which requires us to interpret
the applicable tax laws and regulations in effactuch jurisdictions. Such returns are subjectttitdby the various federal, state and foreign
taxing authorities, who may disagree with respediur tax positions. We believe that our accountiogsideration is adequate for all open
audit years based on our assessment of many faictoltsding past experience and interpretationawfaw. We review and update our
estimates in light of changing facts and circumstan such as the closing of a tax audit, the lapgestatute of limitations or a material change
in estimate. To the extent that the final tax ontemf these matters differs from our expectatisash differences may impact income tax
expense in the period in which such determinasomade. The eventual impact on our income tax esgodapends in part if we still have a
valuation allowance recorded against our defemgdssets in the period that such determinatiomade.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (FASB) issued an accounting standard upahieh requires companies to
allocate revenue in multiple-element arrangemeaset) on an element’s estimated selling price ifleetspecific or other third-party evidence
of value is not available. The guidance is effestdeginning January 1, 2011 with early applicapiermitted. We are currently evaluating the
impact of the standard on our consolidated findrate&tements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued updated guidaglated to fair value measurements and disclosungshwequires a reporting entity
disclose separately the amounts of significantstiens in and out of Level | and Level Il fair valomeasurements and to describe the reasons fc
the transfers. In addition, in the reconciliatidrfair value measurements using Level Il inputseporting entity will be required to disclose
information about purchases, sales, issuanceseadtielnsents on a gross rather than on a net basésupdated guidance will also require fair
value disclosures for each class of assets anilitleand disclosures about the valuation techegjand inputs used to measure fair value for
both recurring and non-recurring Level Il and LeMEfair value measurements. The updated guidémedfective for interim or annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2@88ept for the disclosures regarding the recaticih of Level Il fair value
measurements, which are effective for fiscal ybaginning after December 15, 2010 and for interariquis within those fiscal years. The
adoption of this guidance did not have a matenmdadct on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2010, the FASB issued an accounting staddgodate which provides guidance on the criteribg followed in recognizing
revenue under the milestone method. The milestagtbad of recognition allows a vendor who is invalweith the provision of deliverables to
recognize the full amount of a milestone paymemtrugchievement if, at the inception of the reveawrangement, the milestone is determined
to be substantive as defined in the standard. Tidagce is effective on a prospective basis foestdnes achieved in fiscal years and interim
periods within those fiscal years, beginning omafber June 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitte@. 3 not expect the adoption of the updated
guidance to have a material impact on our cons@ifinancial statements.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our consolidatedestaents of operations data for the periods indétate

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Revenues
Automotive sale: $ 97,07¢ $111,94: $ 14,74
Development service 19,66¢ — —
Total revenue 116,74 111,94 14,74
Cost of revenues
Automotive sale: 79,98: 102,40t 15,88:
Development service 6,031 — —
Total cost of revenue 86,01 102,40t 15,88:
Gross profit (loss 30,73 9,53t (2,147
Operating expense:
Research and development (net of development casafien of $23,249 for the
year ended December 31, 201 92,99¢ 19,28: 53,71«
Selling, general and administrati 84,57: 42,15( 23,64¢
Total operating expens: 177,56¢ 61,43 77,36
Loss from operation (146,839 (51,899 (78,509
Interest incomt 25¢ 15¢ 52¢
Interest expens (992 (2,53)) (3,747
Other expense, n (6,589) (1,445 (969)
Loss before income taxi (154,15%) (55,719 (82,685
Provision for income taxe 172 26 97
Net loss $(154,32)) $(55,740) $(82,787)

Revenue:
Automotive Sales
Automotive sales consisted of the following for fhexiods presented:

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Vehicle, options and related sa $75,45¢ $111,55! $14,74:
Powertrain component and related si 21,61¢ 38¢ —

Total automotive sale $97,07¢ $111,94: $14,74:

Automotive sales during the year ended Decembe2@10 were $97.1 million, a decrease from $11118aniduring the year ended
December 31, 2009. Automotive sales for the yededecember 31, 2010 consisted of $75.5 millionediicle, options and related sales,
$21.6 million of powertrain component and relatatbs, compared to $111.6 million of vehicle, opsi@md related sales and $0.4 million of
powertrain component and related sales for the geded December 31, 2009. Automotive sales foyé¢lae ended December 31, 2008 were
$14.7 million, comprised primarily of sales of thesla Roadster which we began to deliver in thetfoguarter of 2008 as well as related zero
emission vehicle, or ZEV, credits. Almost all oétrevenue recognized during the year ended DeceBdh@008, came from fulfilling
reservations placed in prior periods.
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During the first three quarters of 2009, we congishtio fulfill reservations for the Tesla Roadsted ave had made a significant effort to
increase our production capacity in order to ace&dedeliveries to customers who had been on oiilistdor a significant amount of time. As
a result, a significant portion of the revenue ggiped during the first three quarters of 2009 cémmen fulfilling reservations placed prior to
2009. Beginning with the fourth quarter of 2009esaf the Tesla Roadster began more closely appating the level of orders placed during
the quarter. Consequently, the comparison of rezéouthe year ended December 31, 2010 versusettiegnded December 31, 2009 may not
be meaningful. As such, vehicle, options and rdlatdes for the year ended December 31, 2010 were raflective of current demand as
compared to the prior year. Similarly, ZEV credites which are included in vehicle, options andtesl sales, were higher during the year
ended December 31, 2009 as the fulfillment of aifigant number of reservations allowed us to adlirger number of ZEV credits. The year
over year decrease in vehicle deliveries was plgrt&fset by higher selling prices from an expaddsgfering of vehicle options to our
customers as well as higher average selling pdoéeside of the United States.

In February 2010, we began offering a leasing @ogto qualified customers in the United StategHerTesla Roadster. Through our
wholly owned subsidiary, Tesla Motors Leasing, loeialifying customers are permitted to lease tegld Roadster for 36 months, after which
time they have the option of either returning tleicle to us or purchasing it for a pre-determirexidual value. We account for these leasing
transactions as operating leases and accordinglyewognize leasing revenues on a straight-lins loaer the term of the individual leases.
Lease revenues are recorded in vehicle, optionsedatkd sales within automotive sales revenuefanthe year ended December 31, 2010, we
recognized $0.8 million. During the year ended Daloer 31, 2010, approximately 14% of the vehicldssdiezd during the year were under
operating leases. As of December 31, 2010, we b&tréd revenues of $1.1 million of down paymenitscv will be recognized over the term
of the individual leases.

Powertrain component and related sales were coetppsmarily of battery packs and chargers thatielevered to supply Daimler’s
Smart fortwo program. We have been selected by [Baitm supply it with up to 1,800 battery packs @hdrgers to support a trial of the Smart
fortwo electric drive in at least five Europeariest We began delivering and recognizing revenuéhiese production battery packs and
chargers at the end of 2009.

Prior to 2010, most of our revenues had been gatkthrough sales of our vehicles in the UnitedeStand we had no revenues from
sales outside of the United States prior to thelthuarter of 2009. Our international sales comradnith the launch of the Tesla Roadster in
Europe in July 2009 and since then, we have rezegnievenue from sales of the Tesla Roadster iti@lal countries including Canada,
Japan and Hong Kong. For the years ended Deceriib@020 and 2009, 55% and 19% of our revenue frehicle, options and related sales,
respectively, were derived outside of the Uniteat&t. All of our powertrain component and relat@éswere derived outside of the United
States. As we continue to expand into additional markets, we expect our international automotalesto increase in aggregate dollar
amounts but to remain relatively consistent asragrg¢age of total revenues.

While revenue related to servicing vehicles hanbegignificant to date, we expect such revenuésdease in future periods as we sell
more vehicles and as vehicle warranties begin pirex

Development Services

Beginning in the first quarter of 2010, we staréedering into development services arrangements tvé expectation that our
development services would constitute a viablemaegenerating activity. We began recognizing developnservices revenue during the f
guarter of 2010 with the development and delivdrgnodular battery packs for Freightliner Custom €3is Corporation, or Freightliner, an
affiliate of Daimler. These battery packs were ¢oused in electric delivery vans in a limited numaieFreightliner’s customer trials. Prior to
2010, compensation that we had received from esirdievelopment arrangement with Daimler
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for battery packs and chargers for its Smart foppragram, was recorded as an offset to researckdereglopment expenses. This early
arrangement was motivated primarily by the oppadtyuio engage Daimler and at the same time, joiptygress our own research and
development activities with the associated devemmpncompensation.

During the first quarter of 2010, Daimler also ege@ us to assist with the development and productia battery pack and charger for a
pilot fleet of its A-Class electric vehicles to inéroduced in Europe during 2011. We began progdiavelopment services for this program
during the first quarter of 2010 and had receive@ggregate of $5.5 million in payments; howevenva had not executed a final agreement
related to this program as of March 31, 2010, wierded the $5.5 million of payments that had beseived from Daimler to that point. In
May 2010, we executed a final agreement under whimler would make additional payments to us lfer successful completion of certain
development milestones and the delivery of protetypmples. As of December 31, 2010, we had congptetedeliverables under this
agreement and for the year ended December 31, 2&lfkcognized $14.4 million in development servicevenue.

In July 2010, we and Toyota entered into a Phasgr@ement to initiate development of an electriwgrtrain for the Toyota RAV4.
Under this early phase development agreement, tgpee would be made by us by combining the Toydt®&Rmodel with a Tesla electric
powertrain. During the year ended December 31, 2@&egan producing and delivering prototypesdgpofa and recognized $1.0 million in
development services revenue.

In October 2010, we entered into a Phase 1 corgegwices agreement with Toyota for the developroéatvalidated powertrain system,
including a battery, power electronics module, magearbox and associated software, which willrtegrated into an electric vehicle version
of the Toyota RAV4. Pursuant to this agreement,ctawill pay us up to $60.0 million for the antiaipd development services to be provided
by us over the expected term of our performanaduding a $5.0 million upfront payment that we riged upon the execution of the
agreement. During the year ended December 31, 204 6pmpleted the first milestone and along with dimortization of our upfront payme
we recognized $3.3 million in development servieagenue.

We intend to grow our development services revawee time by establishing additional commerciabagements with Daimler, Toyota
and other automobile manufacturers. Additionallg, expect our development services revenue maytetin future periods based on the
timing of cash receipts as compared to the timing@eting revenue recognition criteria.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Cost of revenues for the year ended December 30 @@s $86.0 million, a decrease from $102.4 nmilfior the year ended
December 31, 2009. The decrease in cost of revemagsiriven primarily by the significant numbenehicles delivered during the first three
quarters of 2009 from fulfilling customer resereas placed prior to 2009.

In February 2010, we began offering a leasing @ogro qualified customers in the United StatedtierTesla Roadster. Through our
wholly owned subsidiary, Tesla Motors Leasing, lmgialifying customers are permitted to lease tbgld Roadster for 36 months, after which
time they have the option of either returning tledicle to us or purchasing it for a pre-determire=sidual value. We account for these leasing
transactions as operating leases and accordinglyeeord cost of automotive sales equal to theedégtion of the leased vehicles on a straight-
line basis over the term of the individual leasgsst of automotive sales related to leased vehigdess$0.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

The decrease in cost of revenues from automoties $ar the year ended December 31, 2010 was [haxigset by the increase in cost
of revenues from development services. Cost ofldpweent services includes
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engineering support and testing, direct parts, net@nd labor costs, manufacturing overhead, oiolg amortized tooling costs, shipping and
logistic costs and other development expensesmbatcur in the performance of our services undsretbpment agreements. During the
quarter ended March 31, 2010, Daimler engaged asdist with the development and production ofteebapack and charger for a pilot fleet
of its A-Class electric vehicles to be introducedurope during 2011. As of March 31, 2010, a dgwelent agreement had yet to be finalized
and as such, the related development services @o$65 million that we incurred during the quargeded March 31, 2010 were expensed in
research and development. In May 2010, we finalthedagreement and began recording the costsadtathis program in cost of revenues.

Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2049 $B0.7 million, an increase from $9.5 million floe year ended December 31,
2009. The increase was driven primarily by the gim®fit contributed by our development serviceeneies which we began to recognize in
2010; an expanded offering of vehicle options toaistomers; the continued launch of the Tesla Readnternationally, where in certain
markets, we have experienced higher selling priaed;cost improvements associated with the modeigdover from the Tesla Roadster to
Tesla Roadster 2 during the second half of 2008s§profit for the year ended December 31, 2010akssfavorably impacted by the fact t
certain of the A-Class development services revenaiewe recognized during the year ended DeceBihe2010 did not have any
corresponding cost of revenues, since these castsecorded in research and development experisesgous finalizing the development
agreement in May 2010.

Cost of revenues of $102.4 million for the yeareh®ecember 31, 2009 increased from $15.9 millritfe year ended December 31,
2008. The significant increase in cost of revenuas due to the increase in Tesla Roadster salesvitttich we began to recognize revenue
during the fourth quarter of 2008; higher warraatpense; and the model changeover from the Tesddd®er to the Tesla Roadster 2 as we
significant part changes implemented to improveddsign and reduce per unit costs, for which wendsd charges to cost of revenues in the
amount of $1.4 million for excess and obsolete mosy during the year ended December 31, 2009.

Gross loss for the year ended December 31, 200&%asmillion due to the lower average selling esidor our initial vehicles, the high
materials and manufacturing costs associated witHiist generation Tesla Roadster and limited ecdies of scale from low vehicle
production volumes. Gross profit for the year enBedember 31, 2009 of $9.5 million benefited froighler per unit revenue and reduced
manufacturing cost from increased volume and corapbre-design.

We expect our development services revenue matuites in future periods based on the timing of aaskipts as compared to the
timing of meeting revenue recognition criteria. §hiay cause our gross profit and gross margin sirbiarly impacted.

Research and Development Expen:

Research and development expenses consist priro&plgrsonnel costs for our teams in engineerirdgragearch, supply chain, quality,
manufacturing engineering and manufacturing tegamizations, prototyping expense, contract andegsibnal services and amortized
equipment expense. Also included in research andldement expenses are development services tasta/é incur, if any, prior to the
finalization of agreements with our developmentviges customers as reaching a final agreementeughue recognition is not assured.
Development services costs incurred after theifintibn of an agreement are recorded in cost agfnags.

Research and development expenses for the yead &wbember 31, 2010 were $93.0 million, an incréasa $19.3 million for the ye:
ended December 31, 2009. Research and developrpmrises during the year ended December 31, 200&latt $23.2 million in Daimler
Smart fortwo development compensation which wasrtked as an offset to research and developmenhegpeThe $73.7 million increase in
research and
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development expenses during the year ended Dece&hb2010 consisted primarily of a $25.0 milliociiease in employee cash and stock-
based compensation expenses primarily associatadsignificantly higher headcount to support ourddbS and powertrain development
activities, the $23.2 million Daimler developmenhtpensation offset recognized during the year eimmber 31, 2009, a $10.5 million
increase in materials and prototyping expensesapifynto support our Model S alpha build as welpasvertrain development activities; a
$10.7 million increase in professional and outsidevices costs related to Model S engineeringgdesnd testing activities; and a $1.6 million
increase in office, information technology and lities-related costs to support the growth of ousibess, including our transition to our Palo
Alto headquarters.

During the first quarter of 2010, Daimler engagsdaiassist with the development and productica lodittery pack and charger for a
fleet of its A-Class electric vehicles to be intnedd in Europe during 2011. As of March 31, 2018eeelopment agreement had yet to be
finalized and as such, the related developmenicesosts of $0.5 million that we incurred durithg quarter ended March 31, 2010 were
expensed in research and development. In May 204 @inalized the agreement and began recordingdbts associated with this program in
cost of revenues.

Research and development expenses of $19.3 mitlidihe year ended December 31, 2009 decreased#f®@i7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008. The $34.4 million decripasesearch and development expenses was a oésit $23.2 million Daimler
development compensation offset recognized duhieg/ear ended December 31, 2009, a $13.3 millicnedse resulting from the allocatior
various manufacturing-related costs to inventony eost of sales once we transitioned into commepeauction, a $3.2 million decrease in
charges related to excess and obsolescence, agnectmse commitments and materials and toolingresg due both to the classification of
production-related costs to cost of sales onceraresitioned into commercial production as well@sédr outside professional services, partially
offset by a $5.5 million increase in employee congation expenses associated with higher headcouttid year ended December 31, 2009.

We began receiving payments under the Smart fodevw@lopment arrangement with Daimler in the yealedrDecember 31, 2008 to
compensate us for the cost of our developmentidesvWe deferred recognition for these paymeateived in advance of the execution of
final agreement because a number of significantraotual terms were not in place prior to that titdpon entering into the final agreement in
May 2009, we began recognizing, as an offset taesgarch and development expenses, the defervetbdment compensation of
$14.5 million on a straight-line basis. This amowas recognized over the expected life of the ages, beginning in May 2009 and
continuing through November 2009. Payments thategeived upon the achievement of development roihest subsequent to contract
execution in May 2009, were recognized, as an dbffseur research and development expenses, upievament and acceptance of the
respective milestones. We did not recognize angldgwment compensation from Daimler during the yaated December 31, 2008.

Since the commercial launch of the Tesla Roadsterinvestment in related research and developimentiecreased significantly. We
have, however, significantly increased our researchdevelopment efforts for the Model S, which tessilted in an increase in our research
and development expenses in both aggregate doflenats and as a percentage of our revenues. Wapatdi that this trend will continue on
an annual basis as we incur additional costs teldpwthe Model S and to operate our planned Modeb8ufacturing facility in Fremont,
California prior to the start of Model S production

Selling, General and Administrative Expens

Selling, general and administrative expenses copsisarily of personnel and facilities costs rethto our Tesla stores, marketing, sales,
executive, finance, human resources, informatiohrielogy and legal organizations, as well as litayasettiements and fees for professional
and contract services.

94



Table of Contents

Selling, general and administrative expenses fertar ended December 31, 2010 were $84.6 miklinrincrease from $42.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009. The $42.4 mitiorease in our selling, general and administeaéixpenses during the year ended
December 31, 2010 consisted primarily of a $15aniincrease in stock-based compensation experiatd to a larger number of
outstanding equity awards, expense related to pedoce-based awards, an increasing common stogitiat applied to new grants made in
2010, and the $2.4 million correction of additiosaick-based compensation expense that shoulddesrerecorded during the year ended
December 31, 2009; a $13.4 million increase in eyg® cash compensation expenses related to higlesrand marketing headcount to
support a larger number of stores in the UnitedeStand Europe and higher general and administragadcount to support the expansion of
the business; a $7.1 million increase in officépimation technology and facilitieglated costs to support the growth of our businestuding
the opening of new stores and service locationsoamndransition to our Palo Alto headquarters; 23%8illion increase in travel and expenses
related to our sales and marketing activities; @a®d.0 million increase in professional servicest€oelated to ongoing trademark and patent
work, recruiting, as well as general corporate tiguaent activities.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ofZs#flllion for the year ended December 31, 2009dased from $23.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2008. The $18.6 millioregse in our selling, general and administratiygeeeges during the year enc
December 31, 2009 consisted primarily of an $8 Mianiincrease in employee compensation expendatetketo higher sales and marketing
headcount to support our opening of additionalestan the United States and Europe, as well azhigéneral and administrative headcount to
support the expansion of the business and ourteffobecome a public company; a $4.7 million iaseein office, information technology and
facilities costs to support the growth of our besis, including the opening of new stores; a $2llomiincrease in legal services and legal
settlements and accounting and other consultingcgsrto support our growth; and a $1.3 millionrgase in costs principally related to
increased marketing activities.

We expect selling, general and administrative egpsrto increase both in aggregate dollar amountssia percentage of revenue in
future periods as we continue to grow and expamaperations, increase our sales and marketingites to handle our expanding market
presence and prepare for the planned Model S coamh&zunch in mid-2012, and as we support theirequents of being a public company.
We also expect an increase in our selling, gersrdladministrative expenses as a result of ounpldincrease in the number of Tesla stores.
As of December 31, 2010, we had opened Tesla sitotee United States, Europe and Japan. We plapea additional stores during 2011.

Interest Expenst

Interest expense for the year ended December 3D, ®@s $1.0 million, a decrease from $2.5 millionthe year ended December 31,
2009. Interest expense during the year ended Dezre®ih 2009 was primarily related to our conveetibbtes which were converted into sh
of our Series E convertible preferred stock in N899, while interest expense during the year efxsmember 31, 2010 was primarily due to
our loans under the DOE Loan Facility which we begecessing in 2010. During the year ended Decethe2010, we capitalized $0.8
million of interest expense to assets under coostn.

Interest expense of $2.5 million for the year enBedember 31, 2009 decreased from $3.7 millioritferyear ended December 31, 2(
The decrease in interest expense was due to thersion of our convertible notes into shares of ®eries E convertible preferred stock in
May 2009.

We expect interest expense to increase as we certiindraw down on the DOE Loan Facility to fund blodel S and powertrain
activities.
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Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net consists primarily of the changlee fair value of our warrant liabilities armdsaction gains and losses on our
foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilitlés expect our transaction gains and losses ailf depending upon movements in the
underlying exchange rates. Income or charges megudtom the change in the fair value of our conibée preferred stock warrant liability,
excluding the DOE warrant liability, was eliminatafer July 2, 2010, as these warrants were netiseg at the completion of our IPO. The
DOE convertible preferred stock warrant which wsed in January 2010, became a common stock wamnahily 2 and is carried at its
estimated fair value with changes in its fair vatoatinuing to be reflected in other expense, meti] its expiration or vesting.

Other expense, net, for the year ended Decemb@03D, was $6.6 million, an increase in expense ewatpto other expense, net, of §
million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Tioedase in expense for the year ended Decemb@03@,was primarily due to the fair
value changes in our warrant liabilities as welttasliability related to common stock warrantséstain of our stockholders which we issue
May 2010, both of which increased significantlycomjunction with the increase in our common stoakiation.

Other expense, net, for the year ended Decemb@0BB, increased from $1.0 million for the year eh@ecember 31, 2008. The incre
was primarily a result of a $1.8 million increasdareign currency transaction losses associatédavinigher level of foreign currency
denominated purchases as well as the strengthehfiogeign currencies against the U.S. dollar, ipHyt offset by a $1.6 million decrease in-
fair value change of our outstanding convertiblefgmred stock warrants during the year ended Deeefib, 2009.

Provision for Income Taxe:!

Our provision for income taxes for the year endedé@nber 31, 2010 was $0.2 million, an increase tt@rprovision for income taxes
$26,000 during the year ended December 31, 2009irknease was due primarily to the launch of teeld Roadster in Europe in July 2009
and the ensuing increase in taxable income inrgarnational jurisdictions in subsequent periodddifionally, during the year ended
December 31, 2009, we recognized research andagsweht benefits from our foreign operations whiebréased our provision for income
taxes.

Our provision for income taxes for the year endeddénber 31, 2009 decreased from the provisiomfmme taxes of $0.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2008. The decreaséuggzimarily to the research and development litsrtéht we recognized in 2009 from
our foreign operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2010, we had $566.4 million gipal sources of liquidity available from our casid cash equivalents, cash held in
our dedicated DOE account and the remaining amawatable under the DOE Loan Facility. This in@gdcash and cash equivalents in the
amount of $99.6 million which included investmeimtsnoney market funds, cash of $73.6 million defeskin a dedicated DOE account in
accordance with the requirements of our DOE Loailifg and $393.2 million available under the DQ&an Facility, which is primarily
intended to cover spending related to the developwithe Model S and our powertrain activities.

Our primary source of cash historically has beertg@eds from the sales of convertible preferredkséma convertible notes, and through
December 31, 2009, we had raised an aggregatel8tFanillion from convertible preferred stock araheertible note financings. During the
year ended December 31, 2010, we entered into465.8 million DOE Loan Facility from which we halegun to make draw downs, as w
as completing our IPO and private placements withofa and Panasonic. Other sources of cash havénalsided reservation payments from
customers for the Tesla Roadster and more reciotty sales of the Tesla Roadster,
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cash from the provision of electric powertrain depenent services, sales of powertrain componemngsy downs from the DOE Loan Facility
and refundable reservation payments for our Model S

We expect that our current sources of liquiditgluing cash, cash equivalents, cash held in odicdted DOE account and the
remaining amounts available under the DOE LoanliBadiogether with our anticipated cash from opirg activities, will be sufficient to fun
our operations through the anticipated initial oostr deliveries of the Model S. This capital wilhfl our ongoing operations, continue
research, development and design efforts, estaddiles and service centers, improve infrastructucl as expanded battery assembly facil
and to make the investments in tooling and manufang capital required to introduce the Model SeHtceleration of the development of
future vehicles, investments in new technologiesréased insourcing of manufacturing capabiliiiegestments to expand our powertrain
activities or further expand our sales and sermivork, may require us to raise additional furdsugh the issuance of equity, equity-related
or debt securities or through obtaining credit. W&y also choose to opportunistically raise add#tidands if market conditions are favorable.
We cannot be certain that additional funds wilklvailable to us on favorable terms when requiredt all.

DOE Loan Facility

On January 20, 2010, we entered into our DOE Laauiliy for $465.0 million to support the expansiofour manufacturing operations.
Up to an aggregate principal amount of $101.2 onillvill be made available under the first term Idatility to finance the build out of a
facility to design and manufacture lithium-ion teat packs, electric motors and electric componeamtthe Powertrain facility. Up to an
aggregate principal amount of $363.9 million wi# imade available under the second term loan fatdlifinance up to 91.5% of the costs
eligible for funding for the development of, andataild out the manufacturing facility for, our Mdd® sedan, or the Model S facility. Our
obligations for the development of, and the build-of our manufacturing facility for, the ModelisSbudgeted to be an aggregate of $33 mi
or approximately 8.5% of the ongoing budgeted qass any cost overruns for the projects.

Our ability to draw down funds under the DOE Loatility is conditioned upon several draw conditionge are currently in compliance
with these draw conditions. For the Powertrainlifiggithe draw conditions include our achievemehprogress milestones relating to the
successful development of commercial arrangemeititstiird parties for the supply of powertrain cooments. For the Model S facility, the
remaining draw conditions include our achievemdigrogress milestones relating to the design ameldpment of the Model S and the
planned Model S manufacturing facility. Certain adees will be subject to additional conditions tavd-down related to the site on which the
applicable project is located. We are currentlygpessing towards our milestones. Additionally, E@E Loan Facility provides for the ability
to update milestones should a reasonable need boaas may be requested under the facilities datiuary 22, 2013, and we have committed
to complete the projects being financed prior tchsdate.

Through December 31, 2010, we had received loaderthe DOE Loan Facility for an aggregate of $#hilion with interest rates
ranging from 1.7% to 3.4%. In February 2011, wesiead additional loans under the DOE Loan Facflity$15.6 million at interest rates
ranging from 2.6% to 3.0%. Interest on advance®utite DOE Loan Facility is payable quarterly irears. Advances under the Powertrain
Facility are repayable in 28 equal quarterly instahts commencing on December 15, 2012 (or for mcksmade after such date, in 26 equal
guarterly installments commencing on June 15, 20ABputstanding amounts under the Powertrain lkgavill be due and payable on the
maturity date of September 15, 2019. Advances utideModel S Facility are repayable in 40 equaltguly installments commencing on
December 15, 2012 (or for advances made after gate) in 38 equal quarterly installments commenocimgune 15, 2013). All outstanding
amounts under the Model S Facility will be due aaglable on the maturity date of September 15, 2882ances under the loan facilities may
be voluntarily prepaid at any time. All obligationsder the DOE Loan Facility are secured by sulistfnall of our property.
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The DOE Loan Facility documents contain customawyeaants that include, among others, a requirethabthe projects be conducted
in accordance with the business plan for such ptog@mpliance with all requirements of the ATVMoBram, and limitations on our and our
subsidiaries’ ability to incur indebtedness, inieins, make investments or loans, enter into msrgeacquisitions, dispose of assets, pay
dividends or make distributions on capital stocky pxdebtedness, pay management, advisory or sifeéa to affiliates, enter into certain
affiliate transactions, enter into new lines ofibass, and enter into certain restrictive agreemémtach case subject to customary exceptions
The DOE Loan Facility documents also contain custgnfinancial covenants. We are currently in coapdtie with these covenants.

The DOE Loan Facility documents also contain custgnevents of default, subject in some cases tmary cure periods for certain
defaults. In addition, events of default includeiure of Elon Musk, our Chief Executive Officé?roduct Architect and Chairman, and certain
of his affiliates, at any time prior to one yeateafve complete the project relating to the Modé&la8ility, to own at least 65% of capital stock
held by Mr. Musk and such affiliates as of the dz#ftthe DOE Loan Facility.

In addition to our obligation to fund a portiontbe project costs as described above, we haveadgreet aside 50% of the net proceeds
from our IPO and the concurrent Toyota private @faent and any subsequent offerings of stock ocwubéfore the completion of the
projects, up to an aggregate of $100 million, tedfa separate, dedicated account under our DOE [Eaaitity. This dedicated account can be
used by us to fund any cost overruns for our paairand Model S manufacturing facility projectslamill also be used as a mechanism to
defer advances under the DOE Loan Facility. Thismwat affect our ability to draw down the full ammat of the DOE loans, but will require us
to use the dedicated account to fund certain projgsts up front, which costs may then be reimhiitgeloans under the DOE Loan Facility
once the dedicated account is depleted, or aoptre final advance for the applicable project. Wik be required to deposit a portion of these
reimbursements into the dedicated account, in asuabtrequal to up to 30% of the remaining projeatsdor the applicable project and these
amounts may similarly be used by us to fund prajests and cost overruns and will similarly beiblgfor reimbursement by the draw-down
of additional loans under our DOE Loan Facility enrsed in full, or as part of the final advancetfar applicable project. Upon the complet
of our IPO and concurrent private placement on 2uB010, we transferred $100.0 million of the pretceeds from the IPO and the concurrent
private placement to fund the dedicated accountinguthird and fourth quarters of 2010, we transfdr$26.4 million from the dedicated
account to our operating cash accounts in accoedaitb the provisions of the DOE Loan Facility. 8sDecember 31, 2010, $73.6 million
remained in the dedicated account. As we expeitatsfer the remainder of this balance within oearywe have recorded such cash as cL
restricted cash. In February 2011, we transferreddalitional $15.6 million from the dedicated aatbu

For additional information related to our DOE Ldgaxility, please see Note 8 of our consolidatedrfgial statements included elsewr
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Initial Public Offering and Toyota Concurrent Privee Placement

On June 28, 2010, our registration statement omF®t relating to our IPO was declared effective by $f&C. The IPO closed on July
2010, at which time we sold 11,880,600 shares btommon stock and received cash proceeds of $18@i8n from this transaction, net of
underwriting discounts and commissions. Additionalie incurred offering costs of $4.4 million reddtto the IPO.

Concurrent with the closing of our IPO, we sold42,9.76 shares of our common stock to Toyota inveaf# placement transaction for
aggregate proceeds of $50.0 million.

Panasonic Private Placement

In November 2010, we entered into a common stockh@mse agreement with an entity affiliated with &amic Corporation (Panasonic)
pursuant to which we issued and sold an aggreddt@ 8,573 shares of our common stock for aggeegaiceeds of $30.0 million.
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Leasing Activities

In February 2010, we began offering a leasing @ogro qualified customers in the United StatedtierTesla Roadster. Through our
wholly owned subsidiary Tesla Motors Leasing, logialifying customers are permitted to lease th@aRoadster for 36 months, after which
time they have the option of either returning teicle to us or purchasing it for a pre-determireidual value.

When compared to our sales of vehicles, our leasitigities will spread the cash inflows that weuldbotherwise receive upon the sale
of a vehicle, over the lease term and final digpasiof the leased vehicle. As such, our cash aoikiwg capital requirements will be directly
impacted and if leasing volume increases signitigathe impact may be material. However, afteiingkinto consideration our current and
planned sources of operating cash, our ability émitor and prospectively adjust our leasing activéts well as our intent to collect
nonrefundable deposits for leased vehicles thatramufactured to specification, we do not beliehat bur planned leasing operations will
materially adversely impact our ability to meet commitments and obligations as they become duevedwill also be exposed to credit risk
related to the timely collection of lease paymérdm our customers, we intend to utilize our cregiproval and ongoing review processes in
order to minimize any credit losses that could o@nd which could adversely affect our financiahdition and results of operations. We
intend to require deposits from customers elecitgase option for vehicles built to a customepacifications on the same timeframe and
under the same circumstances as from customerbasing our vehicles outright. During the year endedember 31, 2010, approximately
14% of the vehicles delivered during the periodevemder operating leases. As of December 31, 204 ®ad deferred revenues of $1.1 mil
of down payments which will be recognized overtdren of the individual leases. Through December2B10, our leasing activity has not had
a significant adverse impact on our liquidity.

Reservation Payments

A source of our cash flows from operations has lieeyugh our receipt of reservation payments framaustomers. Reservation
payments consist of reservation payments that glotential customers to hold a reservation forftitere purchase of a Tesla Roadster or
Model S. For our 2010 model year Tesla Roadstersufaatured to specification, our current purchageament requires the payment of an
initial nonrefundable deposit which varies basedhencountry of purchase. For the Model S, we megain initial reservation payment of at
least $5,000. For vehicles purchased directly foamshowrooms, no deposit is required. Prior toséaeond quarter of 2010, our reservation
policy was to accept reservation payments fronci@tomers who wished to purchase a Tesla Roadwdereguire full payment of the purchase
price of the vehicle at the time the customer detktheir vehicle specifications. During the secqndrter of 2010, we changed our policy to
require nonrefundable deposits for Tesla Roadstarsufactured to specification at the time a custaenéers into a purchase agreement.
However, we also occasionally accept reservatigmeats for the Tesla Roadster if a customer igésted in purchasing a vehicle but not yet
prepared to select the vehicle specifications.destomers who have placed a reservation paymehntusitthe reservation payment becomes a
nonrefundable deposit once the customer has sdltdetesehicle specifications and enters into alpage agreement. The full payment of the
purchase price of the vehicle is required only ugelivery of the vehicle to the customer. We dolmglteve that these changes will materially
impact our liquidity or capital resources. Resdorapayments for a vehicle are recorded as a culigility when received. No later than ug
the delivery of a vehicle, the reservation paymentkected on a customer’s account are appliedhag#ie total purchase price of the vehicle.
Reservation payments are expected to fluctuateeasumber of reservation holders on the Tesla Readsservation list decreases, while the
number of reservation holders on the Model S reginw list increases.
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Summary of Cash Flows

2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)

Net cash used in operating activit $(127,81) $(80,82%) $(52,417)

Net cash used in investing activiti (180,29) (14,244 (11,590

Net cash provided by financing activiti 338,04! 155,41¢ 56,06¢

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

We continue to experience negative cash flows foperations as we expand our business and builthfsastructure both in the United
States and internationally. Since inception, weehiacurred significant losses and have used apmately $330.6 million of cash in operatic
through December 31, 2010. Our cash flows from atjpey activities are significantly affected by aash investments to support the growth of
our business in areas such as research and deveibpmd selling, general and administrative. Owrating cash flows are also affected by
working capital needs to support growth and fluttues in inventory, personnel related expendituagspunts payable and other current assets
and liabilities.

Net cash used in operating activities was $127IBomiduring the year ended December 31, 2010. [&lgest component of our cash
used during this period related to our net los$1d§4.3 million, which included non-cash charge$2i.2 million related to stock-based
compensation expense, $10.6 million related toatgation and amortization and $5.0 million relatedhe fair value change in our warrant
liabilities. Significant operating cash outflows negrimarily related to $177.6 million of operatiagpenses, $86.0 million of cost of revenues,
a $20.1 million increase in inventory, an $8.4 ioillincrease in operating lease vehicles, and @ ®8lion increase in prepaid expenses and
other current assets, partially offset by a $13ilBan increase in accrued liabilities and a $3.8Hion increase in other long-term liabilities.
Inventory increased to meet our production requinets for the Tesla Roadster and powertrain compgaaes while the increase in prepaid
expenses and other current assets and accruddiéabias due to both the growth of our businassyell as our increased manufacturing and
Model S development activities. Operating leasdales increased with the introduction of our legsimogram in 2010. Other long-term
liabilities increased as a result of higher warydiability from sales of the Tesla Roadster.

Significant operating cash inflows for the year eth@ecember 31, 2010 were derived primarily frotoautive sales of $97.1 million,
$19.7 million of development services revenue, 8 $dillion increase in deferred revenues and a $4llfon increase in reservation payments,
partially offset by a $3.2 million increase in aoats receivable. In October 2010, we entered irRbase 1 contract services agreement with
Toyota for the development of a validated powentsistem, including a battery, power electronicslud®, motor, gearbox and associated
software, which will be integrated into an electrahicle version of the Toyota RAV4. Upon executadrihe agreement, we received a $5.0
million upfront payment for which revenue is bemggognized over the expected term of our performmabeferred revenues also increased
from our vehicle leasing activities as we are reizigg the lease dowpayments over the term of the operating leasesifidnease in accour
receivable was related primarily to powertrain comgnt sales in relation to Daimler’s Smart fortwogram as well as $2.3 million receivable
from Toyota for the achievement of the first mitgst under the Phase 1 contract services agreebhaning the year ended December 31,
2010, we received $10.4 million of net new reséormpayments for the Model S while reservation pegta for the Tesla Roadster decreased
by $5.7 million.

Net cash used in operating activities was $80.8aniburing the year ended December 31, 2009. &tgekt component of our cash used
during this year was the $55.7 million net lossjaoltincluded non-cash charges of $6.9 million edato depreciation and amortization,
$2.7 million related to interest on convertibleewand $1.4 million related to inventory write-deyas well as a non-cash gain of $1.5 million
from the extinguishment of convertible notes andramts. Significant operating cash outflows weriengrily related to $102.4 million of cost
of revenues, $61.4 million of operating expense®/.8 million increase in inventory and
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a $2.0 million increase in our prepaid expensesahner current assets, partially offset by a $3ilfian increase in accrued liabilities and a
$0.9 million increase in accounts payable. Invgnincreased to meet our production requirement$evthe increase in prepaid expenses and
other current assets reflect a higher level of ahoperating costs such as insurance, licensetaard from the growth of the business. The
increases in accrued liabilities and accounts payabre also primarily due to the growth in ouribess.

Significant operating cash inflows for the year eth@ecember 31, 2009 were derived primarily fromghles of the Tesla Roadster as
well as development compensation related to then2aidevelopment agreement. Cash inflows relateditomotive sales activity were
$88.5 million comprised of $111.9 million of autotive sales, partially offset by a $22.0 million degse in refundable reservation payments
and a $1.5 million decrease in deferred revenues.dEcrease in the refundable reservation paymegsiue to the launch of the Tesla
Roadster during the year ended December 31, 209&eAcontinued to deliver the Tesla Roadster tccastomers in 2009, we applied the
related reservation payments to the respectivemests’ purchase cost. Cash inflows from the Dairdé&relopment agreement were
$13.2 million comprised primarily of $23.2 milliasf development compensation partially offset byl@.® million decrease in deferred
development compensation. The decrease in defdensglopment compensation was the result of the raton of deferred development
compensation that we received during the year ebadsgémber 31, 2008.

Net cash used in operating activities was $52.4ianiduring the year ended December 31, 2008. &tgekt component of our cash used
during this period, was the $82.8 million net loskjch included non-cash charges of $4.3 millidated to inventory write-downs,
$4.2 million related to depreciation and amortiaati$3.7 million related to interest on convertibtges and $2.8 million related to the fair
value change in our convertible preferred stockrardrliability, as well as a non-cash gain of $hiflion from the extinguishment of
convertible notes and warrants. Significant opagatiash outflows were driven primarily by $77.4lioil of operating expenses, $15.9 million
of cost of sales, and an $18.8 million increasiawentory, partially offset by an $8.8 million irgase in accounts payable and a $2.6 million
increase in accrued liabilities. We had increasedritory in anticipation of the commercial introtlon of the Tesla Roadster. Accrued
liabilities and accounts payable increased primatile to the significant increase in activitiebting the Tesla Roadster to production.

We benefited from operating cash inflows relate@ésla Roadster reservation activity and our dgraknt efforts. Cash inflows derived
from Tesla Roadster sales and reservation actvée $29.4 million comprised primarily of $14.7 lioih of automotive sales, a $10.7 million
increase in refundable reservation payments artdlarfiillion increase in deferred revenues. Refuteledservation payments increased
reflecting new reservation activity received durthg year partially offset by the reservation pagtaave applied to our customers’ purchase
cost as we began delivering Tesla Roadsters dthimgear ended December 31, 2008. Deferred revénaesmsed primarily from customer
payments we collected for certain Tesla Roadskertsvte had delivered but as to which we had urledfiobligations related to powertrain
upgrades. We received cash from Daimler of $8.Ganifor our development efforts during the yeaded December 31, 2008 although the
amounts were deferred entirely until we executédad agreement in May 2009, which is reflectedha related increase in deferred
development compensation of $10.2 million partialfiset by an increase in accounts receivable d ffillion.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

We continue to experience negative cash flows firorasting activities as we expand our businesddtouir infrastructure both in the
United States and internationally and develop oad# S manufacturing capabilities. Cash flows fiiarresting activities primarily relate to
capital expenditures to support our growth in opens, including investments in Model S manufactgrias well as restricted cash that we
must maintain in relation to our DOE Loan Faciliiggility lease agreements, equipment financingl, @rtain vendor credit policies.

Net cash used in investing activities was $180I8aniduring the year ended December 31, 2010 milgneelated to capital purchases of
$105.4 million and a net increase in restrictedhazfst74.9 million. The increase
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in capital purchases was driven primarily by $65iRion of payments made in relation to our puraha$the manufacturing facility located in
Fremont, California from NUMMI, and certain manuf@ing assets located thereon to be used for @mgd Model S manufacturing, as well
as $40.2 million primarily related to other Modet&pital expenditures, our transition to and boild of our powertrain manufacturing facility
and corporate headquarters in Palo Alto, Califqraral purchases of manufacturing equipment. Owhase transactions with NUMMI were
completed in October 2010. The increase in restticash was primarily related to $100.0 milliomef proceeds from our IPO and concurrent
Toyota private placement that we transferred tediahted account as required by our DOE Loan Fggiartially offset by $26.4 million that
was transferred out of the dedicated account duhaghird and fourth quarters of 2010 in accor@anith the provisions of the DOE Loan
Facility.

Net cash used in investing activities was $14.%ianilduring the year ended December 31, 2009 pilynagiated to capital purchases of
$11.9 million and an increase in restricted cash2f million. The increase in restricted cash paarily related to standard credit policies
required by our online payment vendor and secudietyosits related to lease agreements and equigmanting.

Net cash used in investing activities was $11.6ianilduring the year ended December 31, 2008 pilynaglated to capital purchases of
$10.6 million and an increase in restricted casflo® million.

Net cash used in investing activities is expectetitrease substantially in 2011 as we build odttaol our Model S manufacturing
facility in Fremont, California, and our powertraimanufacturing facility in Palo Alto, California. kturrently anticipate making aggregate
capital expenditures of $190 million to $215 mifliduring 2011.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

We have financed our operations primarily with geds from issuances of convertible preferred samckconvertible notes, which
provided us with aggregate net proceeds of $29@I®mon a cumulative basis through December IMXP from loans under the DOE Loan
Facility beginning in 2010, and more recently, frim net proceeds from our IPO and private placésnen

Cash provided by financing activities was $338.0iom during the year ended December 31, 2010 caagdrprimarily of $188.8 million
in proceeds from our IPO, $71.8 million we receifien our loans under the DOE Loan Facility, $5@illion in proceeds from the Toyota
private placement, $30.0 million in proceeds frdma Panasonic private placement, partially offses®y million of issuance costs we incurred
in relation to our DOE Loan Facility and our IPO.

Cash provided by financing activities was $155.4iom during the year ended December 31, 2009 caegrprimarily of $82.4 million
in net proceeds from the issuance of Series E ctbhepreferred stock, $49.4 million in net prodsdrom the issuance of Series E convertible
preferred stock and $25.5 million in proceeds nesetifrom the issuance of convertible notes and awdst

Cash provided by financing activities was $56.lioml during the year ended December 31, 2008 caragmprimarily of $54.8 million
from the issuance of convertible promissory notes.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ11,0 certain significant cash obligations that affiect our future liquidity (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2016 and

Total 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 thereafter

Operating lease obligatiol $5343. $6,79° $6,62t $6561 $6,431 $589: $21,12¢
Capital lease obligatior 822 31¢ 28¢€ 21¢ — — —

Long-term debi 71,82¢ 2,19¢ 8,791 8,791 8,791 43,25}

Purchase obligations ( 15,40( 15,40( — — — — —
$141,48. $22,51: $9,10¢ $15,571 $15,22: $14,68: $64,38¢

(1) Obligations include significant agreements or pasghorders to purchase goods or services thahfmeeable, legally binding and wh
the significant terms are specified. Where a mimimpurchase obligation is stipulated, as in the césair supply agreement with Lotus
Cars Limited (Lotus), the amounts included in thigle reflect the minimum purchase amounts. Ourmminia purchase obligations rela
to Lotus are based on the December 31, 2010 exehang for the British pound and reflect our mastent supply terms. Purchase
obligations that are cancelable without significaahalty, are not included in the tat

In October 2010, we completed the purchase of eembBnt, California manufacturing facility from NUMMNUMMI has previously
identified environmental conditions at the Fremsité which affect soil and groundwater, and is entlly undertaking efforts to address these
conditions. Although we have been advised by NUMMit it has documented and managed the environiissties, we cannot determine
with certainty the potential costs to remediate prerexisting contamination. Based on manageméets estimate, we estimated the fair value
of the environmental liabilities that we assumetédb5.3 million, which is not reflected in the labbove as the timing of any potential
payments cannot be reasonably determined at thes hs NUMMI continues with its decommissioningieities and as we continue with our
planned construction and operating activitiess itgasonably possible that our estimate of enviegriad liabilities may change materially.

We have reached an agreement with NUMMI under whigkr a ten year period, we will pay the first $L&illion of any costs of any
governmentally-required remediation activities dontamination that existed prior to the completdnhe facility and land purchase for any
known or unknown environmental conditions, and NUMMs agreed to pay the next $15.0 million for stezhediation activities. Our
agreement provides, in part, that NUMMI will pay tapthe first $15.0 million on our behalf if suckpenses are incurred in the first four years
of our agreement, subject to our reimbursementioi £osts on the fourth anniversary date of thsitp

On the ten-year anniversary of the closing or wkien&30.0 million has been spent on the remediataivities, whichever comes first,
NUMMI’s liability to us with respect to remediation atdties ceases, and we are responsible for any lheddaronmental conditions at the
Fremont site. At that point in time, we have agreethdemnify, defend, and hold harmless NUMMI frathliability and we have released
NUMMI for any known or unknown claims except for IMMI’s obligations for representations and warrantieden the agreement.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, we held resemvaiyments of $30.8 million and $26.0 million fr@otential customers,
respectively, which are not reflected in the tedideve. As of December 31, 2010, we held reservatégments for undelivered Tesla Roads
in an aggregate amount of $2.5 million and resemgiayments for Model S sedans in an aggregateianud $28.3 million. As of
December 31, 2009, we held reservation paymentsrfdelivered Tesla Roadsters in an aggregate anad$82 million and reservation
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payments for Model S sedans in an aggregate anod$i7.9 million. In order to convert the resereatpayments into revenue, we will need
to sell vehicles to these customers. All reservagiayments for the Model S are fully refundablalusich time that a customer enters into a
purchase agreement.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the periods presented, we did not haveiogiahips with unconsolidated entities or finangattnerships, such as entities often
referred to as structured finance or special pumodities, which would have been establishedifempurpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or Behjppurposes.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Foreign Currency Risk

A portion of our revenues, costs and expensehiyears ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 20@8deaominated in foreign
currencies. This is primarily due to the contraithvizotus Cars Limited, or Lotus, in the United lgohom to manufacture the Tesla Roadster
vehicles and gliders and other parts sourced ilf@gurin addition, our international sales and migmgeoperations incur expenses denominated
in foreign currencies, principally in the Britisloynd, the euro and the Japanese yen. This cossepgis partially offset by our recent sales
growth in these regions since payments for vehistdd in these regions are denominated in the loaa@kncy. This provides a partial natural
hedge to our cost exposure in Europe and Asia diépgmon our sales levels in these regions. Ouebattell purchases from Asian suppliers
are also subject to currency risk. Although ouspre contracts are United States dollar baseleifinited States dollar depreciates
significantly against the local currency, it cogllise our Asian suppliers to significantly raisartprices, which could harm our financial
results. To date, the foreign currency effect onaash and cash equivalents has not been sigrtifican

Interest Rate Risk

We had cash and cash equivalents totaling $99l®mas of December 31, 2010. A portion of thes@amnts were invested in money
market funds. Cash and cash equivalents are helddiking capital purposes. We do not enter integtments for trading or speculative
purposes. We believe that we do not have any naatposure to changes in the fair value as atrefuhanges in interest rates due to the
short term nature of our cash equivalents. Declinésterest rates, however, would reduce futuxegtiment income.

As of December 31, 2010, we have received loansuhé DOE Loan Facility for an aggregate of $#tilion with interest rates
ranging from 1.7% to 3.4%. As we continue to borravder our DOE Loan Facility, interest rates wél deetermined by the Secretary of the
Treasury as of the date of each loan, based ofrtesury yield curve and the scheduled principstiithments for such loan. We also have
capital lease obligations of $0.8 million as of Bexber 31, 2010 which are fixed rate instrumentsaardot subject to fluctuations in interest
rates.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Té4tdors, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bedasheets and the related consolidated statemfeoge@tions, of convertible
preferred stock and stockholders’ equity (defiaityl of cash flows present fairly, in all materiedpects, the financial position of Tesla Motors,
Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 20100@akmber 31, 2009, and the results of their operatand their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20&6riformity with accounting principles generaltycapted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibifitied Company’s management. Our responsibilitp isxXpress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted dits aif these statements in accordance with thedatas of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdsedards require that we plan and perform the dadibtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢eshbasis, evidence supporting the amc
and disclosures in the financial statements, asgp®e accounting principles used and signifiestimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@naWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbasis for our opinion.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
March 2, 2011
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Tesla Motors, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31 December 31

2010 2009
Assets
Current assel
Cash and cash equivale $ 99,55¢ $ 69,627
Restricted cas 73,591 —
Accounts receivabl 6,71( 3,48¢
Inventory 45,18: 23,22:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 10,83¢ 4,22
Total current asse 235,88t 100,55¢
Operating lease vehicles, 7,96 —
Property, plant and equipment, | 114,63¢ 23,53t
Restricted cas 4,867 3,58(
Other asset 22,73( 2,75(
Total asset $ 386,08 $ 130,42:
Liabilities, Convertible Preferred Stock and Stocklolders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 28,95! $ 15,08¢
Accrued liabilities 20,94¢ 14,53:
Deferred development compensat — 15€
Deferred revenu 4,63¢ 1,371
Capital lease obligations, current port 27¢ 29C
Reservation paymen 30,75¢ 26,04¢
Total current liabilities 85,56¢ 57,48¢
Common stock warrant liabilit 6,08¢ —
Convertible preferred stock warrant liabil — 1,73¢
Capital lease obligations, less current por 49€ 80C
Deferred revenue, less current port 2,78% 1,24(
Long-term debt 71,82¢ —
Other lon¢-term liabilities 12,27¢ 3,45¢
Total liabilities 179,03: 64,72:
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Convertible preferred stock; $0.001 par value; 283,982 shares authoriz
Series A convertible preferred stock; 0 and 7,20@ §hares issued and outstanding as of Decemb203@,and 2009, respectively
(Liquidation value: $3,55€ — 3,54¢
Series B convertible preferred stock; 0 and 17 48® shares issued and outstanding as of Decemp203Q and 2009, respective
(Liquidation value: $12,92( — 12,89¢
Series C convertible preferred stock; 0 and 35282shares issued and outstanding as of Decemp203Q and 2009, respective
(Liquidation value: $40,00( — 39,78¢
Series D convertible preferred stock; 0 and 1844®shares issued and outstanding as of Decemb203@ and 2009, respectivi
(Liquidation value: $45,00( — 44,94
Series E convertible preferred stock; 0 and 1027/778shares issued and outstanding as of Decertb2030 and 2009,
respectively (Liquidation value: $258,17 — 135,66¢
Series F convertible preferred stock; 0 and 27 Z@5shares issued and outstanding as of Decemp203Q and 2009, respective
(Liquidation value: $82,50( — 82,37¢
Total convertible preferred sto — 319,22!
Stockholder’ equity (deficit)
Common stock; $0.001 par value; 2,000,000,000 &6¢656,667 shares authorized as of December 30, 264 2009, respectively;

94,908,370 and 7,284,200 shares issued and ouitsgeasl of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respect 95 7
Additional paic-in capital 621,93! 7,12¢
Accumulated defici (414,98:) (260,65¢)

Total stockholder' equity (deficit) 207,04¢ (253,52:)
Total liabilities, convertible preferred stock astdckholder equity (deficit) $ 386,08: $ 130,42

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Revenues

Automotive sale:

Development service
Total revenue

Cost of revenues

Automotive sale:

Development service
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit (loss

Operating expense:

Research and development (net of development cosafien of $23,249 for th

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

year ended December 31, 2009) (Not:
Selling, general and administrati

Total operating expens:

Loss from operation
Interest incom

Interest expens

Other expense, n

Loss before income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net loss

Net loss per share of common stock, basic andedi

Weighted average shares used in computing nepkrsshare of common stoc

basic and dilute

Year Ended December 31,

2010

$ 97,07¢
19,66¢
116,74«

79,98:

6,031
86,01
30,73

92,99¢
84,57
177,56¢
(146,83
25¢

(992)

(6,587
(154,15
173

$ (154,329

$  (3.09

50,718,30

2009

$ 111,94

111,94¢

102,40¢

102,40¢
9,53t

19,28:
42,15(
61,43

(51,89
15¢
(2,53])
(1,445)
(55,719

26

$ (55,74(

$ (799

7,021,96

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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2008

$ 14,74.

14,74:

15,88:
15,88:
(1,14

53,71
23,64¢
77,36

(78,50.)
52¢
(3,747)
(963)
(82,68%)

97

$ (82,78)

$  (12.46

6,646,38
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Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Convertible Preferred 8tk and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Convertible Preferred

Total
Stockholders’

Stock Common Stock Additional Accumulated
Paid-In Equity
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit (Deficit)

Balance as of December 31, 20(

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of s
options, net of repurchas

Issuance of common stock to consult

Stoclk-based compensatic

Net loss

78,355,19 $101,17¢

632522 $ 6 $ 4,280 $(122,13) $ (117,84

Balance as of December 31, 20(

Issuance of Series E convertible preferred stor
May 2009 (inclusive of conversion of note
payable) at $2.51 per share, net of issuance
of $556

Issuance of Series F convertible preferred stock in
August 2009 at $2.97 per share, net of issuance

cost of $12:

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stc
options, net of repurchas

Stoclk-based compensatic

Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 20(

Issuance of common stock in July 2010 ini
public offering at $17.00 per share, net of
issuance costs of $17,4

Issuance of common stock in July 2010 concur
private placement at $17.00 per sh

Issuance of common stock in November 2
private placement at $21.15 per share, net o
issuance costs of $¢

Conversion of preferred stock into share:
common stocl

Issuance of common stock upon net exercise o
warrants

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options, net of repurchas

Tax benefits from employee equity awa

Stock-based compensatic

Net loss

— — 675,20: 1 45E — 45¢€

— — 10,00( 0 21 — 21

— — — — 437 — 437

— — — — — (82,78) (82,789

78,355,19 101,17t 7,010,43. 7 519 (204,919 (199,719
102,776,77 135,66 — — — — —
27,785,226 82,37t — — — — —

— — 273,76¢ 0 497 — 497

— — — — 1,43¢ — 1,43

— — — — — (55,740 (55,740

208,917,23 319,22 7,284,201 7 712¢  (260,65) (253,52)

— — 11,880,60 12 184,46 — 184,47

— — 2,941,17! 3 49,99 — 50,00(

— — 1,418,57. 1 29,95 — 29,95¢

(208,917,23) (319,229 | 70,226,84 7C 319,15 — 319,22!

— — 445,04 1 8,66z — 8,66:

— — 711,93( 1 1,34¢ — 1,35

— — — — 74 — 74

— — — —  21,15¢ — 21,15¢

— — — — — (154,329 (154,32}

Balance as of December 31, 20:

94,908,37 $ 95 $621,93! $(414,98) $ 207,04t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Change in fair value of warrant liabiliti
Gain on extinguishment of convertible notes andraras
Stocl-based compensatic
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic
Loss on abandonment of fixed ass
Inventory write-downs
Interest on convertible not
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Operating lease asst
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Deferred development compensat
Deferred revenu
Reservation paymen
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Net cash used in operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments related to acquisition of Fremont manufagj facility and related asse
Purchases of property and equipment excluding aldpase:
Transfer of restricted cash into our dedicated Btepent of Energy accoul
Withdrawals out of our dedicated Department of lggexccoun
Increase in other restricted ce
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in initiddlig offering
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in Toyotater placemer
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in Panaponite placemer
Proceeds from issuance of Series F convertibleepet stock, net of issuance costs of $
Proceeds from issuance of Series E convertiblepesf stock, net of issuance costs of $
Principal payments on capital leases and other
Proceeds from lor-term debt and other lo-term liabilities
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes ancawts
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic
Common stock and loan facility issuance ci
Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental Disclosures

Interest paic

Income taxes pai

Supplemental noncash investing and financing actities
Conversion of preferred stock to common st

Issuance of common stock upon net exercise of wer
Issuance of convertible preferred stock war

Issuance of common stock warr:

Conversion of notes payable to Series E convertitdéerred stoc
Exchange of convertible notes paya

Exchange of accrued interest for convertible npsble
Property and equipmeacquired under capital lea

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
$(154,329 $(55,740 $(82,78)
10,62: 6,94( 4,157
5,02: 1,12¢ 2,80(
— (1,469  (1,24¢
21,15¢ 1,43¢ 437
(74) — —

8 38t =

951 1,35¢ 4,29

= 2,68¢ 3,69:
(3,229) (168 (3,260
(20,119 (7,925 (18,839
497) (2,049 75C
(8,399) — —
(46%) (44%) 12
(212) 90z 8,81¢
13,34¢ 3,387 2,63¢
(156)  (10,01) 10,17
4801 (1,45  4,07¢
4707 (21,97) 10,68
3,51¢ 2,19; 1,19;
(127,81) (80,829 (52,41)
(65,21() — —
(40,209  (11,88) (10,630
(100,00() — —
26,40: — —
(1,287) (2,360 (960)
(180,29) (14,249 (11,590
188,84 — —
50,000 — —
30,00( — —
— 82,37t —

— 49,44: —
(318) (322) (192
71,82¢ — 1,00
— 25,46¢  54,78:
1,35( 497 471
74 — —
(3,73) (2,046 —
338,04! 15541¢ _ 56,06
29931  60,35( (7,939
69,62 9277 17,21
$ 9955¢ $ 69,621 $ 9,27
$ 113 $ 70 $ 41
9 171 —
319,22t — —
6,967 — —
6,29¢ — —
1,701 — —
— 86,22t —

— 19,07¢  16,75:

— 1,791 1,32¢

— 182 322

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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Tesla Motors, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Overview of the Company

Tesla Motors, Inc. (Tesla, we, us or our) was ipooated in the state of Delaware on July 1, 2008.dasign, develop, manufacture and
sell high-performance fully electric vehicles amtvanced electric vehicle powertrain components.

Since inception, we have incurred significant Issaed have used approximately $330.6 million ohéaperations through
December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2010, weabadoximately $99.6 million in cash and cash egeiws. We are currently selling the
Tesla Roadster automobile and are developing theéeM® sedan. To the extent we do not meet our ptheales volumes or future product
releases or our existing cash and cash equivabatdaaces are insufficient to fund our future atig, we will need to raise additional funds.
We cannot be certain that additional financingnrfl when needed, will be available at terms satisfg to us, or at all. These consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustmentsflect the possible future effects on the vecability and classification of assets or the
amounts and classification of liabilities that nragult from the outcome of this uncertainty.

In January 2010, we entered into a loan agreemigntte United States Federal Financing Bank anitedrStates Department of Enel
(DOE), pursuant to the Advanced Technology Vehidlesiufacturing Loan Program (ATVM), authorizing tbemmitment from the DOE to
arrange loans for up to $465.0 million. See Noter&dditional details.

In May 2010, we effected a 1-for-3 reverse stodk spour outstanding common stock, and a propow adjustment to the existing
conversion ratios for each series of preferredkstees made at the time of the effectiveness ofélerse stock split. Accordingly, all share |
per share amounts for all periods presented irethessolidated financial statements and notestthdrave been adjusted retroactively, where
applicable, to reflect this reverse stock split adgustment of the preferred stock conversion ratio

Initial Public Offering and Toyota Concurrent Private Placement

On June 28, 2010, our registration statement omF®x1 relating to our initial public offering (IP®@)as declared effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and dnrclBsed on July 2, 2010, at which time we receiv@sh proceeds of $188.8 million
from this transaction, net of underwriting discaiahd commissions. Additionally, we incurred offigrcosts of $4.4 million related to the IPO
(see Note 9).

Concurrent with the closing of our IPO in July 20%@ closed a private placement transaction fosttie of our common stock to Toy«
Motor Corporation (Toyota) pursuant to which weeaiged proceeds of $50.0 million from Toyota (sede\®).

As a result of the IPO, our convertible preferramtk was automatically converted into common sta# our outstanding warrants,
excluding the DOE warrant, were net exercised.

Unadjusted Error in 2009

In June 2010, we identified an error related touhderstatement in stock-based compensation exgehsequent to the issuance of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ériglecember 31, 2009.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we granted certéils options for which a portion of the grant wasriediately vested. We erroneously
accounted for the expense on a straight-line lma&sthe term of the award, while expense recagmishould always be at least commensurate
with the number of awards vesting
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during the period. As a result, selling, general administrative expenses and net loss for the gieded December 31, 2009 were understated
by $2.7 million. The error did not have an effentthe valuation of the stock options. As stock-basempensation expense is a non-cash item,
there was no impact on net cash used in operatiixtaes for the year ended December 31, 2009.

To correct this error, we recorded additional stbaked compensation of $2.4 million in the threenth® ended June 30, 2010. We
considered the impact of the error on reportedatpey expenses and trends in operating resultslatetmined that the impact of the error was
not material to previously reported financial infation as well as those related to the year endetber 31, 2010.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tlomants of Tesla and its wholly owned subsidiardksignificant inter-company
transactions and balances have been eliminatezhisotidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasiiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeatsd reported amounts of expenses during the tiegqgreriod. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of our cash and cash equivalantd deposits approximate their fair value dubeda short-term nature. As a basis
for determining the fair value of certain of ousass and liabilities, we established a three-t@rvalue hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs
used in measuring fair value as follows: (Levedtservable inputs such as quoted prices in actaskeis; (Level Il) inputs other than the
guoted prices in active markets that are obserwaither directly or indirectly; and (Level 1ll) ubservable inputs in which there is little or no
market data which requires us to develop our ovgnraptions. This hierarchy requires us to use olddevmarket data, when available, and to
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when deteng fair value. Our financial assets that are soead at fair value on a recurring basis
consist only of cash equivalents and current mstiticash. Our liabilities that are measured awue on a recurring basis consist of our
common stock warrant liability, and previously, @anvertible preferred stock warrant liability.

All of our cash equivalents and current restriatadh, which are comprised primarily of money maflatis, are classified within Level |
of the fair value hierarchy because they are valigidg quoted market prices or market prices foilar securities. We do not have any Level
Il instruments, or instruments valued based onrathservable inputs. Our common stock warrantliighbiend previously our convertible
preferred stock warrant liability, is classifiedthwn Level Ill of the fair value hierarchy.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the fair valeeanchy for our financial assets and financialiliaés that are carried at fair value v
as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Fair Value Level | Level Il Level Il Fair Value Level | Level Il Level Il
Money market fund $145,70t $145,70¢ $— $§ —  $64,42( $6442( $— $ —
Common stock warrant liabilit 6,08¢ — — 6,08¢ — — — —
Convertible preferred stock warrant liabil — — — — 1,73¢ — — 1,73¢
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The changes in the fair value of the common stockanvertible preferred stock warrant liabilitigsre as follows (in thousands):

2010 2009
Fair value, beginning of peric $1,73¢ $2,07¢
Issuance: 6,294 —
Settlements and extinguishme (6,967) (1,46%)
Change in fair valu 5,022 1,12¢
Fair value, end of peria $ 6,08¢ $1,73¢

The valuation of the common stock and convertibéfgrred stock warrants is discussed in Notes 67and

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues from sales of the Tesla Readscluding vehicle options and accessoriesiclelservice and sales of zero
emission vehicle (ZEV) credits, and sales of elestehicle powertrain components. We recognize maeavhen: (i) persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has occurred thietle are no uncertainties regarding customer gaceg; (iii) fees are fixed or determinable;
and (iv) collection is reasonably assured.

Automotive Sales
Automotive sales consisted of the following for thexiods presented (in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Vehicle, options and related sa $75,45¢ $111,55! $14,74:
Powertrain component and related si 21,61¢ 38¢ —
$97,07¢ $111,94: $14,74:

Automotive sales consist primarily of revenue edrfiem the sales of the Tesla Roadster, vehickic®rand vehicle options, accesso
and destination charges as well as sales of ZEdtsréAutomotive sales also consist of revenueeghfrom the sales of electric vehicle
powertrain components, such as battery packs aterpahargers, to other automotive manufactur®ases or other amounts collected in
advance of meeting all of the revenue recognitiiterga are not recognized in the consolidatecest&ints of operations and are instead
recorded as deferred revenue on the consolidataddsasheets. Prior to February 2010, we did notige direct financing for the purchase of
the Tesla Roadster although a third-party lendsrgnavided financing arrangements to our custotimettse United States. Under these
arrangements, we have been paid in full by theooust at the time of purchase.

In regards to the sale of Tesla Roadsters, revismgenerally recognized upon delivery of the vehi€oncurrent with a purchase order
for a Roadster that is manufactured to specificatimistomers must remit a reservation paymentNsee 5). For vehicles purchased directly
from our showrooms, no deposit is required. Appraatiely three months prior to production of a Té&tedster manufactured to specification,
the reservation payment becomes nonrefundable tegecustomer enters into a purchase agreementirhiited number of circumstances, we
may deliver a vehicle to a customer without alttef options ordered by the customer if the optamsot limit the functionality of the vehicle.
This may happen, for example, in an instance whiereustomer orders an additional hard top whictotseady at the time the vehicle is
delivered. In such cases, we will continue to déferrelated revenue based on the undeliveredstéair' value, as evidenced by the contractual
price of the option in stand-alone transactions.

While sales of vehicle options and accessories tialeg/ place separately from a vehicle sale, theypttem part of one vehicle sales
agreement resulting in multiple element arrangemaéffe are able to establish the fair
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value for each of the deliverables within the npiétielement arrangements because we sell eack gttiicles, vehicle accessories and options
separately, outside of any multiple element arrareggs. As each of these items has stand alone i@athe customer, revenue from sales of
vehicle accessories and options are recognized thiose specific items are delivered to the custolver record revenue for destination
charges billed to our customers. Revenue from nltstin charges totaled $1.0 million, $1.9 milliarde$0.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively rdlaged costs are recorded in cost of automotless

In February 2010, we began offering a leasing @ogro qualified customers in the United StatedtierTesla Roadster. Through our
wholly owned subsidiary, Tesla Motors Leasing, loeialifying customers are permitted to lease tegl@ Roadster for 36 months, after which
time they have the option of either returning tledicle to us or purchasing it for a pre-determire=sidual value. We account for these leasing
transactions as operating leases and accordinglyeeognize leasing revenues on a straight-lini loagr the term of the individual leases and
record cost of sales equal to the depreciatioh®fdased vehicles. As of December 31, 2010, walbfatred revenues of $1.1 million of do
payments which will be recognized over the ternthefindividual leases. Lease revenues are recondaatomotive sales and for the year
ended December 31, 2010, we recognized $0.8 million

Zero Emission Vehicle Credit Sales

California and certain other states have laws a@lrequiring vehicle manufacturers to ensuredtmdrtion of the vehicles delivered for
sale in that state during each model year areamission vehicles. These laws provide that a matwfer of zero emission vehicles may earn
credits, referred to as ZEV credits, and may sealkss credits to other manufacturers who apply suetlits to comply with these regulatory
requirements. As a manufacturer solely of zero simisvehicles, we have earned ZEV credits on vehisbld in such states, and we expect to
continue to earn these credits in the future. Steonly commercial vehicle is electric, we do rexteive any benefit from the generation of
ZEV credits, and accordingly look to sell them they vehicle manufacturers. In order to facilitéite sale of these credits, we enter into
contractual agreements with third parties requithmem to purchase our ZEV credits at pre-determprezes. We recognize revenue on the sale
of these credits at the time legal title to theddeeis transferred to the purchasing party bygbeernmental agency issuing the credits. Revenue
from the sale of ZEV credits totaled $2.8 millié8.2 million and $3.5 million for the years endeed@mber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Extended Service and Battery Replacement Plans

We provide customers with the opportunity to pusghan extended warranty for the period after thiecdrour initial New Vehicle
Limited Warranty to extend coverage for an addicthree years or 36,000 miles, whichever comes. fit/e refer to this program as our
Extended Service Plan. Amounts collected on thelss sire initially recorded in deferred revenueshenconsolidated balance sheets and
recognized in automotive sales over the extendedawey period. Through December 31, 2010, we haferced $1.2 million related to the
Extended Service Plan and have not yet recognizgdedated revenues.

Additionally, within three months of purchasing @hicle, we provide customers with a one-time optmreplace the battery packs in
their vehicles at any time after the expiratioribef New Vehicle Limited Warranty but before thetteanniversary of the purchase date of their
vehicles. We refer to this program as our BattegplRcement Plan. Amounts collected on these sedasitially recorded in deferred revenues
on the consolidated balance sheets and recogmzaatémotive sales as we fulfill our obligationréplace the battery packs. Through
December 31, 2010, we have deferred $0.9 milliteted to the Battery Replacement Plan and havgetaecognized any related revenues.

Development Services Reven

Revenue from development services arrangementsstafisevenue earned from the development of gteeehicle powertrain
components for other automobile manufacturersuitiog the design and
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development of battery packs and chargers to meestamer’s specifications. Beginning in the quaeteded March 31, 2010, we started
entering into such contracts with the expectati@t bur development services would constitute blgieevenuagenerating activity. Revenue
recognized as the performance requirements of @aeflopment arrangement are met and collectiomaisanably assured. Where developr
arrangements include substantive at-risk milestame®nue is recognized based upon the achieveshémd contractually-defined milestones.
Amounts collected in advance of meeting all ofxaenue recognition criteria are not recognizetheconsolidated statement of operations
and are instead recorded as deferred revenue @otiselidated balance sheets. Costs of developseevites are expensed as incurred. Costs
of development services incurred in periods prathe finalization of an agreement are recordegssarch and development expenses; on
agreement is finalized, these costs are recordedsinof revenues.

Prior to 2010, compensation from the Smart fortwaedlopment arrangement with Daimler AG (Daimlegg(§ote 13), was recorded as
an offset to research and development expenses €@y arrangement was motivated primarily byapportunity to engage Daimler and at
the same time, jointly progress our own researchdmvelopment activities with the associated dgwekent compensation. All amounts
received under the Smart fortwo agreement weregrézed as an offset to research and developmeeneggs, as we were performing
development activities on behalf of Daimler, weeing compensated for the cost of these activitielseauld not practicably separate the
efforts or costs related to these activities fram @wvn research and development.

Freestanding Stock Warrants

We accounted for freestanding warrants to purcbhaees of our convertible preferred stock as ligsl on the consolidated balance
sheets at fair value upon issuance. The convepilgferred stock warrants were recorded as ailiphiécause the underlying shares of
convertible preferred stock were contingently redakele which therefore, may have obligated us tosfiexr assets at some point in the future
(see Note 7). The warrants were subject to re-rmeasent to fair value at each balance sheet datamydhange in fair value was recognized
in other expense, net, on the consolidated statenoéiperations. For our Series C and other Sé&riesnvertible preferred stock warrants,
excluding the DOE warrant, we adjusted the liapiiitr changes in fair value through the completiéour IPO on July 2, 2010. At that time,
the convertible preferred stock warrants were reta@sed and the related liability was reclassifie@dditional paid-in capital. For the Series E
convertible preferred stock warrants issued td¥ (see Note 8), we adjust the liability for chasdn fair value until the earlier of vesting or
expiration of the warrants. Upon the completiomof IPO, the DOE warrant converted into a warrargurchase our common stock and the
related liability will continue to be adjusted fananges in fair value until the earlier of vestargexpiration of the warrants. If the warrants are
exercised, the warrant liability will be reclassdito common stock or additional paid-in capitalapplicable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with an original oemaining maturity of three months or less at thte d&purchase are considered to be
cash equivalents. We currently deposit excess gastarily in money market funds.

Restricted Cash and Deposits

We maintain certain cash amounts restricted adttalvawal or use. We maintained total restricteshcaf approximately $78.5 million
and $3.6 million as of December 31, 2010 and 268fhectively. As of December 31, 2010, currentietetl cash was comprised primarily of
$73.6 million of net proceeds from the IPO anddbecurrent Toyota private placement that we wegeired to set aside to fund a separate,
dedicated account as required under our DOE laglitya(see Note 8) partially offset by authorizeensfers out of the dedicated account into
our cash and cash equivalents during the year. Woertt restricted cash was comprised primarilyemiusity held by a vendor as part of the
vendor’s standard credit policies, security depostated to
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lease agreements and equipment financing, andrcegfandable reservation payments segregatedciordance with state consumer protec
regulations.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acaants

Accounts receivable primarily include amounts iedato sales of powertrain components and the pedoce of powertrain development
services. In circumstances where we are awarespéaific customer’s inability to meet its financiddligations to us, we provide an allowance
against amounts receivable to reduce the net rézadjneceivable to the amount we reasonably bedigxk be collected. As of December 31,
2010 and 2009, we determined that no allowanceddabtful accounts was required. We typically do ¢centy accounts receivable related to
our vehicle and related sales as customer payraeaidue prior to vehicle delivery.

Concentration of Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subjectais ttoncentration of credit risk consist of castshcequivalents and accounts receivable.
Our cash and cash equivalents are primarily indeistenoney market funds with high credit qualitydicial institutions in the United States.
At times, these deposits and securities may b&dass of insured limits. To date, we have not depeed any losses on our deposits of cash
and cash equivalents. During the year ended Deae®ih@010, our accounts receivable were derivadaily from sales of powertrain
components and the performance of powertrain dewedmt services to Daimler and to Toyota (see N8jeAccounts receivable balances
from Daimler and Toyota represented 51% and 42%f B&ecember 31, 2010, and 82% and 0% as of DeceBihe&@009 of total accounts
receivable, respectively. We perform credit evabret of our customers’ financial condition and, geadly, require no collateral.

A number of components that meet our manufactueagirements are available only from single sosigepliers. For example, Lotus is
the only manufacturer for certain components, aagthe chassis of our Tesla Roadster. In othearinss, although there may be multiple
suppliers available, many of the components usediirvehicles are purchased by us from a singlecgsolf these single source suppliers fa
satisfy our requirements on a timely basis at cditipe prices, we could suffer manufacturing delayossible loss of revenues, or incur
higher cost of sales, any of which could adverséfigct our operating results.

Inventories and Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miai®ost is computed using standard cost, whichcqpates actual cost on a first-in,
first-out basis. We record inventory write-downsée on reviews for excess and obsolescence dettmimmarily by future demand
forecasts. We also adjust the carrying value ofiougntories when we believe that the net realeablue is less than the carrying value. Tt
write-downs are measured as the difference betweeoost of the inventory, including estimated sdstcomplete, and estimated selling
prices. Once inventory is written down, a new, lowest basis for that inventory is established, sugsequent changes in facts and
circumstances do not result in the restoratiomorgase in that newly established cost basis.

Adverse Purchase Commitments

To the extent future inventory purchases undercarcellable purchase orders are for excess oretiesoérts or the related inventory is
deemed to be in excess of its net realizable valeaecord a provision for adverse purchase comeritea Charges are recorded as a
component of cost of sales. We did not record fiicanit charges during the year ended December@0.2During the year ended
December 31, 2009, we recorded charges of $0.4bmiib cost of sales. During the year ended Dece®bg2008, we recorded charges of
$1.0 million to research and development expensdsb@.4 million to cost of sales.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognized dtless accumulated depreciation. Depreciation isprded using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the eel@ssets as follows:

Computer equipment and softws 3 year
Office furniture and equipme! 3to 7 year
Tooling 3to 5 year

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a strdilghtasis over the shorter of their estimateduldefes or the term of the related
lease. Upon retirement or sale, the cost and telteumulated depreciation are removed from thanloal sheet and the resulting gain or loss is
reflected in operations. Maintenance and repaiergjtures are expensed as incurred, while majordwgments that increase functionality of
the asset are capitalized and depreciated ratal@ypgense over the identified useful life. Landas$ depreciated.

In October 2010, we completed the purchase of cembnt, California facility and certain manufachyriassets and spare parts located
thereon. As these assets are not yet ready farittended use, they are classified within consioncin progress and the depreciation has not
yet commenced (see Note

Operating Lease Vehicles

Vehicles that are leased as part of our leasingrpr, are classified as operating lease vehiclpsr&ing lease vehicles are recorded at
cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciatioprisputed using the straight-line method over énmtof operating leases of three years. The
total cost of operating lease vehicles recordatiénconsolidated balance sheet as of Decembei030, ®as $8.4 million. Accumulated
depreciation related to leased vehicles was $0ll{bmas of December 31, 2010.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are atized over their estimated useful lives. As of Daber 31, 2010, intangible assets are
comprised of emission credits (see Note 4).

Long-lived Assets

We evaluate our long-lived assets, including inthlegassets, for indicators of possible impairmehéen events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of aetasay not be recoverable. Impairment existsafdérrying amounts of such assets exceed
the estimates of future net undiscounted cash fexpected to be generated by such assets. Shopddriment exist, the impairment loss wo
be measured based on the excess carrying valhe asset over the asset’s estimated fair valuef Becember 31, 2010, we have not
recorded any impairment losses on our long-lives s

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are expensed aethdResearch and development expenses consisrpyi of payroll, benefits and
stock-based compensation of those employees engageskarch, design and development activitiestsolated to design tools, license
expenses related to intellectual property, suppliesservices, depreciation and other occupandg.cAlso included in research and
development are development services costs ingufrady, prior to the finalization of agreementghwour development services customers as
reaching a final agreement and revenue recogrgiont assured. Development services costs incaftedthe finalization of an agreement are
recorded in cost of revenues.
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Advertising and Promotion Costs

Advertising and sales promotion costs are expeasédcurred. During the years ended December 30,2D09 and 2008, advertising,
promotion and related marketing expenses werer@8libn, $1.7 million and $0.7 million, respectivel

Income Taxes

Income taxes are computed using the asset antitliabethod, under which deferred tax assets aatuilities are determined based on the
difference between the financial statement andteses of assets and liabilities using enactedates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to affect taxable incoraduation allowances are established when necessaeduce deferred tax assets to the
amount expected to be realized.

We record liabilities related to uncertain tax piosis when, despite our belief that our tax refuositions are supportable, we believe that
it is more likely than not that those positions nmay be fully sustained upon review by tax authesitAccrued interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits are classified as incaxexpense.

Stock-based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense for costs refatatishare-based payments, including stock aptidhe fair value of share-based
payment awards are estimated on the grant datg asioption pricing model. Stock-based compensaiqrense is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the service period, net of estich&tefeitures.

We have elected to use the “with and without” appltoin determining the order in which tax attritsuséee utilized. As a result, we will
only recognize a tax benefit from stock-based awarddditional paid-in capital if an incrementak benefit is realized after all other tax
attributes currently available to us have beeiizetil. In addition, we have elected to accountHerindirect effects of stock-based awards on
other tax attributes, such as the research taxtctiebugh our statement of operations.

We account for equity instruments issued to nonleyges based on the fair value of the awards. ainevélue of the awards granted to
non-employees is re-measured as the awards veshamesulting change in fair value, if any, isageized in the consolidated statements of
operations during the period the related servicesendered.

For performance-based awards, stock-based commmsapense is recognized over the expected pediocsmachievement period of
individual performance milestones when the achiexnof each individual performance milestone becoprebable.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement and Transactions

For each of our foreign subsidiaries, the functiamarency is the U.S. Dollar. For these foreighsidiaries, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in non-U.S. currencies @eneasured to U.S. Dollars using current exchaatgs in effect at the balance sheet date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated indd® currencies are maintained at historical D&lar exchange rates. Revenues and
expenses are re-measured at average U.S. Dollahinoates.

Foreign currency transaction gains and losses egsudt of the effect of exchange rate changesamsactions denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency. Transactiomgaind losses are recognized in other expensi thet consolidated statements of operations
and have not been significant for any periods priesk
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Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss includes all changes in eqniy dssets) during a period from nmmner sources. Through December 31, 2010,
are no components of comprehensive loss which@raaluded in net loss; therefore, a separatestant of comprehensive loss has not been
presented. We do not have any foreign currencykatipn adjustments as a component of other cornepsée loss through December 31,
2010, as the functional currency of all our foregyibsidiaries is the U.S. Dollar.

Warranties

We began recording warranty reserves with the coneeraent of Tesla Roadster sales in 2008. Initidlgsla Roadsters were sold wit
warranty of four years or 50,000 miles. More reberfesla Roadsters have been sold with a warrahtiyree years or 36,000 miles. Accrued
warranty activity consisted of the following foretiperiods presented (in thousands):

2010 2009
Accrued warrant—beginning of periol $ 3,751 $ 85¢
Warranty costs incurre (2,23)) (1,50¢)
Provision for warrant 3,891 4,407
Accrued warrant—end of perioc $ 5,417 $ 3,751

We provide a warranty on all vehicle and producpomvertrain component sales, and we accrue warrasgrves at the time a vehicle is
delivered to a customer. Warranty reserves incindaagement’s best estimate of the projected cosephir or to replace any items under
warranty, based on actual warranty experiencelzcibmes available and other known factors thatimagct our evaluation of historical data.
We review our reserves at least quarterly to enthaeour accruals are adequate in meeting expéatigee warranty obligations, and we will
adjust our estimates as needed. Warranty expemnsedsded as a component of cost of revenues indhgolidated statements of operations.
The portion of the warranty provision which is eggal to be incurred within 12 months from the betasheet date is classified as current,
while the remaining amount is classified as longrtéabilities.

Environmental Liabilities

We are subject to federal and state laws and régngafor the protection of the environment, inéhgithose related to the discharge of
hazardous materials and remediation of contamirgited. In October 2010, we completed the purcbéser Fremont, California
manufacturing facility from New United Motor Manutaring, Inc. (NUMMI). NUMMI has previously identdd environmental conditions at
the Fremont site which affect soil and groundwaterthe owner of the Fremont site, we may be resiptanfor the entire investigation and
remediation of any environmental contaminatiorhatEremont site, whether it occurred before or dffte date we purchased the property.
Upon the completion of the purchase in October 20&0recorded the estimated fair value of the emrirental liabilities that we assumed to
be $5.3 million. The fair value of these liabilgievas determined based on an expected value anafytsie related potential costs to investic
remediate and manage various environmental congditivat were identified as part of NUMMI’s facililecommissioning activities as well as
our own diligence efforts. Estimated potential saate not discounted to present value as the tiofipgyments cannot be reasonably
estimated.

Net Loss per Share of Common Stock

Our basic net loss per share of common stock @utated by dividing the net loss by the weightedrage number of shares of common
stock outstanding for the period. The weighted-agemumber of shares of common stock used to eddcalir basic net loss per share of
common stock excludes those shares subject toalepss related to stock options that were exergisedto vesting as these shares are not
deemed to be
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issued for accounting purposes until they vest. dihged net loss per share of common stock is adgetpby dividing the net loss using the
weighted-average number of common shares, exclugingnon stock subject to repurchase, and, if didytpotential common shares
outstanding during the period. Potential commoneshaonsist of common stock subject to repurchadestock options to purchase common
stock and warrants to purchase convertible predesteck (using the treasury stock method) and dmeersion of our convertible preferred
stock and convertible notes payable (using theifverted method).

The following table presents the potential commiogrss outstanding that were excluded from the ceatipn of diluted net loss per
share of common stock for the periods presentedusecincluding them would have been antidilutive:

2010 2009 2008
Convertible preferred stoc — 70,226,84 26,706,18
Stock options to purchase common st 13,804,78 11,640,70 2,929,091
Common stock subject to repurchi 2,66¢ 46,42: 92,44¢
Common stock warrai 3,090,11. — —
Convertible preferred stock warrai — 516,50¢ 1,830,35:
Convertible notes payab — — 13,575,28

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (FASB) issued an accounting standard upalieh requires companies to
allocate revenue in multiple-element arrangemeasgth on an element’s estimated selling price itleesspecific or other third-party evidence
of value is not available. The guidance is effectdeginning January 1, 2011 with early applicapemmitted. We do not expect the adoption of
the guidance to have a material impact on our dalsed financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued updated guidariaed to fair value measurements and disclosunéshwequires a reporting entity
disclose separately the amounts of significantsfiens in and out of Level | and Level Il fair valmeasurements and to describe the reasons fc
the transfers. In addition, in the reconciliatidrfair value measurements using Level 1l inputseporting entity will be required to disclose
information about purchases, sales, issuancesetielnsents on a gross rather than on a net basésupdated guidance will also require fair
value disclosures for each class of assets anifitledand disclosures about the valuation techefjand inputs used to measure fair value for
both recurring and non-recurring Level Il and LeNEfair value measurements. The updated guidasmedfective for interim or annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2@88ept for the disclosures regarding the recaticih of Level Il fair value
measurements, which are effective for fiscal yéaginning after December 15, 2010 and for interariqus within those fiscal years. The
adoption of this updated guidance did not have @ impact on our consolidated financial statatae

In April 2010, the FASB issued an accounting staddgdate which provides guidance on the criteribe followed in recognizing
revenue under the milestone method. The milestagtbad of recognition allows a vendor who is invalweith the provision of deliverables to
recognize the full amount of a milestone paymemtrugchievement, if, at the inception of the reveauwangement, the milestone is determined
to be substantive as defined in the standard. Titagce is effective on a prospective basis foestidnes achieved in fiscal years and interim
periods within those fiscal years, beginning omfter June 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted. d not expect the adoption of the
guidance to have a material impact on our cons@ifinancial statements.
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3. Balance Sheet Components
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our inventorysisted of the following components (in thousands):

December 31,
2010 2009

Inventory
Raw materia $15,93¢ $10,00!
Work in proces! 4,53¢ 3,40z
Finished good 20,12¢ 7,03¢
Service 4,58: 2,78C

$45,18: $23,22:

We write down inventory as a result of excess amblete inventories and when we believe that theeadizable value of inventories is
less than the carrying value. During the years eémscember 31, 2010 and 2009, we recorded writeadaf $1.0 million and $1.4 million,
respectively, in cost of automotive sales. Durimg year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded daitars of $3.7 million in research and
development expenses and $0.6 million in cost tiraative sales.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our propertynt@ad equipment consisted of the following compag¢in thousands):

December 31
2010 2009
Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Computer equipment and softw: $ 8,864 $ 5,37¢
Office furniture, machinery and equipme 12,55 7,93¢
Tooling 15,91 15,01(
Leasehold improvemen 13,99 5,32¢
Land 26,39 —
Construction in progres 58,911 2,61¢
136,62¢ 36,26:
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (21,999 (12,730
$114,63¢ $ 23,53t

As of December 31, 2010, land of $26.4 millionwaedl as construction in progress of $30.3 milli@hated to building, site
improvements, manufacturing assets and spare paats,purchased as part of our facility in Frem@alifornia (see Note 4). Capitalized
interest on construction in progress is includegrimperty, plant and equipment. During the yearendecember 31, 2010, we capitalized $0.8
million of interest expense to construction in pexs.

Depreciation and amortization expense during tteesyended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, wa8 #iillion, $6.9 million and
$4.2 million, respectively. Total property and gruent assets under capital lease at December 3Q,£@ 2009, were $0.4 million and $0.6
million, respectively. Accumulated depreciatiorated to assets under capital lease as of thesewate $0.2 million and $0.1 million,
respectively.
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As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our other asseitsisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31
2010 2009
Other Assets
Loan facility issuance costs, r $ 7,05: $ 70¢
Common stock issuance co — 1,337
Emission credit: 14,50¢ —
Others 1,16¢ 704

$22,73( $2,75(

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our accrueditialiconsisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31
2010 2009

Accrued Liabilities

Payroll and related cos $ 6,51¢ $ 2,192
Accrued purchase 10,03( 9,92(
Taxes payabl 2,67¢ 452
Accrued warrant 1,72¢ 1,44
Adverse purchase commitme! — 523

$20,94¢ $14,53:

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our other long+-tabilities consisted of the following (in thcarsds):

December 31,
2010 2009
Other Long-Term Liabilities
Accrued warranty, lor-term $ 3,69: $2,31:
Deferred rent liability 2,91¢ 1,143
Environmental liabilities 5,30(C —
Other 363 —

$12,27¢ $3,45¢

4. Purchase of Fremont Facility and Assets
Fremont Facility

In May 2010, we entered into an agreement to pwelaa existing automobile production facility laghin Fremont, California from
New United Motor Manufacturing, Inc. (NUMMI), whids a joint venture between Toyota, and Motors Idgtion Company, the owner
selected assets of General Motors. In October 20&@ompleted the purchase and received titleadability and land. The total cash paid
$42.0 million. The purchase totals 210 acres, pr@agmately 55% of the land at the site, and inelidll of the manufacturing facilities loca
thereon. In October 2010, we and NUMMI amendeddbgity purchase agreement to include the transfers of certain operating permits, or
emission credits, for additional consideration 6f3million. We completed the transfer of thesengier in October 2010. We intend to use the
facility and manufacturing assets for the productié our planned Model S vehicle and to build atufe vehicles.

NUMMI has previously identified environmental cotidns at the Fremont site which affect soil andugndwater, and is currently
undertaking efforts to address these conditionthodigh we have been advised by NUMMI that it hasudeented and managed the
environmental issues, we cannot determine withageit the
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total potential costs to remediate pre-existingtaomnation. Based on management’s best estimatestiraated the fair value of the
environmental liabilities that we assumed to be8$billion. The fair value of these liabilities westermined based on an expected value
analysis of the related potential costs to inveséigremediate and manage various environmentdittams that were identified as part of
NUMMI s facility decommissioning activities as well asr@wn diligence efforts. As NUMMI continues witts idecommissioning activities
and we continue with our planned construction goerating activities, it is reasonably possible that estimate of environmental liabilities
may change materially. We have reached an agreemigniNUMMI in terms of how we and NUMMI will takeesponsibility for any costs
related to governmentally-required remediationvétitis for contamination that existed prior to ttwmpletion of the facility and land purchase
for any known or unknown environmental conditiossd Note 14).

The purchase consideration for the Fremont fadildgsisted of cash paid of $48.5 million and liieis assumed of $5.3 million for an
aggregate purchase price of $53.8 million. The egage purchase price of $53.8 million was allocétddnd, building, site improvements and
emission credits based on their relative fair valag the total estimated fair values of these aggate greater than the total purchase price. The
following table summarizes the allocation of theghase price to the tangible and intangible agaetshased as of the date of purchase (in
thousands):

Building and site improvemen $13,55¢
Land 25,73¢
Emission credit: 14,50¢

$53,80(

Building and site improvements are classified witbonstruction in progress and together with lamd,recorded in property, plant and
equipment, net, on the consolidated balance shhetestimated fair value of land was determinedgittie market approach. Although the
market approach compares the subject asset purtthaseilar transactions which would otherwise sifsthese inputs within Level Il of the
fair value hierarchy, adjustments we made to coatgarsales both qualitatively and quantitativelysead us to classify these inputs within
Level Il of the fair value hierarchy. The fair v of the building and site improvements were estith using the cost approach and therefore,
the inputs are classified within Level Il of thairf value hierarchy. Incremental due diligence £@$t$0.7 million related to the purchase of the
land have been capitalized to land.

Emission credits are classified as intangible aszed are recorded in other noncurrent assetseorotiisolidated balance sheet. The
estimated fair value of emission credits was deiteethusing market data related to traded emisgiedits and as such, these inputs are
classified within Level | of the fair value hieréisc The utility of the emission credits are relatedhe operation of the purchased facility and
therefore, will be amortized over the same uséfiell As the facility is not yet ready for its inted use, we have not yet commenced the
depreciation of the facility or the amortizatiore ttmission credits. We currently estimate thatdingj and building improvements, as well as
the emission credits, will have an estimated udd&ibf 25 years.

Manufacturing Assets

In August 2010, we entered into a separate purchgigment with NUMMI for the purchase of certaianufacturing equipment and
spare parts located at the Fremont facility. Thischase agreement was subsequently amended tdénatlditional manufacturing equipment
and spare parts. In October 2010, we completegthrishase concurrent with the completion of thdéifagurchase. The aggregate purchase
price for these assets was $16.7 million reflectimgestimated fair value of these assets. As thesmifacturing assets and spare parts are not
yet ready for their intended use, they are classifiithin construction in progress and recordegraperty, plant and equipment, net, on
consolidated balance sheet. We have not yet conedeahe depreciation of these assets. We currestilyate that manufacturing and related
assets will have an estimated useful life of 15yea
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5. Reservation Payments

Reservation payments consist of reservation andbeeship payments that allow potential customefsold a reservation for the future
purchase of a Tesla Roadster or Model S. These risave recorded as current liabilities until tiedicle is delivered. For our 2010 model
year Tesla Roadsters manufactured to specificadioncurrent purchase agreement requires the payshan initial nonrefundable depo
which varies based on the country of purchasetti®Model S, we require an initial refundable reagon payment of at least $5,000. For
vehicles purchased directly from our showroomsgeposit is required. Prior to the three months dnlime 30, 2010, our reservation policy
was to accept refundable reservation payments &lboustomers who wished to purchase a Tesla Readstl require full payment of the
purchase price of the vehicle at the time the eustcselected their vehicle specifications. Durimg three months ended June 30, 2010, we
changed our policy to require nonrefundable depdsit Tesla Roadsters manufactured to specificatidhe time a customer enters into a
purchase agreement. However, we also occasionalparefundable reservation payments for the TRskdster if a customer is interested in
purchasing a vehicle but not yet prepared to sétectehicle specifications. For customers who hgeed a refundable reservation payment
with us, the reservation payment becomes a nortlaefla deposit once the customer has selected Hieespecifications and enters into a
purchase agreement. We now require full paymetitepurchase price of the vehicle only upon dejivarthe vehicle to the customer.
Amounts received by us as reservation paymentgarerally not restricted as to their use by us.rgalivery of the vehicle, the related
reservation payments are applied against the cestetotal purchase price for the vehicle and recogd in automotive sales as part of the
respective vehicle sale.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, reservation patgne the amount of $30.8 million and $26.0 millisespectively, were recorded
current liabilities on the consolidated balancesthieAs of December 31, 2010, we held reservatiyiments for undelivered Tesla Roadste
an aggregate amount of $2.5 million and reservaimyments for Model S sedans in an aggregate anod%28.3 million. As of December 31,
2009, we held reservation payments for undeliv@resla Roadsters in an aggregate amount of $8.fbmdind reservation payments for
Model S sedans in an aggregate amount of $17.8milin order to convert the reservation payments ievenue, we will need to sell vehicles
to these customers. All reservation payments feMiodel S are fully refundable until such time thatustomer enters into a purchase
agreement.

6. Convertible Preferred Stock

On June 28, 2010, our registration statement omF®11 for our IPO was declared effective by the SBE on July 2, 2010, we closed
our IPO. As a result of the IPO, our convertiblefprred stock was automatically converted into camistock.

The following table summarizes information relateaur convertible preferred stock prior to coni@msnto common stock:

Share Price Liquidation
Issued and
Par Value at issuance Authorized Outstanding Preference Proceeds, Ne
(In thousands except share and per share amounts)
Series A $ 0.001 $ 0.4¢ 7,213,00! 7,213,00! $ 3,55¢ $ 3,54«
Series E 0.001 0.7¢4 17,459,45 17,459,45 12,92( 12,89¢
Series C 0.001 1.14 35,893,17 35,242,29 40,00( 39,78¢
Series C 0.001 2.4 18,440,44 18,440,44 45,00( 44,941
Series E 0.001 2.51 112,897,90 102,776,77 258,17! 135,66¢
Series F 0.001 2.91 30,000,00 27,785,26 82,50( 82,37¢
Total 221,903,98 208,917,23 $442,15: $ 319,22!

* Net of $3.9 million conversion of Series A convieldi preferred stock to common sto
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Each of our Series A, B, D, E and F convertibldgmred stock converted on a 1:0.33 basis into comstock while the Series C
convertible preferred stock converted on a 1.0 88

Dividends

No dividends on the convertible preferred stockehlbeen declared by the Board of Directors fromptioa through their conversion into
common stock.

7. Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants

In March 2006, we issued warrants to purchase 820s8ares of Series C convertible preferred stodonjunction with the conversion
of previously issued convertible notes payable 8goes C convertible preferred stock. The warrhatsan exercise price of $1.14 per share
and expired on the earlier of March 30, 2011 oin@ral public offering. As a result of our IPO wdhi closed on July 2, 2010, these warrants
were net exercised for 184,359 shares of commark side fair value of these warrants as of Julg®,0 in the amount of $3.6 million was
recorded in equity on the consolidated balancetsii@éeough the net exercise of the Series C coiblempreferred stock warrants in July 2010,
we recognized a charge from the change in thesédire of these warrants during 2010 in the amoti®2d million through other expense, r
on the consolidated statement of operations.

As of December 31, 2009, the fair value of warraatsurchase shares of the Series C convertibfenpeel stock in the amount of
$1.0 million was included within the convertiblesferred stock warrant liability on the consolidabadance sheet. During the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, we recognized chargesthe change in the fair value of these warramtee amounts of $0.7 million and $0.1
million, respectively, through other expense, netthe consolidated statements of operations.

In February 2008, we issued warrants with our Fatyr@008 convertible notes payable. The warratdsval for the purchase of shares
of either Series D convertible preferred stock ptiee of $2.44 per share, which amounted to wasrampurchase 8,246,914 shares of Series D
convertible preferred stock, or the securitiesasdel in a subsequent round of financing at theshare price of such securities.

On December 24, 2008, warrants to purchase 3,43®Bthe shares of Series D convertible prefertedkswere extinguished as a result
of the election of certain holders of the Febru2098 convertible notes to exchange their notesnaardants for December 2008 convertible
notes. On the date of the exchange, we recognigaihan the amount of $1.3 million through othgpense, net, in connection with the
extinguishment of these warrants.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, warransitchase an additional 3,967,152 shares of SBrezmvertible preferred stock
were extinguished as a result of the election diaeremaining holders of the February 2008 cotilvler notes as part of an exchange of their
notes and warrants for December 2008 convertiblesn®n the date of the exchange, we recognizednamgthe amount of $1.5 million
through other expense, net, in connection withettttnguishment of these warrants.

In May 2009, we completed our Series E financing/imich $50.0 million of proceeds was received far purchase of 19,901,290 shares
of Series E convertible preferred stock at a poicg2.51 per share. In connection with this finagcithe remaining holders of the February
2008 notes and warrants converted their notessimiines of Series E convertible preferred stockcangerted their warrants into warrants to
purchase 866,091 shares of Series E convertibferped stock.

As a result of our IPO which closed on July 2, 2ah@se warrants which exclude the DOE warrant K#te 8), were net exercised for
160,688 shares of common stock. The fair valudese warrants as of July 2, 2010 in the amoun8gf fillion was recorded in equity on the
consolidated balance sheet. Through the net
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exercise of the Series E convertible preferredistearrants in July 2010, we recognized a charge fitte change in the fair value of these
warrants during 2010 in the amount of $2.7 millibrough other expense, net, on the consolidatéensent of operations.

As of December 31, 2009, excluding the DOE warrtng fair value of warrants to purchase 866,09teshaf the Series E convertible
preferred stock in the amount of $0.7 million wasliided within the convertible preferred stock aatrliability on the consolidated balance
sheet. During the year ended December 31, 200%eeoginized charges from the change in the fairevafithese Series E warrants in the
amounts of $0.4 million through other expense, oetthe consolidated statement of operations.

8. Department of Energy Loan Facility

On January 20, 2010, we entered into a loan faailith the Federal Financing Bank (FFB), and theED@ursuant to the ATVM
Incentive Program (the DOE Loan Facility). Undez thOE Loan Facility, the FFB has made availablestéwo multi-draw term loan facilities
in an aggregate principal amount of up to $465oni Up to an aggregate principal amount of $20million will be made available under
the first term loan facility to finance up to 80%tbe costs eligible for funding for the powertrangineering and the build out of a facility to
design and manufacture lithium-ion battery paclestec motors and electric components (the PowgrtFacility). Up to an aggregate
principal amount of $363.9 million will be made #sble under the second term loan facility to finarup to 80% of the costs eligible for
funding for the development of, and to build o thanufacturing facility for, our Model S sedare(tlodel S Facility). Under the DOE Loan
Facility, we are responsible for the remaining 20Rthe costs eligible for funding under the ATVMoigram for the projects as well as any «
overruns for each project. The costs paid by wate for the Powertrain Facility and the Model 8iltgt will be applied towards our obligatic
to contribute 20% of the eligible project costsd &ime DOE'’s funding of future eligible costs wik ladjusted to take this into account. Our
obligations for the development of, and the build-of our manufacturing facility for, the ModelisSbudgeted to be an aggregate of $33 mi
or approximately 8.5% of the ongoing budgeted qasts any cost overruns for the projects. We haid for the full 20% of the budgeted cc
related to our Powertrain Facility and thereforpeot to receive 100% reimbursement from the DOEnLe&cility for ongoing budgeted costs,
but will continue to be responsible for cost ovesguOn the closing date, we paid a facility fe¢h® DOE in the amount of $0.5 million. From
February through December 2010, we received loadsenthe DOE Loan Facility for an aggregate of 8#illion at interest rates ranging
from 1.7% to 3.4%. As of December 31, 2010, $393ilRon remained available under the DOE Loan Rgcfbr future draw downs.

Our ability to draw down funds under the DOE Loatility is conditioned upon several draw conditionge are currently in compliance
with these draw conditions. For the Powertrain Rgicthe draw conditions include our achievemehpimgress milestones relating to the
development of the powertrain manufacturing fac#tind the successful development of commerciahgaments with third parties for the
supply of powertrain components. For the Model 8ilfg, the draw conditions include our achievemehprogress milestones relating to the
design and development of the Model S and the plihodel S manufacturing facility. Certain advanaéisbe subject to additional
conditions to draw-down related to the site on \utitee applicable project is located. Additionattye DOE Loan Facility provides for the
ability to update milestones should a reasonabéel aeise.

Advances under the DOE Loan Facility accrue intemea per annum rate determined by the Secrefahedlreasury as of the date of
advance and will be based on the Treasury yieldecand the scheduled principal installments fohsagtvance. Interest on advances under the
DOE Loan Facility is payable quarterly in arreagkdvances under the Powertrain Facility are repayabR8 equal quarterly installments
commencing on December 15, 2012 (or for advanceteratier such date, in 26 equal quarterly instalisieommencing on June 15, 2013).

All outstanding amounts under the Powertrain Fgoililll be due and payable on the maturity dat&eptember 15, 2019. Advances under the
Model S Facility are repayable in 40 equal quaytarstallments commencing on December 15, 2012ofordvances made after such date, in
38 equal quarterly
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installments commencing on June 15, 2013). Alltamiding amounts under the Model S Facility willdaee and payable on the maturity dat
September 15, 2022. Advances under the loan fasilihay be voluntarily prepaid at any time at agdetermined based on interest rates ¢
time of prepayment for loans made from the Secyaifithe Treasury to FFB for obligations with aemdical payment schedule to the advance
being prepaid, which could result in the advandadprepaid at a discount, at par or at a premiline. loan facilities are subject to mandatory
prepayment with net cash proceeds received frotaioetispositions, loss events with respect to prigpand other extraordinary receipts. All
obligations under the DOE Loan Facility are secungdubstantially all of our property.

Under the DOE Loan Facility, we have committed &y pll costs and expenses incurred to completprijects being financed in excess
of amounts funded under the loan facility. We Wil required to maintain, at all times, availablshcand cash equivalents of at least 105% of
the amounts required to fund this excess overinanting commitment, after taking into account eantrcash flows and cash on hand, and
reasonable projections of future generation ofcash from operations, losses and expenditures.diwary be requested under the facilities
until January 22, 2013, and we have committed topiete the projects being financed prior to sudie da

The DOE Loan Facility documents contain customawyenants that include, among others, a requirethabthe projects be conducted
in accordance with the business plan for such ptog@mpliance with all requirements of the ATVNMbBram, and limitations on our and our
subsidiaries’ ability to incur indebtedness, iniens, make investments or loans, enter into mergeacquisitions, dispose of assets, pay
dividends or make distributions on capital stocky pxdebtedness, pay management, advisory or sifeéa to affiliates, enter into certain
affiliate transactions, enter into new lines ofibass, and enter into certain restrictive agreemémteach case subject to customary exceptions
The DOE Loan Facility documents also contain custgnfinancial covenants requiring us to maintamiaimum ratio of current assets to
current liabilities, and (i) through December 1812, a minimum cash balance, and (ii) after Deceribe2012, a maximum leverage ratio, a
minimum interest coverage ratio, a minimum fixeargje coverage ratio, a limit on capital expendgwed, after March 31, 2014, a maximum
ratio of total liabilities to shareholder equity e/dre currently in compliance with these financ@mtenants.

The DOE Loan Facility documents also contain custignevents of default, subject in some cases tmmey cure periods for certain
defaults. In addition, events of default includiiture of Elon Musk, our Chief Executive Officdtroduct Architect and Chairman, and certain
of his affiliates, at any time prior to one yeateafve complete the project relating to the Modé&la8ility, to own at least 65% of capital stock
held by Mr. Musk and such affiliates as of the dztéhe DOE Loan Facility.

Under the DOE Loan Facility, we are required todf@ndebt service reserve account on or before Dieee81, 2012, in an amount equal
to all principal and interest that will come duetbe advances on the next two payment dates. Oadeawe deposited such two payments, we
will not be required to further fund such debt seeweserve account. We have also agreed thabninection with the sale of our common st
in an initial public offering, at least 75% of thet offering proceeds will be received by us and;annection with the sale of our stock in any
other follow-on equity offering, at least 50% oé&thet offering proceeds will be received by use@iffig proceeds may not be used to pay
bonuses or other compensation to officers, dirscemployees or consultants in excess of the ars@amtemplated by our business plan
approved by the DOE.

In addition to our obligation to fund a portiontbe project costs as described above, we haveadgreet aside 50% of the net proceeds
from our initial public offering and any subsequefferings of stock occurring before the completadrihe projects, up to an aggregate of $
million, to fund a separate, dedicated account unde DOE Loan Facility. This dedicated account barused by us to fund any cost overruns
for our powertrain and Model S manufacturing fagipirojects and will also be used as a mechanisdefter advances under the DOE Loan
Facility. This will not affect our ability to dradown the full amount of the DOE loans, but
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will require us to use the dedicated account tal foertain project costs up front, which costs nientbe reimbursed by loans under the DOE
Loan Facility once the dedicated account is deg|ete as part of the final advance for the appliegdoject. We will be required to deposit a
portion of these reimbursements into the dedicatehunt, in an amount equal to up to 30% of theameimg project costs for the applicable
project, and these amounts may similarly be useashty fund project costs and cost overruns anidsuiilarly be eligible for reimbursement
by the draw-down of additional loans under the D@&n Facility once used in full, or as part of flmal advance for the applicable project.
Upon the completion of our IPO and concurrent Taymivate placement in July 2010, we set aside $1@dlion to fund the dedicated
account. Through December 31, 2010, we transf&#26éd4 million from the dedicated account to ourragiag cash accounts in accordance
with the provisions of the DOE Loan Facility. As@écember 31, 2010, $73.6 million remained in thdichted account. As we expect to
transfer the remainder of this balance within oearywe have classified such cash as currentaestrcash on the consolidated balance sheet.

DOE Warrant

In connection with the closing of the DOE Loan Figiwe have also issued a warrant to the DOEupase up to 9,255,035 shares of
our Series E convertible preferred stock at anaseprice of $2.51 per share. Upon the completfosur IPO which occurred on July 2, 2010,
this preferred stock warrant became a warrant tohfase up to 3,090,111 shares of common stock @xentise price of $7.54 per share.
Beginning on December 15, 2018 and until DecemBeR022, the shares subject to purchase underahmant will vest and become
exercisable in quarterly amounts depending on teeage outstanding balance of the loan during tlee quarter. The warrant may be
exercised until December 15, 2023. If we prepayDfddE Loan Facility in part or in full, the total @amnt of shares exercisable under the
warrant will be reduced.

Since the number of shares ultimately issuable uthdewarrants will vary depending on the averaggstanding balance of the loan
during the contractual vesting period, and decisitonprepay would be influenced by our future stpgke as well as the interest rates on our
loans in relation to market interest rates, we mesksthe fair value of the warrant using a Montel@simulation approach. The Monte Carlo
approach simulates and captures the optimal desismbe made between prepaying the DOE loan andahcellation of the DOE warrant.
For the purposes of the simulation, the optimalsiec represents the scenario with the lowest etidngost to us. The total warrant value
would then be calculated as the average warrardfpagross all simulated paths discounted to olwratégon date. The prepayment feature
which allows us to prepay the DOE Loan Facility aodsequently, affect the number of shares ultimasuable under the DOE warrant, was
determined to represent an embedded derivativs. 8ihbedded derivative is inherently valued and @ueal for as part of the warrant liability
on our consolidated balance sheets. Changes faithalue of the embedded derivative are refleetggart of the warrant liability re-
measurement to fair value at each balance sheattirgp date.

The warrant is recorded at its estimated fair valith changes in its fair value reflected in otb&pense, net, until its expiration or
vesting. The fair value of the warrant at issuanas $6.3 million, and along with the DOE Loan FHagcilee of $0.5 million and other debt
issuance costs of $0.9 million, represents a doslbeing the loan facility and is being amortizednterest expense over the expected term of
the DOE Loan Facility of approximately 13 yearsring the year ended December 31, 2010, we amor$i@d@imillion to interest expense.

Prior to completion of our IPO, the fair value b&tDOE warrant was included within the convertiimeferred stock warrant liability on
the consolidated balance sheet. Upon the complefionr IPO on July 2, 2010, this warrant was resiféed on our consolidated balance sheet
from convertible preferred stock warrant liabilitycommon stock warrant liability. The DOE warravrill continue to be recorded at its
estimated fair value with changes in the fair vakftected in other expense, net, as the numbeominon stock ultimately issuable under the
warrant is variable until its expiration or vestiks of December 31, 2010, the fair value of
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the DOE warrant was $6.1 million. During the yeaded December 31, 2010, we recognized income fhenctiange in the fair value of the
DOE warrant in the amount of $0.2 million througher expense, net, on the consolidated statemegeshtions.

9. Common Stock

As of December 31, 2009, we were authorized toei§l8,006,077 shares of capital stock with a phrevaf $0.001 per share. The
authorized shares consisted of 100,000,000 sh&msromon stock and 213,006,077 shares of convertit#ferred stock. In January 2010, we
increased the number of authorized shares of aunumn stock from 100,000,000 to 106,666,667 shardsle number of authorized share:
our authorized preferred stock from 213,006,07229,903,982 shares.

On June 28, 2010, our registration statement omF1 for our IPO was declared effective by the SE€a result, the number of
authorized shares of our common stock increaseu 106,666,667 to 2,000,000,000 shares.

Initial Public Offering and Toyota Concurrent Priva te Placement

On June 28, 2010, our registration statement omF1 for our IPO was declared effective by the SH@ IPO closed on July 2, 2010,
at which time we sold 11,880,600 shares of our comstock and received cash proceeds of $188.8miliom this transaction, net of
underwriting discounts and commissions. Additionalie incurred offering costs of $4.4 million redtto the IPO. An additional 3,414,400
shares of common stock were sold by existing stolckdrs from which we did not receive any proce@&issts associated with the sale of
common stock by existing stockholders were notiirezliby us.

Concurrent with the closing of our IPO, we sold42,9.76 shares of our common stock to Toyota aica per share equal to the IPO
price, in a private placement transaction purstmmthich we received proceeds of $50.0 million.

The net proceeds from our IPO as well as the Togotate placement, have been recorded in stockhgl@quity. Offering costs of $4.4
million have been reclassified from other noncuressets and offset against additional paid-intahii stockholders’ equity.

Panasonic Private Placement

In November 2010, we entered into a common stockh@se agreement with an entity affiliated with &amic Corporation (Panasonic)
pursuant to which we issued and sold an aggreddt@ 8,573 shares of our common stock at a pfid2b.15 per share, which was the
average of the trading highs and lows of our comstonk from October 25 to October 29, 2010. Upamletion of the private placement
transaction on November 2, we received aggregaigepds of $30.0 million. Concurrently with the satel issuance of the shares to Panas
we amended our investors’ rights agreement as géMber 2, 2010 to grant Panasonic registratiortsigh a pari passu basis with certain
other holders of registration rights with respectite shares of common stock purchased in thetprplacement.

Early Exercise of Employee Options

Stock options granted under our stock option plawrmprior to October 29, 2008 provide employeaarpholders the right to exercise
unvested options in exchange for shares of restricommon stock. Unvested shares, in the amou2$69 and 46,421 as of December 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively, were subject to arodyase right held by us at the original issuanézepn the event the optionees’ employment
is terminated either voluntarily or involuntarilyor exercises of employee options, this repurchigbé generally lapses as to 1/4th of the st
subject to the option on the first anniversaryhef vesting start date and as to 1/48th of the shmnthly thereafter. Due to the administrative
burden and cost, we abandoned the practice ofiggant
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options with a right to early exercise. To date,hawe always exercised our right to repurchasestadeaestricted shares upon the termination
of an employee.

These repurchase terms are considered to be #&deefprovision and do not result in variable aatting. The restricted shares issued
upon early exercise of stock options are legaliyésl and outstanding. However, these restrictegslage only deemed outstanding for basic
earnings per share computation purposes upon spectve repurchase rights lapsing. We treat castived from employees for the exercise
of unvested options as a refundable deposit shavenliability in our consolidated balance sheetsoADecember 31, 2010 and 2009, these
amounts are not significant.

Stockholder Settlement

During the three months ended March 31, 2010, tbfesr stockholders who are affiliated with oneoof Board members asserted a
claim regarding the conversion of such stockholdmevertible promissory notes into shares of oari€s E convertible preferred stock at the
time of our Series E preferred stock financing iayM2009. In May 2010, we entered into a settleragntement with these stockholders and
pursuant to the terms of the settlement agreemenissued warrants to such stockholders which, tiperclosing of our IPO in July 2010,
were automatically net exercised for an aggreghi®0,000 shares of our common stock. During theettmonths ended June 30, 2010, the
value of these warrants in the amount of $1.7 amillivas recorded in equity on the consolidated lalaheet based on a Black-Scholes
valuation. In conjunction with the settlement of diability to issue such warrants, we recognizezharge of $1.1 million during the year en
December 31, 2010, through other expense, neheondnsolidated statement of operations.

10. Equity Incentive Plans

In July 2003, we adopted the 2003 Equity Incenilen. Concurrent with the effectiveness of oursegtion statement on Form S-1 on
June 28, 2010 (see Note 9), we adopted the 201ilyHgoentive Plan (the Plan) and all remaining coom shares reserved for future grant or
issuance under the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan wdded to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan. The Plawiges for the granting of stock options
and stock purchase rights to employees, directwtansultants of Tesla. Options granted undePtas may be either incentive options or
nonqualified stock options. Incentive stock optiomsy be granted only to our employees includingcef§ and directors. Nonqualified stock
options and stock purchase rights may be grantedtemployees and consultants. As of Decembe2(@I0, there were 9,407,975 shares of
common stock reserved for issuance under the Plan.
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The following table summarizes option activity unttee Plan:

Balance, December 31, 20
Repurchased restricted stc
Granted

Exercisec

Cancelec

Balance, December 31, 20
Additional options reserve

Repurchased restricted stc
Granted

Exercisec

Cancelec

Balance, December 31,20
Additional options reserve

Repurchased restricted stc
Granted

Exercisec

Cancelec

Balance, December 31, 20

Outstanding Options

Weighted
Shares Average
Available for Number of Exercise
Grant Options Price
741,35¢ 4,279,64! $ 1.2t
125,08:. — 0.67
(1,445,75) 1,445,75! 2.7C
— (733,60.) 0.37
2,129,37. (2,129,37) 1.64
1,550,05! 2,862,42. 1.8¢
8,366,66! — —
4,83¢ — 0.9C
(10,275,97) 10,275,97 5.9¢
— (195,264 1.1¢
1,369,10! (1,369,101 2.7¢
1,014,68 11,574,03 5.44
11,269,28 — —
9,17(¢ — 0.9C
(3,328,70) 3,328,70! 17.9¢
— (721,08() 1.8¢
443,53’ (443,53) 6.61
9,407,97! 13,738,12 8.62

In addition to stock options issued from the Pispf December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, were 66&©6& options that we had
previously granted to non-employees outside oPla®. These non-employee options outstanding eeighted average exercise price of

$1.80 as of each year end.

Additional information regarding all stock optioaststanding and exercisable as of December 31, B0immarized below:

Range of Exercise Price
$0.15- $2.10
$2.70- $2.70
$2.94- $6.15
$6.63- $6.63
$9.96- $13.23
$14.17- $14.17
$20.24- $20.24
$20.72- $20.72
$24.98- $24.98
$30.55- $30.55

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable
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Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Weighted Remaining Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Average Contractual
Exercise Life (in Exercise Life (in
Number Price years) Number Price years)
517,49: $ 1.31 463,21¢ $ 1.2¢
1,568,47. 2.7C 772,72¢ 2.7C
549,64 4.9¢ 180,59¢ 4.8(
7,943,741 6.6% 2,050,35. 6.65
627,11: 11.2¢ 18,24¢ 11.1(
1,090,91! 14.15 14,98 14.15
216,61 20.2¢ 3,08/ 20.2¢
564,75: 20.7z 4,44¢ 20.7:
455,58( 24.9¢ 36¢ 24.9¢
270,46 30.5¢ 1,25( 30.5¢
13,804,78 8.5¢ 6.0€ 3,506,27! 5.0¢ 5.1¢
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Additional information regarding all stock optioaststanding and exercisable as of December 31, B0@nmarized below:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Weighted Remaining Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Average Contractual
Exercise Life (in Exercise Life (in
Range of Exercise Price Number Price years) Number Price years)
$0.15—%$6.63 11,640,70 $ 5.4z 6.1¢€ 2,184,20! $ 3.7z 5.22

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the potdbx intrinsic value (i.e., the difference betwear common stock price and the
exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-theney options) that would have been received bym®n holders had all option holders
exercised their options. The aggregate intrinslaevaf options outstanding as of December 31, 20402009 was $250.1 million and
$13.8 million, respectively. The intrinsic valueagtions exercisable was $75.7 million and $6.1iom] and the intrinsic value of options
vested and expected to vest was $203.0 million$drd3 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 eesvely. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised was $10.0 million and $0.6 millior the years ended December 31, 2010 and 268pectively.

Fair Value Adoption

We adopted the fair value method on January 1, 2#08&cognizing stock-based compensation expensdekthe fair value method, we
estimated the fair value of each option award engitant date using the Black-Scholes option pricoglel and the weighted average
assumptions noted in the following table.

201( 200¢ 200¢
Risk-free interest rat 2.C% 2.2% 2.2%
Expected term (in year 5.3 4.€ 4.6

Expected volatility 71% 64% 53%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

The weighted-average grant-date fair value foraspéiwards granted during the years ended Decemb@030, 2009 and 2008, was
$10.99, $3.00 and $0.68 per share, respectively.

The fair value of the shares of common stock uryitegithe stock options has historically been debeeh by the Board of Directors as
there was no public market for our common stocle Bbard of Directors has determined fair valuehef¢common stock at the time of each
grant of options by considering a number of objectind subjective factors including valuation afnp@rable companies, sales of convertible
preferred stock to unrelated third parties, opegatind financial performance, the lack of liquidifycapital stock, and trends in the broader
automobile industry. We have not granted stockamstiwith an exercise price that is less than thesédue of the underlying common stock as
determined at the time of grant by our Board obiiors, with input from management. The fair maxkatie of the underlying common stock
was determined by the Board of Directors until¢benpletion of our IPO when our common stock wagdion an established stock exchange.
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Information regarding our stock option grants dgr2908, 2009 and the six months prior to the cotigaieof our IPO, including the gra
date; the number of stock options issued with gmaht; and the exercise price, which equals thetgtate fair value of the underlying comn
stock for each grant of stock options, is summariae follows:

Exercise

Price and

Fair Value
Number of per Share o

Options Common

Grant Date Granted Stock

June 4, 200! 762,13 $ 2.7C
July 8, 200¢ 278,30¢ 2.7C
September 3, 20C 200,15¢ 2.7C
October 29, 200 205,15¢ 2.7C
March 2, 200¢ 214,81 2.7C
April 13, 2009 1,005,83 2.7C
April 22, 2009 105,18 2.7C
August 4, 200¢ 323,06 2.94
October 21,200 590,63t 6.1%5
December 4, 200 7,977,44. 6.6°
December 16, 200 58,99t 6.6%
March 3, 201( 402,66( 9.9¢
April 28, 2010 256,32( 13.2¢
June 12, 201 1,135,711 14.17

Included in our December 4, 2009 stock option gravere 6,711,972 stock options granted to our (xefcutive Officer in two separate
grants. In recognition of his and our company’sieasdments and to create incentives for future sss;aeur Board of Directors approved an
option grant to our Chief Executive Officer repnetheg 4% of our fully-diluted share base prior tawk grant as of December 4, 2009, or
3,355,986 stock options, with 1/4th of the shamesting immediately, and 1/36th of the remainingetacheduled to vest each month over
three years, assuming continued employment threagh vesting date. In addition, to create incentfee the attainment of clear performance
objectives around a key element of our currentrirssi plan— the successful launch and commercializat the Model S—the Board of
Directors approved an additional option grant to ©hbief Executive Officer totaling an additional 48%our fully-diluted shares prior to such
grant as of December 4, 2009, or 3,355,986 stotikrg with a vesting schedule based entirely enatitainment of performance objectives as
follows, assuming Mr. Musk’s continued employmend &ervice to us through each vesting date:

» 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are adeddo vest upon the successful completion oMbeel S Engineering Prototyp
» 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are adkeddo vest upon the successful completion oMbeel S Validation Prototype

» 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are adeddo vest upon the completion of the first Mo8dProduction Vehicle; ar

» 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are adkddo vest upon the completion of the 10,000tldM @& Production Vehicl

If he does not meet one or more of the above noitest prior to the fourth anniversary of the datéhefgrant, he will forfeit his right to
the unvested portion of the grant.

Due to the significant number of stock options gedrto our Chief Executive Officer, we valued thBszember 2009 grants by using
following grant-specific Black-Scholes assumptiomnsk-free interest rate of
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1.7%, expected term of 4.1 years, expected vdlatfi 70% and dividend yield of 0%. Stock-based pemnsation expense related to
Mr. Musk’s grants was $9.2 million for the year eddDecember 31, 2010.

Included in our June 2010 and September 2010 stptikn grants were 666,300 and 20,000, respectieglytock options granted to
various members of our senior management with ingeschedule based entirely on the attainment@same performance objectives as t
outlined for Mr. Musk above. As of December 31, @0the first performance milestone was achievedthedemaining performance
milestones were considered probable of achieverkentthe year ended December 31, 2010, we reca)®@® million of stock-based
compensation expense related to the attainmergrédnmance objectives.

The following table summarizes the consolidatedlsfoased compensation expense by line item indhealidated statements of
operations (in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Cost of sale: $ 24z $ 61 $ 26
Research and developm 4,13¢ 37¢ 12t
Selling, general and administrati 16,774 997 28€
Total $21,15¢ $1,43¢ $437

We realized no income tax benefit from stock opeaercises in each of the periods presented dueetoring losses and valuation
allowances. As required, we present excess taxfibefrem the exercise of stock options, if any fiasncing cash flows rather than operating
cash flows.

As of December 31, 2010, we had $34.6 million ¢&ltanrecognized compensation expense, net of asdrforfeitures, that will be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2asye

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Concurrent with the effectiveness of our registratatement on Form S-1 on June 28, 2010 (seeotee established the 2010
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ESPP) whichéadied to qualify under Section 423 of the InteRalenue Code of 1986. Under the
ESPP, employees are eligible to purchase commak #toough payroll deductions of up to 15% of theigible compensation, subject to any
plan limitations. The purchase price of the sharesach purchase date is equal to 85% of the lofwde fair market value of our common
stock on the first and last trading days of eagmsdbnth offering period. Through December 31, 2Gi@®shares have yet been issued under the
ESPP. A total of 1,666,666 shares of common staefe lbeen reserved for issuance under the ESPPDexember 31, 2010.

11. Income Taxes
No provision for U.S. income taxes has been ma@etdweumulative losses since the commencementerhtipns.
A provision for income taxes of $0.2 million, $26@and $0.1 million, has been recognized for thewryended December 31, 2010, 2009

and 2008, respectively, related primarily to oussdiaries located outside of the United States. @t loss before provision for income taxes
for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 angl, 20@s follows (in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Domestic $154,73: $56,98: $82,96:
International (579 (1,269 (27§)
Loss before income tax $154,15! $55,71¢ $82,68¢
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The components of the provision for income taxeste years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 26©8s follows (in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Current:
Federal $— $— $—
State 9 4 1
Foreign 177 (53 181
Total current 18€ (49) 182
Deferred:
Federal — — —
State — — —
Foreign (13 75 (85)
Total deferrec (13 75 (85)
Total provision for income taxe $17¢ $ 26 $ 97
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) as of December2B10 and 2009, consist of the following (in thaods):
December 31,
2010 2009
Deferred tax assets
Net operating loss car-forwards $ 140,64. $ 96,02:
Research and development cre: 13,34 8,82¢
Deferred revenu 16C 12¢
Inventory and warranty reserv 2,60¢ 2,02¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,12¢ —
Accruals and othet 2,94( 1,382
Total deferred tax asse 160,82( 108,37
Valuation allowanct (160,80:) (108,27))
Deferred tax liabilities:
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiat — (65)
Depreciation and amortizatic — (29)
Net deferred tax asse $ 17 $ 12

Reconciliation of statutory federal income taxestio effective taxes for the years ended Decembge?@10, 2009 and 2008, is as
follows:

2010 2009 2008
Tax at statutory federal ra $(52,417) $(18,949) $(28,117)
State ta—net of federal benef (5,842 (2,825 (4,252)
Nondeductible expens: 9,31( 514 211
Foreign income rate differenti 254 (72 2
U.S. tax credit: (4,406 (2,499 (3,769
Prior period adjustmet 73€ 4,80¢ 5,78¢
Change in valuation allowan 52,53¢ 19,04 30,22¢
Provision for income taxe $ 178 $ 26 $ 97

Management believes that based on the availalbeniation, it is more likely than not that the degertax assets will not be realized,
such that a full valuation allowance is requirediagt all U.S. deferred tax assets.
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As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately $888on of federal and $278 million of Californigperating loss carry-forwards
available to offset future taxable income whichiex|in varying amounts beginning in 2024 for fedewrad 2019 for state if unused.
Additionally, we have research and developmenttaxlits of approximately $8.0 million and $8.1 moitl for federal and state income tax
purposes, respectively. If not utilized, the fedleeary-forwards will expire in various amounts begng in 2019. However, the state credits
can be carried forward indefinitely.

Federal and state laws impose substantial restnietdn the utilization of net operating loss andd@dit carryforwards in the event of ¢
“ownership change,as defined in Section 382 of the Internal RevenodeCPrior to our IPO, we performed a study anddetdrmined that r
significant limitation will be placed on the utiéiion of our net operating loss and tax creditycéorwards. We do not believe that our IPO
would constitute an ownership change resultingnitations on our ability to use our net operatiogs and tax credit carry-forwards; however,
we have not yet performed a study subsequent ttRélito determine whether such limitations exist.

Uncertain Tax Positions

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted new accogmiridance related to the recognition, measuremetipresentation of uncertain tax
positions. As a result, we recorded net unrecoghtiar benefits of $11.5 million with an offset teetdeferred tax assets with a full valuation
allowance.

The aggregate changes in the balance of our grossagnized tax benefits during the years endecmber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
are as follows (in thousands):

January 1, 200 $14,48(
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeing current yee 57&
December 31, 200 15,05¢
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeing current yee 541
December 31, 200 15,59¢
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeing current yee 797
December 31, 201 $16,39:

Accrued interest and penalties related to unre@eghiax benefits are classified as income tax esgpand was zero. As of December 31,
2010, unrecognized tax benefits of $16.4 millidmecognized, would not affect our effective tateras the tax benefits would increase a
deferred tax asset which is currently fully offagth a full valuation allowance. We do not antidipshat the amount of existing unrecognized
tax benefits will significantly increase or decreagthin the next 12 months. We file income taxures in the United States, California, vari
states, the United Kingdom and other foreign judsons. Tax years 2007 to 2010 remain subjecktorenation for federal purposes, and tax
years 2006 to 2010 remain subject to examinatio€&ifornia purposes. All net operating losses tndcredits generated to date are subje
adjustment for U.S. federal and California purpo3ex years 2005 to 2010 remain open for examinatimther U.S. state and foreign
jurisdictions.

12. Information about Geographic Areas

We have determined that we operate in one repostiggnent which is the design, development, marwfact and sales of electric
vehicles and electric vehicle powertrain components
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The following tables set forth revenues and longdi assets by geographic area (in thousands). Reu®ngeography is based on the
billing address of the customer.

Revenues
2010 2009 2008
North America $ 41,86¢ $ 90,83: $14,74:
Europe 70,54: 21,11( —
Asia 4,33¢ — —

$116,74« $111,94 $14,74:

North American revenues are comprised primarilly . revenues.

Long-lived Assets

December 31

2010 2009
United State! $119,01- $22,667
International 3,58¢ 86¢
Total $122,59¢ $23,53¢

13. Strategic Partnerships
Daimler AG

In May 2009, we sold 19,901,290 shares of Seriesrizertible preferred stock to Blackstar Investtd_l an affiliate of Daimler, for
aggregate proceeds of $50.0 million. As we haveigenl and are providing development services foaféihiate of a significant stockholder,
these transactions are considered related partyacsions.

Daimler Smart Fortwo Program

In May 2009, we and Daimler formalized a developtregrangement related to Daimler’'s Smart fortwagle vehicle program under
which we were performing powertrain developmenivit@s since 2008. In May 2009, we entered intagreement with Daimler related to
development of a battery pack and charger for DaisiSmart fortwo electric drive. We began develeptefforts in the year ended
December 31, 2008 and began receiving paymentnpensate us for the cost of our development éiesvprior to entering into the formal
agreement in May 2009. We received aggregate pagnmethe amount of $10.2 million during 2008 farr services; however, we deferred
recognition for these payments received in advafitke execution of the final agreement becausanaber of significant contractual terms
were not in place prior to that time. Upon enteiiimg the final agreement in May 2009, we had nesgtiand deferred an aggregate of
$14.5 million under the agreement. Under the tesfrike final agreement, Daimler was to pay us afitexhal $8.7 million subject to
successful completion and acceptance of certaialdpment milestones.

We recognized the $14.5 million paid in advancéhefexecution of the final agreement as deferregldpment compensation on a
straight-line basis. This amount was recognized the expected life of the agreement, beginninglay 2009 and continuing through
November 2009. Payments received upon the achieverheevelopment milestones subsequent to theutioecof the final agreement in M
2009 were recognized upon achievement and acceptdribe respective milestones. All amounts reakiveder this agreement were
recognized as an offset to research and developexpenses, as we were performing
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development activities on behalf of Daimler, weeinly compensated for the cost of these activithescauld not practicably separate the
efforts or costs related to these activities fram @wvn research and development. During the yede@December 31, 2009, we recognized
$23.2 million in development compensation, as dsedfio research and development expenses. Asadrbtger 31, 2009, all development
work related to the development agreement had beepleted, and we had recognized the full $23.Haniunder the development agreem
During the year ended December 31, 2009, we regd¢otal payments from Daimler in the amount of $1rhillion. As of December 31, 2010
and 2009, there were amounts receivable of $0 arfirsillion from Daimler related to this agreement.

Upon completion of the development activities, vegdmn selling powertrain components to Daimler fier $mart fortwo program.
Powertrain component sales are recorded in autgmetiles revenue and during the years ended Dec&hp2010 and 2009, we recognized
revenue of $21.1 million and $0.4 million, respeely. During the year ended December 31, 2010,egeived total payments from Daimler in
the amount of $18.3 million. As of December 31, @@hd 2009, there were amounts receivable of $8l®mnand $0.4 million, respectively,
from Daimler related to the sales of powertrain poments.

Daimler A-Class Program

During the three months ended March 31, 2010, Daimlso engaged us to assist with the developmmehpeoduction of a battery pack
and charger for a pilot fleet of its A-Class elactehicles to be introduced in Europe during 204/ began providing development services
for this program during the three months ended W&, 2010 and had received an aggregate of $3ibmin payments; however, as we had
not executed a final agreement related to thisnamgs of March 31, 2010, we deferred the $5.5anilbf payments that had been received
from Daimler to that point. In May 2010, we exealgefinal agreement under which Daimler would maétditional payments to us for the
successful completion of certain development noless and the delivery of prototype samples. Asexddnber 31, 2010, all development
work related to the development agreement had beepleted, and we had recognized the full $14.4aniunder the development agreem
During the year ended December 31, 2010, we red¢otal payments from Daimler in the amount of $laillion. As of December 31, 2010,
there were no amounts receivable from Daimler eelléd this agreement.

Costs of development services incurred prior tdfithedization of the A-Class agreement were recdradg research and development
expenses. During the three months ended March@®10), 2ve recorded $0.5 million of such costs in aede and development.

Toyota Motor Corporation

In July 2010, concurrent with the closing of ou®lRve sold 2,941,176 shares of our common stodloymta at a price per share eque
the IPO price, in a private placement transactiarspant to which we received proceeds of $50.0anillAs we are providing development
services to Toyota, these transactions are comsidetated party transactions.

Toyota RAV4 Program

In July 2010, we and Toyota entered into a Phasgr@ement to initiate development of an electriwgrtrain for the Toyota RAVA4.
Under this early phase development agreement, tgypee would be made by us by combining the Toydt®&Rmodel with a Tesla electric
powertrain. We began producing and delivering gyges to Toyota during the three months ended &dpte 30, 2010. Pursuant to the
agreement, Toyota will pay us up to $9 million foe anticipated development services to be provigeds and during the year ended
December 31, 2010, we recognized $1.0 million ivettgpment services revenue. During the year endszeber 31, 2010, we received total
payments from Toyota of $0.5 million. As of DecemBg&, 2010, there were amounts receivable of $0®mfrom Toyota related to this
agreement.
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In October 2010, we entered into a Phase 1 corgegwices agreement with Toyota for the developroéatvalidated powertrain system,
including a battery, power electronics module, magearbox and associated software, which willitegrated into an electric vehicle version
of the Toyota RAV4. Pursuant to the agreement, Taoydll pay us up to $60.0 million for the succegsfompletion of certain development
milestones and the delivery of prototype sampleduding a $5.0 million upfront payment that weawed upon the execution of the
agreement. During the year ended December 31, 204 6pmpleted the first milestone and along with dimortization of our upfront payme
we recognized $3.3 million in development serviegnue. As of December 31, 2010, we had defede@ ifillion of the upfront payment in
deferred revenues. During the year ended Decenihe(3.0, we received total payments from Toyotd%0 million and as of December 31,
2010, there were amounts receivable of $2.3 miliiom Toyota related to this agreement.

Panasonic Corporation

In November 2010, we sold 1,418,573 shares of oomaon stock to Panasonic at a price of $21.15 lpemes which was the average of
the trading highs and lows of our common stock f@otober 25 to October 29, 2010. As we are puradigdsattery cells from Panasonic anc
subsidiaries, these transactions are consideratédeparty transactions. During the year ended mbee 31, 2010, we made total payments to
Panasonic and its subsidiaries of $23.0 million andf December 31, 2010, there were amounts pagalziccrued of $2.3 million to
Panasonic.

14. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

Our corporate headquarters and powertrain producji@rations are based in Palo Alto, California nehee have leased a facility
consisting of 350,000 square feet. This lease egpir January 2016. We also lease office spacer umutecancelable operating leases with
various expiration dates through December 2022t Bgrense for the years ended December 31, 2000, &@d 2008, was $6.3 million, $3.2
million, and $1.5 million, respectively.

Capital Leases

We have entered into various agreements to leaspragnt under capital leases over terms betweeam860 months. The equipment
under the leases are collateral for the lease afidigs and are included within property, plant agdipment, net, on the consolidated balance
sheets under the categories of computer equipnmeing@ftware and office furniture and equipment.

Future minimum commitments for leases as of DecerBbge2010 are as follows (in thousands):

Operating Capital
Leases Leases
2011 $ 6,79¢ $ 31¢€
2012 6,62¢ 28¢€
2013 6,561 21¢
2014 6,431 —
2015 and thereaftt 27,02! —
Total minimum lease paymer $53,43! 828
Less: Amounts representing interest not yet inel 48
Present value of capital lease obligati 77t
Less: Current portio 27¢
Long-term portion of capital lease obligatic 49€
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Pursuant to a supply agreement with Lotus Carsteitihniwe are required to purchase a minimum of 2ptd@ally assembled vehicles or
gliders over the term of the agreement regardlésshether we are able to market and distributeTibgla Roadster. Based on the foreign
exchange rate for the British Pound as of DecerBbhe2010 and the most recent price per vehicleggiienated obligation for the remaining
purchase is approximately $15 million which willooe through January 2012.

In May 2010, we entered into an agreement to pselaa existing automobile production facility laain Fremont, California from
NUMMI (see Note 4). NUMMI has previously identifieghvironmental conditions at the Fremont site whaffbct soil and groundwater, anc
currently undertaking efforts to address these itimmd. Although we have been advised by NUMMI thidtas documented and managed the
environmental issues, we have not yet performeid-aepth environmental assessment on this facgitgl we cannot determine the potential
costs to remediate any pre-existing contaminatith any certainty at this time. Based on managetadeist estimate, we estimated the fair
value of the environmental liabilities that we asgal to be $5.3 million. The fair value of theséilities was determined based on an expected
value analysis of the related potential costs vestigate, remediate and manage various enviroraheonditions that were identified as part of
NUMMI’s facility decommissioning activities as well asr@wn diligence efforts. As NUMMI continues witts idecommissioning activities
and we continue with our planned construction goekating activities, it is reasonably possible that estimate of environmental liabilities
may change materially.

We have reached an agreement with NUMMI under wtogkr a ten year period, we will pay the first ELl&illion of any costs of any
governmentally-required remediation activities dontamination that existed prior to the completibhe facility and land purchase for any
known or unknown environmental conditions, and NUMis agreed to pay the next $15.0 million for sterhediation activities. Our
agreement provides, in part, that NUMMI will pay tapthe first $15.0 million on our behalf if suckpenses are incurred in the first four years
of our agreement, subject to our reimbursementicii €osts on the fourth anniversary date of theitp

On the ten-year anniversary of the closing or wkien&30.0 million has been spent on the remediatadivities, whichever comes first,
NUMMI ’s liability to us with respect to remediation adties ceases, and we are responsible for any laedaronmental conditions at the
Fremont site. At that point in time, we have agreemhdemnify, defend, and hold harmless NUMMI frathliability and we have released
NUMMI for any known or unknown claims except for NI 's obligations for representations and warrantiegen the agreement. As of
December 31, 2010, we have accrued $5.3 millicatedlto these environmental liabilities (see Ngte 4

15. Subsequent Events
DOE Loan Facility Draw-Down
In February 2011, we received additional loans uttte DOE Loan Facility for $15.6 million at intsterates ranging from 2.6% to 3.0%.
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16. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following table includes selected quarterlyuissof operations data for the years ended Decethe2010 and 2009 (in thousands,
except per share data):

Three months ended

March 31 June 30 September 3( December 3
2010
Total revenue $ 20,81: $ 28,40t $ 31,24: $ 36,28¢
Gross profil 3,852 6,261 9,29¢ 11,32:
Net loss (29,519 (38,51 (34,93) (51,35¢)
Net loss per share, basic and dilu (4.09) (5.09) (0.3¢) (0.59)
2009
Total revenue $ 20,88¢ $ 26,94t $ 45,527 $ 18,58¢
Gross profit (loss (2,04¢) 2,101 7,69¢ 1,781
Net loss (16,016 (20,86 (4,615 (24,247
Net loss per share, basic and dilu (2.3)) (1.5€) (0.6€) (3.49)
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our cleeécutive officer and chief financial officer, évated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of Decemhe2(®.0. The term “disclosure controls and procesiliras defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means controls dmet grocedures of a company that are designedsirehat information required to
disclosed by a company in the reports that it flesubmits under the Exchange Act is recorded;geesed, summarized and reported, within
the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules amch. Disclosure controls and procedures includiiout limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it filesubmits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company’s nesinegt, including its principal executive and prpadifinancial officers, as appropriate
to allow timely decisions regarding required disciee. Based on the evaluation of our disclosuréretsnand procedures as of December 31,
2010, our chief executive officer and chief finaafficer concluded that, as of such date, oucld®ire controls and procedures were effe
at the reasonable assurance level.

Management recognizes that any controls and proesdno matter how well designed and operatedpoaride only reasonable
assurance of achieving their objectives and managemecessarily applies its judgment in evaluatiiregcost-benefit relationship of possible
controls and procedures.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include@ort of management’s assessment regarding ihteong&ol over financial
reporting or an attestation report of our registgrablic accounting firm as permitted in this tri¢ing period under the rules of the SEC for
newly public companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control divancial reporting identified in management’s exstlon pursuant to Rules 13a-15(d)
or 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act during the quaetasted December 31, 2010 that materially affeaiedre reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial repagi

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this Item 10 of FormK@hat is found in our 2011 Proxy Statement tdileel with the SEC in connection
with the solicitation of proxies for our 2011 Annihdeeting of Stockholders (2011 Proxy Statemenihd®rporated by reference to our 2011
Proxy Statement. The 2011 Proxy Statement willilee fvith the SEC within 120 days after the endhef fiscal year to which this report
relates.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 of FormK@hat is found in our 2011 Proxy Statement isiporated by reference to our 2011
Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 of FormK@hat is found in our 2011 Proxy Statement isiporated by reference to our 2011
Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 of FormK®hat is found in our 2011 Proxy Statement ioiporated by reference to our 2011
Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 15 of FormK@hat is found in our 2011 Proxy Statement isiporated by reference to our 2011
Proxy Statement.

ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
1. Financial Statements. S“Index to Consolidated Financial Statem” in Part IlI, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Forn-K.

2. Exhibits. The exhibits listed in the accompagyimdex to Exhibits” are filed or incorporated bgference as part of this Annual Report
on Form 1-K.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe S-1 333-164593 3.1 January 29, 201
Registran

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Regist S-1 333-164593 3.2 January 29, 201

4.1 Specimen common stock certificate of the Regis! S-1/A 333164593 4.1 May 27, 201C

4.2 Fifth Amended and Restated Inves’ Rights Agreemen S-1 332-164593 4.2 January 29, 201
dated as of August 31, 2009, between Registrantaridin
holders of the Registre’s capital stock named there

4.2A Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Inves®ights S-1/A  333-164593 4.2A May 27, 2010
Agreement, dated as of May 20, 2010, between Ragisand
certain holders of the Registr’s capital stock named there

4.2B Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Inve’ Rights S-1/A 333164593 4.2B  May 27, 201(
Agreement between Registrant, Toyota Motor Corpomand
certain holders of the Registr’s capital stock named there

4.2C Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Inv's Rights S-1/A 333164593 4.2C  June 15, 201
Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2010, between tRagiand
certain holders of the Registr’s capital stock named there

4.2D Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Inves®ights 8-K 001-34756 4.1 November 4, 201
Agreement, dated as of November 2, 2010, betwegistRant
and certain holders of the Registrant’s capitatisttamed
therein

4.3 Registration Rights Agreement between the UnitedeSt S-1/A 333-164593 4.3 May 27, 2010
Department of Energy and the Registrant dated darofary
20, 201C

4.3A Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement betwhke S-1/A 333164593 4.3A May 27, 201C

United States Department of Energy and the Registtated a
of May 21, 201(
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
4.4 Warrant to Purchase Shares of Preferred Stockddsy¢he S-1/A  333-164593 4.4 May 27, 2010
Registrant to the United States Department of Bndeged
January 20, 201
4.5 Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock issyétel S-1/A 333164593 4.5 May 27, 201(

Registrant to the United States Department of Bndeged May
21, 201C

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Riegig and S-1/A 333-164593 10.1  June 15, 2010
its directors and officer

10.2 2003 Equity Incentive Pla S-1/A 333164593 10.2 May 27, 201C

10.3 Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2003 Equigeltive  S-1 333164593 10.3  January 29, 201
Plan

10.3A Grant Notice and Stock Option Agreement betweer S-1/A 333164593 10.3A March 29, 201(
Registrant and Elon Mus

104 2010 Equity Incentive Pla S-1/A 333164593 10.4 May 27, 201C

10.5 Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2010 Equiteltive S-1/A 333164593 10.5 March 29, 201(
Plan

10.6 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement un2@t0 S-1/A  333-164593 10.6  March 29, 2010
Equity Incentive Plal

10.7 2010 Employee Stock Purchase F S-1/A 333164593 10.7 May 27, 201C

10.8 Form of Purchase Agreement under 2010 Employee&kStoc  S-1/A  333-164593 10.8 June 15, 2010
Purchase Pla

10.9 Offer Letter between the Registrant and Elon Musted S-1 333-164593 10.9 January 29, 2010
October 13, 200

10.10 Offer Letter between the Registrant and Deepak Aldajed S-1 333-164593 10.10 January 29, 2010
June 13, 2008, and amended June 4, .

10.11 Relocation Agreement between the Registrant angh&eAhuje S-1 333-164593 10.11 January 29, 201
effective October 31, 2008 and amended June 4,

10.12 Offer Letter between the Registrant and JeffregBaubel date S-1 333-164593 10.12 January 29, 201
May 6, 2004

10.13 Offer Letter between the Registrant and Michaddénoughe  S-1 333-164593 10.13 January 29, 2010

dated June 4, 2008, and amended December 10,
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Exhibit
Number

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23t

10.23At

10.23B%

Exhibit Description
Offer Letter between the Registrant and John Walkéed

August 17, 200

Relocation Agreement between the Registrant and
Walker dated January 26, 20

Offer Letter between the Registrant and Jon Soaield
August 30, 200¢

Offer Letter between the Registrant and GilbertsiPadatec
January 1, 201

Commercial Single-Tenant Lease between the Regtstra
and Russell A. and Deborah B. Margiotta, Trustdehe
Margiotta Family Trust UTA May 26, 1981 dated Juhe
2005

Commercial Single-Tenant Lease between the Regtstra
and James R. Hull dated August 16, 2

Commercial Lease between the Registrant and ThedBd:
Trustees of The Leland Stanford Jr. University dakely
25, 2007

License Agreement between the Registrant and M3k
Northrop Avenue, LLC dated July 23, 20

Commercial Lease between the Registrant and ThedBd:
Trustees of The Leland Stanford Jr. University datagusit
6, 2009

Supply Agreement for Products and Services betwetus
Cars Limited and the Registrant dated July 11, -

Amendment No. 1 to Supply Agreement between Lotas
Limited and the Registrant dated August 4, 2

Amendment No. 2 to Supply Agreement between Lotais
Limited and the Registrant dated March 22, 2
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S-1 333-164593 10.14  January 29, 2010

S-1 333164593 10.15 January 29, 201

S-1 335164593 10.16  January 29, 201

S-1 335164593 10.17  January 29, 201

S-1 333-164593 10.18 January 29, 2010

S-1 333-164593 10.19 January 29, 2010

S-1 333-164593 10.20 January 29, 2010

S1 332164593 10.21  January 29, 201

S-1 333-164593 10.22  January 29, 2010

S1 3332164593 10.23  January 29, 201

S1 3332164593 10.23A January 29, 201

S-1/A  333-164593 10.23B March 29, 2010
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Exhibit
Number

10.24t

10.25t

10.26%

10.27t

10.27At

10.28t

10.29t

10.30t

10.31t

10.32t

10.32A

10.32B¥

Incorporated by Reference Filed
Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
Supply Agreement between Eberspacher (UK) Ltd.thed S-1/A 333-164593 10.24  March 29, 2010
Registrant dated September 1, 2
Supply Agreement between Perei Group (UK) Ltd. lex  S-1/A 333164593 10.25  March 29, 201(
Registrant dated September 1, 2
Supply Agreement between Burgaflex (UK) Ltd. anel
Registrant dated September 1, 2 S-1/A 333-16459: 10.2¢ March 29, 201
Supply Agreement by and among Sanyo Electric Cab.
Mobile Energy Company, Sanyo Energy (USA) Corporz
and the Registrant dated February 1, 2 S-1 33:-16459: 10.27 January 29, 20:
Amendment No. 1 to Supply Agreement by and an
Sanyo Electric Co. Ltd. Mobile Energy Company aathy®
Energy (USA) Corporation and the Registrant effectis o
February 1, 200 S-1 33%-16459: 10.27A January 29, 20:
Supply Agreement by and between Taiway Ltd. and the
Registrant dated February 12, 2( S1 33:-16459: 10.2¢ March 29, 201
Supply Agreement between Chroma ATE Inc. anc S-1/A 333164593 10.29 March 29, 201(
Registrant dated April 19, 20(
Supply Agreement between Polytec Holden Ltd. aex S-1/A 333164593 10.30 March 29, 201(
Registrant dated April 13, 20(
Modification to Terms and Conditions between Borgliéat S-1 333-164593 10.31  January 29, 2010
TorqTransfer Systems Inc. and the Registrant dated
September 22, 20(
ZEV Credits Agreement between American Honda M S-1/A 333164593 10.32 May 27, 201(
Co., Inc. and the Registrant dated February 129.
Addendum to ZEV Credits Agreement between Amer  S-1/A 333164593 10.32A May 27, 201(
Honda Motor Co., Inc. and the Registrant dated tratyr20
2009
Supplemental ZEV Credits Agreement between Americas-1/A 333-164593 10.32B May 27, 2010

Honda Motor Co., Inc. and the Registrant dated M2,
2009
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Exhibit
Number

10.32Ct

10.33t

10.34t

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Description Form

File No.

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed
Herewith

Second Supplemental ZEV Credits Agreement between S-1/A
American Honda Motor Co., Inc. and the Registraated
February 8, 201

Supply Agreement by and among Panasonic Indu: S-1
Company, Panasonic Corporation, acting throughdgner
Company, and the Registrant dated July 21, :

Exclusivity and Intellectual Property Agreementvoetn S-1/A
Daimler North America Corporation and the Registran

dated May 11, 200

Side Agreement between the Registrant and Blackstar S-1
Investco LLC dated May 11, 20(

Letter Agreement between the Elon Musk RevocahlstlTr S-1
dated July 22, 2003 and Blackstar Investco LLCeda&flay
11, 200¢

Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement bet S-1/A
the United States Department of Energy and the tegit
dated as of January 20, 2C

Note Purchase Agreement by and among the Fe S-1/A
Financing Bank, the Registrant and the SecretaBnefgy

dated as of January 20, 2C

Future Advance Promissory Note made by the Registne S-1/A
favor of the Federal Financing Bank dated as ofidan20,

2010

Future Advance Promissory Note made by the Regisin:
favor of the Federal Financing Bank dated as ofidgn20,
2010

Pledge and Security Agreement made by the Regisarah S-1/A
the Grantors party thereto in favor of Midland Loan
Services, Inc. dated as of January 20, Z

S-1/A

148

333-164593

33E-164593

333-164593

333-164593

333-164593

33E-164593

333-164593

33E-164593

33E-164593

333-164593

10.32C

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

May 27, 2010

January 29, 201

March 29, 2010

January 29, 2010

January 29, 2010

May 27, 201(

May 27, 2010

May 27, 201C

May 27, 201C

May 27, 2010
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.42

10.43t

10.44

10.45

10.45A

10.45B

10.45C

10.45D

10.45E

Guarantee made by the Guarantors party theretovor of
the United States Department of Energy, the Federal

Financing Bank and the holders of the notes desdrib
therein dated as of January 20, 2

Development Contract between Daimler AG and Tesla

Motors Ltd. dated May 10, 20!

Settlement Agreement between the Registrant aritiesnt

affiliated with Valor Equity Partners dated May 2010

Letter Agreement between the Registrant and Newed

Motor Manufacturing, Inc. dated May 26, 2C
Amendment No. 1 to the Letter Agreement betweer

Registrant and New United Motor Manufacturing, ldatec

June 15, 201

Amendment No. 2 to the Letter Agreement between the
Registrant and New United Motor Manufacturing, ldatec

October 1, 201!

Amendment No. 3 to the Letter Agreement between the
Registrant and New United Motor Manufacturing, ldatec

October 8, 201!

Amendment No. 4 to the Letter Agreement betweet

Registrant and New United Motor Manufacturing, ldatec

October 13, 201

Amendment No. 5 to the Letter Agreement between the
Registrant and New United Motor Manufacturing, ldatec

October 15, 201
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Form

File No.

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed
Herewith

S-1/A

S-1/A

S-1/A

S-1/A

16-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

333-164593

333-164593

333-164593

335-164593

33E-164593

333-164593

333-164593

33E-164593

333-164593

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

May 27, 2010

May 27, 2010

May 27, 2010

May 27, 201C

November 12, 201

November 12, 201

November 12, 201

November 12, 201

November 12, 201
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
10.45Ft Amendment No. 6 to the Letter Agreement between th#0-Q  333-164593  10.8 November 12, 201
Registrant and New United Motor Manufacturing, Inc.
dated October 19, 20:
10.46 Sale and Purchase Agreement between Registral 1C-Q 333164593 10.1 November 12, 201
New United Motor Manufacturing, Inc., dat
August 13, 201(
10.46A  Addendum No. 1 to the Sale and Purchase Agreemenfl0-Q 333-164593  10.2 November 12, 201
between Registrant and New United Motor
Manufacturing, Inc., dated September 23, 2
10.47t  Phase 1 Contract Services Agreement between the — — — — X
Registrant and Toyota Motor Corporation dated Oet
6, 2010
211 List of Subsidiaries of the Registre — — — — X
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Independent — — — — X
Registered Public Accounting Fir
31.1 Rule 13i-14(a) / 15(d-14(a) Certification of Principe — — — — X
Executive Officel
31.2 Rule 13i-14(a) / 15(d-14(a) Certification of Principe — — — — X

Financial Officer

32.1* Section 1350 Certificatior — —
* Furnished herewit
t  Confidential treatment has been requested forgustof this exhibi
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Tesla Motors, Inc

Date: March 3, 201 /s/ Elon Musk
Elon Musk
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Elon Musk Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal March 3, 2011
Elon Musk Executive Officer)

/s/ Deepak Ahuja Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial March 3, 2011
Deepak Ahuji Officer)

/s/ Brad Buss Director March 3, 2011
Brad Bus:

/sl Ahmed Saif Al Darmak Director March 3, 2011
Ahmed Saif Al Darmak

/s/ Ira Ehrenprei Director March 3, 2011
Ira Ehrenprei

/s/ Antonio Gracia: Director March 3, 2011
Antonio Gracia:

s/ Stephen Jurvets( Director March 3, 2011
Stephen Jurvets(

/sl Herbert Kohle Director March 3, 2011
Herbert Kohle

/s/ Kimbal Musk Director March 3, 2011
Kimbal Musk
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Exhibit 10.47
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED BY TESLA MOTORS, | NC.

TESLA AND TMC CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
EXECUTION VERSION

PHASE 1 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT

This PHASE 1 CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENTAgreement”) is made and entered into as of this Octob&08,0 (“Effective
Date”) by and between Toyota Motor Corporation, a Jasarcorporation, with offices at 1 Toyota-cho, Tiaydichi 471-8571, Japan (“
TMC "), and Tesla Motors, Inc., a Delaware corporatigith offices at 3500 Deer Creek Road, Palo Altd, @304, U.S.A. (“Tesla”). TMC
and Tesla may be referred to herein each indivigael a “Party ” and collectively as the Parties”.

RECITALS

A. Tesla has pre-existing technology and intellatproperty rights relating to powertrain systemsElectric Vehicles (as defined
below);

B. TMC has pre-existing technology and intellectmaperty rights relating to the manufacturing, i@pi@g and selling of a variety of
vehicles;

C. The Parties wish to work together to develogtie Vehicles based on the TMC RAV4 platfoffRAV4 Platform”) and the Tesla
Powertrain System (as defined below) (tReoject ");

D. The Parties have executed that certain Protdtgpse to Use and Services Agreement, dated JuB0L®, regarding Phase 0 purst
to which Tesla will (a) lease to TMC and its Affites (as defined below) for their use operationatigpype Phase-0 Electric Vehicles of the
RAV4 Platform that Tesla will equip with the exisgi Tesla Powertrain System, and (b) provide sesviceustomize RAV4 Platforms owned
by TMC or one of its Affiliates to equip such RAWPatforms with the existing Tesla Powertrain System

E. Phase 1 involves more comprehensive integratidine Tesla Powertrain System into the RAV4 Platfavhich integration will
involve developing certain interfaces and technplogtween the Tesla Powertrain System and RAV4dperatand is likely to require certain
modifications to the core Tesla Powertrain Systechthe RAV4 Platform. The result from Phase 1 tlan Electric Vehicle version of the
RAV4 Platform(“RAV4 EV”) that can be manufactured at scale; and

F. The Parties have agreed to negotiate a segetement regarding the supply and manufacturteeoRAV4 EV (the “
Manufacturing and Supply Agreement”).

-1-
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CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED BY TESLA MOTORS, | NC.

TESLA AND TMC CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
EXECUTION VERSION

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual pises contained herein, the Parties agree as fallows
1. DEFINITIONS

(a) “ Affiliate ” shall mean, with respect to any Party, any offeety directly or indirectly controlling, controtieby, or under common
control with such Party. For purposes of this dé&én, “control” when used with respect to any gntneans the possession, directly or
indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the=diion of the management and policies of suchyemtihether through the ownership of at least
fifty percent (50%) of voting securities, by comtrar otherwise; the terms “controlling” and “cavited” have meanings correlative to the
foregoing. An entity will cease to be an Affiliafesuch control relationship no longer exists. TM@ffiliate shall include TTC, TEMA, TMS
and TMMC, and the expression “TMC” in this Agreemsray be interpreted to refer also to any one ofCTd8/Affiliates whenever
circumstance requires, and for avoidance of ddabfurposes of receiving rights under Sectiona@® 4references to “TMC” includes all of
TMC'’s Affiliates.

(b) “ Background Technology” shall mean all Technology that: (i) was developsahceived or owned by a Party prior to the Effect
Date; or (ii) is conceived or reduced to practigeatParty outside its performance under this Agesgm

(c) “ Business Day' shall mean any day, other than a Saturday or &unoh which banks are open for business in Samciseo,
California and Tokyo, Japan.

(d) “ Confidential Information ” shall mean any information disclosed pursuarthi® Agreement by one Party to the other Partyrdyri
the term of this Agreement which is in written, ginec, machine readable or other tangible form andarked “Confidential,” “Proprietary” or
in some other manner to indicate its confident&tlire, or is otherwise disclosed under circumstaittat reasonably indicate that the
information being disclosed is confidential to thisclosing Party. Confidential Information may alsolude oral information disclosed by one
Party to the other Party in the course of the perémce of this Agreement or information observednduthe course of the development and
technology sharing activities contemplated by Agseement. To the extent practicable, such infoimmaghall be designated as confidential at
the time of disclosure and reduced to a writtenreany, which is marked in a manner to indicate dsfiential nature and delivered to the
receiving Party, within thirty (30) calendar dayteaits oral disclosure. As used herein, “Confiti@nnformation” may include, without
limitation, the Tesla Technology, the TMC TechnglpQualified Disclosures, and documents relatintheodevelopment, manufacturing,
testing, and marketing of the Prototype Powert&iatems, RAV4 Platform, and RAV4 EV which were thsed by either Party to the other
Party, orally, in writing or by drawings or whichewe obtained through inspection of parts of, origgent for, any of the foregoing. For
avoidance of doubt, all Restricted DisclosuresGuoafidential Information of the Party that makes thisclosure.
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CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED BY TESLA MOTORS, | NC.

TESLA AND TMC CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
EXECUTION VERSION

(e) “ Deliverables” shall mean the Prototype Powertrain Systems dlsaseny tangible items to be delivered by TeslaMC, as the
case may be, in the performance of the work desdrii the Statement of Work and Deliverables Scleedine Deliverables include the Initial
Deliverables set forth in the Initial Statemen¥ébrk.

(f) “ Deliverables Schedulé shall mean the schedule, including Delivery Dafesthe Deliverables other than the Initial Deligbles
and the payments and Delivery Dates associatedswith Initial Deliverables, to be mutually agre@dm by the Parties and incorporated
herein by reference.

(9) “ Delivery Dates” shall mean the scheduled completion dates faiquaar Deliverables as set forth in the DeliveesbSchedule.
(h) “ Electric Vehicles” shall mean vehicles that are powered by the Teslaertrain System.

(i) “ Errors " shall mean any material failures or deviationgiDeliverable as measured against the InitiaeStant of Work and
Specification or Final Specifications, as the casg be.

() “ Final Specifications” shall mean the mutually agreed upon technical@hdr specifications for the Prototype Powert@ystems,
RAV4 EV and Phase 1 of the Project, which shallude, without limitation, the TMC EV Spec Book agh Final Specifications may be
revised pursuant to Section 2(e) to be mutuallg@gupon by the Parties and incorporated herenefleyence.

(k) “ Final Statement of Work” shall mean the description of work to be perfodhuader this Agreement to be mutually agreed ugon b
the Parties which will be incorporated into thisrégment by reference and may be revised pursu&gdtion 2(e).

() “ Foreground Technology” shall mean any and all Technology first conceivéelveloped or reduced to tangible form or practice
under this Agreement.

(m) “ Initial Deliverables ” shall mean the tangible items to be delivered’bgla in connection with the performance of thekwvor
described in the Initial Statement of Work and $fmeation as mutually agreed upon by the Partiewiiting.

(n) “ Initial Statement of Work and Specification” shall mean the description of the initial worklde performed under this Agreement
and the technical and other specifications for sumotk, all as mutually agreed by the Parties irtingi

(o) “ Intellectual Property Rights ” shall mean all rights in or arising under (i) aPgtents; (ii) all copyrights in both published and
unpublished works, all registrations and appligaitherefor and all associated moral rights; &iiknow-how, Trade Secrets, inventions
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CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED BY TESLA MOTORS, | NC.

TESLA AND TMC CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
EXECUTION VERSION

(whether patented or not), confidential informatisaftware, technical information, data, procesbit@logy, plans, drawings and blueprints
required to be disclosed by either Party to thewoBarty; and (iv) databases, data compilationscafidctions and technical data; and (v) any
other similar rights in or arising worldwide, inadracase, whether arising under the laws of theddrBtates or any other state, country, or
jurisdiction.

(p) “ Inventions ” shall mean any discovery, invention or improveirfinst developed, conceived or reduced to praatice® tangible
form pursuant to this Agreement.

(q) “ Jointly-Developed Technology' shall mean Foreground Technology that is createdceived, authored or invented jointly by at
least one Person from each of the Parties whorsoReel within the definition in this Agreement.

() “ Non-Powertrain Technology” shall mean all Technology other than Powertragefihology, including without limitation, the
Technology set forth on Exhibit C

(s) “Non-Qualified Jointly-Developed Technology shall mean all Jointly-Developed Technology tisatot Qualified Jointly-
Developed Technology.

(t) “ Patents” shall mean all classes or types of patents tytifiodels and design patents including, withoufthtion, originals,
divisions, continuations, continuations-in-parttegsions or reissues and patent applications &setitlasses or types of patent rights, in all
countries of the world.

(u) “ Person” shall mean any natural person, general partngysilited partnership, corporation, joint ventutreist, business trust,
limited liability company, cooperative, associatmmother form of organization.

(v) “ Personnel” when used with reference to either Party, shaamsuch Party’s employees, agents or other thirikg acting under
the authority from such Party working on mattetatieg to performance under this Agreement.

(w) “ Powertrain Technology” shall mean all Technology set forth on ExhibiaBd other Technology mutually agreed by the Pairies
writing.

(x) “ Project ” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
(y) “ Project Manager” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(h).
(z) “ Prototype Powertrain Systems’ shall mean the Prototype Powertrain Systems ifledtin the Deliverables Schedule.

(aa) “Qualified Disclosure” shall mean (i) all oral disclosures by one Paotyhe other Party, and (i) all disclosures that @ot
Restricted Disclosures.
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CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED BY TESLA MOTORS, | NC.

TESLA AND TMC CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
EXECUTION VERSION

(bb) “ Qualified Jointly-Developed Technology' shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3)(b)(
(cc) “RAV4 EV " shall mean the Electric Vehicle version of the RAPlatform.

(dd) “RAV4 EV Powertrain System” shall mean the Tesla Powertrain System as cugtfor use in the RAV4 EV in accordance
with the Final Statement of Work.

(ee) “Restricted Disclosure” shall mean (i) any information that is not diss#al pursuant to this Agreement, (ii) a Restrictedtén
Disclosure, and (iii) the specific Toyota vehictescomponents that TMC provides to Tesla underAlgiseement. For avoidance of doubt,
inclusion of subsection (iii) as Restricted Discitsin no way limits Tesla’s rights vis a vis angybta vehicles that are not specifically
provided to it under this Agreement which Teslauiezs from the market.

(ff) “ Restricted Written Disclosure” shall mean any written information that is expglgsand clearly marked “RESTRICTED” by the
disclosing Party.

(gg) “ Services” shall mean the services provided by Tesla unidetérms of this Agreement.

(hh) “ Technology” shall mean inventions, technology, discoveriggpliovements, processes, designs, ideas, know-haies,n
memoranda and documentation.

(i) “ TEMA " shall mean Toyota Engineering and ManufacturirggtN America, Inc.

() “ Tesla Background Technology shall mean Background Technology that is Teslactuding, without limitation, all of the Tesla
Background Technology related to Tesla VehiclesBesla Background Technology related to the Tesladptrain System as described on
Exhibit A .

(kk) “ Tesla Foreground Technology”shall mean (i) all Foreground Technology createdceived, authored or invented solely by Tt
and its Personnel in connection with performanageuathis Agreement; and (ii) all Non-Qualified JbyrDeveloped Technology that is
Powertrain Technology.

(I “ Tesla Powertrain Systent shall mean the Tesla electric powertrain systemictvis comprised of the following components:
(i) drive inverter; (ii) AC induction motor; (iiisingle speed gearbox; (iv) charger; (v) lithiimm-battery pack; (vi) thermal management sys
and (vii) powertrain system communication and cmlstr

(mm) “ Tesla Subsidiary” shall mean a subsidiary wholly owned by Teslavided, however, that local minority ownership é&mitted
to the extent necessary to comply with local lamd provided further that such local minority intgrehall not involve a competitor of TMC
without TMC'’s prior written approval.
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CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED BY TESLA MOTORS, | NC.

TESLA AND TMC CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
EXECUTION VERSION

(nn) “ Tesla Technology’ shall mean all Tesla Background Technology ansl& &oreground Technology.
(00) “ Tesla Vehicles’ shall mean the Tesla Roadster, Tesla Model Safirather Tesla-branded vehicles.
(pp) “ TMC Background Technology” shall mean TMC's or its Affiliate’s Background Glenology.

(qq) “ TMC Foreground Technology” shall mean (i) all Foreground Technology creataahceived, authored or invented solely by
TMC and/or a TMC Affiliate and their respective Bamnel in connection with performance under thise&gent; and (ii) all Non-Qualified
Jointly-Developed Technology that is Non-PowertrB@gthnology.

(rr) “ TMC EV Spec Book” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(a).

(ss) “TMC Technology ” shall mean all TMC Background Technology and TR@eground Technology.
(tt) “ TMMC " shall mean Toyota Motor Manufacturing Canada Inc.

(uu) “TMS ” shall mean Toyota Motor Sales, U.S.A., Inc.

(vv) “ TTC " shall mean Toyota Technical Center, a divisiomBMA.

(ww) “ Trade Secrets’ shall mean any Technology or other informatioattfi) derives independent economic value, actugbtential,
from not being generally known to the public ootber persons who could obtain economic value fitsrdisclosure or use; and (ii) is the
subject of efforts that are reasonable under tloeigistances to maintain its secrecy. Without lingitthe generality of the foregoing, Trade
Secrets include business information such as irdtiom set out in, or relating to, cost data, piggmmactices and policies, marketing practices
and policies, licensing practices and policies, dnadidentity and location of past, present, arabpective suppliers and customers.

2. SERVICES

(a) Finalizing the Final Specification§ he Parties agree that the Final SpecificatiDadiverables and payment schedule for the
Deliverables have not been definitively agreedsofithe Effective Date. The Parties will finaliaed mutually agree upon the Final
Specifications, Deliverables and payment schedurl¢hie Deliverables within sixty (60) calendar dayshe Effective Date. The Final
Specifications as mutually agreed to by the Pasiiedl reference TMC’s EV Spec Book to be sepaygisdvided to Tesla hereunder for use in
developing the RAV4 EV Powertrain Systeml(MlC EV Spec Book”).
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(b) Development Each of the Parties shall use its commerciatiysomable efforts to perform the Services and dethe Deliverables in
accordance with the Initial Statement of Work aped@fication or Final Specifications, as the casg/ ipe. For avoidance of doubt, the Initial
Statement of Work and Specification and the FinpdcHications shall contain the full and complditaments of the requirements for the
Deliverables and no additional requirements shtdt éhe requirements for the Deliverables unlessually agreed to by the Parties pursuant to
the process set forth in Section 2(e). Unless atiserdesignated in the Initial Statement of Workl &pecification or Final Statement of Work,
each Party shall have the right to sub-contraairghiart of its development obligations under thigeement; provided that said subcontractors
are bound to observe the provisions of this Agredrend that the delegating Party is liable indlient that subcontractors violate the
provisions of this Agreement (whether or not suehspn or entity is a Party).

(c) Delivery Dates Each Party (the Performing Party ") shall use commercially reasonable efforts to ptate and deliver its
Deliverables by the Delivery Date set forth in eliverables Schedule. The Performing Party agi@estify the other Party (theReceiving
Party ") of any circumstances when and as they arise, thgtl@ad to a deviation from such Delivery DateRPdfiforming Party is not be able
complete performance according to the Initial Steget of Work and Specification or Final StatemenfMork, as the case may be, due to the
Receiving Party’s inability to deliver informatiorecessary for the Performing Party to meet itsgaliibns under the Initial Statement of Work
and Specification or the Final Statement of Woskitee case may be, the scheduled date on whicliveedle was due will be extended for
the time of the delay to meet a Delivery Date f@diverable or other required performance whictiétayed on account of failure of the
Receiving Party to complete a prerequisite perfarcesor deliver prerequisite material in timely fiash Deliverables shall be delivered in such
format and on such media as set forth in the Inffiatement of Work and Specification or Final 8ta¢nt of Work, as the case may be, or as
the Parties may mutually agree upon in writing. Preeforming Party will notify the Receiving Partywriting as soon as reasonably possible,
if it will not be able to deliver a Deliverable Wit the timeframe set forth in the Deliverables &tikle together with the reason for its inability
to do so.

(d) Acceptance Process

(i) Acceptance of NotPrototype Powertrain Systems Deliverabléipon delivery of a Deliverable (including, withtdimitation,
the Initial Deliverables) by the Performing Pamthe Receiving Party, to the extent that the [edble is subject to acceptance, the Receiving
Party will test whether the Deliverable conformsihmaterial respects to the applicable part efltiitial Statement of Work and Specification
or Final Specifications, as the case may be. ExatuBeliverables which are Prototype Powertraint&yss, the Receiving Party will accept or
reject each Deliverable within fifteen (15) Busia&ays after delivery and will give the PerformiPgrty written notice of acceptance or
rejection thereof, provided however, in the evlat &a notice of rejection is not received by th&dtming Party within the fifteenth (15 )
Business Day period, the
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Deliverable shall be deemed to have been acceptdtelReceiving Party at the close of businesderfitteenth (18" ) Business Day of the
period. In the event that a Deliverable containgEewor, the Receiving Party shall have the rightgject the Deliverable and provide written
notice to the Performing Party describing the Emasufficient detail to allow the Performing Pattyreproduce the Error. The Performing
Party will use commercially reasonable effortsdorect the Errors so that the Deliverable confotonthe applicable part of the Initial
Statement of Work and Specification or Final Speatfons, as the case may be, and shall use coraiereasonable efforts to do so within
fifteen (15) Business Days of receiving each ofRieeeiving Party’s written notices regarding theoEs. At the Receiving Party’s request, the
procedure in this Section 2(d)(i) will be repeatéth respect to a revised Deliverable to determihether it is acceptable to the Receiving
Party, unless and until the Receiving Party issad¢ke Performing Party a final rejection of theised Deliverable after rejecting the
Deliverable on at least three (3) prior occasions.

(i) Acceptance of Prototype Powertrain Systemsveehbles. Upon delivery of a Deliverable, which is a Prgfm Powertrain
System, by Tesla to TMC, TMC will test whether fheliverable conforms in all material respects ® &pplicable part of the Initial Statement
of Work and Specification or Final Specificatioas,the case may be. TMC will accept or reject €zaliverable within thirty (30) calendar
days after delivery and will give Tesla written icetof acceptance or rejection thereof, provideddwer, in the event that a notice of rejection
is not received by Tesla within the thirtieth (80calendar day period, the Deliverable shall be d=mkta have been accepted by TMC at the
close of business on the thirtieth 8Pday of the period. In the event that a Deliveead®ntains an Error, TMC shall have the right jeaethe
Deliverable and provide written notice to Teslaaldsng the Error in sufficient detail to allow Tlado reproduce the Error. Tesla will use
commercially reasonable efforts to correct the Erew that the Deliverable conforms to the appleghart of the Initial Statement of Work and
Specification or Final Specifications, as the acasg be, and shall use commercially reasonableteffordo so within thirty (30) calendar days
of receiving each of TMC'’s written notices regaglthe Errors. At TMC'’s request, the procedure is Section 2(d)(ii) will be repeated with
respect to a revised Deliverable to determine wdreths acceptable to TMC, unless and until TM§liss to Tesla a final rejection of the
revised Deliverable after rejecting the Deliveratfeat least three (3) prior occasions. If a Peyes a final rejection of the revised
Deliverable pursuant to Sections 2(d)(i) or 2(l)fine Receiving Party’s sole remedy and the Pevifog Party’s sole liability under this
Agreement shall be (1) in the case of TMC as theeRéng Party, to withhold payment for the rejeceliverable only and/or terminate this
Agreement by providing written notice to Tesla,lsnotice to be effective upon Tesla’s receipt, @)dn the case of Tesla as the Receiving
Party, to terminate this Agreement by providingtten notice to TMC, such notice to be effective ugdC’s receipt. For avoidance of doubt,
Tesla’s right to payments under Section 5 thatwetias of the date of termination of this Agreemsimall survive in all cases.

(e) Change Order Proces$he Parties recognize and acknowledge that tha Sipecifications and Final Statement of Work megd to
be revised as the work described therein continlies Parties shall cooperate and work in good faithdapt any such revisions as needed

-8-
**Confidential treatment requested pursuant t@quest for confidential treatment filed with thec@sties and Exchange Commission. Omitted portizange been filed separately with the
Commission



CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED BY TESLA MOTORS, | NC.

TESLA AND TMC CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
EXECUTION VERSION

in accordance with the procedure set forth in 8@stion 2(e). Either Party may submit to the ofPenty proposed changes, modifications,
alternations or other adjustments to the Final Bipations or Final Statement of Work with the effef the proposal on dates in the Final
Statement of Work and/or estimated cost€lfange Request). Upon the receipt of any Change Request, theivety Party will provide
written comments to requesting Party within founté®4) calendar days including comments on wheteechanges to the Final Specificatic
Final Statement of Work (including dates thereim) aosts will be acceptable. The Parties will neegetin good faith regarding the proposed
changes. Once the Parties agree in writing oneltmest of the Change Request, the Change Requekbsledfective. Each Party agrees to be
reasonable in implementing the Change Order pradessibed in this Section 2(e).

(f) Designation of Line Items as Powertrain or N@owertrain. For each of the line items of work listed in th#ial Statement of Work
and Specification and for each of the line itemgvofk listed in the Final Specifications and FiSshtement of Work, the Parties shall mutually
agree in writing on whether each such line itemoisiprised of Powertrain Technology or Non-Powentieéchnology. The Parties shall work
together in good faith to make such designatiomkssinall use the lists of Powertrain Technology Biod-Powertrain Technology set forth in
the Exhibits Band Chereto as a guide when making such assignment?dties shall also designate the line items in@imgnge Order as
Powertrain or Non-Powertrain and no Change Ordelt ble approved unless such designation has beda.ma

(9) Process for Provision and Receipt of Restritt&idten Disclosures

(i) Each Party shall designate a minimum of twoi@viduals in their respective organizations (eac' Restricted Written
Disclosure Managers’ or “ RDMs ") who will be responsible for managing the acceptaor return of Restricted Written Disclosureg tha
other Party wishes to supply. The initial RDMs Ta@sla shall be Mateo Jaramillo and Mike Taylor. Tfigal RDMs for TMC shall be Edward
Mantey and Seiya Nakao. Each Party may changeDitddRat any time by providing written notice to thiher Party.

(i) If a Party (for the purpose of this Sectior thDisclosing Party”) wishes to provide the other PartyReceiving Party”) with
a written document that the Disclosing Party deti®e in part or in full a Restricted Written Digslrre one representative of the Disclosing
Party shall send the Restricted Written Disclodarthne RDMs for the other Party via the BulletingBa Service (‘BBS”) or other mechanism
mutually agreed to by the Parties. Each Restrié¥eitten Disclosure transmitted shall prominentlgplay the legend “RESTRICTED
DISCLOSURE?" at the top of each page of the docunfdeht document as a whole is restricted or nexhbse sections of the document that
are restricted if only portions of the document@sricted. The email in which the Restricted WéritDisclosure is appended shall include
“RESTRICTED DISCLOSURE” in the subject line for teenail. The RDM for the Receiving Party shall revidne Restricted Written
Disclosure and, within three (3) Business Daysecogiving the document, shall in a written respdogbe Disclosing Party sent via the BBS or
other agreed upon mechanism, either (i) accepddlbament or portions thereof which were markeduah sis a
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Restricted Written Disclosure, or (ii) notify thedblosing Party that it does not agree that theidwmt qualifies as a Restricted Written
Disclosure and is challenging the designation. RB&s for the Parties will discuss their respecipesitions regarding the matter and attempt
to resolve the disagreement in good faith. If tiEV® for the Parties are unable to agree on théntest of the document or portion thereof,
Receiving Party shall have the right to returnRestricted Written Disclosure to the DisclosingtiPaia the BBS or the other agreed upon
mechanism along with a written note indicating tinwet Restricted Written Disclosure is being retdin®ny Restricted Written Disclosure that
is returned to the Disclosing Party shall only haeen reviewed by the Receiving Party’s RDMs aradl stot have been copied, distributed or
otherwise disseminated to any other Receiving Ratgonnel or third parties. All documents provitiethe Receiving Party’s RDMs via the
BBS (or other mechanism mutually agreement to yRarties) with the markings described above $iratleemed Restricted Written
Disclosures”.

(iif) For avoidance of doubt, unless otherwise ralljuagreed to by the Parties in writing:

(1) If a Disclosing Party provides a written dissiioe to the other Party outside the process destiibthis Section 2(g) that
written disclosure can never be deemed a Restrittgitien Disclosure. Any document that is providgda Disclosing Party to the other Party
which document includes a Restricted Written Disole legend but is not provided through the abaseibed process will be deemed to be a
Qualified Disclosure. Moreover, a Disclosing Partsty not go through the process in this Section 2ffgY it has already provided a Qualified
Disclosure to the other side outside of this pre@wd ask for the disclosure to be retroactivebigieated a Restricted Written Disclosure.

(2) If a Disclosing Party first provides informatido the other Party orally and later documentstipeitsame oral information
in a written document, that document cannot becarRestricted Written Disclosure.

(h) Project ManagersEach Party agrees to appoint a project manademfect Manager”) who shall be the principal point of contac
whom all communications between the Parties witipeet to the collaboration and development activitinder this Agreement shall be
directed. The initial Project Manager for Teslalsha Mr. Diarmuid O’Connell, and the initial PraeManager for TMC shall be Mr. Shinya
Kotera. Each Party may change its Project Managanyatime by providing written notice to the otliRarty. Each Project Manager may
appoint a designee to act on the Project Manapehslf for certain tasks by providing written netito the other Party, provided such designee
shall not have the authority to act on its Prodanager’s behalf until such written notice has bpeavided to the other Party. The Project
Managers shall hold periodic meetings to discusgptiogress of the Project.

(i) NHTSA Testing / FMVSS ComplianceTMC will be responsible for NHTSA testing and FI88 compliance testing for the
RAV4 EV and Tesla will provide all commercially smmnable assistance in connection with such testing.
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3. OWNERSHIP

(a) General PrinciplesEach Party shall continue to own all of its Temlogy and Intellectual Property Rights and nottsetyforth in this
Agreement is intended to, or will transfer ownepsbi any Technology or Intellectual Property Rigbt®one Party to the other Party. Except as
expressly set forth in Section 4 (License Grantghimg in this Agreement is intended to grant df giant one Party any licenses to the
Technology or Intellectual Property Rights of thbey Party. The delivery or transfer of title toyaangible Deliverable by one Party to the
other Party shall not imply any grant of any rigbtdicenses to the Technology or Intellectual Rroyp Rights embodied therein. Without
limiting the foregoing:

(i) Tesla Ownership Tesla and/or Tesla Subsidiaries own all righle &ind interest in the Tesla Technology and aéllectual
Property Rights in Tesla Technology.

(i) TMC Ownership. TMC and/or its Affiliates own and shall own aljint, title and interest in all Deliverables ac@ppursuant t
Section 2(d) and paid for pursuant to Section & TC Technology, and all Intellectual Property Riyin the TMC Technology.

(b) JointlyDeveloped Technology

(i) Ownership of Qualified Jointpeveloped TechnologyDuring the term of this Agreement either Partyymeovide the other
Party with written notice that it desires to deyelwintly-Developed Technology with the other Palftyhe Parties agree in writing to develop
such Jointly-Developed Technology, each Party mdlle an equal and undivided one-half (1/2) joinbership interest in all such Jointly-
Developed Technology created, conceived, autharéuvented jointly by the Parties Qualified Jointly-Developed Technology’). For
avoidance of doubt, neither Party is obligatedgiea to any such joint development proposal. Neftzety shall have any duty of accounting
to the other Party with respect to its joint owimgpsnterest in any Qualified Jointly-Developed firology.

(i) Non-Qualified JointlyDeveloped Technologylf the Parties do not agree pursuant to Sect{b)(i} to jointly develop Qualified
Jointly-Developed Technology, such Technology shalteemed Non-Qualified Jointly-Developed Technology to which the following
shall apply:

(1) TMC shall own all right, title and interestsati Non-Qualified Jointly-Developed Technology tigNon-Powertrain
Technology; and

(2) Tesla and/or Tesla Subsidiaries shall owniglitr title and interests in all Non-Qualified JiyaDeveloped Technology that is
Powertrain Technology.

(iii) Patent Rights Any Patents resulting from Inventions that arédedied in any of the following shall be jointly oeat: (1) the
Qualified Jointly-Developed Technology and which
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Inventions were made by two or more Personnelljoimith at least one of the inventors having a datyassign rights in an Invention to Tesla
and/or Tesla Subsidiaries, and at least one ahthentors having a duty to assign rights in an triien to TMC or a TMC Affiliate, or (2) the
Payment Technology (subsections (1) and (2), dbliely, the “Joint Patents”). Each Party shall own a one-half (1/2) undividetkrest in
each such Joint Patent without accounting to therd®arty.

(iv) Payment for Foreground Technology that is NRowertrain TechnologyNotwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
Agreement, if a Party pays for the developmentyfleoreground Technology that is Non-PowertrainhPetogy (and such Foreground
Technology that is Non-Powertrain Technology isated, conceived, authored or invented solely byPtey receiving such payment), then
each Party will have an equal and undivided oné{i#&?) joint ownership interest in all such Foregnd Technology that is Non-Powertrain
Technology (“Payment Technology’). The Party receiving such payment hereby irredodg transfers, conveys and assigns to such paying
Party a one-half (1/2) joint ownership interesaimd to the Payment Technology, including a one{12H) interest in all Intellectual Property
Rights therein. Neither Party shall have any didtgazounting to the other Party with respect tgaist ownership interest in any Payment
Technology.

(v) Limitations on Use of Qualified Jointpeveloped Technology and Payment Technologgch Party’s right to use and exploit
the Qualified Jointly-Developed Technology and PagiiTechnology shall be subject to its obligatitmkeep the Qualified Jointlpevelopec
Technology and Payment Technology confidential eding to the terms of Section 6. Notwithstandingtaimg to the contrary in this
Agreement:

(1) each Party shall have the right to freely use exploit the Qualified Jointly-Developed Techrgldhat is Powertrain
Technology and all Intellectual Property Rightsréie;

(2) TMC shall have the right to freely use and ekphe Qualified Jointly-Developed Technology tiNon-Powertrain
Technology, Payment Technology, and all IntellekcRraperty Rights in the foregoing; and

(3) Tesla shall have the right to freely use angl@kthe Qualified Jointly-Developed Technologytlis Non-Powertrain
Technology, Payment Technology, and all IntellecRraperty Rights in the foregoing for any purposiated to Tesla's development,
manufacture and sale of Tesla Vehicles.

(vi) No Implied Rights or LicensesJoint ownership of the Qualified Jointly-DeveldpBechnology and Payment Technology does
not confer any other rights or licenses in eitharty?s Technology or Intellectual Property Rightee if such additional rights or licenses are
required in order for the other Party to practiceige the Qualified Jointly-Developed Technologgyfent Technology and/or the Intellectual
Property Rights therein.
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4. LICENSE GRANTS

(a) Licenses to Perform Under this Agreement

(i) License to TMC. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreet, Tesla hereby grants TMC a limited, worldwiden-
exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up, non-transfble, non sub-licensable right and license tothiselesla Technology and all Intellectual
Property Rights therein for the purposes of evalgabperating and using the Deliverables, perfagnis obligations under this Agreement,
and exercising its rights under this Agreement.

(ii) License to Tesla Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreet, TMC hereby grants Tesla and Tesla Subsidiarie
limited, worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free llfupaid-up, non-transferable, non slitensable right and license to use the TMC Teabmy
and all Intellectual Property Rights therein foe fhurposes of evaluating, operating and using #lez&ables, performing its obligations under
this Agreement, and exercising its rights undes &greement.

(b) Licenses to Powertrain Technology

(i) License to TMC Foreground Technology that isMedrain Technology Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreet,
TMC hereby grants Tesla and Tesla Subsidiariemiéeldl, worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free, fuppaid-up right and license to all TMC
Foreground Technology that is Powertrain Technolagy is a Qualified Disclosure and all IntellectBabperty Rights therein (except Patents)
to use, perform, display, reproduce, create devieatorks, make, have made, use, sell (directlypdirectly), offer for sale or disposition,
import, dispose and otherwise exploit such TMC Bovand Technology that is Powertrain Technology iaral Qualified Disclosure for any
purpose including, without limitation, in its eleictvehicle business and in performing servicest®customers. The foregoing license shall be
fully transferable and sublicenseable.

(i) License to TMC Background Technology that maRrtrain Technology Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreat,
TMC hereby grants Tesla and Tesla Subsidiariemigeld, worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free, fupaid-up right and license to all TMC
Background Technology that is Powertrain Technolagg is a Qualified Disclosure and all IntellectBabperty Rights therein (except Pate
to use, perform, display, reproduce, create devieatorks, make, have made, use, sell (directlydirectly), offer for sale or disposition,
import, dispose and otherwise exploit such TMC Bmokind Technology that is Powertrain Technology iarad Qualified Disclosure for any
purpose including, without limitation, in its eleictvehicle business and in performing servicest®customers. The foregoing license shall be
fully transferable and sublicenseable.
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(c) Licenses to NoiPowertrain Technology

(i) License to Tesla Foreground Technology th&das-Powertrain TechnologySubject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, Tesla hereby grants TMC a limited, wwitid, non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-ughit and license to all Tesla Foreground
Technology that is Non-Powertrain Technology ana @@ualified Disclosure and all Intellectual PrdgeRights therein (except Patents) to use,
perform, display, reproduce, create derivative 8prkake, have made, use, sell (directly or indygabffer for sale or disposition, import,
dispose and otherwise exploit such Tesla Foregrdi@atinology that is Non-Powertrain Technology and Qualified Disclosure for any
purpose. The foregoing license shall be fully tfareble and sublicenseable.

(i) License to Tesla Background Technology thati@Powertrain TechnologySubject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, Tesla hereby grants TMC a limited, wwitl®, non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-uglit and license to all Tesla Background
Technology that is Non-Powertrain Technology anal @ualified Disclosure and all Intellectual PrdpdRights therein (except Patents) to use,
perform, display, reproduce, create derivative 8prkake, have made, use, sell (directly or indygadffer for sale or disposition, import,
dispose and otherwise exploit such Tesla Backgrdigathnology that is Non-Powertrain Technology and Qualified Disclosure for any
purpose. The foregoing license shall be fully tfareble and sublicenseable.

(d) No Other Rights Except as may be explicitly provided in this Agmeent, no licenses or rights to (i) any Technologintellectual
Property Rights that are owned or licensable byafesd (ii) any Technology or Intellectual ProgeRights that are owned or licensable by
TMC are granted, licensed, or otherwise transfearedker this Agreement by implication or otherwiNetwithstanding the foregoing, nothing
herein restricts either of the Party’s rights witspect to Residuals as set forth in Section 8y€pt for Patents). For the avoidance of doubt,
except with respect to the licenses in Section ddd)censes or other rights are granted by eftaaty to the other Party with respect to such
Party’s Patents.

5. COMPENSATION

(a) Initial Quote. TMC acknowledges and understands that the Sixkyoll Dollars ($60,000,000) quote for developmeatvices
pursuant to this Agreement is based on Tesla'snpiredry estimate of the development services, saleegnd [*** ] Prototype Powertrain
Systems to be delivered, and the validation sesvideéhose Prototype Powertrain Systems that niightequired by TMC (the fhitial Quote
"). To the extent that the Services required byRhmal Specifications and Final Statement of Warkh@ number of Prototype Powertrain
Systems are in excess off ] units, the Parties will negotiate in good faithnhutually agree on the payments for such additiBeavices.

(b) Initial Statement of Work and PaymerRromptly after the Effective Date, Tesla shatiyide TMC with the Deliverables set forth in
the Initial Statement of Work and Specificationragovith an invoice for the non-refundable amount 8% ] (“ Initial Payment ") which sum
will
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be applied towards the Initial Quote indicated ahdvotwithstanding the provisions of Section 2{d)y|C shall complete the acceptance
evaluation set forth in Section 2(d), for the Defables set forth in the Initial Statement of Wanrd Specification in no more than five

(5) calendar days and shall pay the invoice fohdadial Deliverables within twenty-five (25) caldar days of such acceptance. Tesla shall be
entitled to an additional payment off ] (* Second Payment) which sum will be applied towards the Initial Qe indicated above upon the
date when Tesla and TMC agree to the Final Spatific. After the date of such agreement, Teslaigslie an invoice to TMC for the Second
Payment and that sum shall be due and payable Tig@s receipt of the invoice. The remaining balané¢he Initial Quote will be paid
according to the schedule and Deliverables seh forthe Final Specifications. To the extent tinet Parties take more than sixty (60) calendar
days to finalize the Final Specifications, Finat®ment of Work, Deliverables and Payment Schedul@dditional progress payment will be
made by TMC for Services to be provided, as agneetlially by the two Parties.

(c) Fees In consideration for provision of the Serviceslenthis Agreement, subject to TMC’s acceptanddefapplicable Deliverable
pursuant to Section 2(d) and Tesla’s delivery efdpplicable Deliverable on the applicable Deliviegte, TMC (or TTC or another entity
designated by TMC) shall pay Tesla the amounieg€s”) and pursuant to the payment schedule to be riiytagreed upon by the Parties and
incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Invoicing; Payment Except as set forth in Section 5(a);(@ll payments from TMC are due within thirty §3alendar days of the dz
of Tesla’s invoice and will be paid in full withoset off or other deduction in U.S. Dollars. Paymeitl be made by wire transfer of
immediately available funds to such bank and actasfesla will direct. In the event that paymenat received within thirty (30) calendar
days of the date of Tesla’s invoice, Tesla willdmgitled in its sole discretion to (a) charge iettron any undisputed outstanding amount from
day to day at the rate of one percent (1%) per @noner the prime lending rate of Bank of Americplgmg from time to time, both before &
after judgment in respect of all invoices outstagdrom their due date until payment is actuallgeiged; (b) suspend performance hereunder
without liability until the outstanding amount iaid in full and the timetable and any other timgeead for the provision of the Services or
Deliverables will be amended accordingly; and/Qrtéeminate this Agreement pursuant to Section ()b

(e) Sales Taxesln the event any sales tax is required to be paldvied by any governmental authority in coni@cttvith any payments
made under this Agreement, TMC shall be responéinlpaying all such taxes which payment shallrbaddition to any Fees payable under
this Agreement.

(f) Manufacturing and Supply Agreementhe Parties acknowledge and agree that TMC willpay any additional fees for use of Tesla
Technology under the Manufacturing and Supply Agreet. Nothing in this Agreement places any oblgatn (a) Tesla to supply any
powertrains to TMC for commercial use, or (b) TMOpurchase any powertrains from Tesla for commkEusia.
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6. CONFIDENTIALITY

(a) Duty to Hold in ConfidenceEach Party (* Recipieri) will preserve in strict confidence and securaiagt accidental loss any
Confidential Information disclosed to it by the ethParty (“ Disclosing Partf). In preserving Disclosing Party’s Confidentiaférmation,
Recipient will use the same standard of care itld/ose to secure and safeguard its own confideinfi@tmation of similar importance, but in
no event less than reasonable care. Any permigggduction of Disclosing Party’s Confidential Infeation shall contain all confidential or
proprietary legends which appear on the originacipient shall immediately notify Disclosing Paiywriting in the event of any loss or
unauthorized disclosure or use of Disclosing Par§onfidential Information. Recipient shall onlyeudisclosing Party’s Confidential
Information for the sole purpose of evaluating,rafiag and using the Deliverables, performing htigations and exercising its rights under
this Agreement.

(b) Exceptions Confidential Information shall not include infoation Recipient can document, which: (i) is or baes (through no
improper action or inaction by Recipient or anyillidfe or Personnel of Recipient) generally knowrhe public (and is readily available
without substantial effort), (ii) was rightfully iits possession or known by Recipient prior to igtdeom Disclosing Party (as evidenced in
writing), (iii) was rightfully disclosed to Recipi¢ by another person without restriction, or (vgsnindependently developed by or for Recig
without access to or use of any Confidential Infation of Disclosing Party.

(c) Permitted DisclosuresRecipient shall permit access to Disclosing Paui@onfidential Information solely to its Affiliateand
Personnel of Recipient and its Affiliates who @ve a need to know such Confidential Informatiord éi) have agreed to comply with
confidentiality terms at least as restrictive assthcontained herein. Except as permitted in tieecese of the licenses and rights granted under
this Agreement, Recipient shall not disclose angfer any Disclosing Party’s Confidential Inforntatito any third party, without the specific
prior written approval of Disclosing Party, excépthe extent required by law or governmental arrtorder to be disclosed by Recipient,
provided that Recipient gives Disclosing Party ppomritten notice of such requirement prior to sdistlosure and cooperates with Disclo:
Party in the latter's attempt, if any, to prevemt!s disclosure or in obtaining a protective or samédrder with respect to such Confidential
Information to be disclosed.

(d) Obligation to Return Confidential InformatioiRecipient acknowledges that Disclosing Partyingtawnership of all Confidential
Information disclosed or made available to Recipiécordingly, upon any termination, cancellatmmexpiration of this Agreement, or upon
Disclosing Party’s request for any reason (othantim violation of this Agreement), Recipient shalithin thirty (30) calendar days after such
termination, cancellation or expiration or requestyrn promptly to Disclosing Party the originaled all copies (without retention of any co
of any written documents, tools, materials or othagible items containing or embodying Confiddrtiéormation of Disclosing Party;
provided, however, that Recipient shall be entittedetain such originals and copies of Confidddtitormation of Disclosing Party as
Recipient shall reasonably
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conclude are necessary to Recipient’s use and iteddm, as permitted by this Agreement, of anytigor licenses retained by Recipient
following such termination, cancellation, expiratior request.

(e) No Representations or WarrantiésSXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN SECTION 7, DISTEING PARTY MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, STAORY OR IMPLIED, RELATING TO THE SUFFICIENCY OR
ACCURACY OF ITS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION DISCLOSEIFOR ANY PURPOSE, NOR REGARDING INFRINGEMENT OF
OTHERS’ INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS WHICH MAY ARIE FROM THE USE OF SUCH CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

(f) No Grant of Property Rights; Residual Inforneaiti Recipient recognizes and agrees that, exceptpessly set forth in this
Agreement, nothing herein shall be construed astiggaany property rights, by license or otherwiseany of Disclosing Party’s Confidential
Information, or to any invention or any patent tighat has issued or that may issued on such Gamtfel Information or to decompile or
reverse engineer any of the Disclosing Party’s @emtial Information. Any rights to such IntelleettProperty Rights are set forth in Sections
3 and 4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Recipidmalishave the right to use and exploit Residualsafty purpose. As used herein, “Residuals”
shall mean ideas, information and understandingséned in the unaided memory of Recipient’s empésyas a result of their review,
evaluation and testing of the Confidential Inforioatof Disclosing Party. For the avoidance of doulat patent or copyright license to
Residuals is granted to either Party under thisi&e6(f). Each Party acknowledges that the otleaty™s receipt of its Confidential Informati
under this Agreement shall not create any obligaiticany way limiting or restricting the assignmeftmployees within such Party.

(9) Confidentiality of AgreementEach Party agrees that the terms and conditibtiésoAgreement shall be treated as confidential
information and that no reference to the termsamlitions of this Agreement can be made withoatghor written consent of the other Party
(such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, iionéd or delayed)provided, howeverthat each Party may disclose the mere existehce o
this Agreement without restriction and may discltseterms and conditions of this Agreement: (ijeagiired by any court, administrative
agency or other governmental body, including witHonitation any filing or public disclosure thatay be required under any national, federal
or state securities law or regulation; (ii) as otfise required by law; (iii) in confidence, to légaunsel of the Parties and other professional
advisors; (iv) in confidence, to accountants, bapksential investors, financing sources and trespective advisors who would not reasonably
be deemed to be potential customers or competifdise other Party; (v) in confidence, in connectwith the enforcement of this Agreement
or rights under this Agreement; or (vi) in confidenin connection with a merger or acquisition mpmsed merger or acquisition, or the like.
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7. LIMITED REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; DISCLAINER

(a) Mutual Representations and WarrantiEsach Party represents and warrants to the otmty that it: (i) has the right to enter this
Agreement, is a corporation duly organized, valieiysting, and in good standing under the lawsefjtirisdiction of its incorporation, (ii) has
the corporate power and authority to execute afidedtehis Agreement and to perform its obligatidrereunder, (i) has by all necessary
corporate action duly and validly authorized theaxion and delivery of this Agreement and thegrentince of its obligations hereunder,
(iv) will perform the Services in accordance withpcable laws and regulations, and (v) this Agreamis the valid and legally binding
obligation of each Party in accordance with itsn®r

(b) Tesla Representations and Warrantissla represents and warrants that it will penftiie Services in a professional nature,
conforming to generally accepted industry-standards

(c) Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMHENNEITHER PARTY MAKES ANY
REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY, OR CONDITION, EXPRESS ORMPLIED. EACH PARTY SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURFSE, NONINFRINGEMENT, AND MERCHANTABILITY.

8. INDEMNIFICATION

(a) Mutual Indemnification Subject to Sections 8(c) and 8(d), each Parg/‘(thdemnifying Party ”) will defend, indemnify and hold
the other Party and its Affiliates (thdridemnified Party ") harmless from and against all third party clajtibilities, damages and costs
(including legal fees and costs), arising fromelated to (i) any allegation that the Tesla Techggl(when Tesla is the Indemnifying Party) or
the TMC Technology (when TMC is the Indemnifyingtyainfringes or misappropriates a third partysdllectual Property Right, (ii) any
parts (including third party parts) supplied by thdemnifying Party under this Agreement, or (i Indemnifying Party gross negligence
willful misconduct.

(b) TMC Indemnification Subject to Sections 8(c) and 8(d), TMC will defemdemnify and hold Tesla and its Affiliates (the
Indemnified Parties ") harmless from and against all third party clajitebilities, damages and costs (including lega&lsfand costs), arising
from or related to TMC's failure to comply with Sim 2(i).

(c) Exceptions The obligations set forth in Section 8(a)(i) simalt apply to the extent such infringement or mg@priation claim arises
out of or is related to: (i) compliance with thelémnified Party’s specifications, (ii) use of thesla Technology (when Tesla is the
Indemnifying Party) or the TMC Technology (when TNEXthe Indemnifying Party) in combination with asgftware, hardware, network,
system, or other technology that was not suppliethb Indemnifying Party or, in the case of theld@schnology, which was not a part of the
Prototype Powertrain Systems as delivered to TMT dsla and accepted by TMC, (iii) any modificatiafishe Tesla
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Technology (when Tesla is the Indemnifying Party)hee TMC Technology (when TMC is the IndemnifyiRgrty) by anyone other than the
Indemnifying Party, (iv) the Indemnified Party ciomting the allegedly infringing or misappropriatiagtivity after being informed by the
Indemnifying Party of modifications that would haaoided the alleged infringement or misapproprigtior (v) use of the Tesla Technology
or Prototype Powertrain Systems (when Tesla idrtlemnifying Party), or the TMC Technology (when TNk the Indemnifying Party) in a
manner that is in breach of the terms and conditafrthis Agreement.

(d) Conditions. The Parties’ indemnification obligations unddst8ection 8 are contingent upon: (i) the IndenexifParty giving prompt
written notice to the Indemnifying Party of anyicdaunder Section 8(a) and 8(b) (provided, howethet failure to give such notification shall
not affect the indemnification provided thereuneecept to the extent, and only to the extent, tiindemnifying Party shall have been
actually prejudiced as a result of such failurey &i) at the Indemnifying Party’s request and exge, the Indemnified Party cooperating in the
investigation and defense of such claim(s). Thedmaified Party shall be entitled to participatgbaot not control) such investigation and/or
defense and to retain its own counsel, at its oxperse. The Indemnifying Party shall not settlearsent to an adverse judgment in any such
claim that adversely affects the rights or intesestthe Indemnified Party or imposes additiondigations on the Indemnified Party, without
the prior express written consent of the Indemdiffarty which consent shall not be unreasonablyheitd.

9. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

EXCEPT FOR BREACHES OF SECTION 6 (CONFIDENTIALITYYNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES WILL EITHER PARTY BE
LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY, UNDER ANY CONTRACT, STRIT LIABILITY, NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER LEGAL OR
EQUITABLE THEORY, FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDETAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS OR COST
OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES IGNNECTION WITH THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS
AGREEMENT HOWEVER CAUSED AND UNDER ANY THEORY OF BBILITY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO CONTRACT
OR TORT AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH PARTY WAS OR SHOUIHAVE BEEN AWARE OR ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF SUCH DAMAGE AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ESENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED REMEDY STATED
HEREIN. EXCEPT FOR BREACHES OF SECTION 6 (CONFIDHRNTIITY), IN NO EVENT SHALL EACH PARTY'’S LIABILITY
ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED#* ]. THE PARTIES AGREE THAT THIS SECTION 9 REPRESENAS
REASONABLE ALLOCATION OF RISK.

10. TERM AND TERMINATION

(a) Term of AgreementUnless otherwise terminated as provided herkia,Agreement shall be effective upon the Effecihage and
shall remain in force until March 31, 2012 _(* Tefjrunless earlier terminated pursuant to the pionis of Section 10(b) or (c).
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(b) Termination for CauseThis Agreement may be terminated by a Party &oise immediately upon the occurrence of and inrdetae
with the following:

() Insolvency Event Either Party may terminate this Agreement bywdglng written notice to the other Party upon teewrence
of any of the following events: (1) a receiver fpainted for the other Party or its property; (8 pther Party makes a general assignment for
the benefit of its creditors; (3) the other Parynenences, or has commenced against it, proceeditgs any bankruptcy, insolvency or
debtor’s relief law, which proceedings are not dg&sad within sixty (60) calendar days; or (4) thieeo Party is liquidated or dissolved.

(ii) Default . Either Party may terminate this Agreement effectipon written notice to the other Party if theestParty violates ar
covenant, agreement, representation or warrantiaiteed herein in any material respect or defaulffgits to perform any of its obligations or
agreements hereunder in any material respect, widtation, default or failure is not cured withtimirty (30) calendar days after written notice
thereof from the non-defaulting Party stating fitention to terminate this Agreement by reasoneibier

(c) Termination for ConveniencéAny time beginning on May 1, 2011, TMC may teratithis Agreement effective upon written notice
to Tesla at any time by bearing all reasonablejed@nd documented development costs incurred blaTg to such point less Fees already
paid by TMC pursuant to Section 5, and upon suchitetion, Tesla shall deliver all in-developmentghucts to TMC.

(d) Survival of Rights and Obligations Upon Terntioa . Sections 1, 2(i), 3, 4(b), 4(c), 4(d), 5 (butedplfor payments accrued as of the
date of termination), 6, 7, 8, 9, 10(d), and 1llishavive termination or expiration of this Agreent.

11. MISCELLANEOUS

(a) Force Majeure Except with regard to the payment of money, rgitharty shall be responsible for any delays cabgeatts of God ¢
any other cause beyond its reasonable controljdinad but not limited to such things as strikests;i acts of war, material shortages, restricting
legislation, embargo, blockage, work stoppage, majtage of a public communications carrier, etey Alelay caused by one Party which
affects the other Party’s ability to perform itdightions according to the terms of this Agreenshdll extend the non-delaying Party’s
obligation to perform by the same number of calenldgs by which the delaying Party delayed in penfag its obligations.

(b) Further Assurancesach Party agrees to cooperate fully with theoBarty and to execute such further instrumemtsyhents and
agreements and to give such further written assesaras may be reasonably requested by the othgr abetter evidence and reflect the
transactions described in and contemplated byAthisement, and to carry into effect the intents puxposes of this Agreement.
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(c) No Exclusivity. The relationship contemplated in this Agreememtdn-exclusive and each Party reserves the ogimter into
arrangements with third parties

(d) Compliance with LawsEach Party warrants that in performance of wartar this Agreement it has complied with or shathply
with all applicable national, federal, state, loeals and ordinances now or hereafter enacteddimdy but not limited to export laws and
regulations.

(e) Relationship of PartiesThe Parties are independent contractors undeititieement and no other relationship is intendediyding e
partnership, franchise, joint venture, agency, eygl/employee, fiduciary, master/servant relatigmsbr other special relationship. Neither
Party shall act in a manner that expresses or @sglirelationship other than that of independentraotor, nor bind the other Party.

(f) No Third Party BeneficiariesUnless otherwise expressly provided for, no miovis of this Agreement are intended or shall be
construed to confer upon or give to any persomttyeother than TMC and Tesla (and their authatiagsignees under Section 11(j)) any
rights, remedies or other benefits under or byaead this Agreement.

(9) Announcement; No Trademark Licens8$e Parties agree that no initial announcementhwer public disclosure of the existence or
terms of this Agreement, unless required by lawajldie made until the Parties have agreed upotettieof and issued an appropriate joint p
release announcing this Agreement. Moreover, neRaety shall have any right or license to usettagemarks, service marks or logos of the
other Party for any purpose without first obtainimgtten consent of the other Party from an auttestirepresentative thereof.

(h) Equitable Relief Each Party acknowledges that a breach by the Bémty of any confidentiality or proprietary righprovision of thit
Agreement may cause the non-breaching Party irab@damage, for which the award of damages wonldb@ adequate compensation.
Consequently, the non-breaching Party may instantaction to enjoin the breaching Party from amy all acts in violation of those
provisions, which remedy shall be cumulative antdexelusive, and the non-breaching Party may deelentry of an injunction enjoining the
breaching Party from any breach or threatened hreathose provisions, in addition to any otherefeo which the non-breaching Party may
be entitled at law or in equity.

(i) Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given iher Party under this Agreement shall be in wgtand shall be personally
delivered or sent by a reputable overnight mawiser(e.g., Federal Express), or by first classl fe@irtified or registered), or by facsimile
confirmed by first class mail (registered or céetif), to the Project Manager of the other Partytidés will be deemed effective (i) three
(3) Business Days after deposit, postage prefdaidaiied, (ii) the next day if sent by overnightimar (iii) the same day if sent by facsimile
and confirmed as set forth above. A copy of anyceathall be sent to the following:
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T™MC Tesla
Toyota Motor Corporation Tesla Motors, It Tesla Motors, Inc
1, Toyot«cho, Toyota City 3500 Deer Creek Roz
Aichi Prefecture 47-8571 Palo Alto, CA 9430«
Japar U.S.A
Attn: General Manage

BR-Electric Drive Vehicles Project De Attn: Legal Departmer
Fax: +8-56£-23-5714 Fax: +1 (650) 70-2613

() Assignment A Party may not assign its rights or delegatelisgations hereunder, either in whole or in pattiether by operation of
law or otherwise, without the prior written consehthe other Party, provided however that no starisent shall be required for an assignment
of this Agreement in the case of a merger, reomgdiain or in whole or part in connection with ttedesor transfer of all or substantially all of
the relevant assets of the assigning Party’s aesetguity. Any attempted assignment or delegatighout the other Party’s written consent
will be void. The rights and liabilities of the Bias under this Agreement will bind and inure te tenefit of the Parties’ respective successors
and permitted assigns.

(k) Waiver and Modification Failure by either Party to enforce any provisidithis Agreement will not be deemed a waiver atifa
enforcement of that or any other provision. Anyweaj amendment or other modification of any prawisof this Agreement will be effective
only if in writing and signed by the Parties.

() Severability. If for any reason a court of competent jurisdintfinds any provision of this Agreement to be dneteable, that
provision of this Agreement will be enforced to theximum extent permissible so as to implementritent of the Parties, and the remainder
of this Agreement will continue in full force antfext.

(m) Governing Law and JurisdictiorThis Agreement and any action related heretd bleajoverned, controlled, interpreted and defined
by and under the laws of the State of Californid #ire United States, without regard to the cordfladtlaws provisions thereof. The exclusive
jurisdiction and venue of any action with respecthe subject matter of this Agreement shall bestate courts of the State of California for
County of Santa Clara or the United States Dis@iotirt for the Northern District of California aedch of the Parties submits itself to the
exclusive jurisdiction and venue of such courtstfer purpose of any such action. The Parties dpaltjf disclaim the UN Convention on
Contracts for the International Sale of Goods.

(n) Headings Headings used in this Agreement are for easefefence only and shall not be used to interprgiaapect of this
Agreement.

(o) Entire AgreementThis Agreement, including all exhibits which @meorporated herein by reference, constitutes thieecagreement
between the Parties with respect to the subjedemat
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hereof, and supersedes and replaces all prior@memporaneous understandings or agreements, woitteral, regarding such subject matter.

(p) Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in two (2) coyates, each of which shall be an original and tegetvhich shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

[Remainder of this page left intentionally blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executedAlgieement by persons duly authorized as of the aladeyear first above writte

By:  /s/ S. Terashi By /s/ JB Straubel
Name Shigeki Terash Name JB Straube
Title: Managing Officel Title: Chief Technical Office
Date: Oct. 6, 201( Date: Oct. 6%, 2010
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Exhibit A
Tesla Background Technology

Tesla Background Technology includes, without latiagn, all of the Tesla Background Technology edab the following Tesla developed
Technologies:

[ Kk ]
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Powertrain Technology
[+ ]
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Non-Powertrain Technology
[+ ]
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SUBSIDIARIES OF TESLA MOTORS, INC.

Tesla Motors Australia, Pty Ltd.

Tesla Motors Canada Inc. (Ontario)
Tesla Motors Denmark ApS

Tesla Motors France SARL

Tesla Motors GmbH (Germany)

Tesla Motors HK Limited

Tesla Motors ltaly Srl

Tesla Motors Japan KK

Tesla Motors Leasing, Inc. (United States)
Tesla Motors Limited (United Kingdom)
Tesla Motors New York, LLC

Tesla Motors SARL (Monaco)

Tesla Motors Singapore Pte Ltd

Tesla Motors Switzerland GmbH

Tesla Motors Taiwan Limited

EXHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No-B38874) of Tesla Motors, Inc. of
our report dated March 2, 2011 relating to therftial statements, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
March 2, 2011



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
[, Elon Musk, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Tesla Motors, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdrhon our most recent evaluation of internal @mver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrant’s Board of Direct¢os persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 3, 201 /s/ Elon Musk

Elon Musk
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Deepak Ahuja, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Tesla Motors, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdrhon our most recent evaluation of internal @mver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrant’s Board of Direct¢os persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 3, 201 /s/ Deepak Ahuji

Deepak Ahuje
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

[, Elon Musk, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sewtk850, that, to my knowledge, the Annual Repoifedla Motors, Inc. on Form 10-K for the
annual period ended December 31, 2010, (i) fullpgies with the requirements of Section 13(a) (id)®f the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and (ii) that the information contained ints&korm 10-K fairly presents, in all material resgethe financial condition and results of
operations of Tesla Motors, Inc.

Date: March 3, 201 /s/ Elon Musk
Elon Musk
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer

I, Deepak Ahuja, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.t&Rec1350, that, to my knowledge, the Annual Repditesla Motors, Inc. on Form 10-K for
the annual period ended December 31, 2010, (i fidmplies with the requirements of Section 13¢)%(d) of the Securities Exchange Ac
1934 and (ii) that the information contained ints&korm 10-K fairly presents, in all material resgethe financial condition and results of
operations of Tesla Motors, Inc.

Date: March 3, 201 /s/ Deepak Ahuji
Deepak Ahuje
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer




